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PART I — PLEADINGS IN CASE No. 998

In the 
Superior

District" rt
Montreal.

10

^ T
Canada King's Bench, Appeal Side
Province of Quebec
District of Montreal
No. A-126082 SUPERIOR COURT

HENRY A. SIFTON, et al, es qual.,

  vs  

ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY, 
jj0 i

PLAINTIFF'S DECLARATION.

Letter from the Defendant to the said late 
C. Winfield B. Sifton, dated 6th 
September, 1927, ........................................

Letter from the Defendant to the said late, 
C. Winfield B. Sifton, dated 28th 
September, 1927 ........................................

Letter from the said Defendant to the said 
late C. Winfield B. Sifton, dated 15th 
October, 1927 ............................................

12 Jan- 1934

Plaintiffs.

Defendant.

1. Clifford Winfield Burrows Sifton of the County of 
Leeds, Out., Solicitor, died at his domicile in the Province of 
Ontario on the 13th of June, 1928, leaving a last Will and 

20 Testament executed on the 20th of July, 1926, which was duly 
probated on the 10th of August, 1928, by which he appointed his 
brothers, the Plaintiffs in the present case, and John W. Sifton, 
Publisher, of the City of Winnipeg another brother, who has 
since died, his testamentary executors, the whole as appears by 
a duly certified copy of the said Will and probate, filed here­ 
with to form part hereof as Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. P-l.

2. During the course of the months of September and 
October, 1927, the Defendant retained the services of the said

.,.-, late C. Winfield B. Sifton to help him have certain plans for 
the development of a proposed hydro-power development by 
means of a canal to be built from Lake St. Francis to Lake St. 
Louis in the Province of Quebec approved by the Canadian 
Federal Government, for which services the Defendant agreed 
inter alia to pay the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton a retainer 
of $5,000., (which was duly paid about the time the contract was 
entered into) and a further sum of $50,000. when the said plans 
had been passed and approved by the Dominion Government, the 
said agreement being set out and contained in the following letters

£0 exchanged between the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton and the 
Defendant, copies of which are filed herewith to form part here­ 
of as Plaintiffs' exhibits, to wit :  

Exhibit No. P-2.

Exhibit No. P-3.

Exhibit No. P-4.
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Letter from the said late C. Winfield B,
Sifton to the Defendant dated 17th
October, 1927 ......................................... .... Exhibit No. P-5.

Letter from the Defendant to the said C.
Winfield B. Sifton, dated 19tli
October, 1927 ............................................ Exhibit No. P-6.

Letter from the said C. Winfield B. Sifton 
10 to the Defendant, dated 23rd October

1927 ............................ ................................ Exhibit No. P-7.

3. The said C. Winfield B. Sifton rendered the services 
he was called upon to render under the terms of the said agree­ 
ment before his death and the said plans were approved by the 
Dominion Government by two Orders-in-Couucil, the first, Order- 
iu-Council P. C. 422 passed 011 or about the 8th March, 1929 and 
the other, Order-iii-Council P. C. 1081 passed on or about the 
22nd June, 1929.

20 4. The Defendant, having been requested and duly put 
in default by the Plaintiffs of paying the said amount of 
$50,000. due to the Estate of the said late C. Winfield 
B. Sifton recognized to/owe the same and on the llth of June'. 
1932, requested a delay of six months to pay the said amount, 
which said delay was granted him on condition that he give them 
a written acknowledgment of his indebtedness, which lie did by 
letter bearing the said date addressed to one of the Plain­ 
tiffs, the said Clifford Sifton, as appears by copy of the said 
letter filed herewith to form part hereof as Plaintiffs' Exhibit 
No. P-8.30

In the
Superior

Court 
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No. 1

Declaration, 
12 Jan. 1934 

(Continued)

5. The said six months' delay so granted by the Plain­ 
tiffs to the Defendant has now expired but the Defendant 
still neglects to pay the said amount of $50,000., although duly 
bound so to do.

6. The Plaintiffs are entitled to claim from the Defendant 
interest at the rate of 5% per annum since the llth of June, 
1932, date on which, having been put in default of paying the 

40 said amount by the Plaintiffs, the Defendant acknowledged the 
debt and requested a delay to pay the same as evidenced by Plain­ 
tiffs' Exhibit No. P-8, the said interest at the present date 
amounting to $3,972.61, which together with the capital forms 
a total sum of $53,972.61.

WHEREFORE the Plaintiffs prays for judgment against 
the Defendant for the said sum of $53,972.61 with interest thereon 
from the present date and costs.

Montreal, 12th January, 1934.

Casgrain, Weldon Demers & Lynch-Staunton,
Attorneys for Plaintiffs.
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DEFEND ANT'S PLEA "f"
Defendant's

For Plea to the action herein, the Defendant says: 15 Maroh 1934

1. That he is ignorant of the matters set forth and alleged 
LO in paragraph 1 thereof.

2. As to paragraph 2 of the said action, the Defendant 
says that he never personally assumed or entered into any un­ 
dertaking or obligation whatsoever in favour of the said late C. 
Winfield B. Sifton. As to the letters in the said paragraph re­ 
ferred to and produced as exhibits number P.2, P.3, P.4, P.5, P.6 
and P.7 the Defendant says that they will speak for themselves 
and subject to the foregoing the said paragraph and any infer­ 
ence or conclusion drawn from the said exhibits is denied. 

20
3. Paragraph 3 of the said action is denied. The Defen­ 

dant, however, admits the passing of the two Orders-in-Council 
therein referred to, but avers that the same were later by statute 
annulled and set aside.

4. Paragraph 4 of the said action is denied. The Defen­ 
dant admits having signed the letter therein referred to as Exhi­ 
bits P.8, which will speak for itself but denies having by virtue 
of the said letter or the matters set forth in the said paragraph 

 ^ assumed or entered into any undertaking or obligation whatso­ 
ever in favour of the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton.

5. Paragraph 5 of the said action is denied. The Defen­ 
dant, however, admits denying to owe and decling to pay the 
Plaintiffs the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) or 
any other sum.

6. Paragraph 6 of the said action is denied. The Defen­ 
dant is not in default of paying the Plaintiffs the sum above 
referred to or any other sum, whether in capital or interest, be­ 
cause he is not indebted to the Plaintiffs in any sum whatsoever.

AND FOR FURTHER PLEA, DEFENDANT SAYS:

7. That the said late C. Winfield B. Clifton at all times 
during his relationship and correspondence with the Defendant 
knew as a fact that the Defendant was acting solely as the re­ 
presentative and as one of the managers of a syndicate called 
the Beauharnois Syndicate which had been formed (and in the



In the
Superior

Court
formation and organization of which the said late C. Winfield B. 
Sifton had participated and assisted) for the purpose of fram- N 2 
ing, developing and carrying out the hydro-electric power deve- Defendant-   
lopment referred to in paragraph 2 of the declaration. islStarcu 1934

r l o r Continued(Continued)

8. That the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton at all times 
^Q during the said relationship and correspondence was aware that 

a corporation known as the Marquette Investment Corporation 
had been appointed and was acting as Trustee Depositary for 
the said syndicate and all payments made to the said late C. 
Winfield B. Sifton including the sum of $5,000.00 referred to in 
Exhibits P. 3 and P.4 were so made to him in the form of cheques 
of the said Marquette Investment Corporation, which the said 
late C. Winfield B. Sifton accepted knowing that the said pay­ 
ments were from the funds of the said Beauharnois Syndicate 
and that he never at any time looked upon the Defendant as per- 

20 sonally involved or bound towards him in any manner, but on 
the contrary fully arid at all times distinctly acknowledged and 
agreed that he looked for payment of all monies, fees or emolu­ 
ments due him under any agreement made with the Defendant 
from the said syndicate or its successors and ayant cause and out 
of their monies alone.

9. That the said Beauharnois Syndicate was originally or­ 
ganized about the 12th of May 1927, that it was reorganized on 
or about the 14th of April 1928 by the creation of the Beauharnois

30 Power Syndicate which assumed all its rights and obligations and 
which ultimately were transferred to and taken over by the De- 
fendant-in- Warranty herein, the Beauharnois Power Corpora­ 
tion Limited, and the Defendant specially and expressly pleads 
and avers that, if by reason of his dealings with the said late C. 
Winfield B. Sifton and the matters alleged in the action and the 
exhibits produced in support thereof, any rights were created 
in favour of the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton (which however 
Defendant denies), such rights never produced any corresponding 
obligations on the part of the Defendant personally but were and

40 are enforcible only and solely against the Beauharnois Syndicate 
and/or the Beauharnois Power Syndicate and/or the Beauharnois 
Power Corporation Limited.

10. That consequently there was no lien de droit or valid 
obligation between the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton and the 
Defendant personally and as a consequence the said late C. Win- 
field B. Sif ton's executors, the present Plaintiffs, have no right 
of action against the Defendant.
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11. That furthermore the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton 
died long before the plans of the said syndicate or its successors N~ 2 
had been passed or approved, the Orders-in-Council referred to Defendant' 
in the action not having adopted until nine months and one 
year respectively after his death and it was not therefore due to 
his efforts that the Federal Government's approval was obtained 

10 at all and furthermore the plans referred to in paragraph 3 of the 
declaration were never definitely approved by the Government of 
the Dominion of Canada and the said Orders-in-Council were sub­ 
sequently by statute avoided and set aside as hereinabove set forth.

12. That the Defendant by his letter of June llth, 1932, 
Exhibit P.8, referred to in paragraph 4 of the declaration did 
not assume any obligation of a personal kind or on his own b°half 
and could not create any obligation or give any valid undertaking 
on behalf of the Beauharnois Syndicate, the Beauharnois Power 

20 Syndicate or the Beauharnois Power Corporation inasmuch as 
he was no longer connected with the Beauharnois enterprise nor 
had he been for a long time previous and was without power 
whatsover to act on behalf of the said syndicate or corporation.

13. That the said letter, Exhibit P.8, by its very context 
shows that it was only written in order to obtain a delay and on 
its face implies no personal undertaking on behalf of the De­ 
fendant whatsover.

30 14. That the Will of the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton 
as shown by Exhibit P.I appears to have been probated on 
the 10th of August 1928; that no effort to enforce any claim 
of the nature set forth in the action appears to have been made 
for nearly four years from the date of the said probate and that 
the action now taken is an afterthought and unfounded.

15. That the Plaintiff's action is unfounded in fact and in 
lave .

4:0 WHEREFORE the Defendant prays for the dismissal of 
the said action with costs.

Montreal, March 15th, 1934.

E. Languedoc, 
Attorney for Defendant.
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PLAINTIFFS ANSWER TO DEFENDANT'S PLEA pwnufw
Answer to 
Defendant's 

_ Plea,
1. The Plaintiffs pray acte of the admission contained 23 Apm 193* 

in Paragraph 2 of the Defendant's Plea, but deny the facts there- 
10 in alleged.

2. In answer to Paragraph 3 of the Defendant's Plea the 
Plaintiffs allege that the facts therein mentioned are irrelevant 
to the present issue and add that once the said plans had been 
approved the Plaintiffs were entitled to be paid the amount due 
the said W.B. Sifton, that in any case, independently of the an­ 
nulment of the said Orders-in-Couneil the plans for the develop­ 
ment of the said proposed hydraulic power were approved 
the works were started and the said canal and hydraulic plant 

20 are in operation today and were in operation long before the in­ 
stitution of the present action, so that the annulment of the first 
Orders-in-Council can have no effect upon the Plaintiffs' rights.

3. The Plaintiffs prays acte of the admissions contained 
in Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Defendant's Plea, but deny all the 
facts therein alleged.

4. The Plaintiffs deny paragraph 6 of the Defendant's 
Plea. 

30
5. The Plaintiffs deny the facts alleged in Paragraph 7 

of the Defendant's Plea and add that even if the said facts were 
true they would not in law affect the Defendant's responsibility.

6. The Plaintiffs deny the facts alleged in Paragraph 8 
of the Defendant's Plea and add that in any event the said facts 
are irrelevant to the present issue and that none of them can 
affect the Defendant's responsibility towards the Plaintiffs.

40 7. In answer to Paragraph 9 of the Defendant's Plea, 
the Plaintiffs declare that they are ignorant of the organization 
and re-organization of the syndicates therein mentioned and the 
transfer of the rights and obligations of the said syndicates to 
the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited and deny the other 
facts alleged in the said paragraph.

8. The Plaintiffs deny Paragraph 10 of the Defendant's 
Plea.



In the 
Superior

9. In answer to Paragraph 11 of the Defendant's Plea 
the Plaintiffs say that at the time of the death of the said W. B. 
Sifton he had rendered all the services he could render and was Plaintiffs- 
called upon to render under the terms of his said agreement with Defendant's 
the Defendant and that under the terms of the said agreement it fs'Aprii 1934 
was specifically provided that he would not be called upon to es- (Continued) 

10 tablish in any way that the approval of the Federal Government 
was obtained through his efforts ; moreover that not only wrere 
the plans for the said development finally approved by the Gov­ 
ernment, but the plant and canal comprising the said develop­ 
ment have been built and the said development is today in ope­ 
ration and was so at the time of the institution of the present 
action, and the Plaintiffs deny all the other facts alleged in the 
said paragraph of the Defendant's Plea.

10. The Plaintiffs deny Paragraph 12 of the Defendant's 
20 Plea.

11. In answer to Paragraph 13 of the Defendant's Plea 
the Plaintiffs say that Exhibit No P-8 therein referred to was 
given by the Defendant to the Plaintiffs on the Defendant's 
representations that he was unable at that time to meet his lia­ 
bility to them, which he thereby recognized, on account of the 
condition of his personal affairs and that he would be in a po­ 
sition to pay and would pay the amount of his indebtedness with­ 
in the delay therein mentioned, and the Plaintiffs deny the re- 

30 mainder of the said paragraph.

12. The Plaintiffs deny Paragraphs 14 and 15 of the 
Defendant's Plea.

WHEREFORE the Plaintiffs pray for the dismissal of 
the Defendant's Plea with costs.

Montreal, 23rd April, 1934.

40 Casgrain, Weldon, Demers & Lynch-Staunton,
Attorneys for Plaintiffs.
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No. 4

DEFENDANT'S REPLY TO PLAINTIFFS' ANSWER

1. He joins issue with the denial contained in paragraph

In the
Superior

Court 
District of 
Montreal.

No. 4
Defendant's 
Reply to 
Plaintiffs'

1 thereof.

2. He joins issue with the Plaintiffs with regard to the 
allegation as to relevancy set forth in paragraph 2 thereof. He 
denies that the Plaintiffs or the late C. Winfield B. Sifton were 
at any time entitled to any rights other than those created by 
the bargain or agreement evidenced by exhibits P.3, P.4, P.5 and 
P.6. He denies that the services thereby retained were ever ren­ 
dered; that the conditions of the agreement were ever complied 
with; or that the remuneration provided for was ever earned. 
It is quite irrelevant to say as stated in the said paragraph that 
the plans had been approved or that the canal and hydraulic 
plant referred to were in operation upon the institution of the 
action as the only point at issue is as to whether in accordance 
with the agreement entered into the late C. Winfield B. Sifton 
before his death had earned the remuneration in question or not.

3. The Defendant joins issue with the Plaintiffs on the 
denial contained in paragraphs 3 and 4 thereof.

4. The Defendant joins issue with the Plaintiffs on the 
denial contained in paragraph 5 and denies the remainder of the 
said paragraph.

5. The Defendant joins issue with the Plaintiffs on the 
denial contained in paragraph 6 and denies the remainder of the 
said paragraph.

6. The Defendant joins issue with the Plaintiffs on the 
denial contained in paragraphs 7 and 8 thereof.

7. The Defendant denies the averment in paragraph 9 
that at the time of his death the late C. Winfield B. Sifton had 
fulfilled his mandate or office under the agreement entered into 
between him and the Defendant acting as already described; the 
said agreement speaks for itself. Is is besides the point, irrele­ 
vant and illegal to say that the plans have been approved and the 
plant and canal are today in operation and were so at the time 
of the institution of the action, for the reasons already herein- 
above stated, and the Defendant joins issue with Plaintiffs on 
the denial concluding the said paragraph.

30 April 1934
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8. The Defendant joins issue with the Plaintiffs on the ^St^Lf 
denial contained in paragraph 10. N 4

Defendant's 
Keply to

9. Paragraph 11 of the said Answer is illegal and is de- 
nied. Exhibit P.8 speaks for itself and beyond its context the 
Plaintiffs cannot go. The Defendant reiterates the allegations 

10 of paragraph 13 of his Plea and adds that by the said Exhibit 
 P.8 he assumed no personal obligation and when he wrote 
the said letter he had retired from office and had no authority 
to act on behalf of those whom he had formerly represented in 
dealing with the said late C. Winfield B. Sifton.

WHEREFORE the Defendant prays for the dismissal 
of the Plaintiffs' Answer to Plea with costs.

Montreal, April 30, 1934. 
20

E. Languedoc, 
Attorney for Defendant.

- 8 No. 5

PLAINTIFFS' REPLICATION TO DEFENDANT'S REPLY
Defendant' s 
Reply

 1. Plaintiffs join issue on paragraphs 4 and 5 of Defen- 2 May 1934

daiit's Reply. 
30

2. Plaintiffs deny each and every allegation contained 
in paragraphs 7 and 9 save in so far as such allegations agree 
with those contained in Plaintiffs' Declaration and Answer, and 
they allege that the allegations so denied are irrelevant and il­ 
legal.

WHEREFORE Plaintiffs, persisting in the conclusions 
of their Declaration and Answer, pray for the dismissal of said 
Reply with costs.

Montreal, May 2nd, 1934.

Weldon, Demers & Lynch-Staunton,
Attorneys for Plaintiffs.
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No. 6

AMENDMENT TO DEFENDANT'S PLEA

In the
Superior

Court 
District of 
Montreal.

No. 6
Amendement 
to
Defendant's 
Plea

The Defendant hereby amends his Plea by adding there- 26 Oct - 1934 
to immediately after paragraph 11 thereof the following para- 

10 graph:  

Ha. THAT, even if by reason of the facts alleged in the 
declaration any contract was ever entered into for the retaining 
of the late C. Winfield B. Sif ton's services by the* Defendant on 
behalf of the said Beauharnois Syndicate or otherwise (which 
is denied), the contractual relationship thereby created was ter­ 
minated at and by the death of the said Sifton without his having 
performed or discharged his undertaking or obligations there­ 
under and without the reward referred to or any part of it ever 

20 becoming due or payable to him or his successors.

Montreal, October 26th, 1934.

E. Languedoc, 
Attorney for Defendant.

PLAINTIFFS' ANSWER TO DEFENDANT'S
AMENDMENT 

30 No. 7
9a. Plaintiffs deny each and every allegation in paragraph 

Ha. of Defendant's Amended Plea and allege that said amount 
was payable to the late W. B. Sifton at the time of his death, 
subject only to the approval referred to in said Declaration, and 
that said approval was afterwards obtained, the whole as ad­ 
mitted by Defendant in his letter, Exhibit P-l. and verbally to 
Plaintiff Clifford Sifton in a conversation at Defendant's of­ 
fice in Montreal, on or about the llth day of June, 1932.

40

No. 7 
Plaintiffs' 
Answer to 
Defendant's 
Amendment
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„ Q In the
JN 0. O Superior

Court 
District of

JUDGMENT GRANTING MOTION BY M°-eal-
DEFENDANT TO UNITE CASES the Superior 

10 Court
-r, . t- /~w i rendered byProvince 01 Quebec, Mr. justice 
District of Montreal. Ailiuunbamt 
No. 126082.

SUPERIOR COURT. 

ON THIS 4th day of September 1934.

PRESENT :— The Hon. Mr. Justice ARCHAMBAULT. 
20

HENRY A. SIFTON ET AL ES QUAL.,
Plaintiffs,

— vs. —

ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY,
Defendant,

— &.—

THE SAID ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY, 
30 Plaintiff-in- Warranty,

— vs.-

BEAUHARNOIS POWER CORPORATION LIMITED,
Defendant-in- Warranty.

THE COURT, having heard the parties by counsel on
the motion for Defendant and Plaintiff -in- Warranty and pray­
ing that the principal action and the action in warranty herein

An be joined for the purposes of enquete and merits and be tried at
the same time and decided on the same evidence;

DOTH GRANT the said motion as prayed, costs to follow.

Jos. Archambault, 
J.A./TG J. C. S.
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EGBERT 0. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff on Discovery) 3SS£if
Examination in chief. N— 9

Plaintiffs' 
..... _. Evidence

Plaintiffs Evidence on Discovery Deposit
of Robert 
O. Sweezey 

______________ en Discovery

No. 9 
10 DEPOSITION OF ROBERT 0. SWEEZEY,

A witness examined on behalf of Plaintiffs on Discovery.

On this twenty sixth day of October, in the year of Onr 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally came 
and appeared Robert O. Sweezey, of the City and District of 
Montreal, the Defendant in this Action, a witness produced and 
examined on behalf of the Plaintiffs on Discovery, who, being
duly sworn, deposes as follows: 

2t\J
Examined by Mr. We-ldon, K. C., of Counsel for Plain­ 

tiffs :—

Q.—You are the Defendant in this Action?
A.—Yes.
Q.—In 1927 were you carrying on business in a firm of 

investment bankers ?
A.—Yes.

30 Q'—Were you also a promoter of hydro-electric power 
developments ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—You knew the late Mr. C. W. B. Sifton some time be­ 

fore that 1
A.—Yes.
Q.—In the letter filed as Exhibit P-2, from yourself to 

Mr. C. W. B. Sifton, dated September 6th, 1927, you refer to a 
Mr. Griffith. Mr. Griffith was then your partner ?

A.—Not in the strict sense of a partnership. He was a 
40 member of the Syndicate.

Q.—A member of the Syndicate, with you?
A.—A member of the Power Syndicate. Mr. Griffith was 

a partner in the Power Syndicate, but he was simply a share­ 
holder in Newman, Sweezey & Company, which, strictly speak­ 
ing, was not a partnership.

Q.—But, you regarded him as a partner in your firm 1?
A.—Yes.
Q.—He was afterwards Secretary of the Beauharnois 

Power Corporation, Limited 1?
A.—He was Secretary of the Corporation after it was 

formed.
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10

20

30

ROBERT 0. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff on Discovery)
Examination in chief.

Q.—At that time, September, 1927, you were interested 
in having certain plans of the development of the St. Lawrence 
River approved by the Dominion Government ?

A.—I, personally, and my Syndicate, were.
Q.—You, personally, and your Syndicate, were all inte­ 

rested.
A.—Yes.
Q.—Plans of this development were afterwards submitted 

to the Dominion Government, were they not?
A.—Yes.
Q.—And, the plans submitted to the Dominion Govern­ 

ment were approved by the Government, were they not ?
A.—They were approved in one sense, and yet, to my 

knowledge, never approved in another sense, in detail.
Q.—When you say they were not approved in another 

sense in detail, do you mean that generally they were approved ?
A.—There was an approval by Order in Council, but the 

construction to be based on that approval was subject to other 
approvals which were given from time to time. As a matter of 
{act, some of them were not given.

Q.—Later approvals were given on details of construction. 
Is that what you mean ?

A.—Yes.; and those which were given were never com­ 
pleted until we got into trouble with the subsequent Government.

Q.—The subsequent Government did subsequently approve 
the plans for development, did they not?

A.—I do not know. The confusion became so great then 
that we did things which really could not afford to wait for ap­ 
provals, and we had to go ahead with some details without ap­ 
proval.

Q.—As a matter of fact some plans were approved, and 
construction begun, and construction completed, of the power 
development?

A.—Not completed, but carried on.
Q.—And, power has been developed, and is being developed 

on that site now ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—And was before the institution of this Action, in 

January last?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Do you remember how soon the general plans were 

submitted for general approval to the Dominion Government? 
Would it be in 1928?

In the
Superior

Court 
District of 
Montreal.

No. 9 
Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

Deposition 
of Robert 
O. Sweezey 
on Discovery 

(Continued)
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ROBERT O. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff on Discovery)
Examination in chief. N— 9

Plaintiffs' 
»TT n ii' • j i Evidence

A. — I do not recall exactly, but it was approximately some — •
j.- 1 • -tr^r.0 T XT • i Deposition
time early in 1928, I think. of lw««

Q. — And, I think you plead they were not approved by the en Discovery 
Government until after the death of Mr. Sifton? 

10 A. — There was certainly no approval during Mr. S if ton's 
lifetime. It was certainly after his death.

Q. — You are aware Mr. Sifton died in June, 1928 ?
A.— Yes.
Q. — Between September 6th, 1927, and the death of Mr. 

C. W. B. Sifton, in June, 1928, he did work to have those plans 
approved by the Dominion Government, did he not?

A. — He did preliminary work, but there was no direct 
application for the approval of plans.

Q. — But, work was done by him with respect to having 
20 them approved ?

A. — Yes, he did work leading up to the approval, undoub­ 
tedly.

Q.— He did hard and effective work to get them approved, 
did he not ?

A. — That is a matter of opinion.
Q. — It is not your opinion he did hard and effective work 

to have them approved ?
A. — I do not know I would express it that way. He worked 

incessantly at the idea; trying to overcome obstacles of which 
there were many.

Q.— In the letter of October 15th, 1927, from yourself to 
Mr. C. W. B. Sifton, filed as Exhibit P-4, 1 find the following :—

"It is further agreed between us that when our 
plans have been passed and approved by the Dominion 
Government............" etc.

You had in mind the general approval, did you not 1?
40 Mr. Languedoc: — It is understood that this evidence is

being made subject to a general objection to reference to copies 
of those letters until they are proved.

The objection is reserved by consent of Counsel in the 
absence of a Judge.

A. — I do not know that I had anything special in mind. 
I was under the impression that one snap approval was all that 
was needed, but I afterwards found there were numerous forma­ 
lities necessary in the way of approvals.
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ROBERT 0. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff on Discovery)
Examination in chief. N— g

Plaintiffs' 
Evidence

By Mr. Weldon, continuing:— DePo S^on
of Robert 
O. Sweezey

Q. — You found that out after Mr. Sif ton's death 1?
A. — Yes.

10 Q- — Did you have an interview with Mr. Clifford Sifton, 
one of the Executors of Mr. C. W. B. Sifton, and one of the 
Plaintiffs, about June llth, 1933?

A. — I could not remember the date, but I have had two or 
three interviews with him.

Q. — About fifteen or eighteen months ago?
A.— Yes.
Q. — Did you not discuss with him at that time the ap­ 

proval you had in mind when that letter was written in October, 
1927?

20 A. — I really do not recall what I may have discussed with 
him. I know he was anxious to have his brother's estate settled 
up, and he wanted to know where he stood with this $50.000 
affair.

Q. — At that time did you not tell him your understood 
the approval to mean the first general approval of the plans by 
the Dominion Government?

Mr. Laiiguedoc, K. C., of Counsel for Defendant, objects 
to the question as illegal.

The objection is reserved by consent of Counsel in the 
absence of a Judge.

A.—I do not know. I do not recall.
Q.—Did you have an interview with Mr. Victor Sifton, 

one of the Executors, and one of the Plaintiffs in this case ?
A.—I do not recall whether I did. Of course, I knew him, 

and I met him from time to time; but it is so long since I have 
seen him that I do not know whether I had any discussion with 
him on this case or not.

Q.—I show you a letter, purporting to be written by you 
to Mr. Victor Sifton, dated July 14th, 1928; and I ask you if you 
wrote that letter, and if it is signed by you?

A.—This is my writing, but I do not recall what the re­ 
ference is.

Q.—And, it bears your signature?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Will you file this letter as Exhibit P-9 ?
A.—Yes.
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EGBERT 0. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff on Discovery)
Examination in chief. Mon^

No. 9 
Plaintiffs'

Q. — The pencil marks and letters were not on the letter Evtde^_e 
when you wrote it! STob'erT

A __ XTn O. Sweezey 
-d.. j-T w. cn Discovery

10 Q- — I show you the letters attached to an original Act of < Continu<!(i > 
Deposit signed, sealed and certified by Ed. Cholette, Notary, 
of Montreal, dated January 13th, 1934, under his notarial No. 
29670, as follows :—

A letter purporting be written and signed by R. O. Sweezey, 
addressed to W. B. Sifton, Mallorytown, Ontario, dated Mont­ 
real, September 6th, 1927 ;

Was th^at letter signed by you, and sent to Mr. W. B. 
20 Sifton?

A. — That is my signature.
Q. — Attached to the same notarial Act of Deposit is a 

letter dated September 28th, 1927, purporting to be signed by 
you, and addressed to W. B. Sifton. Was that letter signed by 
you <?

A.— Yes.
Q. — Attached to the same Act of Deposit is a letter dated 

October 15th, 1927, purporting to be signed by you, and addressed 
30 to W. B. Sifton. Did you sign that letter"?

A.— Yes.
Q. — Attached to the same Act of Deposit is a letter pur­ 

porting to be signed by you, addressed to W. B. Sifton, dated 
October 19th, 1927. Was that signed by you ?

A.— Yes.
Q.— On the last letter, dated October 19th, 1927, is a me­ 

morandum dated October 25th, 1927, beginning "Dear Bob", 
and signed "W. B. S." Did you receive that letter back with 

JA that memorandum on itl
A. — I do not recall now.
Q. — Do you know whether the initials "W. B. S." are 

those of the late Mr. W. B. Sifton?
A. — I do not recall that letter having been sent to me. 

That may be a copy of a letter he sent to me, he retaining the 
original. I do not recall having received this back. He may have 
written a separate letter, and this may be a copy for his own 
files.

Q. — Attached to the same Act of Deposit is a letter in 
handwriting, purporting to be addressed to Mr. Clifford Sifton,
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ROBERT 0. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff on Discovery)
Examination in chief. —

' No. 9 
Plaintiffs'

and to be signed by you, dated June llth, 1932. Did you write Evlde^le
J • J.1 A. 1 i.j. o Depositionand sign that letter? of Robert

» -IT- O. Sweezey 
A.—— 1 CS. on Discovery

10 Q-—The memorandum in ink on the margin of the first < Contlnued) 
page of the letter, of course, was not on the letter when you wrote 
it?

A.—No.
Q.—Did you receive from Mr. W. B. Sifton a letter dated 

October 17th, 1927, in reply to your letter of October 15th, al­ 
ready referred to"?

A.—I have a very faint recollection of this, and appa­ 
rently it was sent to me. I have a faint memory of it. I presume 
the original must be somewhere. Whether it agrees accurately 

20 with the copy or not, I do not know.
Q.—You cannot verify the copy, but you did receive a 

letter about that date, in the substance of this letter ?
A.—I have a recollection of the substance of that letter. 

That is all I can say.
Q.—Have you seen the copies of letters already filed as 

Plaintiffs' Exhibits P-2 to P-8 inclusively?
A.—I cannot identify them, because I have not got them.

Mr. Weldon:—I have no further questions. 
30

Mr. Languedoc:—I have no cross-examination. 

(And further Deponent saith not).

J. H. Kenehan, 
Official Court Reporter.
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Plaintiffs Evidence at Enquete

No. 10 
10 DEPOSITION OP ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY,

A witness examined on behalf of the Plaintiffs.

On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally 
came and appeared Robert Oliver Sweezey, of the City and 
District of Montreal, Civil Engineer, aged 50 years, a witness 
produced and examined on behalf of the Plaintiffs, who, being 

2Q duly sworn, deposes as follows:

Examined by Mr. Weldon, K.C., of Counsel for Plain­ 
tiffs :—

Q.—At your examination on discovery, some few weeks 
ago, you identified a letter signed by yourself, dated July 14th, 
1928, beginning: "Dear Victor". This letter was produced as 
Exhibit P-9. Was that letter sent by you to Mr. Victor Sifton, 
one of the Plaintiffs in this Action? 

30 A.—Yes.
Q.—In the correspondence between yourself and the late 

Winfield Sifton there is a letter of September 28th, 1927 
(Exhibit P-3), in which you state: "I am just sending you the 
cheque for $5000. in the meantime for your retaining services". 
That cheque was paid by you out of your own funds, to the late 
Mr. Sifton, was it not 1

A.—I do not recall. I remember the incident of sending 
the cheque, but I do not recall whether it was my own, or Syn­ 
dicate, money.

40 Q.—Did you see a Statement filed by the Secretary of 
the Defendant in Warranty at his examination on discovery a 
short time ago, which Statement was filed as Exhibit P-W- 
9 ?

A.—I remember seeing this first Statement, yes. I do not 
remember seeing the second one.

Q.—The second page is part of the same Exhibit, and 
purports to set out a voucher, No. 191, for a payment made to 
R. 0. Sweezey to reimburse him for payment made to W. B. 
Sifton. The payment in question is April 28th, 1928; Marquette

No. 10 
Plaintiff s 
Evidence

Deposition of 
Robert Oliver 
Sweezey 
Examination



— 19 —

In the
Superior

ROBERT 0. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff) Examination in chief. 

Investment voucher Xo. 191, $5000. Does not that refresh vour piamtm-s
. ' " Evidencememory ?

A. — It would indicate to me that I must have paid him 
the $5000 out of my own funds, and be<en reimbursed by the 
Marquette Investment Company.

10
The subsequent payments, I take it, were all made by the 

Syndicate.

Q. — The Syndicate or the Company?
A.— Yes.
Q. — That is, by the Syndicate, or by various Companies?
A.— Yes.
Q. — You had a discussion with the Plaintiff, Clifford 

Sifton, in June, 1932, about the time yen signed the letter which 
20 We have filed as Plaintiff's Exhibit P-8, did you not?

A.— Yes.
Q. — When I examined you on Discovery I referred to 

that date as June llth, 1933. The date should have been Juno 
llth, 1932.

A.— Yes.
Q. — With that correction of date, do you now recall that 

you discussed with Mr. Clifford Sifton the terms of the proposed 
letters Exhibits P-5, P-6, and P-7 ; and, particularly, the mean­ 
ing of the expression "Approval of plans'"?

^ A. — I do not recall anything in particular, but I do recall 
having discussed it.

Q. — Do you remember that Mr. Sifton asked you at that 
time whether, in fact, the plans had not been approved ?

Mr. Tyiadale-: — The Defendant in Warranty objects to 
any verbal evidence, in so far as it may effect the position of the 
Defendant in Warranty. The witness is the Defendant in the 
Principal Action, and I think we should enter our objection 

40 inasmuch as the proof is common ...........

Mr. Languedoc: — It seems hardly regular to ask a wit­ 
ness about a conversation appertaining to a letter, without him 
being given communication of the letter. He cannot be expected 
to remember what has been written, among the mass of cor­ 
respondence.

When the letter is handed to the witness, and submitted 
to the Court, if it is found it is complete in its context, this line 
of examination would be illegal.
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No. 10

His Lordship:—The witness is certainly entitled to com- 1^°"" s 
munication of the letter. Deposit of

Robert Oliver 
Sweezey

As to the other objection, I will take the evidence under E*g^ 
10 reserve of it. There are so many documents in the record.

Mr. Weldon:—There were seven letters, on which the 
Action was based, which were handed to Mr. Cholette, Notary, 
by Act of Deposit, and I now have a certified copy of the Act of 
Deposit. Mr. Sweezey was interrogated on the letters, and, on the 
objection of my learned friend, I had the Notary's original 
Minute produced, and the original letters as attached to the Act 
of Deposit shown to Mr. Sweezey on Discovery. Mr. Sweezey 
identified and admitted signing all the letters which purported 

20 to be signed by him, and I now produce the Notary's certified 
copy of his Act of Deposit.

Mr. Languedoc:—Even though the witness has been ex­ 
amined on Discovery and has admitted he wrote the letters he 
cannot be asked again to re-admit the fact. Let my learned friend 
file the examination on discovery if he wishes to do so.

Mr. Weldon:—I am simply showing the witness a copy 
of the letter he has already admitted, and questioning him as to 

30 whether there was any discussion as to the meaning of " ap­ 
proval".

His Lordship:—I will take the evidence under reserve of 
the objection.

Mr.—Languedoc:—I would like to associate myself with 
my friend's objection on behalf of the Defendant in Warranty.

,~ By Mr. Weldon, continuing:—

Q.—Do you remember that Mr. Sifton asked you at that 
time whether, in fact, the plans had not been approved? And 
I show you a notarial copy of the letter of June llth, 1932, which 
has been produced as Exhibit P-8.

A.—I am not just clear as to exactly what the question 
means.

Q.—Do you remember that Mr. Sifton asked you at that 
time whether, in fact, the plans had not been approved? And
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ROBERT O. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff) Examination in chief.

1 show you a notarial copy of the letter of June llth, 1932, which 
has been produced as Exhibit P-8?

A. — Mr. Sifton did ask me at the time whether, in my *gj%ge Oliver 
opinion, the plans had been approved, but I was unable to give Eraminltion
i • • • i , , i , i • i T-I-T , i (Continued)

10 him an opinion that was worth anything, because I did not know. 
I proceeded to explain what had occurred — in that the plans 
had been approved only after Mr. Sif ton's death, and that there 
was a complication that had arisen due to the cancellation of the 
Order in Council. I further pointed out that I knew nothing 
about the legalities of it.

Q. — Did you not also tell Mr. Sif ton' that the approval in 
question that letter was the general approval that had been ob­ 
tained from the Government *?

A. — I do not recall that. I recall saying that the question
20 was one which really rested with the Legal Department of the 

Beauharnois Company.

His Lordship : — What do you mean by "general approval". 
Mr. Weldon?

Mr. Weldon: — Apparently there is a general approval of 
plans, subject to detail approval as regards locks, and bridges, 
or other possible changes in matters of detail of the construction.

on
Our point is as to whether or not Mr. Sweezey told Mr. 

Sifton it was a general approval.

His Lordship: — What was the date of this conversation!

Mr. Weldon :— June llth, 1932 ; the day on which Exhibit 
P-8 was written.

Mr. Languedoc : — It seems to me quite outside of the rules 
4Q of evidence and examination to present a witness with a letter 

which is perfectly plain, and ask him "What did you say three 
or four or five years afterwards with regard to the meaning of 
a certain word 1?" The witness cannot qualify the letter long 
after the death of the man to whom it was written.

His Lordship : — The witness is your client. ] think the \ 
evidence is legal.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing:
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Q.—Did you not also tell Mr. Siftoii that the approval
in question in that letter was the general approval that had been
1-L-i.c J.I/-N ±r> Deposition of

obtained from the Government ? 01 oliver
A. — I do not recall what I said on that score. We had 

10 a lot of conversation, discussing what constituted an approval, 
and I do not recall the precise tenor of my ideas at the time.

Q. — You will not admit, or deny, that you said it ?
A.— No.
Q. — Have you the original of the letter from the late W. 

B. Sif ton to yourself, dated October 17th, 1927 ?
A.— No.
I am a little confused as to what the letter actually is. If 

I had the letter I think Mr. Languedoc would have it now. I 
on do not carry it with me at all.

Q. — Can you answer or not you received the original of 
the letter of October 17th, 1927, copy of which is produced as 
Exhibit P-7?

A. — I have a recollection of a letter along those lines, yes ; 
but I am not saying whether or not this is it.

Q. — Have you any doubt this is a true copy of the original 
letter?

A. — No, I have not.
30 Mr. Languedoc: — It has not been proved the original is 

destroyed or lost. If the original is in existence, and available, 
it should be produced.

Mr. Weldoii: — And, I have asked for it.
Mr. Languedoc: — Mr. Sweezey has not the original. It 

was turned over to the Beauharnois Corporation.

Mr. Weldon : — I have se-rved notice to produce it, and if 
it is not produced I should be allowed to make secondary evi-

._ dence. 
40

His Lordship : — As I understand it, it is not in the pos­ 
session of "the person to whom it was sent ?

Mr. Languedoc: — My learned friend would have to show 
it was in our possession, or had been lost or destroyed. We know 
where it is, and, as a matter of fact I can tell your Lordship it 
is in this Court room.

His Lordship: — Then, why not produce it 1?
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Mr. Languedoc: — It has been produced, and it is in the | ê̂ fe' s
record. It is amongst the papers produced with Mr. Christie's Depos : ônot
examination on discovery. swbeerzteyoliver

„ _. r 1 i • • ExaminationBy Mr. Weldon, continuing: — (continued)

Q. — Pending search for the missing letter : have you the 
letter from the late W. B. Sifton to yourself, dated October 
23rd, 1927?

A. — I remember seeing this letter, but I assume all those 
documents having been turned over to Mr. Languedoc are ia 
Court. I do not carry them with me,

Q. — Have you any doubt the copy I show you is a true 
copy of the original letter you received on or about October 23rd, 
1927 ? 

20 A. — I have no reason to doubt it.
Q. — To obviate the necessity of filing two or three copies 

of the same thing : the copies of letters I have just shown you, 
of October 17th, 1927, and October 23rd, 1927, are in the same 
terms as the letters of those dates attached to a certified copy 
of the Act of Deposit of Mr. Edward Cholette, Notary?

A. — I have no reason to doubt those are all copies of the 
same letters.

Q.— The originals of the two letters of October 17th, 1927, 
and October 23rd, 1927, are already filed as Exhibit P-W- 

30 ]Q ?

Mr. Tyndale : — Perhaps it would be more accurate to say 
Exhibit P-W-10 is a file of correspondence produced by the 
Defendant in Warranty at the request of the Plaintiff in War­ 
ranty.

By Mr. Weldon continuing : —
Q. — They are included in the file of correspondence al­ 

ready produced as Exhibit P-W-10?
^ Mr. Languedoc : — Yes, they are. 

By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —
Q. — Have you in your possession a letter from Mr. Clifford 

Sifton, one of the Plaintiffs, dated April 16th, 1932?
A. — I do not know. If I have it it is in the file which is 

now in Court.
Mr. Languedoc : — I have the letter.
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Q. — Will you produce it as Exhibit P-10? Sobersttiooii°ver
"A "Vpc* Sweezey 

•"•• -1- co- Examination
Q. — Did you write Mr. Clifford Sifton the letter of April (continued) 

10 23rd, 1932 ?
A.— Yes.
By Mr. Languedoc: —
Q. — Did you underline any parts of it in red?
A.— No.
By Mr. Weldon, continuing : —
Q. — The red handwriting was not on the letter when you 

sent it? 
A* A.— No.

Q.— Will you file this letter as Exhibit P-ll?
A.— Yes.
Q. — Did you receive from Mr. Clifford Sifton a letter 

dated April 27th, 1932, and, if so, will you produce it as Exhibit 
P-12?

Mr. Languedoc: — I do not really see what this letter has 
to do with the case. It is a claim by Mr. Sifton against Mr. 
Sweezey.

30 Witness : — I cannot say I recall this letter. If I have it it
would be among those produced with Mr. Languedoc. 

Mr. Languedoc : — I have not the letter.
Witness: — There is another letter, written by me sub­ 

sequently to that date.
By Mr. Languedoc: —
Q.— What is the date of it?

4.0 A. — May 2nd, 1932. That would be in the Beauharnois 
files. It would not be in my personal file.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing : —
Q. — Do you say you received the original of the letter of 

April 27th, 1932?
A. — I do not recall. If I did it would be in the files of the 

Beauharnois Company, I should judge; seeing that the answer 
was written on the '.letterhead of the Beauharnois Company.

Q. — You wrote Mr. Sifton, on May 2nd, 1932, acknow-
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lodging "A recent letter". Does not that indicate that the l1̂ 1^' 3 
original of the letter of April 27th, 1932, was received from Mr. Dep08i ônof
Sif tOIl ?

A.— It would appear so.
10 Q.— Will you file it as Exhibit P-12 ? 

A.— Yes.
I do not know if I received it or not. If it came it probably 

would be in the files of the Beauharnois Company.
Q. — I thought you said just now you have no doubt you 

received the original.
A. — I do not want to put it as emphatic as that.
Mr. Tyndale : — Does my friend want to produce the letter 

9n of May 2nd, 1932 ? There is no proof, so far, of the letter of April 
ZU 27th, 1932.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —
Q.— Did you write to Mr. Clifford Sifton the letter of 

April 27th, 1932, and, if so, will you produce it as Exhibit P-13 ?
Mr. Tyndale: — I object, inasmuch as the document shown 

the witness is only a copy, and the witness has not recognized it 
as a copy of the original.

2Q His Lordship : — He says he does not remember if he re­ 
ceived it. That is not sufficiently definite proof of the document 
to allow it in the record.

Mr. Weldon: — Then, Exhibit P12 is withdrawn.
By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —
Q.— Did you write this letter of May 2nd, 1932 ?
Mr. Languedoc : — I ask my learned friend what is the 

purpose of this question.
^ Mr. Weldon : — I am entitled to file all the correspondence 

referring to the claim.
His Lordship : — Counsel is entitled to file the letter, as 

part of the correspondence between the parties. Its relevancy 
may be dealt with afterwards.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —
Q.— Did you write this letter of May 2nd, 1932 ?
A.— Yes.
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Q.— Will you file it as Exhibit P-12 ? 15ES£' B
-ti.. —— JL GS. _

Q. — Have you a letter from Mr. Siftou dated May 12th, Robert oiiver
T-l •/ " ./ ' gweezey

1932 ? Examination
(Continued)

10 Mr. Languedoc :— I have a letter of May 12th, 1932. 
By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —
Q. — Will you produce this letter as Exhibit P-13 ? 
A.— Yes. "
Q. — Did you write to Mr. Siftou the letter of May 13th, 

1932, and, if so, will you produce it as Exhibit P-14? 
A.— Yes. 
Q. — Did you receive from Mr. Siftou the letter dated

on June 13th, 1932, and, if so, will you produce it as Exhibit P-15 « £i\j
Mr. Languedoc : — I do not think we have that letter.
As I understand it, your Lordship is admitting all those 

letters under reserve of our objections. Here are documents which 
purport to prove the case ex parte from the point of view of the 
Plaintiffs, and there are no originals.

Mr. Weldon : — My question to Mr. Sweezey is whether he 
has the letter.

OQ Witness : — I have not seen the letter yet. 
By Mr. Tyndale :—
Q. — Have you the letter of which this purports to be a 

copy ?
Mr. Languedoc: — Even if he had, it would be valueless. 
Mr. Weldon: — That is a matter of opinion.
Mr. Languedoc : — In any event, I object to the production 

of the document. 
40 His Lordship : — I will allow it, under reserve.

Witness : — I do not recall this letter, but apparently, it 
refers to another.

His Lordship : — Of course, it cannot be allowed in the re­ 
cord until it is proved.

Mr. Weldon : — I am only asking the witness if he has the 
original letter.
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Witness: — I do not recall it. If there is such a letter, I l^^' 3 
think it would not be in my personal files. *' C ;-e ,

J *• Deposition of 
_ -- , . Kobert Oliver
By Mr. Weldon, continuing: — sweezey

17 ' & Examination

10 Q- — Will you please look through the files and see if you 
can find that letter ?

A. — What I suggest is it might be in the Beauharnois 
files.

Q. — Have you access to the Beauharnois files'?
A.— No.
Q. — Are they here in Court ?
A. — I do not know.
Mr. Weldon: — Mr. Languedoc are the Beauharnois files 

20 in Court ?
Mr. Languedoc : — I do not know.
Mr. Weldon: — Are the Beauharnois files in Court, Mr. 

Tyndale ?
Mr. Tyndale: — We have produced everything we have 

been asked to produce.
Mr. Weldon: — Have you the file of correspondence be 

tween Mr. Sweezey and Mr. Siftonf
30 Mr. Tyndale: — Yes. We produced it in the Warranty 

Action, with the examination on discovery of Mr. Christie. They 
belong to the Plaintiff in Warranty now.

Mr. Languedoc : — The proof is made common to both cases.
Mr. Tyndale: — The file of correspondence is Exhibit P- 

W-10.
By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —
Q. — I am advised that the letters to which you refer are 

*0 in an Exhibit already produced by the Defendant in Warranty 
as P-W-10.

Mr. Tyndale: — Counsel for the Defendant in Warranty 
declares that, at the request of the Plaintiff in Warranty, all the 
correspondence in possession of the Defendant in Warranty 
relating to this matter has been produced as Exhibit P-W-10.

Witness: — The last correspondence here seem to be 1928, 
and this is 1932. So, it is not there.
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By Mr. Weldon, continuing:—
Deposition of

Q. — Have you the letter from Mr. Clifford Sifton to your- 
self, dated June 13th, 1932 ?

-.Q A. — I do not think so. If we had it we would have brought 
it to Court. We have searched our files for everything apper­ 
taining to this matter, and anything that was there has been hand­ 
ed over to Mr. Languedoc, or to the Company.

Q. — What has become of the letter that you received?
A. — I do not know. I do not say I did not receive it, but I 

do not recall it.
Q. — Have you the original of the copy of letter I now 

show you, which purports to be a copy of a letter of June 13th, 
1932, addressed to yourself? 

20 A. — I have just read it now.
Q. — Does it indicate that yo^^ did receive a letter from Mr. 

Clifford Sifton on or about that date?
A. — It purports to be a letter written to me, but I say I 

do not recall it.
Q. — Does it indicate that you did receive a letter written 

by Mr. Sifton about that time 1
A. — I do not quite understand your question.

His Lordship — The witness says he does not recall the 
30 letter.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing : —

Q. — Will you look at the letter I show you. dated June 
8th, 1933, and will you state if it was sent by you to Mr. Clifford 
Sifton?

A. — That is my letter.
Q.— Will you file it as Exhibit P-15?
A.-Yes.

*u Q. — You refer in that letter to a letter received from Mr. 
Sifton of date June 7th, 1933?

A.— Yes.
Q. — Have you the letter which you received from Mr. Sif­ 

ton under date June 7th, 1933, and, if so, will you please produce 
it ?

A. — Mr. Languedoc would have it.

Mr. Languedoc: — I have it.
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By Mr. Weldon, continuing:— llYd"""' 8 

Q.— Will you produce it, as Exhibit P-16?
A ATpr; Examination -ca.. j. <^o. (Continued)
Q. — Did you receive from Mr. Sifton a letter dated June 

10 9th, 1933, and, if so, will you produce it?

Mr. Languedoc: — Yes, we have the letter, and we will 
produce it as Exhibit P-17.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing : —

Q. — Did you write Mr. Sifton the letter I now show you, 
dated June 17th, 1933 ?

A.— Yes.
20 Q.— Will you produce this letter as Exhibit P-18? 

A.— Yes.
Q. — Did you receive a letter from Mr. Sifton, dated June 

19th, 1933?

Mr. Languedoc : — I have not it here. 

Witness : — I do not recall this.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing: — 
30

Q. — You do not know whether or not you received it, and 
you have not the original among your correspondence?

A.— No.
Q. — Did you receive from Mr. Sifton the letter dated July 

27th, 1933, and, if so, will you please produce it ?
A. — If I have the letter, it is here. I have a recollection 

of the substance of this, but I do not recall the letter itself.
Q. — You have a recollection you did receive a letter from 

Messrs. Plaxton, Sif ton & Company, dated July 27th, 1933 ? 
4( A. — I am not sure about the date, but I recollect the sub­ 

stance of that.
Q. — You have no letter on your file, or in your possession, 

which corresponds with the letter you received about that time?
A. — If it is not in the file, I have not it in my possession.
Q. — But, somebody has to say whether it is or not.
A. — The>n I say it is not in the file.
Q. — Therefore, you did receive a letter, but you have not 

it now?
A. — That would seem to be so.
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I repeat: I recall the substance of that letter. That is 
all I can say about it.

Robert Oliver
Q.—I show you what purports to be a carbon copy of a |*aeSti<m 

letter signed by Plaxtoii Sifton '& Company, addressed to R. O. (continued, 
10 Sweezey, under date July 27th, 1933; and I ask you if you will 

state whether or not about that time you received the original 
of which this is a copy?

Mr. Languedoc:—I object to the question. My learned 
friend cannot prove the original by a copy.

His Lordship:—If the witness admits the copy, that is suf­ 
ficient proof.

Witness:—I do not recall whether it was this precise letter, 
20 but I do recall the substance of this letter.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing:—
Q.—Have you any doubt this is a true copy of the letter 

you received?
A.—I do not think it is a question of doubt. Not only can 

I not certify as to the accuracy of it, but the substance of it might 
have been conveyed to me in some other way.

Q.—As I take it, you say this may not be a true copy of 
the letter,-but you have a recollection of the substance of it? 

30 A.—Yes. I am not suggesting any one manufactured it, 
or anything of the kind.

Q.—Will you produce the copy as Plaintiff's Exhibit 
P-19 ?

His Lordship:—I will not allow it in. It cannot be used 
as proof of a letter which the witness says he does not recollect 
receiving, although he may recollect the substance. It might 
be a copy of a letter written at a particular date, and a subse­ 
quent letter may have been written replacing it.

Mr. Tyndale:—I think, to make our position clear, and 
save repeated objections, if your Lordship will allow me I will 
make a general objection, on behalf of the Defendant in Warranty, 
to any correspondence between the parties to the Principal 
Action, or between the Defendant in the Principal Action and 
the late Winfield Sifton, in so far as this may purport to affect 
the position of the Defendant in Warranty.

Mr. Languedoc:—On behalf of the Defendant and Plain­ 
tiff in Warranty I would like to associate myself with the ob­ 
jection.
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Mr. Tyndale: — The objection, of course, applies to all piaintm" 
evidence, and with this understanding it will not be necessary Eviden!_e 
for me to interrupt continuously. Robert* oliver

His Lordship :— That will be understood, Mr. Tyndale. B<8!!2t£S3i, 
By Mr. Weldon, continuing : —
Q. — Did you say whether or not you did receive a letter 

from Messrs. Plaxton Sifton & Company, dated July 27th, 
1933 ?

A. — I am a bit confused. If that is the one you showed 
me, I do not think I declared I received it, because I still say I 
do not know.

Q. — But, you do remember receiving a letter?
2Q A. — I cannot say a letter. I remember receiving several 

letters, but I cannot differentiate between one and the other.
Q. — You have not in your file a letter from Plaxton Sif­ 

ton & Company dated July 27th, 1933?
A.— No.
Q. — But, you remembe-r receiving a letter somewhat in 

those terms, about that time ?
A. — Some time. I do not know whether it was about that 

time or not.
Q. — In that period? 

30 A. — It was in that period.
Q. — Did you write to Mr. Sifton the letter dated Sep­ 

tember 5th, 1933, and, if so, will you produce it as Exhibit 
P-19 ?

A.— Yes.
Q. — Did you receive from Mr. Sifton the letter dated 

September 6th, 1933 in reply to your letter Exhibit P-19 ?
Mr. Languedoc: — I have not it.
Witness : — As far as I am concerned, if it is in the file, I 

40 received it; if it is not there, I did not.
By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —
Q. — But, I want to know whether it is in the file or not. 

You are the witness, and I am asking you, and I will have to 
take your answer.

Mr. Languedoc: — I have just looked, and I cannot find 
it. I will hand the witness the file, for verification.

Witness: — It is not here.



— 32 —
In the

Superior

ROBERT O. SWEEZEY (for Plaintiff) Examination in chief.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing: — 
Q.— And, you have not it?
A. —— No. Sweezey

Examination
(,). — Will you look at what purports to be a carbon copy (continued) 

10 of a letter of that date, from Mr. Clifford Sifton to yourself, and 
will you state if you received the original thereof?

A. — I remember the substance of that letter. The same 
argument applies to that.

Q. — Do you know whether this is a true copy of the letter 
you received?

A. — I do not know whether it is or not.
Q. — Have you any doubt it is an accurate copy of the letter 

you received on or about that date? 
20 A. — I have no doubt in this instance.

Mr. Weldon: — I produce this copy as Exhibit P-20. 

By Mr, Weldon, continuing : —
Q. — Did you receive from Mr. Sifton a letter dated Sep­ 

tember 22nd, 1933 ?
Mr. Languedoc : — Yes. I have the letter. 
By Mr. Weldon, continuing : —

30 Q- — Will you produce it, as Exhibit P-21? 
A.— Yes.
Q. — Did you send a reply to Mr. Sifton to the letter Ex­ 

hibit P-21? And, in this connection I show you a memorandum 
endorsed on a letter dated September 19th 1933, addressed to 
yourself, and signed "R. A. C. Henry", the memorandum at the 
foot of that letter being apparently in your handwriting, and 
initialled "R. O. S." It is "addressed "Dear Mr. Sifton""

Will you produce the letter just mentioned, with the memo 
endorsed at the foot thereof, as Exhibit P-22?

A. — Yes.
Q. — Is the memo at the foot written in your handwriting, 

and initialled by you ?
A.— Yes.
Q. — Did you receive from Mr, Sifton a letter dated Sep­ 

tember 25th, 1933, and, if so, will you file it as Exhibit P-23 ?

Mr. Languedoc : — Yes.
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Q. — Did you write Mr. Sifton a letter under date October R 
16th, 1933. and, if so, will you file it as Exhibit P-24?

7 . • TT- (Continued)jO A. — Yes.
Q. — Did you receive from Mr. Sifton a letter dated October 

17th, 1933, and, if so, will you file it as Exhibit P-25 ?
A.— Yes.
Q. — Did you receive from Mr. Sifton a letter dated De­ 

cember 19th 1933 ?

Mr. Languedoc: — I have not that letter.

Witness: — I remember the substance of it all right, but I 
20 apparently have not the original.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —

Q. — Did you receive the original, or did you receive a 
letter somewhat in the terms of this, at that time ?

A. — Somewhat in the terms of the letter at that time would 
probably be as closely as I could define it.

Q. — Did you write Mr. Sifton a letter dated December 
20th, 1933, and, if so, will vou produce it as Exhibit P-26? 

30 A —Yes.
Q. — In the letter Exhibit P-26 you acknowledge receipl 

of a letter from Mr. Sifton dated December 19th?
A. — Yes. This would apparently connect it up.
Q. — Where is the letter of December 19th 1?
A. — I have not it in my files, but I would judge this is a 

copy of it.
Q. — If you will admit this is a copy, of it, I have no further 

questions to ask you in regard to it, but if you have not the letter, 
4( , where is it, and why do you not produce it?

A. — I do not see any difference in admitting it. I admit 
the substance of it, and I do not suppose the wording makes any 
difference, so long as the substance is the same. Does it ?

Q. — But, is this a copy of the letter?
A. — That I do not know. I could not be positive.

By the Court:—

Q. — If the letter was received, surely it must have been



In the
Superior

Court

— 34

R. 0. SWEEZEY (-for Plaintiff) Cross-examination
for Defendant in Warranty. N — 10

Plaintiff s 
Evidence

retained seeing that it was received only three weeks before the Depos^on of 
suit started. *obert Ollver

oweezey 
Cross- 

. examination
In any event you have not the original?

10
A. — No, your Lordship, I have not.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —

Q. — You were shown certain copies of letters this morning, 
and you could not remember them. Those were copies of letters 
purporting to have been sent by Mr. Sifton to you, and by Plaxton 
Siftoii & Company to you. You said you could not find them in 
your file. That indicates your file is not complete, does it 

20 not 1
A. — Yes, in this instance.
Q. — You said some of your letters were in the files of the 

Beauharnois Power Company 1?
A.— Yes.
Q. — Where are the other letters, which are not in the files 

of that Company?
A. — I do not know. Sometimes I might have a letter in 

my pocket. I travel around a great deal, and it is possible I 
might have lost a letter or letters.

^ Q. — So, the letters I asked you about, and of which I 
showed you what purported to be carbon copies, might have been 
received by you and lost?

A.— Yes.
Q. — In any event, you have not them; and your files are 

not complete?
A. — Correct.

Mr. Weldon: — I have no further questions to ask the wit- 
40 liess -

Mr. Languedoc: — I have 110 cross-examination.

Cross-examined by Mr. Tyndale, K. C., of Counsel for 
Defendant in Warranty: —

Q. — You have made some reference to some of your cor­ 
respondence in your files of the Beauharnois Power Corporation, 
the Defendant in Warranty. Will you tell His Lordship when 
you severed your connection with that Corporation?
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A. — It was about the end of 1931. I think, or perhaps early " e — '
. fto ' J 1 i J Deposition of 
111 19o2. Robert Oliver

Sweezey 
Cross-

T-» , n ,-< , examination 
10 By the COUrt: —— for Defendant 
J- u J in Warranty

(Continued)

Q. — Then, those letters you referred to would not be in 
the possession of the Beaiiharnois Power Corporation ; they 
would be in your possession 1?

A. — They might be in the possession of the Beauharnois 
Company ; or, some of them might have been lost.

Q. — After you severed your connection with the Company ?
A. — After I severed my connection. I remained there for 

some time cleaning up one thing and another, without pay — 
20 simply completing the details of certain things that had been 

commenced.
Q. — Did you hand your own letters over to the Corpo­ 

ration ?
A. — There might have been some letters that remained 

there. I am not positive where they would be. Some of them 
might have remained in files, and not be returned to me.

I am only suggesting that as a possibility as explaining the
loss of some of them. 

30
By Mr. Tyndale : —

Q. — Would you mind verifying the date you severed your 
connection with the Beauharnois Power Corporation? 

A.— November 19th, 1931.

(And further Deponent saith not).

J. H. Kenehan, 
Official Court Reporter.
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DEPOSITION OF HUGH B. GRIFFITH,

A witness examined on behalf of the Plaintiffs.

On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally 
came and appeared Hugh B. Griffith, of the City and District 
of Montreal, Security Dealer, aged 41 years, a witness produced 
and examined on behalf of the Plaintiffs, who, being duly sworn, 
deposes as follows:

Examined by Mr. Weldon, K. C., of Counsel for Plain­ 
tiffs :—

Q.—Were you connected with Newman Sweezey & Com­ 
pany, Limited, in June 1928?

A.—I was.
Q.—Newman Sweezey & Company was a firm or company 

of which the Defendant Robert O. Sweezey was a Director?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Was he the principal partner of the firm?
A.—He was President.
Q.—And, the active head of the firm ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—What was your position in that Company ?
A.—I was a Director, and Secretary I think.
Q.—Were you associated at that time with Mr. Sweezey 

in his personal ventures ?
A.—Yes.

I doubt if he had any personal ventures apart from Beau- 
harnois.

Q.—His business at that time was promoting the Beau- 
harnois development. Were you associated with him?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Will you look at the letter I show you, of June 19th, 

1928, purporting to be signed by yourself, H. B. Griffith, ad­ 
dressed to Col. Victor Sifton; and will you state if that was 
signed by you and sent by you to Mr. Sifton ?

Mr. Tyndale:—The general objections recorded in the de­ 
position of Mr. Sweezey will, I take it, be presumed to apply to

In the
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Evidence

Deposition of 
Hugh B. 
Griffith 
Examination
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the testimony of the present witness, and the testimony of the pontiff's 
subsequent witnesses ? — ,

•*• Deposition of
Hugh B.

His Lordship: — Yes, it will be so understood. cross-
x 7 examination

10
By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —

Q. — At that time were you Secretary of Marquette Invest­ 
ment Corporation?

A. — I was.
Q.— Look at the letter of June 19th, 1928, and say if it is 

your letter ?
A.— Yes.
Q.— Will you produce it as Exhibit P-27? 

20 A.— Yes.

Mr. Weldon : — I have no further questions.

Cross-examined by Mr. Languedoc, K. C., of Counsel for 
Defendant : —

Q. — Do you recognize the ^handwriting "W. B. Sifton 
Estate "on this letter?

A. — No, I do not. 
30 Q. — You do not know who wrote it?

A.— No.

By Mr. Weldon :—

Q. — The handwritting was not there, of course, when you 
sent the letter?

A. — No, it was not.

(And futher Deponent saith not). 
40

J. H. Kenehan, 
Official Court Reporter.
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DEPOSITION OF CLIFFORD SIFTON,
i

A witness examined on behalf of the Plaintiffs.

10 On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally 
came and appeared Clifford Sifton, of the City of Toronto, in the 
Province of Ontario, Barrister and Solicitor, aged 41 years, a 
witness produced and examined on behalf of the Plaintiffs, who, 
being duly sworn, deposes as follows:

Examined by Mr. Weldon, K. C., of Counsel for Plain­ 
tiffs :—

20 Q.—Are you a practicing barrister and solicitor of the 
Province of Ontario?

A.—I am.
Q.—And, you are one of the Plaintiffs in this Action ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—And, one of the Executors under the will of your late 

brother, Mr. W. B. Sifton?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Was your brother known as "Winfield"?
A.—Yes, "Winfield" or "Win". He very seldom used 

^ the name "Clifford", but in his probate papers we used it be­ 
cause it was the name he was christened.

Q.—When did he die ?
A.—June 13th, 1928.
Q.—There was another executor, Mr. John W. Sifton, who 

died before Winfield Sifton, was there not?
A.—No, he died afterwards.
Q.—I thought it was Harry who died afterwards?
A.—Both John and Harry died after Win. John died 

4Q before we instituted this Action, I believe; and Harry died 
afterwards.

Q.—Are you and your brother, Victor Sifton, continuing 
to act as executors of the Estate ?

A.—Yes. We are the remaining trustees. The four of us 
were executors. There are two of us left now.

Q.—Were you familiar with the activities of your brother, 
Winfield Sifton, in the period from September, 1927, to June, 
1928?

A.—Yes, quite familiar.
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Q. — Was he engaged on work in respect to the Beauhar- piaimwf"
i ^ •, , n Evidenceuois development? — 

A. — Yes, he was exclusively engaged on that work, and cStford
-• 1 n ./ o o siftonvery actively engaged. Examination

f\ -r\ • -i j_ • -I r, (Continued)10 Q- — During what period 1?
A. — From the early fall — some time in September — 1927, 

until his death.
Q. — Did he discuss the work with you"?
A. — Yes. From time to time, when he was in Toronto, 

or at times when I was at Brockville, or near Brock ville, where 
he had a country home, Assiniboine Lodge, he discussed matters 
— particularly those of a legal nature — with me : various sug­ 
gestions h© was making, and various proposals he was consi­ 
dering.

20 Q. — Was he in communication with Mr. Sweazey, the De­ 
fendant, during that time ?

A. — I am sure he was. He often mentioned Mr. Sweezey.
Q. — Did you have a discussion with Mr. Sweezey on or 

about June llth, 1932 ?
A.— Yes.
Q. — Was that the day you received the letter Exhibit P-8 

from him 1?
A. — I think it was. The correspondence is there, and 1

would like to refresh my memory about the actual date. 
o(J

I would like to explain the circumstances in which I got 
this letter.

Mr. Languedoc: — I submit this is not proper evidence. 
The letter referred to reads : —

"June llth, 1932.

In consideration of the executors undertaking not 
.„ to press this matter for six months from today I hereby 

acknowledge I owed Winfield Sifton at his death, sub­ 
ject only to approval of Beauliarnois plans at Ottawa, the 
sum of $50,000, this being an undertaking I made in con­ 
nection with Beanharnois Syndicate whose assets and 
liabilities were assumed by Beauharnois Power Cor­ 
poration, Limited."

The letter is absolutely complete in form and sense, and I 
cannot see what possible right anyone has to explain or add to 
it, change it, or alter or modify it in any way.
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His Lordship:—But, we have no information as to the 
nature of the matter that is referred to.

Witness:—There were four of us executors of this Estate.
10 At the beginning my brothers Victor and Harry had the actual 

day to day conduct of it, although I wras present from time to 
time. Early in 1932 the matter had passed into my hands, and 
there was an investigation, which your Lordship may remember, 
in Ottawa, with regard to the Beauharnois Corporation. At 
that time we expected the records of the Estate might be called' 
for, and I made a search through the records, and I found the 
letters setting forth what I considered to be very clearly a con­ 
tract between my late brother and Mr. Sweezey or the Beau­ 
harnois Company. I wrote Mr. Sweezey, and asked him

20 about it. I got an answer, which I thought was somewhat evasive, 
so I wrote Mr. Sweezey again and sent him copies of all those 
letters, and I said the matter looked abundantly clear to me.

By the Court :—

Q.—Are those letters on record here? 
A.—Those are letters which are here, and they are matters 

within my own knowledge.

30 I pointed out to him that the Estate owed debts ...........

Mr. Languedoc:— (interrupting) I would like to be of 
record as making a general objection to all this evidence. We 
are sued on a contract which, it is alleged, was evidenced by 
certain correspondence which has been produced. We are not 
sued because we have otherwise than by this letter (if it consti­ 
tutes an admission) admitted any liability 011 behalf of Beau­ 
harnois or ourselves. This letter purports to be an admission 
of liability on behalf of Beauharnois, but not on behalf of Mr. 

4U Sweezey. Now an effort is being made to bolster up the Action 
by matters not pleaded, and by oral conversations between the 
executors and Mr. Sweezey.

His Lordship:—Of course, I will not allow any evidence 
as to verbal admissions of liability, other than what has been 
pleaded.

Mr. Weldon:—I think your Lordship will find it covered 
by Paragraph 9-A of the Answer to Amended Plea, which is to
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the effect that Plaintiffs deny each and every allegation of Para- Plaintiffs- 
graph 11 of Defendant's Amended Plea, and allege that the Evlde — e 
amount was payable to W. B. Sifton at the time of his death, 011 of
subject only to the approval of the plans, and the said approval 

10 was afterwards obtained : the whole as admitted by the letter of (Continued) 
June llth, 1932.

Mr. Languedoc: — That goes outside the letter. The ad­ 
mission set forth in Paragraph 9- A is of a natiire to surprise me. 
If a verbal admission is to be proved, let it be proved out of the 
mouth of Mr. Sweezey.

Mr. Weldou : — In the first place, there is nothing in the 
answer Mr. Sifton is making that would in any way modify or 

20 amend the letter. In the second place, I can prove an admission 
by Mr. Sifton, if I have alleged it. If Mr. Sweezey denies it, and 
if it was made in the presence of someone else, I can prove it. 
Further, I have a commencement of proof in writing. I examin­ 
ed Mr. Sweezey, and he said "Yes, we have a conversation, and 
we discussed the questions of approval." He added to that: "I 
thought the only approval required was a geaeral or snap ap­ 
proval".

I submit to your Lordship we have a commencement of 
30 proof in writing.

Mr. Languedoc : — The manner in which Paragraph 9-A is 
drawn simply tends to show that the verbal admission is drawn 
in confirmation of the text of the letter. The letter speaks for 
itself, and does not require any confirmation, and I submit it is 
not permissible to add anything to the letter.

Mr. Weldon : — I must say I do not see how the paragraph 
,,-, could have been worded any more clearly.

Mr. Languedoc: — The letter and the conversation go to­ 
gether.

Mr. Weldon: — The letter was to the effect that he owed 
the money, subject to approval.

Mr. Laiiguedoc : — But, the idea is my friend is either going 
to have the letter confirmatory of the conversation, or the con­ 
versation confirmatory of the letter.
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His Lordship: — I will take the evidence under reserve 
of the objection. The witness may proceed with his answer. Deposition of

Clifford 
Sifton

Witness: — I think I had reached the point where I sent Examination 
10 Mr. Sweezey the letters which have been produced, and which, 

I said, to Mr. Sweezey, appeared to me to indicate clearly there 
was an obligation owing. I pointed out that, as executors, we 
required payment.

To this I received word that Mr. Sweezey would rather 
discuss it with me personally. I understood he would be in 
Toronto, and we had various abortive attempts to get together. 
Finally, I was coming to Montreal, and I made an appointment 
to see Mr. Sweezey. When I went to his office he was busily 

20 engaged in a conference, but he did me the favor of coming out 
from the conference to the side office. I repeated the situation 
again, and he admitted to me that those letters were prope-r, and 
they set forth the arrangement that had been arrived at, and that, 
as a matter of fact, everything he had expected of my late 
brother had beei! done — that he had been largely responsible 
for framing vitally important parts of the plan, and that the 
plans had, in fact, been approved by the Government, and he 
considered that he owed the money, but he pointed out to me
that he had not the personal ability to pay. 

oU
He expressed the view that the Beauharnois Companv, in 

fact, were responsible for the payment, but that in the condition 
in which the Company's affairs were at the moment there would 
be nothing to be gained by pressing the matter immediately. He 
thought that in the interests of the whole matter it would be 
advisable to permit a further delay.

I pointed out that, as an executor, and not being familiar 
4,) with the Quebec law with regard to lapse of time and its effect 

upon Actions, that I could not take the responsibility of per­ 
mitting a delay unless it was admitted that the liability was owing, 
and unless the length of delay that was requested should be made 
definite.

Mr. Sweezey was still in the side office, and his conference 
was still awaiting his return. He took two pieces of paper, if 
I remember correctly, and scribbled down a few words, which 
have been reproduced in this letter, and which I took at
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the time to be a satisfactory admission of the facts and 
the obligations, and a request for delay. I gave him a verbal Evlde —e 
undertaking to be responsible that Action would not be taken ciei?fosrdlon of 
during the delay we had arranged, and when I went home I Examination

, i • r>- • ,1 j. (Continued)10 wrote him confirming the arrangement.
Then we did nothing further until after the time that had 

been arranged had duly lapsed.
By Mr. Tyndale :—
Q. — The letter you refer to as having been written in the 

side office by Mr. Sweezey is the letter Exhibit P-8 ?
A. — It was a handwritten letter, signed by Mr. Sweezey. 

Mr. Weldon could give you the number of it.
20 Mr. Weldon :— It is Exhibit P-8. 

By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —
Q. — You handed me some carbon copies of letters, pur­ 

porting to have been signed by Mr. R. O. Sweezey, by yourself, 
or by your firm, bearing dates from April 27th, 1932, to De­ 
cember 19th, 1933. Mr. Sweezey has not been able to find the 
original letters corresponding to those copies.

Will you state whether or not the original letter was mailed 
QA by you to Mr. R. O. Sweezey on or about April 27th, 1932, and, 

if so, whether the carbon copy I show you is a true copy of 
the letter that was sent?

Mr. Languedoc: — I object to the question; it not having 
been shown the original has been lost or destroyed.

His Lordship: — I will allow the question, under reserve 
of the objection.

Witness: — Yes, this is a copy of a letter written by my­
self. 

40
His Lordship: — Those are copies of letters in regard to

which Mr. Sweezey said he remembered the substance, but did 
not remember the actual letters?

Mr. Weldon: — Yes, your Lordship.
Witness: — This is a copy of a letter written by me on 

April 27th, 1932.
Q.— Will you file it as Exhibit P-28? 
A.— Yes.
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Q.—And, the original was mailed by your office to Mr. 
Sweezey ?

A.—It was written by me, and duly mailed, and this is a 
carbon copy that was made at the time, which has been kept in 

10 my own file ever since, and was given to my solicitor when the 
Action was taken._

Mr. Languedoc:—I would ask that my objection should 
aPply to all evidence of this character, and to any further docu­ 
ments of a similar nature.

His Lordshipp:—It will be so understood.

20
By Mr. Weldon, continuing:—

Q.—Have you a cop)" of the letter you sent Mr. Sweezey 
on June 13th, 1932, and, if so, will you produce it as Exhibit 
P-29 ?

A.—I produce, as Exhibit P-29, copy of a letter written 
by me on June 13th, 1932,to Mr. B. 0. Sweezey. The original 
of ths was signed by me, and duly mailed.

This copy was made at the time, and has been kept in my 
possession ever since, until I gave it to my solicitor at the com­ 
mencement of this Action.

Q.—Did your firm write a letter to Mr. Sweezey on July 
27th, 1933 ?

A.—Yes. I wrote this letter. It was signed "Plaxton, 
Sifton & Co., per C. S." — per myself. This is a letter of July 
27th, 1933, addressed to Mr. R. O. Sweezey. The original was 
duly mailed, and this copy was made at the time and kept under 
my control until the proceedings were taken.

Q.—Will you file this copy as Exhibit P-30?
A.—Yes.
Q.—You were then a member of the firm of Plaxton, Sif­ 

ton & Company ?
A.—I was a partner in the firm of Plaxton, Sifton & 

Company. I was acting in a kind of dual capacity, as executor, 
and solicitor, of this Estate.

Q.—Did you write Mr. Sweezey the letter dated Decem­ 
ber 19th, 1933 — the original of the copy I show you — and, if 
so, will you produce the copy as Exhibit P-31 ?
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A. — Yes. I produce, as Exhibit P-31, the copy of 
dated December 19th, 1933, written by myself. The original of e — e
.... ,, • i -i -in- -i j_ j T j • 11 Deposition ofthis was duly mailed, and this copy was made at the time and has Clifford
i • •• I • i -r i i 1 • j. j. T slft»nbeen in my possession since until 1 handed it over to my soli- Examination

. , ' (Continued)
citors.

10 There is a further letter, written by me on June 19th, 
1933, addressed to Mr. R. O. Sweezey, signed by myself. The 
original was duly mailed, and this copy was made at the time, 
and has been kept under my control ever since. I produce the 
copy as Exhibit P-32.

Q. — Will you produce a number of Orders in Council 
of the Governor General in Council, as follows: —

P.C. 422, adopted March 8th, 1929; 
20 P.C. 1081, adopted June 22nd, 1929;

P.C. 1095, adopted September 7th, 1932; 
P.C. 729, adopted April 24th, 1933; 
P.C. 2042, adopted October llth, 1933.
To be respectively, Exhibits P-33, P-34, P-35, P-36, and 

P-37?
A.— Yes.
Q. — Will you produce, as Exhibit P-38, certified copy of 

30 the Act of Deposit of A. Chase Casgrain, before Edward Cho- 
lette, Notary, dated January 13th, 1934, under the Notary's No. 
29640 ?

Mr. Languedoc: — I object to the witness producing this. 
He has no right to produce the Notary's Minutes.

Objection reserved. 
Witness : — Yes. 

., By Mr. Weldon, continuing : —
Q. — Mr. A. Chase Casgrain was your solicitor at the time 

of this deposit"? 
A.— Yes.
Mr. Weldon: — I have no further questions to put to the 

witness.
Mr. Languedoc : — I have no cross-examination. 
Mr. Tyndale : — I have no cross-examination.
(And further Deponent saith not).

J. H. Kenehan, 
Official Court Reporter.
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DEPOSITION OF LORING C. CHRISTIE,

Superior
Court

Deposition of

A witness examined on behalf of the Plaintiffs. £• ChristieExamination

-^ On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally 
came and appeared Loring C. Christie, of the City and District 
of Montreal, Secretary Treasurer Beauharnois Power Corpo­ 
ration, aged 50 years, a witness produced and examined on behalf 
of the Plaintiff, who, being duly sworn, deposes as follows:—

Examined by Mr. Weldon, K. C., of Counsel for Plain­ 
tiffs :—

20 Q.—Are you the Secretary of the Defendant in War­ 
ranty ?

A.—I am.
Q.—Have you the records of this Company in your pos­ 

session ; also the records of the various Syndicates that were 
formed prior to the organization of the Company?

A.—Yes.
Q.—The order in Council already filed as Exhibit P-34, 

P. C. 1081, refers to an agreement, or requires that the agree- 
30 nient between Beauharnois Light Heat & Power Company and 

His Majesty The King should be approved in the form attached, 
and that the Minister of Public Works was authorized to execute 
such an agreement. Have you the agreement between His Ma­ 
jesty The King and Beauharnois Light Heat & Power Company 
which was signed in pursuance of that Order in Council?

A.—Yes.
Q.—What was the date of it?
A.—June 25th, 1929.
Q.—Was that executed by His Majesty's Ministers and 

40 by the Beauharnois Company's officers?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Will you produce it as Exhibit P-39?
A.—Yes. '

This is an agreement between His Majesty The King, 
represented by the Minister of Public Works, and the Beauhar­ 
nois Company, dated June 25th, 1929. May I produce a certified 
copy, or do you insist on the original?
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Counsel:—I will be perfectly satisfied with a certifiedp^V-g
Copy. Evidence

(By consent of the parties a certified copy is produced in£o?°ngtionof 
lieu of the original). li2£SS.n

-. ,-, (Continued)

By Mr. Weldon, continuing:—

Q.—Have you a record of when construction work was 
started at the Beauharnois Development ?

A.—Yes. The work was actually begun in August, 1929. 
August 7th is the date we have. That date was used at the Par­ 
liamentary Enquiry in Ottawa in 1931.

Q.—And, construction proceeded more or less constantly 
for some* years?

20 A.—It proceeded continuously, and in fact, it is still going 
on.

Q.—When was power first generated at the power plant 
111 connection with that development?

A.—In the sense of the generators being turned over, the 
first power was actually produced, I suppose, on September 19th, 
1932, for testing the generators. Most of the generation was 
eleven days later, October 1st, 1932.

Q.—You filed a Statement with your examination on 
discovery by Counsel for the Plaintiff in Warranty, as Exhibit 

30 p_W-9. You also filed some cheques as Exhibit 'P-W-8. On 
page 2 of Exhibit P-W-9 there is a record, or entry, of a voucher, 
No. 191, of a payment made by Marquette Investment Company 
of $5000 on April 16th, 1928." To whom was that payment 
made "?

Mr. Tyndale:—Of course, the witness can only speak from 
the records, and such evidence would be useless. The records 
speak for themselves. I think I should object to any question 

.„ to the witness as to what any of the records mean, because the 
witness was not there at the time the records which are now 
being discussed were created.

By Mr. Weldon, continuing:—

Q.—Have you a record to indicate to whom that payment 
was made?

A.—The only place I can think of must be in the voucher 
itself.
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His Lordship: — The witness can only testify from the 
vouchers and records of the Company.

By Mr. Weldon,. continuing : —
10 Q- — Have you a record to indicate to whom that payment 

was made?
A. — I can only speak from the records.
Q. — Will you show me voucher No. 191, and the corres­ 

ponding cheque for that voucher?
Mr. Tyndale: — The witness cannot say anything beyond 

what is on the record.
By Mr. Weldon, continuing: —

90 Q' — There is a cheque in Exhibit P-W-10, dated April 16th, 
^ 1928, payable to R. O. Sweezey or order, for $11,484.87, purport­ 

ing to be drawn by Marquette Investment Corporation, per Hugh 
B. Griffith and R. O. Sweezey?

A.— Yes.
Q. — Is therev a voucher among those papers, or otherwise, 

showing for what purpose a part of that cheque, namely, $5000, 
was paid ?

A. — There are papers here, but I am afraid I cannot do 
anything more than produce them and let you draw your own 

30 conclusions.
Q. — If you will give me the information, I will draw the 

conclusion.
A. — I have given you everything there is here.
Q. — Where is voucher No. 191? Is it the whole series of 

papers you show me?
A.— Yes.
Q. — On the back of the voucher you find three items, 

making up the total of $11,484.87 ?
A.— Yes.

40 Q.— One item of which is $5000 : "Legal — Ottawa" — 
paid to R. O. Sweezey ?

A.— Yes.
Mr. Weldon: — I have no further questions. 
Mr. Tyndale: — I have no cross-examination. 
Mr. Languedoc : — I have no cross-examination.
(And further Deponent saith not).

J. H. Kenehan, 
Official Court Reporter.
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Plaintiffs'

DEPOSITION OF ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY (recalled) Evlde-
Robert Oliver 
Sweezey —

A witness recalled on behalf of the Plaintiffs. ifxamfnation
10

On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally 
came and reappeared Robert Oliver Sweezey, already sworn, 
who being recalled as a witness on behalf of the Plaintiffs, de­ 
poses as follows :

Examined by Mr. Weldon, K. C., of Counsel for Plain­ 
tiffs :—

20 Q. — Early in your examination referred to two original 
letters from the late Mr. W. B. Sifton to yourself, dated October 
17th, 1927, and October 23rd, 1927, as being included in a file 
already produced as Exhibit P-W-10. Will you please look at 
the two letters referred to in that file, of October 17th, 1927, and 
October 23rd, 1927, and will you say if both original letters now 
in the file Exhibit P-W-10, were received by you from W. B. 
Sifton?

A.— Yes.

30 Mr. Weldon: — I have no further questions. 

This completes the Plaintiffs' case. 

Mr. Languedoc: — I have- no questions. 

Mr. Tyndale: — I have no questions. 

(And further Deponent saith not).

40 J. H. Kenehan,
Official Court Reporter.
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Defendant's Evidence at Enquete

10 No. 15 
DEPOSITION OF HUGH B. GEIFFITH,

A witness examined on behalf of the Defendant.

On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally 
came and appeared Hugh B. Griffith, of the City and District 
of Montreal, already sworn and examined on behalf of the Plain­ 
tiffs, who being now examined as a witness on behalf of the De- 

20 fendant, deposes as follows:

Examined by Mr. Languedoc, K. C., of Counsel for De­ 
fendant :—

Q.—You have already been sworn ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—I understand that in September, 1927, you were a 

partner in the firm of Newman Sweezey & Company 1?
A.—Yes.

30 Q-—A Syndicate, known as the Beauharnois Syndicate, 
had already been formed with a view to developing the Beau­ 
harnois Power project 1?

A.—Yes.
Q.—rWill you examine Exhibit P-W-1, filed with the 

examination on discovery of Mr. Christie on behalf of the 
Plaintiffs in Warranty, and will you state whether it is the 
original agreement that was entered into between Mr. Sweezey 
and the Marquette Investment Corporation, and will yon explain 
how the matter was dealt with, from a corporate point of view, 

40 from the initial steps that were taken 1?
A.—I will have to identify this as a true copy of the ori­ 

ginal. It is not a signed copy.
Q.—Starting from that, will you explain to His Lordship 

how the original Beauharnois Syndicate was formed 1?
A.—I might say the purchase of the assets which sub­ 

sequently became the Beauharnois Power Corporation was done 
by Mr. Sweezey, on behalf of an unincorporated group of persons, 
including himself and others, and including some corporations, 
who were organized into a Syndicate.
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Q.— What was that Syndicate called?
A.— I think it was called the "Beauharnois Syndicate". Evlde™e

Deposition of 
Hugh B.

There was, subsequently, a second syndicate, known as the Examination 
10 Beauharnois Power Syndicate. (continued,

By the Court:—

Q. — Was that Syndicate formed by agreement in waiting? 
A. — Yes, your Lordship.

By Mr. Languedoc, continuing: —

Q. — Will you take comnmncation of Exhibit P-W-2, and
20 will you state whether it is a true copy of an agreement, dated

May 12th, between Mr. Sweezey and the Marquette Investment
Corporation ; and will you explain what part was played by the
Marquette Investment Corporation with regard to the
Beauharnois Syndicate and in relation to the latter named body
or group ?

A. — Exhibit P-W-2 is a duplicate original of the agree­ 
ment between Mr. Sweezey and Marquette Investment Corpo­ 
ration, and it is the agreement which created and set up the first
Svndicate, known as the Beauharnois Svndicate. 

30 '
The Marquette Investment Corporation was simply an 

unincorporated Company, formed for the sole purpose of hold­ 
ing the assets of the Syndicate, in order that the Syndicate might 
have a corporate trustee to hold its assets, to be the depositary 
of its cash, and to enter into such relations with the public gene­ 
rally as might require a corporate organization as opposed to 
a syndicate organization.

40 By the Court :—

Q.—Exhibits P-W-1 and P-W-2 are agreements with the 
Marquette Investment Corporation 1?

A.—Exhibit P-W-1 is a deed of assignment from R. O. 
Sweezey to Marquette Investment Corporation. Exhibit P-W-2 
is a more lengthy document, setting forth the conditions of the 
assignment that it wishes to be held in trust for certain indivi­ 
duals who might be'Come members of the Syndicate.
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Mr. Languedoc:—And, as the context shows, the organi­ 
sation of the Syndicate, itself, and how it was to be run.

By Mr. Languedoc, continuing:—

Q.—This was on May 12th, 1927. Previous to that had 
efforts been made with the Quebec Government to further the 
project of the development of Beauharnois and if so, with what 
result I

A.—Yes. In the Winter Session of 1927, the Beauhar­ 
nois Light Heat & Power Company — all the shares of which 
had been acquired by Mr. Sweezey on behalf of his associates — 
applied to the Legislature at Quebec for an amendment to its 
Charter. The application was not successful, and was with­ 
drawn.

Q.—What was the result, and where did matters stand, 
through the summer of 1927, — say during June, July, and 
August ?

A.—There were no active steps under way to further the 
project. There were various conferences between Mr. Sweezey 
and myself, and some of his associates, with a view to making 
preparations for a further attempt at the next Session.

Q.—Apparently matters were temporarily at a stand­ 
still ?

A.—Quite.
Q.—Can you tell us, of your personal knowledge, hbw 

the late Mr. Sift on first came into the picture 1?.
Mr. Tyndale:—On behalf of the Defendant in Warranty 

I would ask that the geaieral objections we placed of record in 
regard to the evidence of the Plaintiff in chief should apply, in 
the same way, as against similar evidence offered on behalf of 
the Defendant.

His Lordship:—The evidence will be taken under reserve 
of your objections, Mr. Tyndale.

Witness:—My first knowledge of the possibility of Mr. 
Sifton's retainership was a conversation with Mr. Sweezey, when 
he suggested to me it might be useful to retain Mr. Sifton in 
connection with furthering the objects of the Syndicate.

By Mr. Languedoc, continuing:—
Q.—In any given place, particularly"? 
A.—More particularly at Ottawa.
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Q.—With the Federal Government, I take it 0? Defendant's
A ___Yes Evidence

Q.—When was that conversation? SeupghS Bionof
A.—It must have been some time in September, 1927. lamination 

10 Q-—What was the result of the conversation ? (continued)
A.—The result was that Mr. Sweezey had a telephone 

conversation with Mr. Sifton, and suggested that I visit Mr. 
Sifton at his home in Brockville.

Q.—When he requested you to go up to see Mr. Sifton did 
he entrust you with any document?

A.—Yes. He gave me a letter of introduction.
Q.—Is that the letter referred to as Exhibit P-2, dated 

September 6th, 1927?
A.—Yes. It is filed as an Exhibit,

20 Q.—A copy of it has been produced as Exhibit P-2, and 
it has been identified as attached to the Act of Deposit referred 
to this morning 1?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Did you go to Brockville?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Did you see Mr. Sifton?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Where did yon see him?
A.—At his home, outside Brockville, — near Brockville.
Q.—What was the substance of your interview with him ?
A.—We had a general discussion about the purpose for 

which our Syndicate had been formed, the work which would have' 
to be done before the Beauharnois project could be proceeded 
with, and the various steps, of a legal, financial, and engineering 
nature, which would have to be taken.

I suggested to him that the experience he had gained in 
an attempt to promote the Georgian Bay Canal Company might 

4Q be of some value to us. He had the same opinion, and professed 
himself to be willing to work for the Syndicate, and I speci­ 
fically recall some conversation with him in respect to the fi­ 
nancial organization which our group had — as to whether it 
was a corporate entity, or whether it was an incorporation, and, 
more particularly, as to what the personnel of the group. I 
think Mr. Sifton wished to be reassured of the fact that there 
were people of substance behind it, so that he would be working 
for a capable organisation.
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Q.—At that time was anything conclusive arrived at with 
regard to a bargain as to his reward, or anything of that kind?

A.—Not by me.
Q.—Did he express himself as being satisfied to accept 

10 a retainer from the Syndicate?
A.—He expressed his complete willingness to work for us. 

The terms on which he was to be retained were something he 
preferred to discuss with Mr. Sweezey.

Q.—Did you explain to him on that occasion the nature of 
the organization, including the Marquette Investment Syndi­ 
cate?

A.—Yes.
Q.—And, the Beauharnois Syndicate?
A.—Yes.
Q.—You then returned to Montreal?
A.—Yes.
Q.—What was the next development ? Did anything happen 

between that and the next time you_saw Mr. Sifton? I mean, 
to your personal knowledge. Did yovTreturn and confer with Mr. 
Sweezey, or other managers of the syndicate, or what did you 
do?

A.—I reported to Mr. Sweezey, and possibly to otheT 
managers of the Syndicate, that Mr. Sifton was available to 
work for us, and that I would recommend he should be retain­ 
ed.

Q.—Do you remember what was the nest development 
in the relationship between the Syndicate and Mr. Sifton?

A.—As I recall it, Mr. Sifton started to work for the Syn­ 
dicate forthwith — possibly within a day or two, although it was 
some days, and possibly weeks later, before he and Mr. Sweezey 
came to a final agreement as to the precise retaiiiership.

From then on he gave a very substantial part of his time 
40 to the interests of the Syndicate.

Q.—When did you next first see him after your return 
to Montreal, at Mallorytown?

A.—Certainly within ten days.
Q.—At that time, as appears by the Deed itself, Exhibit 

P-W-2, the managers of the syndicate were Messrs. Sweezey, 
yourself, Steele of the Dominion Securities, and Newman, one 
of your partners ?

A.—Yes. There must have been a fifth as well.
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Q. — There was a fifth manager, in the person of Mr. Defendant's 
William Robert, was there not? e — e

A. — Yes. Mr. Robert was an original manager. He resign- HughSiB!on of 
ed at some early stage in the Syndicate's efforts. Whether helSnation 

10 was a manager at the time, or whether there was a temporary (Continned) 
vacancy filled by a clerk in the office, I am not sure.

Q. — Did Mr. Robert ever take any active part in the Syn­ 
dicate ?

A. — None at all.
Q. — Did he ever attend the meetings?
A. — Only the one at which he resigned.
Q. — Were meetings held of the First, or Beauharnois, 

Syndicate ?
A. — No, I do not think there were any formal meetings 

20 of the Beauharnois Syndicate, with the exception of some meet­ 
ings immediately prior to the formation of the Second Syndi­ 
cate.

Q. — Were any minutes kept of the proceedings of the First 
or Beauharnois Syndicate ?

A. — Not other than Minutes of Meetings on the formation 
of the Syndicate, and the meeting immediately preceding its 
dissolution.

Q. — In spite of that, were matters formally discussed be­ 
tween the active managers? 

30 A.— Yes.
Q. — Do you know whether the retainer of the late Mr. 

Sif ton on behalf of Beauharuois Syndicate was one of the matters 
discussed between the managers?

A. — I believe it was.
Q. — Were you made aware of the terms on which Mr. Sif- 

ton had been retained ?
A. — I was.
Q. — Do you know whether the other managers were? 

AQ A. — It is my opinion they were, with the exception of Mr. 
Robert,

Q. — Where was the locus — where was the office, or the 
place of business, of the Beauharnois Syndicate?

A.— 210 St. James Street.
Q. — Montreal ?
A. — Montreal.
Q. — In whose office?
A. — The office of Newman Sweezey & Company.
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Q.—In the quarters of Newman, Sweezey & Company?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Or, was it R. O. Sweezey & Company?
A.—Newman, Sweezey & Company.
Q.—Were all conversations, deliberations, and meetings, 

if such there were, held in those premises ?
A.—Not all of them. Some may have been held in hotels 

in Montreal or in the office of Dominion Securities Corporation.
Q.—Apart from the meetings held outside Montreal, or 

at hotels, where were the meetings held?
A.—In the office of Newman Sweezey & Company.
Q.—Did you ever see the late Mr. Winfield Siftoii there?
A.—Frequently.
Q.—Was he in constant attendance, and in constant con­ 

ference with the managers of the Syndicate, — yourself, Mr. 
Sweezey, and Mr. Newmaii?

A.—I would say in frequent conference.
Q.—What was the history of the Beauharuois Syndicate? 

Matters went along, and, I understand, the late Mr. Sifton was 
devoting a great deal of time to the affairs of the Syndicate?

A.—Yes.
Q.—And, he died on June 13th, 1928?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Shortly before his death was there any change in the 

corporate structure of the unit, or units, which had undertaken 
the development of this project?

A.—Yes.
Q.—What was it?
A.—It became apparent that the promotion of the enter­ 

prise would involve a very substantial amount of technical and 
engineering work, and the purchase of real estate, involving an 
expenditure of money in excess of our original estimate; and, 
in order to create an organization to raise further funds it was 
decided to reorganize the syndicate.

Q.—Will you take communication of Exhibit P-WT-3, and 
will you state whether it embodies the change to which you refer, 
as incorporated in an agreement dated April 4th, 1928 between 
the Beauharnois Syndicate and the Beauharnois Power Syndi­ 
cate?

A.—That is correct.

The form of reorganization consisted in forming a second 
syndicate which acquired all the assets and assumed all the 
liabilities of the first syndicate.
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Q. — What stage of development had the plans and the
project generally reached at the date of the death of Mr. Win- Evtdei^_e 
field Sif ton? geupg°hsiBlon of

A. — The application for amendment to the Special Act Examination 
10 incorporating the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Company < Contlnuea > 

had been passed, and, I think, asseaited to by the Legislature at 
Quebec.

Q. — Had Mr. Winfield Sifton anything to do with that, 
or was his work confined to the Federal Government at Ottawa ?

A. — He had nothing to do with the Quebec effort as I 
recall it.

Q. — Had other solicitors been retained for that purpose?
A. — Yes, they had.
Q. — How far had the development or project progressed, 

20 from the point of view of control of the Federal Government at 
Ottawa, at the date of the late Mr. Sif ton's death?

A. — I believe an application in very general terms had 
been made to the Federal Government early in 1928, and it was 
subsequently withdrawn. Later an application was made, after 
Mr. Sif ton's death, and after the granting of the lease from the 
Province of Quebec; which is the application which was acted 
upon when P. C. 422 was passed.

Q.— That was on March 8th, 1929?
„ A. — Yes. I do not recall the date on which the application 

was filed in Ottawa. If you want that, I would have to consult 
my records.

Q. — Do you remember approximately the date of the with­ 
drawal of the application of which you have just spokeai?

A. — No, I do not.
Q. — Can you say in what season of the year it was with­ 

drawn"?
A. — No, I cannot. I would have to refresh my memory by 

consulting my records before I could answer.
40 Q- — I*1 any event, the first official act of approval by the 

Govenme-nt was Order in Council P. C. 422, bf March 8th 
1929?

A.— Yes.
Q. — I understand that was subsequently amended?
A.— Yes.

Mr. Languedoc : — And, as I shall show your Lordship, the 
Order in Council as amended was subsequently completely an­ 
nulled by Statute.
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ledge.
His Lordship:—That is a matter of almost public know-

By Mr. Languedoc, continuing:—
10

Q.—Will you take communication of the cheques filed with 
the examination on discovery of Mr. Christie as Exhibit P-W-8, 
and will you explain, if any explanation is required, (which is 
doubtful) what they mean. Take a typical cheque and A'oucher 
and explain why the late Mr. Sifton in so many cases, if not in 
all cases, addressed his request for money to you ?

A.—I might say Mr. Sifton and I were working very 
closely together, and he had much more frequent communication 
with me than with any other member of the Syndicate or member 

20 of the Board of Managers of the Syndicate. He was aware of the 
fact that in my office of the Secretary and Treasurer I was 
custodian of the Syndicate's records, and in my capacity as 
Secretary and Treasurer of Marquette Investment Corporation 
I was the custodian of its funds, and the keeper of its books. 
He used to address his expense accounts and his request for pay­ 
ment on account of his fees to me personally, both as to the en­ 
velopes which contained the Statements of Account and also as 
to the detail of the account itself.

Q.—How did those cheques come to be signed or executed 
by Marquette Investment Corporation? What part was Marquette 
Investment Corporation playing? Why was Mr. Sifton paid by 
cheques of Marquette Investment Corporation?

A.—Marquette Investment Corporation had no assets — 
or, rather, carried on no business whatever other than the business 
of the Syndicate, and acted solely as custodian of the Syndicate's 
funds. It opened a bank account in its own name, which, in 
reality was a trust account for the Syndicate's funds.

Q.—So, it was Syndicate money that went through Mar- 
quette's cheques?

A.—Only Syndicate money.
Q.—To come back to the previous question, referring to the 

repayment of $5000. to Mr. Sweezey; have you any explanation 
or comment to make on it ? Was that the initial payment made 
to Mr. Sifton?

A.—During the early days of the Syndicate's operations 
there we-re frequent periods when the Syndicate did not have 
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities. On two or three occasions 
Mr. Sweezey, as the President of the Syndicate, made advances

30
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out of his own funds. At a subsequent date, after the organization l^jjj"*1 ' 
of the second syndicate — which was organized in order that Depog—on of 
further, moneys might be raised — the syndicate found itself 
a position to repay Mr. Sweezey for those advances. As a result,> 

10 a cheque for some $10,000 or $11,000 was issued, and one of the 
items it covered was the original payment of $5000. to Mr. Sif­ 
ton.

Q.—That was the original retainer of $5000 paid to Mr. 
Sifton ?

A.—I am not sure whether Mr. Sifton had any amount 
before he got the $5000. He may have collected a small expense ac­ 
count before he received the $5000, or the $5000 may have been the 
first payment. In any event, it was made quite early.

Q.—Will you look at voucher No. 101 in Exhibit P-W-8, 
20 and will you identify a letter dated December 12th, 1927, atta­ 

ched to this voucher as being a letter addressed to you by the 
late Mr. Winfield B. Sifton, if you are familiar with his signa­ 
ture ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—This is addressed "Dear Hugh''. Who is "Hugh"?
A.—Myself.
Q.—With those vouchers before you, will you tell me 

whether all payments without exception, made to the late Mr. 
Sifton during his lifetime, were made by means of Marquette 
Investment Corporation cheques, with the possible exception of 
the $5000 cheque to which you have alluded as having possibly 
been made by Mr. Sweezey directly?

A.—That is true.
Q.—I show you the list marked Exhibit P-W-9. I do not 

notice the $5000 payment which may have been made by Mr. 
Sweezey included in the list of payments made to Mr. Sifton 
during his lifetime. Is there any mistake there ?

A.—No. It could not appear twice. Mr. Sweezey may have 
40 the cancelled cheque which was originally sent to Mr. Sifton. 

The $5000 cheque issued to Mr. Sweezey to reimburse him for 
payment made to Mr. Sifton does occur here.

By Mr. Tyndale:—

Q.—It is not a $5000 cheque: it is an element forming 
part of the $11,000 ?

A.—Yes, that is correct.
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By Mr. Languedoc, continuing:—

Q.—After Mr. Sifton's death there were further payments 
made to his Estate, were there not 1? 

10 A.—Yes.
Q.—We heard this morning of a letter covering a cheque 

for $10,094.93. Will you look at voucher No. 265 in Exhibit P- 
W-8. Was the letter of June 4th, 1928, attached to this voucher 
Xo. 265, the last letter you received from the late Mr. Sif ton 1?

A.—I could not answer that.
Q.—In any event, this payment was made after his death, 

in the form of a cheque from Marquette Investment Corpora­ 
tion to his brother and executor, Mr. Victor Sif ton?

A.—Yes. 
20

By Mr. Tyndale :—

Q.—There are two letters attached to that voucher, are 
there not: one of June 1st, and one of June 4th. 

A.—Yes.

By Mr. Languedoc, continuing:—

Q.—Just to clear up this matter of payments. Certain 
30 payments were made to the widow of the late Mr. Sifton, I 

understand ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Are they correctly shown on the list Exhibit P-W- 

9 1
A.—Yes. I would say this covers the payments during 

the period I was associated with Beauharnois Power Corpo­ 
ration.

Q.—In other words, there is a list of cheques of the Beau­ 
harnois Power Corporation which are also produced in the 
bundle of vouchers Exhibit P-W-9, to Mrs. W. B. Sifton. Is 
that correct 1?

A.—Yes.
Q.—I do not want to lead you, but I presume the change 

over from the drawer of the cheque was due to the fact that the 
project had then been taken over by the Beauharnois Power 
Corporation ?

A.—Yes.

40
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Subsequently to the organization of the Beauharnois Defendant's 
Power Corporation Marqtiette Investment Corporation, 011 be- ETide^le 
half of the Syndicate issued no more cheques to any person. Hugh's!011 of

10 Q-—Will you explain to His Lordship why those payments 
were made to Mrs. Sifton ?

A.—I would describe it as a compassionate allowance.
Q.—At the time those payments were made did you know 

who represented the late Mr. Sifton's Estate? Who were his 
heirs, or legatees, or executors?

A.—I knew his brothers, or some of them, were executors 
for his Estate.

Q.—Have you had occasion to total up, or could you total 
up, the amount of money that was paid to the late Mr. Sifton 

20 from the date of his retainer forward — either to himself, or to 
his Estate <?

A.—About $29,000 to Mr. Sifton or his Estate, and about 
$10,000 to Mrs. Sifton.

I might say there is nothing on those records to indicate 
how much was on account of disbursements and for expenses, and 
how much for fees.

Q.—But, the vouchers would show that in detail ? 
30 A.—Yes.

Q.—It might be interesting, not to say important, to have 
the expenses segregated from the fees. Could you have that 
done ?

A.—I could, yes, but it would take some time to do it.

Mr. Weldon:—There has been no suggestion in any of
the Pleadings that any amount was paid for expenses, or what
amount was paid for expenses, or what amount was paid for

An services. There is no issue in regard to that, and evidence of this
character cannot be relevant.

Mr. Tyndale:—It all appears in the vouchers and the idea 
of segregating the different amounts is simply to make it easier 
for his Lordship.

Mr. Weldon:—But, there is no issue in regard to it, and 
I object to evidence of this character.

Griffith 
Examination 

(Continued i
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His Lordship:—It is all in the record now.
Mr. Weldon:—But, I am entitled to object, insofar as it 

affects my clients. My friends for the Defendant in Warranty 
may not object, because the evidence may not be important in 

10 regard to them.
Mr. Languedoc:—Our position is simply this: that it is 

an integral part of the same transaction.
Mr. Weldon:—But, it will open the door to a long enquiry, 

and it is not fair.
His Lordship:—As I say, it is all in the record now, and 

it is simply a matter of dissecting it.
^ Mr. Weldon:—Insofar as it may develop into some defence 

against us, I would ask your Lordship to note my objection.

His Lordship:—Your objection will be noted, and the 
evidence will be taken subject to it.

By Mr. Languedoc, continuing: —
Q.—Will you take communication of the copy of agree­ 

ment between Beauharnois Power Syndicate and Beauharnois 
Power Corporation, Limited, already produced as Exhibit P- 
W-4, and will you tell me whether this is the agreement under 

30 which Beauhariiois Power Syndicate as siiccessor to Beauhar­ 
nois Syndicate turned over the Beauharnois Power project de­ 
velopment, rights, liabilities, and obligations, to the Beauhar­ 
nois Power Corporation Limited 1?

His Lordship:—What is the date of it ? 
Mr. Lauguedoc:—October 31st, 1929.
Witness:—My recollection is this is an agreement to 

transfer, which might have been subsequently amended. If I 
40 had the reference to the Minute Book, I could say.

By Mr. Languedoc, continuing:—
Q.—Will you take communication of Exhibit P-W-5, 

being a copy of agreement between Beauharnois Power Syndi­ 
cate and Marquette Investment Corporation, dated December, 
17th, 1929; and will you state whether it is the agreement under 
which the Beauharnois Power Syndicate transferred and assign­ 
ed to the Beauharnois Corporation, Limited, its undertaking 
and assets of every kind, on condition of the Beauharnois Cor-
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Defendant's

poratiou, Limited, taking over all the liabilities and obligations e ê 
of the Syndicate except its obligations and liabilities to its Hugh's!0" of 
members as such ? cross-

A -r T examination 
A.—— 168. for Defendant

in Warranty

1^ I think the two agreements must be read together. The 
second one simply implements and makes effective the first 
one.

Q.—The Minute Book of the Beauharnois Company is 
Exhibit P-W-6 ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—And, Exhibit P-W-7 is the Minute Book of Beau­ 

harnois Power Syndicate ?
A.—Yes.

20 Mr. Languedoc:—I have no further questions.
Cross-examined by Mr. Tyndale, K. C., of Counsel for 

Defendant'in Warranty.
Q.—In reply to my friend's question about the status of 

matters when Mr. Winfield Siftoii died, you said that early in 
1928 a Petition had been filed with the Dominion Government, 
which was later withdrawn at a date which you could not fix. 
Is that correct? 

30 A.—I think it is correct.
Q.—Subsequently, after Mr. Winfield Sifton's death, a 

further Petition was made to the Government? 
"A.—That is correct.
By the Court :—
Q.—Was the Petition before, or after, Mr. Sif ton death? 
A.—I cannot answer that without reference to my records.

By Mr. Tyndale, continuing:—
40 Q-—The first Petition (if that is the proper name to give 

to an application) was not argued before the Government, so 
to speak ?

A.—No, it was not.
Q.—On consulting the Report of the Parliamentary Com­ 

mittee which sat in 1931, I find that the matter was first argued 
before the Government in January, 1929. Does that conform 
with your recollection? That was when Mr. Aime Geoffrion 
presented the case on behalf of the applicants?

A.—I would think there was some informal argument be­ 
fore the Minister prior to that.
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Q.—This hearing took place before Jhe Minister of Public 
Works and some of the other Ministers?

A.—That was the first, and only, 'public hearing.
Q.—And, that was in January, 1929?
A.—Yes.
Q.—You spoke of the contract with Mr. Sifton for his 

services. Would you indicate to me any minutes in either the 
First or the Second Syndicate Minutes concerning that con­ 
tract ?

A.—There are no Minutes covering the engagement or 
appointment at all.

Q.—Is there any reference to it in the Minute of Beau- 
harnois Power Corporation during the period you were there?

A.—Not that I am aware of.
Q.—Is there any reference at all to the matter? I draw 

your attention to a minute dated November 19th, 1931. You were 
Secretary of the Corporation at that time, were you not ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Is there any reference to the Sifton matter in that 

Minute ?
A.—Yes, there is.
Q.—Is the extract from the Minute I show you a true and 

verbatim extract from the Minute in so far as it concerns the 
Sifton matter ?

A.—Yes.
Qj.—You were Secretary at the time?
A.—Yes.
Q.—And, you signed the original Minute in the book you 

have before you?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Will you produce, as Exhibit D-W-1 a certified 

extract, which you have just verified, as being a true extract of 
the Minute ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Being an extract from the Minutes of Beauharnois 

Power Corporation under date November 19th, 1931 ?
A —Yes.
Mr. Tyndale:—I should have prefaced my cross-examin­ 

ation by a statement to the effect that I cross-examined the wit­ 
ness under reserve of all objections.

I have no further questions to ask the witness. 
Mr. Weldon:—I have no cross-examination.
(And further Deponent saith not).

J. H. Kenehan, 
Official Court Reporter.
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DEPOSITION OF ROBEET O. SWEEZEY, »«?**"'•' Evidence

A witness examined on behalf of the Defendant. Robert o.Sweezey 
Examination

10 On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally 
came and appeared Robert 0. Sweezey, of the City and District 
of Montreal, Civil Engineer, already sworn and examined on be­ 
half of the Plaintiff, who, being now called as a witness on behalf 
of the Defendant, deposes as follows:—

Examined by Mr. Languedoc, K. C., of Counsel for Defen­ 
dant :—

20 Q.—You have already been sworn?
A.—Yes.
Q.—We have documentary evidence, and you have heard 

the testimony of Mr. Griffith, with regard to the inception of the 
Beauharnois project, the formation of the Marquette Investment 
Corporation, and of the original Beauharnois Syndicate. Do you 
corroborate what Mr. Griffith said with regard to those two 
group or bodies'?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Coming more directly to the point, will you tell His 

30 Lordship exactly how you got in touch with Mr. Sifton in con­ 
nection with those enterprises?

A.—I had known Mr. Sifton for some years, having work­ 
ed with him in the Royal Securities Corporation in 1912 and 
1913.

Q.—Mr. Griffith was also there, I believe ?
A.—Yes. He was also in the Royal Securities Corporation 

at some subsequent date.

.Q I met a mutual friend of Mr. Sifton and myself on the 
street one day............

Q.— (interrupting) In what year would that be?
A.—In the late summer, or early fall, of 1927.
Q.—Previous to September 6th ?A.—Yes. ~ ~'

He suggested that Mr. Winfield Sifton might be of great 
help to me in carrying on some of our work. The idea was one
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with which I agreed, because I knew of Mr. Sift on's ability, and 
that he had recently fought a very interesting fight in connec­ 
tion with the Georgian Bay Canal, and I figured from that that 
he would be useful in helping to guide us in this. Consequently 
I telephoned him, and asked him if he was available to act for 
us in any capacity in which his services might be suitable. He 
agreed that he was interested, and would like to have a talk with 
me, and asked me if I woiild like to go to see him. At the last 
moment I was unable to go, and I sent Mr. Griffith, with a letter 
of introduction.

Q.—Is that the letter which has been filed as Exhibit 
P-2 ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Dated September 6th, 1927?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Mr. Griffith went to see Mr. Sifton?
A.—Yes.
Q.—What was the next step ?
A.—When Mr. Griffith came back he reported to me and 

to Mr. Newman, who was also in the office.
Q.—Was Mr. Newman there when Mr. Griffith returned"?
A.—Yes. Mr. Newman was always in the office.
Q.—He was your partner?
A.—Yes.
Q.—How often was Mr. Steele in the office?
A.—Quite frequently, because we were every day developing 

some new ideas of how to proceed with our effort, and how to 
raise money.

Q.—What was the next development?
A.—Mr. Sifton came to Montreal, and I had several talks 

with him, pointing out to him the physical aspects of the under­ 
taking. He was apparently quite convinced the project had all 
the engineering merits it should have, and he was very interested 

40 from a legal standpoint and pointed out some of the difficulties 
we would have. He pointed out that the greatest difficulties 
would obviously be political difficidties, defining the jurisdiction 
of Quebec vs Ottawa in regard to the ownership of the Power, 
which, by the way, we felt were very considerable, and on which 
we desired to have assistance and guidance, and, naturally, we' 
were quite relieved to have Mr. Sifton's advice and assistance.

Then we came to an agreement, a few days after Mr. Grif­ 
fith had seen him, in regard to a retainer of $5000,. which I
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agreed to pay him; and I probably paid Mm forthwith, in a day Defendant's
± -.Ti * T j.i ci T i i 1 • x-i" • \ Evidenceor two. with my own funds — the Syndicate not having sufficient —

:,-.,. Deposition of
mone at the tune. °'

Q. — On whose behalf was Mr. Sifton's retainer eff ected ?
^ (Continued i

-^ Mr. Weldon: — I object to the question, as tending to vary 
or affect the documents filed.

His Lordship : — I will take the evidence under reserve of 
the objection.

Witness : — All the work I did was, obviously, on behalf of 
the Syndicate.

By Mr. Languedoc, continuing: —
20 Q- — -^ut I would like YOU to make the answer narrower. 

On whose behalf was Mr. Sif ton retained ]
Mr. Weldon : — It is understood this evidence is being made 

under reserve of my objection'?
His Lordship : — Yes.
Witness : — On behalf of the Syndicate.
By Mr. Languedoc, continuing: —
Q. — Was that made clear to Mr. Sifton at the time 

du A.— Oh, quite.
Q. — Was there any doubt in your mind that he knew he 

was being retained for the Syndicate?
A. — There could not be any doubt.
Q. — The terms of his retainer are as evidenced by Exhi­ 

bits P-5, P-6 and P-7 (P-7 being supposed to clarify the terms 
of P-4), of October 15th, October 17th, and October 'l 9th, 1927?

A.— Yes.
Q. — It was in accordance with those terms that the various 

40 sums shown on Exhibits P-W-8 and P-W-9 were paid to the' late 
Mr. Sifton?

A. — Correct,
Q. — Is Exhibit P-8 a truthful and accurate epitome of the 

substance of your meeting with Mr. Clifford Sifton, one of the 
present Plaintiffs, on or about June 7th, 1932 ?

A. — I am not sure I quite understand your question.
Q. — Did anything else occur at your interview beyond what 

is embodied in that letter?
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Mr. Weldori:—I submit evidence as to whether this re­ 
presents a correct statement of what Mr. Sweezey thought, or 
said, at the meeting is not legal. There was no attempt on our 
part to vary a valid written instrument.

Here we have a letter in which Mr. Sweezey signs an 
undertaking, and now he is being asked to say if it is a true state­ 
ment of what he undertook to do. This morning Mr. Sweezey 
was asked if he admitted he owed the money, subject only to ap­ 
proval, and the interpretation of "approval" was asked for. My 
friend is now asking Mr. Sweezey whether the letter he signed 
represents his undertaking.

Mr. Laiiguedoc:—I am not asking him that. I am asking 
him whether there was anything else.

His Lordship:—You are objecting to the question, Mr. 
Weldou 1

Mr. TVeldon:—Yes, my Lord.
His Lordship:—I will take the evidence under reserve 

of the objection.
Witness:—The letter was naturally the result of an inter­ 

view I had with Mr. Sifton, in which Mr. Sifton was anxious to 
30 press this matter as quickly as possible, and I, on the other hand, 

was anxious to defer any Action of the kind, because we were 
right in the midst of an effort to care for the investment of the 
bondholders in Beauharnois. and any plan we had in view would 
have been seriously jeopardized by a lawsuit at that time.

In these circumstances Mr. Sifton consented to post]toning 
any Action on his part, provided this type of letter were written 
to satisfy him in relation to his co-executors.

By Mr. Laiiguedoc, continuing:—
Q.—Is it to your personal knowledge, — or can you give 

direct testimony, of your own knowledge — that you made known 
to your fellow managers of Beauharnois Syndicate the retainer 
of the late Winfield Sifton"]

A.—Absolutely: without doubt. It was an every-day 
thing. Everything we did was reviewed with the managers of the 
Syndicate.

Q.—Did you make it known to Mr. R. TV. Steele •?
A.—Yes.
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. — Yes.
Q. — Did you make it known to Mr. Robert ?
A. — No. Mr. Robert was in a dual position, and was why

, .,, , L ' J (Continued j
10 lie withdrew.

Q. — Did he ever take part in your conferences 1?
A.— No.
Q. — Was he an active member of the Syndicate ?
A. — He was not. He was the vendor of certain assets, and 

felt, therefore, he should not be an active member of the Syn­ 
dicate, and he withdrew for that reason.

"Q. — But, there were four out of the five managers who 
knew all about it 1?

A. — Mr. Steele, Mr. Griffith, and Mr. Newman, knew all 
about it. Including myself, there were four.

Q. — I believe Mr. Moyer came into the Syndicate later on ?
A.— Yes.

Of course, when he came in he was brought up to date on 
what had transpired.

Q. — Do you know what knowledge, if any, the other man­ 
agers had of the terms of Mr. Sif ton 's retainer ? 

30 A. — I certainly told them, and they saw Mr. Sifton in my 
office on frequent occasions. I told them the term of the agree­ 
ment.

Q. — Was there any objection taken to it?
A. — None whatever.
Q. — Approximately what was the total amount of capital 

involved in the project?
A.— We estimated about $76,000,000, I think.
Q. — Supposing the whole thing had gone smoothly, and 

Mr. Sif ton had lived to complete his work, at a rough guess, in 
what possible expenditure were you involved 1?

A. — $50,000, plus his current expenses and fees.

Mr. Languedoc: — I have no further questions to ask the 
witness.

Mr. Weldon : — I have no cross-examination.
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Cross-examined by Mr. Tyndale, K. C., of Counsel 
Defendant in Warranty:—

for

Q.—Mr. Griffith told us that Mr. Sifton's assistance was 
to be directed rather towards the authorities at Ottawa than to­ 
wards the authorities at Quebec. That is correct, is it not ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—After Mr. Sifton died, in June, 1928, I understand 

you engaged other Ontario Counsel, in the person of Senator 
Hayden and his partner?

A.—I do not recall just when Senator Hayden was re­ 
tained. It may have been before Mr. Sifton died.

Q.—Perhaps I could refresh your memory. Mr. Ebbs 
testified in the proceedings before the Parliamentary Committee. 
He was a member of Senator Hayden's firm?

A.—Yes.
Q.—He testified his firm received a retainer of $50,000, 

in addition to other fees, for work done from October 1928. That 
is in accordance with your recollection, is it not?

A.—Yes.
Q.—The contingent fee payable to Senator Hayden or his 

firm, was $50 000, was it not ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Apart from expenses and retainer, of some $15 000 ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—The contingent fee being subject to the approval of 

the project by the Dominion Government, I suppose? That would 
be the contingency of the fee ?

A.—I cannot recall the terms of the undertaking. It was 
certainly contingent upon something, and it was obviously upon 
the completion of the scheme.

Q.—And that involved the approval of the Dominion Go­ 
vernment ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—And they were supposed to act towards the Dominion 

Government ?
A.—Yes.

By Mr. Weldon:—

Q.—You told my friend Mr. Tyndale that after Mr. Sif­ 
ton's death you retained other Ontario Counsel, and my friend
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Mr. Tyndale suggested Senator Hayden was Ontario Counsel. Evidee
Was he the only Ontario Counsel you had ?

A. — No, we had several others ; but, as I recollect Senator c eezey 
10 Hay den's firm was the leading Ontario Counsel.

Q. — Mr. W. B. Sifton was not a barrister when you re- ' 
tallied him in September, 1927 ?

A. — I do not know when he became a barrister. It was 
some time after he was retained.

Q. — He was not retained as legal counsel "?
A. — Not for his legal standing.

By Mr. Languedoc: —

20 Q.— What was he retained for ?
A. — He was retained for his familiarity with the proceed­ 

ings that had to be met with in Ottawa, and to guide us as the best 
method of obtaining a hearing of our case.

Q. — Was he retained as a member of any firm ?
A.— No.
Q. — Or, as an individual?
A. — As an individual.

30 By the Court: —

Q. — It looks as if he was retained principally for the pur­ 
pose of advising as to the rights of the Province of Quebec and 
the rights of the Federal Government 1?

A. — There were many things he was adapted to. That 
would be included in many others. He was experienced in busi­ 
ness as well as in legal matters, and in the methods of procedure 
in dealing with Governments.

40 By Mr. Tyndale :—

Q. — His abilities were restricted only geographically? 
A. — I think that is a fair estimate.

And further Deponent saith not.

J. H. Kenehan, 
Official Court Reporter.
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DEPOSITION OF CLARE MOYER,

A witness examined on behalf of the Defendant.

10 On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty four, personally 
came and appeared Clare Moyer, of the City of Ottawa, in the 
Province of Ontario, Barrister, aged 47 years, a witness produced 
and examined on behalf of the Defendant, who, being duly 
sworn, deposes as follows:

Examined by Mr. Languedoc, K. C., of Counsel for De­ 
fendant :—

20 Q.—I understand you were personally acquainted with the 
late Mr. Winfield Sifton, whose name has been constantly re­ 
ferred to during this trial ?

A.—I was.
Q.—When did you first come into contact with him in 

connection with the Beauharnois project?
A.—In the month of January, 1928. I think it was during 

the first week of January.
Q.—In what circumstances'? 

3Q A.—He approached me, in Ottawa.
Q.—Where were you in Ottawa at the time 1?
A.—Actually I saw him in the Chateau Laurier I was living 

in Ottawa.

He told me that he had some time previously been retain­ 
ed by a group or Syndicate of Montreal gentlemen who were 
interested in developing a power project at Beauharuois, and he 
said he had recommended to this group that they might usefully 
retain me. He asked me if I was interested, and I told him I 

40 was.
Q.—Were those the words he used?
A.—That was the sense of what he said.
Q.—Have you any doubt whatever on the subject ? Be­ 

cause it is a matter of great importance to my client. Have you 
?ny doubt whatever that he alluded to either "a group" or "a 
syndicate'"?

A.—None whatever.
Q.—That is quite clear in your memory?
A.—Quite.
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Q. — You then accepted, through him, a retainer for this Defendant'
group? ' Eviden-!-e

» T j • -I Deposition of
A. —— 1 Clld. Olaire Moyev

Q TA •!! in i /-) . Examination
. — Did he name the group to you? (continued,

10 A. — Not at that first contact.

Within a day or two, or it may have been later the same 
day, he saw me again. He was accompanied at the time by Mr. 
Griffith. It was then explained to me what it was all about, and 
I learned that Mr. Griffith was one of the group ; and I learned, 
in the course of our conversation, or very shortly thereafter, who 
the others were.

Q. — Did you find out what the group was called? 
20 A. — Yes. They were referred to as the Beauharnois Syn­ 

dicate.
Q. — From then on what opportunity had you for contact 

with the late Mr. Winfield Sifton ?
A. — We were in very close contact from the month of 

January, 1928, up to the time of his death, on June 13th. As a 
matter of fact I was with him when he died, and I was with him, 
not continuously but frequently, during the interval.

Q. — Would you think that on occasions you were with 
30 him several times a day, or portions of the day ?

A. — Yes, I was with him quite often. He made my office 
his headquarters when he was in Ottawa.

Q. — Do you remember when you were retained?
A. — During the first week in January, I believe.
Q. — And, from then on, so long as Mr. Sif ton's health per­ 

mitted, you and he were associated in furthering the plans of 
this Svndicate?

A.— Yes.
Q. — And, did you carry on after his death? 

40 A.— I did.
Q. — Do you know anything at all about the payments that 

were made to Mr. Sifton?
A. — I did not know at the beginning, but I learned as time 

went on.
Q. — Do you know to whom he looked for payment ?
A. — I know he used to write to Mr. Griffith, and receive 

letters from him, and he used to keep them on file in my of­ 
fice.
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Q.—Do you know in what capacity Mr. Griffith was 
writing ?

A.—I presume as Secretary of the Syndicate.

10 The payments were made by the Marquette Corporation.

Q.—Was your relation with the Syndicate practically the 
same as Mr. Sifton's?

A.—Practically identical, except to the amount of re­ 
tained, and so on.

Q.—Were your payments made in the same form, by 
cheques from the Marquette Corporation ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Through your association with Mr. Sifton, do you 

know how far the work had proceeded towards securing the ap­ 
proval of the Dominion Government to the plans of the Syn­ 
dicate and its successors at the date of Mr. Sif ton's death?

A.—I think it would be Very difficult for anyone to es­ 
timate the progress in terms of percentages, or on any other 
basis, but it certainly had not progressed to be appreciable in 
such a way that it might have been measured in terms of achieve­ 
ment of success.

Q.—And you were familiar, if anyone was, with the then 
30 condition of the project?

A.—I think I was. I became a syndicate manager later 
on, and I knew what was going on.

Q.—When did you become a syndicate manager?
A.—In April, 1928.
Q.—Before Mr. Sifton died ?
A.—Yes.
Q.—Are you aware whether your fellow managers knew 

Mr. Sifton was being retained?
A.—Absolutely.
Q.—Do yon include Mr. Steele in that knowledge ?
A.—I take it for granted they must have known. We 

had meetings at No. 210 St. James Street, Montreal, and all of 
us who were present: and we usually were all present, would 
discuss matters of common interest.

Q.—And, other Counsel as well?
A.—Yes.
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Q. — And it is not surprising, I suppose, for Counsel to Defendant's 
expect to be paid for going into conference with their clients ? e — e

. -r j-i • i -j • 1 ^ -L • J.T • T-> • Deposition ofA. — I think it is a recognized fact, even in this Province, ciaire Mo
& " Examinattion 

(Continued;

10 Mr. Languedoc: — I have no further questions to ask the 
witness.

Mr. Weldon : — I have no cross-examination. 

Mr. Montgomery: — I have no cross-examination. 

And further Deponent saith not.

J .H. Kenehan, 
20 Official Court Eeporter.

30

40
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No. 18 
10 DEPOSITION OF JAMES B. HUNTER,

A witness examined on behalf of Defendant in Warranty.

On this fourteenth day of November, in the year of Our 
Lord, one thousand nine hundred and thirty fbur, personally 
came and appeared James B. Hunter, of the City of Ottawa, in 
the Province of Ontario, Deputy Minister of Public Works, 
aged 58 years, a witness produced and examined on behalf of the 

20 Defendant in Warranty, who, being duly sworn, deposes as 
follows:

Examined by Mr. Montgomery, K. C., of Counsel for De­ 
fendant in Warranty:—

Q.—I understand you have occupied the position of De­ 
puty Minister of Public Works for a great many years ?

A.—Since 1908 — twenty six years last July.
Q.—You were occupying that position during all the 

30 periods when the Beauharnois application, made by the Sweezey 
interest, was in issue?

A.—I was.
Q.—That application went through the Department of 

Public Works, did it not? It was under their jurisdiction?
A.—Yes.
Q.—You heard Mr. Griffith say the first application was 

withdrawn ?
A.—That is correct,

40 The application that was dealt with was filed in January, 
1928.

Q.—And, so far as the Government was concerned, it was 
an application to the Governor in Council ?

A.—Yes.
Q.—Was it pressed in January, 1928?
A.—No.
Q.—Can you tell His Lordship what happened in con­ 

nection with it ?
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A.—The application was made. Of course it was a very m warranty 
important application. There had been previous requests for Deposition of 
Beauharnois developments, which had not got anywhere. On Hunter' 

10 account of the importance of the St. Lawrence River, and the (continued) 
various interests including the power, on it, it was a very serious 
matter for the Government to undertake to deal with. The 
result was considerable discussion as to whether there should be 
an Act of Parliament, or what the procedure should be. The 
discussions continued almost for the whole of that year, and it 
was only in December, 1928, that instructions were given to me 
to make a reference to the Department of Justice to ascertain 
whether it was an application that might properly be dealt with 
under the Navigable Waters Act. That was done, and the 
Department of Justice replied that it was quite proper for the 
Government to deal with it under the Navigable Waters Act.

Q.—And, what followed?
A.—The Government appointed a Board of Engineers of 

the Departments of Public Works, Railways and Canals, Marine, 
and Interior.

Q.—When was that appointment made?
A.—In the early part of January, 1929.

30 While that Board was getting to work it was decided to 
hold a public hearing, which took place on January 15th, 1929. 
The Ministers presiding were the Minister of Public Works, Mr. 
Elliott; Mr. Stewart, Minister of the Interior; and Mr. Cardin, 
Minister of Marine.

Q.—Was there any opposition offered to the application 1?
A.—Yes. The file discloses a number . of protestants 

against the application; such as Canada Steamship Lines, and 
some other Power Companies. All were invited, and I think the 

40 majority of them were represented at the hearing.
Q.—I think their names are mentioned in the Report, are 

they not?
A.—I think so.

By the Court :—

Q.—Reference has been made to an application which was 
filed, and then withdrawn. What do you know of that?

A.—The record I have is of one application, made in
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January, 1928; and that is the application we refer to all through m warranty
our records. I do not remember any withdrawal of that appli- Deposition or
cation, or a subsequent one. That is the one I referred to the Hunter'
-TV j j P T j • • -rv i J?.L-|J Examination10 Department of Justice in December of that year. (continued; 

By Mr. Montgomery, continuing:—

Q.—I think the Companies which objected, and were re­ 
presented, are those listed in Order in Council No. 422, Exhibit 
P-33: Canada Steamships, Canadian Light & Power Company, 
and so on ?

A.—Yes. Those are the Companies. They are on page 6 
of this Exhibit.

20 Q.—That was when the first real fight took place on this 
matter, was it not ?

A.—Yes. That was when the might of the opposition 
crystallized.

Q.—An opinion of the Department of Justice was re­ 
ferred to ?

A.—What we desired to know was whether the Govern­ 
ment had the right to authorize an application of that sort under 
the Navigable Waters Act, or whether it would require an Act 

on of Parliament.
Q._When was P. C. 422 passed ?
A.—March 8th, 1929.
Q.—And, I note by the terms of the Order, that it was 

conditional ?
A.—Yes. There are a number of conditions.

By Mr. Tyndale:—

Q.—Twenty eight conditions'? 
40 A.—Yes. Beginning on page 9.

By Mr. Montgomery, continuing:—

Q.—Twenty eight conditions would be approximately the 
number ?

A.—Twenty eight is correct.
Q.—Will you please refer to condition No. 11, and say 

what it is ?
A.—It is on page 11:—
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"The Company shall not commence the construe- Sw^Snty 
tion of the works until detailed plans of construction and Deposition of 
all necessary information respecting the said works have 
be-en submitted to and approved by the Minister, provided 

10 that such plans and information shall be submitted within 
one year."

Q. — May I ask you whether or not before this Order in 
Council was passed the plans which had been submitted had been 
referred to any body of engineers?

A. — The plans of the general scheme were referred to this 
inter-departmental body I have mentioned.

Q. — And, I believe reference is made to objections which 
had been taken on their part to certain elements of the plans ? 

20 A. — Yes. They took exception to the remedial works sug­ 
gested, for one thing.

Q. — We now come to the condition in P. C. 422 which re­ 
quired further approval of plans. Were further plans sub­ 
mitted ?

A. — Yes, further plans were submitted in July, 1929.
Q. — Were those ever approved?
A. — No, those were not approved, and were subsequently 

withdrawn; and others submitted in August, 1930. 
30 Q- — And, were those plans ever approved?

A. — No, those plans were never approved — this is, by 
the Department of Public Works.

Q. — The next event, in order of time, was the famous 
*3eauharnois Enquiry, was it not?

A. — Yes. That came on in June, 1931.
Q. — Prior to that Enquiry there had been no approval of 

any of the plans?
A. — No. The Minister had approved of no plans up to 

that time. 
40

By the Court :—

Q. — The work was progressing in the meantime?
A. — Yes, the work was started I think. I think they got 

plant together in the fall of 1929, and were going on during 
1930.

The general scheme was approved by the Order in Council 
of March, 1929 ; but the plans referred to as being required to 
be filed under Condition No. 11, were never approved.
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By Mr. Weldon:—
Q.—Those are the additional plans in Schedule 8 attached 

to the general scheme? 
10 A.—Yes.

Mr. Montgomery:—The general scheme, which was the first 
application, speaks for itself; and your Lordship will see certain 
plans were not approved, and others required further approval.

Witness:—Subject- to the conditions, and further detailed 
plans to be furnished.

By Mr. Montgomery, continuing:—
Q.—You have referred to the Report of the Investigat­ 

ing Committee in 1931. Will you file, as Exhibit D-W-2, 
Report Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4 of the Parliamentary Committee of 
1931, including the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence?

A.—Yes.
Q.—I notice you were asked at the enquiry the same 

question as His Lordship just put to you: as to whether the work 
was proceeding in the meantime, notwithstanding the noii-ap- 
proval of plans, and you gave testimony in reference to that 
which might be material.

You were asked:—
"Q.—Do you know why the work proceeded with­ 

out the approval by the Minister of the plans'?" 
and your answer was:—

"A.—Well, the work that had been done is entirely 
on the Company's property, not in the river. I suppose 
that was their business."
Mr. Weldon:—On what page of the Report is that ?
Mr. Montgomery:—Page 66.
By Mr. Montgomery, continuing:—
Q.—Would that still be your answer?
A.—I think it was the business of the Company to pro­ 

ceed with work on their own property, as long as they did not 
interfere with the river.

Q.—You were interested from the point of view of na­ 
vigation and it was only when they got to the river, or did some­ 
thing affecting the river, that you were affected?

30
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A.—That was what we were protecting, under the Na-in'wlrranty 
vigable Waters Act. Deposition of

Q.—I see a reference in the Report to certain aspects iiiHauntlr' 
10 which the work as finally carried out was not in accordance' with 

the general plans which were first submitted for approval and 
which were never approved.

A.—They were, as there usually are changes — minor, 
sometimes fairly substantial — in which the work as actually 
carried out may differ from the preliminary plans.

Q.—Would you mind indicating the major changes? Take 
the ones dealt with in the Reports, for instance?

A.—One change' was the re-location of the entrance from 
Lake St. Francis. That was moved something about a mile from 

^0 the original location. I have seen references to it, but I do not 
see the distance here.

Q.—It was moved about a mile from the original loca­ 
tion?

A.—Yes. Northerly, I think it was.
Q.—When you speak of the original location, do you 

mean it was moved about a mile from the location shown on the 
plans that were submitted and were considered prior to Order 
in Council P. C. 422?

on A.—The plans accompanying this Order in Council P. C. 
422.

Q.—When you refer to the original location, you refer 
to the location shown on the plans referred to in Order P. C. 
422 ?

A.—Yes. That was the old St. Louis feeder, as it was 
known.

Then there was a change made in the distance apart to the 
banks — not of the canal proper, but what you might ('all the 

40 containing channel of the navigation canal.

Q.—How extensive was that change?
A.—About 900 or 1000 feet difference.
Q.—Could you give us the original measurements?
A.—The Report states (and I imagine the figures are 

correct) the banks are about 3300 feet apart, whereas the original 
plans show a width of about 1100 feet in the rock section, and 
4100 feet in the earth section.

Q.—What other major change was made?



82

20

JAMES B. HUNTER (for Defendant in Warranty)
Examination in Chief.

A.—I do not know that I am sufficiently familiar with 
the engineering changes. I was not dealing with those.

The two I have mentioned were the two main changes.
10

Q.—Before this matter could be submitted to the Governor 
in Council, it would have had to be considered by your Depart­ 
ment, would it not 1? The Governor would act on the recom­ 
mendation of the Minister of Public Works?

A.—Yes.
Q.—And the application was lodged in your Department, 

and would primarily pass through your Department 1!
A.—Correct.
Q.—Can you tell us whether any substantial progress had 

been made upon that application prior to the month of June, 
1928?

A.—The first real action on the application was in De­ 
cember, 1928 when the reference was made to the Justice De­ 
partment to know whether our Department would have the au­ 
thority to deal with the application under the Navigable Waters 
Act.

Q.—Up to that time the matter had been pressed?
A.—So far as the official end of the Department was 

3Q concerned, there had not been very much activity.
Q.—And it was really in Dece-mber, 1928, or January, 

1929, after you received the opinion of the Department of 
Justice to the effect that you could handle the matter, rather 
than having it done by Act of Parliament, that you started upon 
it 1

A.—Yes.
Q.—So, I do not suppose you did much work with the 

late Mr. Winfield Sifton on that application?
A.—I never saw him at all in connection with that ap- 

40 plication.
Q.—And, you were the active head of that Department 

— not only the titular head but the active head, at that time ?
A.—Of course they would not come to me to know whether 

the Government would deal with an application of that sort. 
They would go to the Minister, or other Cabinet Ministers. The 
Department comes into play once the Government decides to do 
something, and then we get our instructions.

In the
Superior

Court 
District of 
Montreal.

No. 18 
Defendant's 
Evidence 
in Warranty

Deposition of 
James B. 
Hunter 
Examination 

(Continued)



— 83 —

In the
Superior

J. B. HUNTER (fo-r Defendant in War.) Cross-examination. District o?
v ' ' ' Montreal.

Mr. Montgomery:—I have no further questions to ask the Defendant's
Evidence 

WltneSS. in Warranty

Deposition of

Cross-examined by Mr. Weldon, K. C., of Counsel for Hunter'
T-»I • j • i> o Cross- 

10 PlamtlttS :—— examination

Q.—The Beauharnois plans have been approved by the 
Governor in Council, have they not!

A.—Yes.
Q.—Before the month of January, 1934!
A.—In March, 1929.
Q.—Subsequently the plans were approved, and the con­ 

struction carried on, and a certain amount completed 1? Plans 
were approved before the work was done ?

20 A.—I have no knowledge of that. There was a disruption 
there, and the work was taken from the Department of Public 
Works and put under the Department of Railways and Canals. 
There was no approval until it was taken from the Public Works 
Department, which was subsequent to the investigation of 
1931.

We have a record of the application, but no approval by 
the Minister of the detail plans was given up to that time.

30 By Mr. Tyndale :—

Q.—Or ever ?
A.—Or ever, by the Minister of the Public Works.

By Mr. Weldon continuing:—

Q.—I am speaking of the approval by the Governor General 
in Council. 

40 A.—Yes. And they are attached to the Order P. C. 422.
Q.—I am speaking of later than that again.
A.—There was no further approval of plans made by the 

Minister of Public Works. No other recommendation by the 
Public Works Department. I do not know what approval was 
made by other Departments.

Q.—After 1931 it had left your hands, and you cannot 
speak as to what happened 1?

A.—No. I do not know what approvals have been made 
since then.
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Q.—Up to the time of that enquiry yourself, or the De- KM"*
partment, would have had to give the approval? cr"nsser

10 A.—We were dealing with it up to that enquiry. Tc™nntinuend>

By Mr. Montgomery:—

Q.—You referred to a set of plans having been filed in 
July, 1929.

A.—The first detailed plans were filed in July, 1929, and 
were subsequently withdrawn.

Q.—The plans of July, 1929, were withdrawn, and another 
set substituted ? 

20 A.—In August, 1930, yes.
Q.—Were the plans filed in August, 1930, a complete set 

of plans, or a partial set ?
A.—A partial set, —of the works at the outlet to Lake 

St. Francis.
Q.—None of the remedial works were shown in those 

plans ?
A.—No. They were changed in that second set of plans.
Q.—So far as your Department was concerned, or any­ 

thing proceeding through the Department of Public Works, the 
plans were never approved?

A.—No.

This Order made it conditional upon the plans being ap­ 
proved by the Minister of Public Works, and he never gave ap­ 
proval of any plans.

And further Deponent saith not.

40 J- H. Kenehan,
Official Court Reporter.
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No. 19

20

Province of Quebec 
District of Montreal 

1U No A-126082
JUDGMENT OF THE SUPERIOR COURT

on the 15th day of January, 1935. 
Present: The Hon. Mr. Justice MacKinnon 

HENRY A. SIFTON et al. es qual.,
Plaintiffs.

——YS——

ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY,
Defendant.

—&—
The said ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY,

Plaintiff-ill-Warranty.
—&—

BEAUHARNOIS POWER CORPORATION, 
LIMITED,

Defendant-in-Warranty.

THE COURT, having heard the parties by their respec­ 
tive counsels, having examined the documents, proof and pro­ 
ceedings of record and deliberated.

WHEREAS plaintiff declares as follows (see Plaintiff's 
Declaration page 3).

40 WHEREAS defendant by his amended plea, declares as 
follows: (see Defendant's Plea page 5).

WHEREAS plaintiffs, for answer to defendant's amend­ 
ed plea, declare as follows: (see Plaintiffs answer to Defendant's 
Plea, page 8).

WHEREAS defendant for reply to plaintiffs' answer de­ 
clares as follows: (see Defendant's Reply to Plaintiffs' answer, 
page 10).

30
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WHEREAS the principal defendant, hereby constituting 
himself and acting as plaintfff-in-warranty against the said N — 19 
Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, defendant-in-warrau- 
ty, declares: (see Plaintiff Declaration-in- Warranty page 17).

Macklnnon,

WHEREAS defendant-in-warranty for plea declares as (continued)3 
follow?: (see Plea of Defendant-in- Warranty page 20).

10
WHEREAS for answer to the plea of the defendant-in- 

warranty, the plaintiff -in-warranty says: see Answer to Plea of 
Defeudant-in- Warranty page 22).

WHEREAS for replication to plaintiff-in- warranty's 
answer to defendant-in- warranty's plea, defendant-in-warranty 
declares: (SOG Defendant-in- Warranty's replication to Plaintiff- 
in-AVarranty's answer to its Plea page 28).

20 THE COURT PROCEEDS TO RENDER THE FOL­ 
LOWING JUDGMENT.

By judgment of the 4th September, 1934, the principal 
action and the action in warranty were joined for the purpose of 
enquete and merits and ordered tried at the same time and de­ 
cided on the same evidence.

ADJUDICATING ON THE PRINCIPAL DEMAND.

30 The action of the principal plaintiffs es-qual is founded 
on an alleged contract entered into between the late C. Winfield 
B. Sifton and the principal plaintiff Robert O. Sweezey in con­ 
nection with what is commonly known as the Beauharnois pros- 
position.

The plea of the principal defendant is in substance that he 
never personally assumed or entered into any undertaking or obli­ 
gation to the late C. Winfield B. Sifton the said Si ''ton died be­ 
fore the plans of the syndicate or his successors, had been passed, 

W that the plans were never definitely approved by the Dominion of 
Canada, and that the Orders-in-Council of the 8th March, 1929, 
and 22nd June, 1929, were subsequently set aside by Statute.

As to the defence that the principal defendant never per­ 
sonally assumed or entered into any undertaking or obligation 
with the late Sifton, the Court finds that the undertaking set 
forth in principal plaintiff's declaration was a definite under­ 
taking or obligation of the principal defendant personally for 
which he is liable. Also that he is personally liable under it as a 
partner of the Beauharnois syndicate when the arrangement with 
Sifton was made.
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The story of the transaction is as follows : —•

Mr. Sweezey states that it had been suggested to him, early 
in September, 1927, that Mr. Sifton might be of great halp in 
carrying out some of the work to which suggestion he agreed as 
lie knew Sif ton's ability and that he had recently had consider- 

10 able experience in connection with matters relating to the Geor­ 
gian Bay Canal. Sweezey also states that Sifton was "retained 
for his familiarity with the proceedings that had to be met with 
in Ottawa, and to guide us on the best method of obtaining a 
hearing of their case. ' '

Sweezey immediately got into touch with Sifton by tele­ 
phone and made an appointment with him to see Sifton at Mal- 
lorytown, Ont., to discuss with him the question of engaging his 
services. Sweezey found at the last minute that he was unable to

20 keep this appointment and sent Mr. Griffith in his stead. He 
gave Griffith a letter of introduction, dated 6th September, 1927, 
in which he introduced Griffith not only as secretary of the 
power syndicate, but as a partner of Sweezey 's firm, at the same 
time stating that Griffith was familiar with all the details of the 
Power proposition. Mr. Griffith, who appears in the various ca­ 
pacities as a member of the syndicate, an associate of the defen­ 
dant, Secretary-Treasurer of the syndicate, and Secretary-Trea­ 
surer of the Marquette Investment Co., states that he kept this 
appointment and discussed with Sifton, the purpose for which

30 the syndicate was formed, the work that had to be done before the 
Beauharnois project could be proceeded with, the various steps 
of the legal, financial and engineering nature which had to be ta­ 
ken and the financial organization of the syndicate. He also 
states that Mr. Sifton at that time wished to be reassured of the 
fact there were people of substance behind it so that he would be 
working for a capable organization. No arrangement was enter­ 
ed into at that meeting but Sifton expressed his willingness to 
work with Sweezey and Griffith. Griffith states further that on 
his return to Montreal he reported to Sweezey personally, as well

*0 as to the other syndicate managers, the result of his interview 
with Sifton and suggested that Sifton be retained.
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Prior to the 15th October, 1927, a verbal arrangement was 
entered into between Sweezey and Sifton which was confirmed 
by Sweezey to Sif ton by letter of the 15th October, 1927; Sif ton's 
letter to Sweezey of the 17th October and Sweezey to Sif ton's 
letter of the 19th October, 1927.

On the 28th September, 1927, Sweezey had sent Sifton his 
own personal cheque for $5,000 as a retaining fee, which letter 
bore the letterhead of R. O. Sweezey, Consulting Engineer, 136 
St. James St., Montreal, and was written entirely in the first 
person.

The letter of the 15th October, 1927, from Sweezey to Sif­ 
ton contains the agreement entered into with Sifton, with the 
exception of some slight changes mentioned in the two subsequent 
letters of the 17th and 19th October, 1927, already referred to. 
This letter is written on the letterhead of Newman, Sweezey & Co. 
Ltd., and states that it was written with the purpose of confirming 
their conversation in which Sweezey agreed to pay $5,000 as a 
retaining fee in connection with the St. Lawrence and Beauhar- 
nois Power situation. This letter reads as follows: —

Letterhead of
NEWMAN, SWEEZEY & COMPANY, LTD, 

Investment Bankers, 
136 St. James Street,

Motreal, 15th October, 1927. 
W. B. Sifton, Esq.,

Mallorytown Out.
Dear Sir : —

I apologize to you for the delay in writing you, as 
I promised I would some time ago.

This letter is to confirm our conversation in which 
I agreed to pay you $5,000 as a retaining fee, in connec­ 
tion with the St. Lawrence and Beauharnois Power situa­ 
tion, which amount has already been sent you.

It is agreed beween us that we pay you One hun­ 
dred dollars a day and expenses (when employed . away 
from your home) for such time as we may require your 
services as our work and effort proceed.

It is further agreed between us that when our plans 
have been passed and approved by Dominion Government 
with the aid of your counsel and efforts, we shall pay you 
the sum of $50,000.00.

Yours truly,
"B. O. Sweezey."
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This letter was satisfactory to Sifton except that he raised 
the question that in the event of the approval of the plans by the 
Dominion Government he should not have to produce any evi­ 
dence that it was due to his aid, in order to be entitled to the 
$50,000 additional fee referred to in the letter of the 15th Oc­ 
tober, 1927.

Sifton worked continuously and diligently on the propo­ 
sition up to the day of his death, which took place on the 17th 
of June, 1928.

On the llth June, 1932, Sweezey gave Mr. Clifford 
Sifton, one of the executors of the estate of Winfield Sifton, a 
letter in which he gave his unqualified acknowledgment that he 
himself personally owed Winfield Sifton, at the time of his 
death, $50,000 subject only to the approval of the Beauharnois 
plans at Ottawa. In his letter he states that this was an under- 

20 taking made in connection with Beauharnois syndicate. This 
letter reads as follows;—

Mr. Clifford Sifton,
Executor Estate Winfield Sifton. 

Dear Sir,—
In consideration of the executors' undertaking not 

to press this matter for six mouths from today, I hereby 
acknowledge that I owed Winfield Sifton at his death, 
subject only to approval of Beauharnois plans at Ottawa, 
the sum of $50,000, this being an undertaking I made in 
connection with Beauharnois Syndicate whose assets and 
liabilities were assumed by Beauharnois Power Corpo­ 
ration Ltd.

Yours truly,
"K. O. Sweezey."

This letter of the llth June, 1932, as well as those of Oc- 
.„ tober, 1927, all of which were written by Sweezey in the first 

person, show that Sifton's arrangement had been with the de­ 
fendant personally. This letter of the llth June, 1932, was dic­ 
tated by Sweezey and handed Clifford Sifton in Sweezey's of­ 
fice, after an interview between them, the purpose of which was 
to obtain from Sweezey either the payment of the indebtedness 
or an acknowledgment of his liability.

The evidence of Clifford Sifton, as to his conversation 
with Sweezey, at the time Sweezey gave him the letter of the llth 
June, 1932, is no where specifically denied by Sweezey. He
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states "he admitted to me that those letters (i. e. the letters of 
October, 1927) were proper and they set forth the arrangement N19 
that had been arrived at, and that, as a matter of fact, every- 
thing he had expected of my late brother had been done — that 
he had been largely responsible for framing vitally important 
parts of the plan, and that the plans had, in fact, been approved 

10 by the Government, and he considered that he owed the money, 
but he pointed out to me that he had not the personal ability to 
pay."

It can be readily understood why at the very beginning 
Winfield Sifton wanted an arrangement with Sweezey personally. 
The work was to be done for a syndicate composed of a large 
number of members and in the event of being forced to enter suit 
he would wish to avoid the necessity of sueing all the members 
of the syndicate. Moreover, at that time, according to the evi- 

20 dence of Griffith, the syndicate did not have sufficient funds to 
meet its liabilities and the value of its assets were entirely pro­ 
blematical. Sweezey was a responsible person and one to whom 
Sifton could look to with a reasonable amount of certainty for 
payment of his work.

The evidence of Clifford Sifton as to what took place at 
the meeting of the llth June, 1932, was admissible in view of 
Sweezey's letter of that date and of Sweezey's own admission, 
and does not alter the contents or meaning of the letter of that 

3v date. Sweezey does not deny Clifford Sifton's statements as to 
what took place at that meeting and confines himself to the 
statement that this letter represents exactly what took place at 
the meeting. In his examination on discovery, Sweezey is 
asked;—

Ques.—"Did you not discuss with him at that time
(referring to meeting llth June, 1932) the approval you
had in mind when that letter was written in October,
1927?"

40 Ans.—"I really do not recall what I may have dis­ 
cussed with him. I know he was anxious to have his 
brother's estate settled up and where he stood with this 
$50,000 affair."

Ques.—"At that time did you not tell him you 
understood the approval to mean the first general ap­ 
proval of the plans of the Dominion Government ?''

Ans.—"I do not know. I do not recall."
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On the 13th June, Clifford Sifton wrote Sweezey thank­ 
ing Sweezey for his kindness to him on the previous Saturday 
and for his frankness in going over the matter of the obligation 
of Winfield Sif ton's Estate and for his having admitted the 
facts and undertakes not to press for the collection of the 
$50,000, which Sweezey had acknowledged owing, for a period of 

10 six mouths from the llth June, 1932, Sweezey makes no reply to 
or any comment on this letter in any subsequent correspondence. 
Previous to the meeting of the llth June, 1932, Clifford Sifton 
had written defendant on the 12th May, 1932 in which he states: 
—"A careful perusal of the documents disclosses a clear-out 
undertaking by defendant to pay to Winfield Sifton $50,000 
upon the happening of an event which took place a long time 
ago."

It is clear that Winfield Sifton knew all about the syndi- 
20 cate and its personnel and that the work he was performing was 

for the benefit of the syndicate and except for the $5,000 paid, 
as a retaining fee, all payments for services performed were made 
by and on behalf of the syndicate. However, these facts 
do not alter the position of Sifton as regards Sweezey.

The syndicate agreement, in effect when Sif ton's services 
were retained by the agreement made with Sweezey, provided 
that every syndicate manager would be indemnified and saved 
harmless out of the funds of the syndicate against all costs, char­ 
ges and expenses, which he sustained or incurred in or about or 
in relation to the affairs thereof, except such costs, charges or 
expenses as were occasioned by his own wilful neglect or fault 
and consequently the arrangement made by Sweezey became an 
obligation of the syndicate as it was made for the benefit of 
the syndicate and with the knowledge of the syndicate managers.

The nature of Sif ton's engagement was a most peculiar 
one. It was primarily for the purpose of obtaining the consent 
of the Dominion Government to the diversion of the water flow­ 
ing down the St. Lawrence River, between Lake St. Francis and 
Lake St. Louis from it natural channel to an artificial channel 
or canal to be constructed. This water when diverted was to be 
used for power purposes and the right to such usage was a right 
vested in the Province of Quebec.

Under the Navigable Waters Protection Act of the Dom­ 
inion of Canada, an approval had to be obtained from Ottawa to 
divert the water from its natural channel for its use for power
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pvrrjoses. and a great deal of spade work had to be done with the 
Federal Government and with the public. Such approval was ab­ 
solutely necessary for without it the whole scheme could not pro­ 
ceed. The merits of the proposition had to be adequately repre­ 
sented to the public as well as to the Ministers of His Majesty's 
Government, the members of Parliament and the officials of the 

10 Department at Ottawa. Sifton had had considerable experience 
with work of this nature at Ottawa in connection with what is 
known as the Georgian Bay Canal. He was to receive an addi­ 
tional remuneration of $50,000 when the plans were approved, 
without having to establish how much his work had to do with the 
passing of these plans. Sweezey himself, by the letter of the llth 
June, 1932, acknowledged that at the time of Sifton's death the 
work done by Sifton justified the claim for this additional com­ 
pensation provided the plans were approved.

20 Were the plans approved? Was there sufficient approval 
of plans to entitle the plaintiffs e'vqual. to demand from the prin­ 
cipal defendant the sum of $50,000.00?

Sweezey in his evidence, has stated that prior to his un­ 
dertaking with Sifton and letters of October, 1927, that his syn­ 
dicate, as well as he personally, were interested in having cer­ 
tain plans approved in Ottawa and that the plans "were approv­ 
ed in one sense and yet to my knowledge never approved in an­ 
other sense in detail." He also states that when he stipulated in 

30 the latter of October 15th, 1927, that the amount of $50,000 was 
to be payable when the plans had been approved by the Dominion 
Government, that he did not know that he had anything special 
in his mind and that he was under the impression that one snap 
approval was all that was needed.

The evidence as to the statements made to Clifford Sifton 
on the llth June, 1932, must be considered as useful as an in­ 
terpretation of the intentions of Winfield Sifton and Sweezey 
when they made the arrangements in the fall of 1927. This evi- 

'^ dence is accepted for that purpose as the meaning of the contract 
as worded as to what work Sifton had to do and what plans were 
to be approved is not clear, and consequently evidence is ad­ 
missible to show what was the intention of the parties when they 
executed the contract as to the amount of work required from 
Sifton to entitle him to the $50,000 bonus, as well as to what 
plans had to be passed in order this amount would be payable. 
It is a fact that some time prior to the llth June, 1932 Swee­ 
zey had ceased to be a syndicate manager, and that as a matter 
of fact the syndicate had then dissolved and that on the llth June,
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1932, and subsequent thereto, defendant Sweezey was not in a posi­ 
tion in any way to bind or obligate the syndicate, and the letter 
written on the llth June, 1932, and his evidence in the record are 
not accepted as the creation of any new liability but as an ad­ 
mission of a liability incurred by him in a syndicate matter 
while a member of the syndicate and for which the syndicate 

10 consequently became liable. The weight of the evidence is that 
the approval of the general scheme of the diversion of the water 
of the River St. Lawrence contemplated was the approval con­ 
templated by the parties, and not the approval of all the en­ 
gineering details and plans.

On the 8th March, 1929, Order-in-Council, P. C. 422 was 
adopted in which it is recited:—

"After a careful examination of all the points raised 
20 at the hearing held in connection with the application, as 

amended, the Minister reports that the approval of the 
plans and site of the proposed works can be recommended 
subject to the following regulations and conditions." Here 
follow 28 conditions which is imnecessary to recite in de­ 
tail.

Following this the following approval is set forth :—

"The committee, on the recommendation of the Mi­ 
nister of Public Works, submit for your Excellency's ap-

30 proval, under section 7, Chap. 140, Revised Statutes of 
Canada, 1927, the Navigable Waters Protection Act—(sub­ 
ject to the foregoing conditions and to such additions, im­ 
provements, alterations, changes, substitutions, modifica­ 
tions or removals as may be ordered or required there­ 
under) the annexed plans of works, and the site thereof, 
according to the descriptions and plans attached, in booklet 
form, which works are proposed to be constructed by the 
Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Company, with respect 
to the diversion of 40,000 cubic feet of water per second

4® from Lake St. Francis to Lake St. Louis, in connection with 
a power canal to be built by the said company along the St. 
Lawrence River between the two lakes mentioned; the said 
approval to take effect only after an agreement incorporat­ 
ing the conditions enumerated above and satisfactory to 
the Minister of Public Works of Canada has been executed 
between the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Company 
and His Majesty, the King, as represented by the said mi­ 
nister.
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In the 
Superior

Oonrt
On the 25th June 1929, an agreement was entered into SSStr^J' 

between the Beaimarnois Light, Heat & Power Company and His H — 19 
Majesty, the King, represented therein by the Minister of Public 
Works of Canada, which agreement incorporates the terms and
COHditioilS Of P. C. 422. Macklnnn,

15 Jan. 1935 
(Continued)

10 On the 22nd June, 1929, Order-in-Council, P. C. 1081 was 
passed, authorizing an agreement between Beauharnois Light, 
Heat and His Majesty, the King, in the form attached thereto and 
authorizing the Minister of Public Works to execute it. This 
agreement was entered into on the 25th June, 1929.

On the 3rd August, 1931, an Act respecting the Beauhar­ 
nois Light, Heat & Power Company, (8 Geo. V., Chap. 19) was 
assented to, whereby the Order-iii-Coimcil P. C. 422, as amended 
by Order-in-Council, P. C. 1081 and the agreement between the

20 Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Company, and His Majesty, 
the King, dated 25th June, 1929, were annulled but the Act states 
that the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power is granted the right to 
divert from Lake St. Francis up to, but not exceeding 53,072 cubic, 
feet of water of the flow of the Elver St. Lawrence, to be returned 
to Lake St. Louis to be used for the development of hydro-electric 
power between the said two points, in such manner and upon such 
terms and conditions and with such limitations and reservations 
as may be prescribed by Order of the Governor in Council ; and

™ by another Act assented to the same day (being an Act to declare 
certain works of the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Co. Li­ 
mited, to be for the general advantage of Canada, (6 Geo. V., 
Chap. 20) it was declared and enacted that the Canal then being 
constructed for the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Company 
Ltd. between Lake St. Francis and. St. Lawrence River and the 
works 011 lands or lands covered with water, excavations, embank­ 
ments, retaining structures, remedial works, dams Locks and 
other works appurtenant to said canal, then executed or there­ 
after to be executed, were works for the general advantage of

4-0 Canada. While these two Acts annulled the Ordea's-in-Council 
P. C. 422 and P. C. 1081 they approve of the diversion of over 
50,000 cubic feet of water and constitute an approval, in a dif­ 
ferent form, of the work then being carried on and which was 
proceeded with until the power units went into production.

The fact that the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power 
Company is now diverting waters from the St. Lawrence River 
throng-limits canal from Lake St. Francis to Lake St. Louis and 
that the generators of the company have been in operation de-
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livering power since the 1st. October, 1932, in the opinion of the 
Court, constitutes a sufficient approval to justify the principal 
plaintiffs es-qual in their demand.

CONSIDERING that for the reasons already stated, that 
the action of the principal plaintiffs es-qual against the priii- 

10 cipal defendant is well founded in fact and in law.

CONSIDERING that the principal plaintiffs es-qual are 
entitled to claim interest at the rate of 5% per annum from the 
llth June, 1932, date on which the principal defendant acknow­ 
ledged the indebtedness and requested a delay to pay the same, 
which interest to the time of the institution of the actioin amounts 
to $3,972.61.

DOTH MAINTAIN the action of the principal plaintiffs 
20 es-qual against the principal defendant, and DOTH CON­ 

DEMN the principal defendant to pay the principal plaintiffs 
es-qual the sum of $53,972.61, with interest from the date of 
service of the present action and costs.

ADJUDICATING ON THE ACTION IN WARRANTY.

The contract made by the plaintiff in warranty with 
Winfield Sifton was made by him personally for and on behalf 
of the syndicate. At that time the plaintiff in warranty was a 

30 syndicate manager of a partnership known as the Beauharnois 
Syndicate, and it is in evidence that all the othe»r syndicate man­ 
agers were advised as to the contract having been made with 
Sifton, and the amount earned by Sifton was paid out of the 
funds of the syndicate on the te-rms provided for in the con­ 
tract.

Moreover, on the 4th April, 1928, while Sifton was still 
alive and employed under this contract, all the undertakings, 

,~ assets and rights of the Beauharnois Syndicate, the than existing 
syndicate were sold and transferred to another syndicate known 
as the Beauharnois Power Syndicate. By this deed the pur­ 
chaser the Beauharnois Power Syndicate assumed and promised 
ot pay, fulfil and carry out to the complete exoneration of the 
vendor all the liabilities and obligations of the vendor of what­ 
soever nature in existence on that date. Sifton continued with 
the Beauharnois Power Syndicate under his contract and his 
per diem, remuneration and expenses under his contract were 
paid by the Beauharnois Power Syndicate and his contract was
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Judgment 
of the Hon. 
Mr. Justice 
C. Gordon 
Mackinnon, 
15 Jan. 1935 
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In the

10

20

consequently assumed as an obligation of this new syndicate, and 
if there had been no authorization and approval of the Board of 
Syndicate Managers of the first syndicate, the contract made by 
Sweezey personally with Sifton for the benefit of the original 
syndicate was approved by being taken over and assumed by the 
new syndicate.

No minutes were kept as to any contracts, engagements or 
arrangements made by either of the two syndicates and the fact 
that no reference to the Sift on 's contract appears in the Minutes 
of the Board of the Syndicate Managers of the first syndicate or 
of the second, as pleaded by the defendant in warranty, cannot be 
invoked as any evidence of a lack of a necessary approval. It is 
in evidence that subsequent to Sif ton's death an arrangement 
was made with Senator Haydeii and his partner, whereby a con­ 
tingency fee of $50,000 was to be paid in addition to other fees, 
which arrangement does not appear in the minute-book of the 
Beauharnois Power Syndicate. It is also in evidence that an 
amount of approximately $10,000 was paid by the defendant in 
warranty, in various amounts and at various times, to Sif ton's 
widow. The explanation given the Court that this payment to 
Mrs. Sifton was in the nature of a compassionate allowance 
cannot be accepted. Payments of such a considerable amount 
cannot be interpreted otherwise than as being payments in re­ 
cognition of an obligation, which obligation is that sued on by 
the principal plaintiff. It would appear as though these pay- 
ments to Mrs. Sifton had not been made to the person entitled 
thereto and cannot be set off in compensation.

On the 31st October, 1929, the Beauharnois Power Syn­ 
dicate sold to the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, the 
defendant in warranty, all its undertakings and assets of any 
nature whatsoever (except unpaid balances due by syndicate 
members) one of the considerations of the sale being the assump­ 
tion by the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited of all lia- 
bilities and obligations of the syndicate (except its liabilities 
and obligations to its members as such).

This sale of the 31st October, 1929, was contingent on the 
performance and happening of certain things, the performance 
and happening of which was evidenced by a subsequent agree­ 
ment of the 17th December, 1929, between the Beauharnois Power 
Syndicate and the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, 
whereby payment of the purchase price, provided for in the agree­ 
ment of the 31st October, 1929, was acknowledged and whereby

Superior
Court

N 19

(contnued)
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the Beauharnois Power Corporation Ltd undertook to pay all 
the aforesaid liabilities and obligations of the syndicate which 
had previously been assumed by it under the said agreement of 
the 17th December, 1929.

SEEING that for the reasons above stated, the action of 
10 the plaintiff in warranty against the defendant in warranty is 

well founded and should be maintained.

DOTH DECLARE that the defendant in warranty was 
obliged to intervene in the principal action brought by the prin­ 
cipal plaintiffs es-qual against the plaintiff in warranty and 
DOTH CONDEMN the defendant in warranty to acquit and 
indemnify the plaintiff in warranty, the defendant in the prin- 
ciapl action, against the judgment hereinabove rendered against 
him in the principal action in capital, interest and costs, and 

20 DOTH also CONDEMN the defendant in warranty to pay the 
costs of the action in warranty.

C. Gordon Mackinnon,
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No. 20 N°- 20
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JUDGMENT OF THE COURT OF KING'S BENCH f"^. 1936
(Appeal Side)

10
MONTREAL, Tuesday, the nine day of June one thousand

nine hundred and thirty-six (1936). 

PRESENT:

Sir MATHIAS TELLIER, ('liief Justice of the Province 
of Quebec,

The Honourable Mr. Justice Hall, 
20 " " Bond,

Galipeault, 
St-Germain.

No. 998.

ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY, 
(Defendant in the Superior Court),

APPELLANT,
30 — & —

HENRY A. SIFTON et al, <>s qualite, 
(Plaintiffs in the Superior Court),

RESPONDENTS. 

No. 996.

BEAUHARNOIS POWER CORPORATION, LIMITED,
4® (Defendant in Warranty in the Superior Court),

APPELLANT,
— & —

ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY,
(Plaintiff in Warranty in the Superior Court),

RESPONDENT.
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THE COURT having heard the parties by their respective Intcoeurt of 
Counsel upon the merits of the present appeals, examined the Kins' B̂encl1 
record and proceedings in the Court below, and deliberated:

of the Court 
of King's

WHEREAS the respondents in their quality of Testa- ?enjcune i 
mentary Executors of the estate of the late Clifford Winfield (contlliued> 

10 Burrows Sifton, claim from the appellant Robert Oliver Swee,- 
zey the sum of $50,000, with interest accrued thereon;

WHEREAS the said action is based on certain correspon­ 
dence between the late Winfield Sifton and the appellant Swee- 
zey, whereby the said Appellant Sweezey entered into the follow­ 
ing agreement, i.e.

".. It is further agreed between us that when our plans 
have been passed and approved by Dominion Government 

20 we shall pay you (i.e. the said Sifton) the sum of Fiftv- 
thousand dollars ($50,000).

Yours truly,

R. (). SWEEZEY." 

which letter was dated 15th October 1927;

WHEREAS the said Sifton died on the 13th June 1928, 
**" and at that time no appreciable progress had been made towards 

procuring the stipulated approval;

WHEREAS on the 8th March 1929 an Order in Council 
was passed whereby a conditional approval of the plans in ques­ 
tion was given, subject, however, to twenty-eight conditions, 
to be embodied in an agreement, the whole subject to the approval 
of the Minister of Public Works ;

AI\ WHEREAS a second Order in Council was passed on the 
22nd June 1929 approving the form of the agreement embodying 
the 28 conditions, subject to which such tentative approval had 
been given, and subject, always, to the approval of the Minister 
of Public Works ;

CONSIDERING that it appears from the evidence of 
record, both documentary and oral, that the said conditions were 
not complied with, nor was the approval of the Minister of Public 
Works obtained ;
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CONSIDERING that the plans subsequently submitted on Intcoeurtof 
the 22nd August 1930 were later withdrawn without having been Kine' B̂en 
approved ;

of the Court 
of King's

CONSIDERING that by an Act of Parliament of Canada, fenjcubne i936 
21-22 Geo. V. chapter 19 (assented to on the 3rd August 1931) < continue<J > 

10 it was declared in the preamble thereto as follows:

"And Whereas in the opinion of Parliament the 
said company has not complied with all the terms and con­ 
ditions of the said amended Order in Council which are 
also embodied in the said Agreement."

CONSIDERING that by the said Act of Parliament the 
Orders in Council above referred to were annulled;

20 CONSIDERING that the agreement by the appellant Swee- 
zey to pay to the late Winfield Siftou the said sum of $50,000 
was contingent upon and subject to the approval of the said 
Sweezey 's plans by the Dominion Government;

CONSIDERING that even the qualified approval subject 
to the observance of certain conditions and further approval, was 
never confirmed, but on the contrary expressly withdrawn and 
cancelled by reason of the failure to observe the conditions im­ 
posed, and this on the 3rd August 1931;

oU
CONSIDERING that the said Sweezey withdrew from the 

project on the 19th November 1931, and that even then no ap­ 
proval had been obtained;

CONSIDERING, also, the provisions of Articles 1668 and 
1202 of the Civil Code;

CONSIDERING that the respondents have failed to es-
. n tablish the essential allegations of their Declaration; 40

CONSIDERING that there is error in the judgment ap­ 
pealed from, to wit, that rendered by the Superior Court for the 
District of Montreal on the fifteenth day of January, one thou­ 
sand nine hundred and thirty-five (1935) maintaining the res­ 
pondents' action;

DOTH MAINTAIN the present appeal of the appellant 
Sweezey with costs against the respondents Henry A. Sifton et of, 
cs qualite;
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DOTH CANCEL and ANNUL the said judgment of the Intc0eurt of Superior Court; King^Bench
No. 20 

Judgment
AND, proceeding to render the judgment that should have $ mkgT* 

been rendered, oTune i9ss
(continued)

10 DOTH DISMISS, with costs, the action of the said Henry 
A. Sifton ft al, ex qnnlite.

(St-Gerniain, J., dissenting).

And Whereas by an action in warranty directed against 
the appellant Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited, the said 
Robert Oliver Sweezey (now respondent in the said action in 
warranty before this Court) sought to hold the appellant, the 
Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited, liable to indemnify 

20 him, the said Sweezey, in the event of his being condemned to 
pay the said sum of $50,000 and interest;

Whereas the appellant, Beauharnois Power Corporation, 
Limited, contested the said action in warranty;

CONSIDERING that, for the reasons given in the prin­ 
cipal action herein, the said action in warranty is likewise un­ 
founded, and there is error in the said judgment of the Superior
Court maintaining the said action in warranty; 

t>u
DOTH MAINTAIN the appeal of Beauharnois Power 

Corporation, Limited, with costs;

DOTH CANCEL and ANNUL the said judgment of the 
Superior Court maintaining the said action in warranty;

AND, proceeding to render the judgment that should have 
been rendered by the said Superior Court;

40 • DOTH DISMISS the action in warranty, with costs
against the said Sweezey.

(St-Germain, J., dissenting).

W. L. Bond,
J.K.B.
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No. 21a Intcoeurt of
King's Bench

REASONS OF JUDGMENT Rea£ns21a
of Hon. 
Sir Mathias

NOTES BE L'HONORABLE JITGE SIR MATHIAS
TELLIER, J.C.

10
Je partage ]'o])iiiion de notre collegue M. le jiige Bond.

Connne lui, et ])our les raisons qu'il donne dans ses notes, je ferais 
droit a 1'appel du defendeur iu'iiici])al et a celui de la defende- 
resse en garantie; et je rejetterais taut 1'action principale que 
1'action en garantie, le tout avec depens.

(Signe) Sir M. Tellier,
j.r.B.R.

20 ————————

No. 21b 

NOTES OF THE IIONOURABLK MR. JUSTICE HALL

The contract which forms the basis of this action is found 
in a series of letters exchanged between Appellant and the late 
Clifford Winfield Sifton, the ultimate agreement being effect­ 
ively reproduced in those of Oct. 15th, 1927 (Exh. P.4, p. 175), 

30 aiid of Oct. 17th, 1927, (Exh. P.5, p. 176), which read as fol­ 
lows : —

"\V. B. Sifton, Esq., 
Mallorytown, Out.

"Dear Sir:—

I apologize to you for the delay in writing you, as I 
promise I would some time ago.

This letter is to confirm our conversation in which 
I agreed to pay you Five thousand Dollars as a retaining 
fee, in connection with the St. Lawrence and Beauliarnois 
Power situation, which amount has already been sent yon.

It is agreed between us that we pay you One Hun­ 
dred Dollars a day and expenses (when employed away 
from your home) for such time as we may require your 
services as our work and efforts proceed.

No. 21b 
Reasons
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It is further agreed between us that when our plans "courtof
have been passed and approved by Dominion Government Kmg _LBench
with the aid of your counsel and efforts, we shall pay vou Reasons 1*
the sum of Fiftv Thousand Dollars ($50,000). " * juSS'aSi

(continued)

Yours truly,
10

"R. O. Swee/cy" " 
"R, O. Sweezey, 
136 St. James "St. 
Montreal.

Dear Bob,

I beg to acknowledge your letter of Oct. 15 confirm­ 
ing arrangement between us, and agree and approve same 

20 as stated by you.

I think your last paragraph is slightly ambiguous. It 
is of course understood that I shall use my best endeavors 
on your behalf, and shall act subject to yr. instructions. 
Having done so. my understanding is that upon the plans 
being passed and a](proved by the Dominion Govt. the ad­ 
ditional fee of $50,000 shall become due and payable to me. 
I don't think it will be possible now or hereafter to produce 
evidence that such passing of plans will be due to the "aid 

30 of counsel and efforts" from any particular person. I think 
therefore that it would clarify our understanding if this 
phrase were eliminated.

Vrs. Tly,

( Sgd.) "W. P>. S." "

It appears from the evidence that the Appellant has formed 
... a very high opinion of Mr. Sifton's ability, and experience in 

negotiating with the Federal authorities for the grant of conces­ 
sions for the development of water powers within their control, 
and desired to secure his personal participation in the application 
he (the Appellant) proposed to make on behalf of a Syndicate, 
for the exploitation of the Beauharnois site.

It is obvious that the contract is one by which, in consi­ 
deration of the payments agreed upon, the late Mr. Sifton was 
to devote his personal attention to the Appellant's interests in 
this connection.
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He himself expresses this understanding in clear and mi- Intcourtof 
mistakable terms:—

No. 21b 
Reasons 
of Hon. Mr."I shall use my best endeavours on your behalf, and shall Justice'luii 

"act subject to your instructions." ' (continued)

10 For his actual participation, Mr. Sifton was to receive, 
and did receive, his full fee of $100. a day and expenses. The 
present action has reference only to the contingent fee of $50,000.

The condition precedent to this claim is stated by Mr. 
Sifton as follows:—

"Having done so" — (that is, having used his best endea­ 
vors and having acted subject to the Appellant's instruc­ 
tions) — "my understanding is that, upon the phots briny 

20 JW.S-.SYY/ and (i-]>)jroved by the Dominion Government the 
additional fee of $50,000. shall became due and payable tome."

Mr. Sifton's object in thus clarifying the understanding, 
was to obviate the possibility of it being contended that the ap­ 
proval of the plans had not been secured bv his "aid, counsel and 
efforts".

While, however, it was definitely agreed that the con- 
•>0 tingent fee would become due to Mr. Sifton so soon as the 

Government's approval of the plans was obtained, whatever the 
particular persuasions that may have induced the approval, never­ 
theless, he still remained under the obligation of continuing to 
"use his best endeavours and to act subject to instructions" 
until the approval was formally granted.

The preliminary application was lodged with the Federal 
authorities in January, 1928, but that step did not, in my opinion, 

4Q relieve Mr. Sift or. from the obligation to continue to use his best 
endeavors. Indeed, it would appear to be obvious that, if Mr. 
Sifton's knowledge and experience were of any value at all, his 
subsequent direction of the negotiations were of paramount im­ 
portance.

Unfortunately, Mr. Sifton died on the 13th June, 1928, 
long before any approval was obtained. So dependent was the 
Appellant on further expert advice and assistance that he se­ 
cured the services of Senator Haydon, in consideration of the 
same contingent fee.
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I conclude, therefore, that the contract was terminated by "courtof 
Mr. Sift oil's death. He had, during his lifetime, received on ac- Kmg I_Bencl1 
count of services actually rendered, and expenses, the substantial Reasons 
sum of $19,314. for eight months' work, but, as he was no longer jus^nLu 
able to continue to use his best endeavors and act subject to (continued) 
instructions, neither he, nor his Estate, became entitled to the 

10 contingent fee, even had the Government's approval been ulti­ 
mately secured.

But, as a matter of fact, approval of the plans., was never 
finally secured.

It is contended by the Respondents that all that was re­ 
quired was a general approval, in principle of the scheme, and 
that the carrying out of the qualifying conditions insisted upon 
by the Government was the sole concern of the Appellant and 

20 his associates.

Such a theory is directly negatived by the express terms 
of Mr. Sifton's letter. What was to be secured was the "passing 
of fl/c IJ!(I)IH" as well as the approval of the scheme.

It is not difficult to recognize that, while general approval 
of the scheme might have been obtained, the conditions imposed 
might have made 1 it impracticable or impossible for the appli­ 
cants to submit plans which would be passed.

ovJ

The actual passing of the plans was, therefore, one of the 
essential conditions of the contract, on which depended Mr. Sif­ 
ton's right to the contingent fee.

The Order-in-Council (P.C. 422) March 8th, 1929, ap;- 
proved the scheme in principle, but imposed many conditions; 
in particular:—

40 (ll)''The Company shall not commence the construction of the 
works until detailed plans of construction and all neces­ 
sary information respecting the said works have been sub­ 
mitted to and approved by the Minister, provided that such 
plans and information shall be submitted within one year."

The Order-in-Council concludes:—

"The said approval to take effect only after an agreement 
incorporating the conditions enumerated above and sa-
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tisfactory to the Minister of Public Works of Canada has Intcoeurtof 
been executed between the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Kmg'jLBench 
Power Company and His Majesty the King, as represented Reasons21" 
by the said Minister." ju^ce'HaVi

(continued)

It is obvious, therefore, that the approval was dependent 
10 upon the submission to the Minister of Public Works, and the 

approval by him of the detailed plans of construction.

The Deputy Minister (Hunter p. 84) asserts the plans 
were never approved.

Order-in-Council P.C. 1081, 22nd June, 1929, merely re­ 
cords that the agreement incorporating the conditions of appro­ 
val had been concluded, but, the final approval of the execution 
of the scheme was still dependent upon the Minister's approval 

20 of the detailed plans.

I concur, therefore, with Mr. Justice Bond, in the opinion 
that Mr. Sifton never became entitled to the contingent fee.

After the Parliamentary investigation, which resulted in 
the revocation of the Orders-iii-Council, and the ousting of the 
Appellant and his associates from all participation in the 
Beauharnois development, the Respondents made a claim on the 
Appellant for the contingent fee, in reply to which he wrote as 

3" follows:—

"Mr. Clifford Sifton,
Executor Estate Winfield Sifton,

"Dear Sir:—

In consideration of the executors' undertaking not 
to press this matter for six months from today, I hereby 

.Q acknowledge that I owed Winfield Sifton at his death, sub­ 
ject only to approval of Beauharnois Plans at Ottawa, the 
sum of fifty thousand dollars, this being an undertaking I 
made in connection with Beauharnois Syndicate whose 
assets and liabilities were assumed by Beauharnois Power 
Corpn. Ltd.

Yours trulv,

"R. 0. Sweezey" 
Record p. 272—Plaintiff's Exh. P-8)
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It is now argued that this constitutes a categorical admis- ntcourtof
sion of liability, which overrides any possible legal qualification Kms'^_Bench
based upon a strict interpretation of the contract. Reasons21*

of Hon. Mr.
An admission is defined by Warton as " a concession of 

certain facts by an opponent".
10 Fuzier-Herman (Rep. Vo. Aveu. No. 11 et seq.) writes:—

"L'aveu ne pouvant porter que sur un fait, il s'en suit quo 
les declarations d'une partie concernant les regies de droif 
applicables a la decision de la cause ne constituent pas des 
aveux. Ces declarations ne lient pas le juge, qui reste mai- 
tre de juger ce ])oint de droit en sens contraire."
In the present instance, it appears to me that the Appel­ 

lant's letter above quoted, amounts to nothing more than an ad­ 
mission of the contract itself, which leaves the interpretation of 

20 the contract to the Court.
What he says is:— "I oired Winfield Siftou at his death, 

subject only to approval of the Heauharnois plans at Ottawa, the 
sum of fifty thousand dollars."

The plans, however narrow or restricted an interpretation 
be given to that word, had certainly not been approved at thai- 
time. Had no further negotiations been necessary, had there been 
no further occasion for Mr. Sifton's intervention, and had the 
approval been secured shortly thereafter, doubtless, the admission 

^ would have been effective as an acknowledgment that the condi­ 
tion upon which rested the payment of the conditional fee had 
been fulfilled.

But the context clearly discloses that such was not the fact. 
At the time of Sifton's death, the Appellant oired him a con­ 
tingent fee, but as, since his death, Siftou was unable to discharge 
his obligations of personal service, on which the contingent fee 
was conditioned, and since the other condition, the approval of 
the plans, was not fulfilled, the conditional debt lapsed, and when 

40 the action was instituted, the Appellant no longer owed the con­ 
tingent fee.

I, therefore, concur with Mr. Justice Bond in the opinion 
that the appeal should be allowed, and that the Respondent's ac­ 
tion should be dismissed; the whole with costs.

It follows that the appeal of the Beauharnois Power Cor­ 
poration should also be maintained, and that the Respondent 
Sweezev's action in warranty should also be dismissed, with costs.
June 2nd, 1936.

(Signed) A. Rives Hall,
J.C.K.B.
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In the
Court of 

King's Bench

No. 21c No72ic
Reasons 
of Hon. Mr.

NOTES OP THE HONOURABLE MR. JUSTICE BOND

10 This is an appeal by the defendant in the Superior Court, 
as also by the Defendant in Warranty in the Superior Court, 
from a judgment rendered on the 15th January 1935 (MacKin- 
non, J.,) maintaining the principal action and also the action in 
warranty.

The plaintiff's in their quality of testamentry executors of 
the late Clifford Winf'ield Burrows Sifton claimed from the de­ 
fendant Robert O. Sweezey the sum of $50,000. together with 
$3972.60 interest accrued thereon to the date of the action, and in 

20 support of their claim relied upon a lease of the services of 
Winf'ield Sifton evidenced by six letters, being Exhibits P-2 to 
P-7 inclusive.

The principal defendant contested this action denying the 
construction placed upon the letters by the plaintiffs, now res­ 
pondents, and denying any liability thereunder. He also pleaded 
that if any liability was created thereby it was to the knowledge 
of Sifton that such liability was incurred for and on behalf of a 
Syndicate whose liabilities were subsequently assumed by Beau- 

^ harnois Power Corporation, Limited, the other appellant herein, 
and the appellant Sweezey accordingly called the said corpora­ 
tion in by an action in warranty.

The appellant Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited 
as defendant in warranty did not take up the cause of the appel­ 
lant Sweezey, but on the contrary contested it.

The learned trial judge found that Sweezey was liable to 
4Q the respondents, both personally and also as a member of the 

syndicate for which he was acting, and he also held that the 
appellant corporation had assumed the liabilities of the syndicate. 
He accordingly condemned Sweezey in the principal action for 
the amount claimed, and also condemned the appellant corpora­ 
tion to indemnify Sweezey in the amount of such principal con­ 
demnation.

Prom this judgment both Sweezey and the Beauharnois 
Power Corporation appeal.
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During the relevant times, Mr. Sweezey was a Civil En- Intc0eurtof 
gneer and also a Financier, and carried on business under the Kms'j[_Bencl1 
firm name and style of Newman, Sweezey & Company, Invest- Reasons210 
inent Bankers''. " &£& £nd

(continued)

It appears from the evidence that in the year 1927 Swee- 
10 zey was actively engaged in a plan to develop hydro electric 

power at Beauharnois, and he had secured the control of all issued 
shares of the company known as the "Beauharnois Light Heat 
& Power Company" (Record pp. 52, 138 and 139). Sweezey had 
also formed a syndicate in connection therewith, the syndicate 
managers being Sweezey, Newman, Griffith and Steele, — the 
first three being partners in the firm of Newman, Sweezey & 
Company (Record p. 50). There was a fifth manager, Mr. Wil­ 
liam Robert, but lie resigned at the first meeting. (Record p. 55)

20 In addition to this, a company named the Marquette In­ 
vestment Corporation was organized, —

" for the sole purpose of holding the assets of the syn­ 
dicate, in order that the syndicate might have a corporate 
trustee to hold its assets, to be the depositary of its cash, 
and to enter into such relations with the public generally 
as might require a corporate organization as opposed to a 
syndicate organization." (Record p. 51)

3u — These assets above referred to included all the issued shares 
of the Beauharnois Light Heat & Power Company (Exhibit 
P.W.I, Record p. 139, as well as other assets acquired from the 
Robert family.

Largely in view of the provisions of the Navigable Waters' 
Protection Act (R.S.C. 1927 ch. 140), the approval of the Domi­ 
nion Government was required before the proposed diversion of 
water from the River St. Lawrence between Lake St. Francis and 

4Q Lake St. Louis could be proceeded with. This is a section of the 
River St. Lawrence about 141/? miles apart, and where there is 
a fall of 83 feet (Record p. 222").

Sweezey had been informed that Sifton had acquired con­ 
siderable experience in piloting an application of this nature 
through departmental and governmental channels at Ottawa in 
connection with the Georgian Bay Canal, and he decided to ap­ 
proach Sifton with a view to engaging his services on behalf of 
the Beauharnois project.
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On the 6th September 1927, Sweezey wrote to Sifton as Intcoeurtof'

Letterhead of Eea*°ns21c
of Hon. Mr.

NEWMAN, SWEEZEY & COMPANY, LIMITED J?SS5SS 
Investment Bankers 

136 St. James Street,

Montreal, 6th September, ]927. 
W. B. Sifton, Esq., 

Mallorytown, Out.

My dear Wynn —

This introduces Hugh B. Griffith, who is the Secre­ 
tary of our Power Syndicate, and also a partner in our 

2Q firm. He is very familiar with all the details of the Power 
proposition, and is calling on you in case there is anything 
you might discuss to advantage at this time, and also in 
case you are unable to come to Montreal.

With best regards, 1 am,

Yours sincerely

R. O. SWEEZEY" 
30 ROS.HMK.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit P-2, Record p. 173).

Mr. Griffith, who was introduced by this letter, called 
upon Mr. Sifton at his home near Brockville, Ontario, and pro­ 
duced his letter of introduction; and Mr. Griffith relates what 
occurred on that occasion :

"Q. What was the substance of your interview with him? 
40 A. We had a general discussion about the purpose for 

which our Syndicate had been formed, the work which 
would have to be done before the Beauharnois project 
could be proceeded with, and the various steps, of a 
legal, financial and engineering nature, which would 
have to be taken.

I suggested to him that the experience he had 
gained in an attempt to promote the Georgian Bay 
Canal Company might be of some value to us. He had
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the same opinion, and professed himself to be willing Intc0eiirtof 
to work for the Syndicate and I specifically recall some Kmg ' Bench 
conversation with him in respect to the financial or- 
ganization which our group had — as to whether it was 
a corporate entity, or whether it was an incorporation, (continued) 
and, more particularly, as to what the personnel of 

10 the group. I think Mr. Sifton wished to be reassured 
of the fact that there were people of substance behind 
it, so that he would lie working for a capable organiza 
tion.

Q. At that time was anything conclusive arrived at with 
regard to a bargain as to his reward, or anything of 
that kind ?

A. Not by me.
Q. Did he express himself as being satisfied to accept a 

20 retainer from the Syndicate ?
A. He expressed his complete willingness to work for us. 

The terms on which he was to be retained were some­ 
thing he preferred to discuss with Mr. Sweezey.

Q. Did you explain to him on that occasion the nature of 
the organization, including the Marquette Investment 
Syndicate ?

A. Yes.
Q. And, the Beauhariiois Syndicate?
A. Yes. 

30 Q. You then returned to Montreal*?
A. Yes.
Q. What was the next development 1? Did anything hap­ 

pen between that and the next time you saw Mr. Sif­ 
ton? I mean, to your personal knowledge. Did you 
return and confer with Mr. Sweezey, or other managers 
of the syndicate, or what did you do ?

A. I reported to Mr. Sweezey, and possibly to other man­ 
agers of the Syndicate, that Mr. Sifton was available 

.f. to work for us, and that I would recommend he should 
be retained.

Q. Do you remember what was the next development in 
the relationship between the Syndicate and Mr. Sif­ 
ton?

A. As I recall it, Mr. Sifton started to work for the Syn­ 
dicate forthwith — possibly within a day or two, al­ 
though itwassome days, and possibly weeks later, be­ 
fore he and Mr. Sweezey came to a final agreement as 
to the precise retainership.
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- From then on he gave a very substantial part of Iu 'court of 
his time to the interest of the Syndicate." -

No. 21c 
Reasons

(Record pp. 53 & 54)
(continued)

On the 28th September 1927, Sweezey wrote to Sifton as 
10 follows :

" Letterhead of
R. O. SWEEZEY, (B.Sc., M.E.I.C.) 

Consulting Engineer, 
136 St. James Street

Montreal, 28th Sept., 1927.

W. B. Sifton Esq., 
2Q Mallorytown, Ont.

My dear Wynn —

I am sorry I have been away for a few days and 
delayed in sending you the letter I promised.

As I am somewhat in a hurry at the moment and as
the letter will take a little thinking over, I am just sending
you the cheque for $5,000 in the meantime for your retain-

on ing services, and when I come back to town in two or three
days I will write the other letter.

I am obliged to you for your memorandum, which 
came duly to hand, and I am very well pleased with the 
progress you are making.

It is likely I shall be in Ottawa tomorrow and may 
seize the opportunity to have a talk with the Senator.

40 Yours very truly

R. O. SWEEZEY " 
ROS.HMK.

(Record p. 174).

Again, on the 15th October, 1927, Sweezey wrote to Sifton 
as follows :
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" NEWMAN, SWEEZEY & COMPANY LIMITED Intch0eurt of 
Investment Bankers, 
136 St. James Street Keas°nS21c

of Hon. Mr.
Montreal, 15th Oct. 1927. 

W. B. Sifton Esq.,
Mallorytowii. Out. 

10
Dear Sir:

I apologise to you for the delay in writing you, as I 
promised I would some time ago.

This letter is to confirm our conversation in which 
I agreed to pay you Five Thousand Dollars as a retaining 
fee, in connection with the St. Lawrence and Beauharnois 
Power situation, which amount has already heen sent you.

_n It is agreed between us that we pay you One Him- 
dred Dollars a day and expenses (when employed away 
from your home) for such time as we may require your 
services as our work and efforts proceed.

It is further agreed between us that when our plans 
have been passed and approved by Dominion Government 
with the aid of your counsel and efforts, we shall pay you 
the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.).

Yours truly,
30 R. 0. SWEEZEY. 

(Record p. 175).
While this letter was satisfactory in the main to Sifton, 

he was prompt to seize upon what might prove to be a catch in it, 
and accordingly on the 17th October Sifton wrote to Sweezey as 
follows:

" Letterhead of
WINFIELD B. SIFTON

4.0 Assiniboine Lodge
Mallorytown,

Telephone & Telegraphs Oct. 17/27
Brockville, Ont. 

R. O. Sweezey, Esq., 
136 St. James St., 

Montreal.
Dear Bob,

I beg to acknowledge your letter of Oct. 15th con-



— 114 —

firming arrangement between us, and agree and approve Intc0eurtof 
same as stated by you. •

No. 21o 
Reasons

I think your last paragraph is slightly ambiguous. 
It is of course understood that I shall use my best endea- < contlnued) 
vours on your behalf, and shall act subject to your instruc- 

10 tions. Having done so, my understanding is that upon the 
plans being passed and approved by the Dominion Govt. 
the additional fee of $50,000, shall become due and payable 
to me. I don't think it will be possible now or hereafter to 
produce evidence that such passing of plans will be due to 
the "aid of counsel and efforts" from any particular per­ 
son. I think therefore that it would clarify our understand­ 
ing if this phrase were eliminated.

Yrs. Tly. 
20

(sgd) "W. B. S." 
(Record p. 176).

To this letter Sweezey replied on the 19th October as 
follows :

" NEWMAN, SWEEZEY & COMPANY, LIMITED
Investment Bankers 

136 St. James Street 
30

Montreal, 19th Oct. 1927. 
W. B. Siftoii Esq., 

Mallorytown, Out.

Dear Sir —

I have your letter of October 17th, which for pur­ 
pose of clearer understanding I quote herewith: —

*® "It is, of course, understood that I shall use by best 
endeavours 011 your behalf, and shall act subject to your 
instructions. Having done so, my understanding is that 
upon the plans being passed and approved by the Dominion 
Government, the additional fee of $50,000 shall become due 
and payable to me. I do not think it will be possible now or 
hereafter to produce evidence that such passing of plans 
will be due to the aid of Counsel and efforts from any par­ 
ticular person. I think therefore it would clarify our un­ 
derstanding if this phrase were eliminated."
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I fully agree with your views as expressed in the In "court of 
above, and for this reason it clarifies my letter to you of Kin8'^_Bench 
the 15th instant.

of Hon. Mr. 
Justice Bond

Yours faithfully, (continued)

"10 ROS.HMK. R. O. SWEEZEY

(Record p. 177).

On the 23rd October Sifton replied as follows: —

Lodge Oct 23/27 
"Dear Bob,

Many thanks for yr. letter of Oct. 19th with which 
20 I am now in complete agreement.

Yrs. Tly,
"W. B. S."

(Record p. 178).

Sifton admittedly appears to have thereafter busied him­ 
self about something, but it does not appear from the evidence 
just what he did. He submitted expense accounts from time to 
time showing visits to Ottawa, Montreal, Toronto and New York. 

30 These accounts were all sent to Mr. Hugh B. Griffith, to whom 
I have already referred, and who was the Secretary-Treasurer 
of the Marquette Investment Corporation, which, as I have al­ 
ready pointed out, was formed for the sole purpose of the Beau- 
harnois Syndicate. Examples of these expense accounts and per 
diem fees thus sent to Mr. Griffith, can be found in Exhibit 
P.W-8 (at pages 178, 179, 180, 181, 182, 183, 184, 187 & 265 of the 
Record) and these accounts were all paid by the Marquette In­ 
vestment Corporation. (Record pp. 59 & 265).

40 The $5,000 retaining fee which Sweezey sent to Sifton was
repaid to Sweezey by the Marquette Investment Corporation, 
(Record pp. 18, 19 & 48) ; and it may be recalled that Sifton was 
neither a member of the Bar at that time nor a Civil Engineer.

There does not seem to me to be any possible doubt that Sif­ 
ton knew who he was working for, seeing that he know where to 
send his bills, and that he was paid by cheques of the Marquette 
Investment Corporation — otherwise the Beauharnois Syndicate.
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Reference may also be had, at this point, to the evidence to that In 'court of
effect of Griffith (Record p. 53) Sweezey (pp. 67 et seq.) and ™
Moyer (p. 72). Rea*°ns21c

of Hon. Mr. 
Justice Bond

I merely mention this in passing, for in the view I take < contlnued> 
of the matter (as will appear later) I do not consider it of much 

10 importance.

In any event, the present action is clearly directed againsT 
Sweezey personally, on the strength of his letters and not as a 
member of an unincorporated Syndicate.

On the 13th June 1928 Winfield Sifton died. During the 
period of about eight months that had elapsed since his engage­ 
ment, Sifton had himself drawn from the Marquette Investment 
Corporation $19,314 and his executors after his death obtained 

20 a further sum of $10,094 as compensation for his activities — 
whatever they wrere — up to the time of his death (Record pp. 265 
& 266). Subsequently, his widow received from the other appel­ 
lant, the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited (Record p. 60) 
a sum of $10,100, which is somewhat engagingly described as a 
"compassionate allowance". (Record p. 61)

At this time no appreciable progress had been made in the 
plans of Mr. Sweezey or the Beauharnois Syndicate. The evi­ 
dence of Mr. Clare Moyer, a member of the Ontario Bar, is illu- 

30 urinating on this point,—

"Q. I understand you were personally acquainted with 
the late Winfield Sifton, whose name has been cons­ 
tantly referred to during this trial "?

A. I was.
Q. When did you first come into contact with him in con­ 

nection with the Beauharnois project "?
A. In the month of January 1928. I think it was during 

.Q the first week of January.
Q. In what circumstances ?
A. He approached me, in Ottawa.
Q. Where were you in Ottawa at the time?
A. Actually I saw him in the Chateau Laurier, I wyas living 

in Ottawa.

He told me that he had some time previously 
been retained by a group or Syndicate of Montreal 
gentlemen who were interested in developing a power
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project at Beauharnois, and he said he had recommend- Intcoeurtot 
ed to this group that they might usefully retain me. He King l_Bencl1

1 1 -PT • J. J. I J T J. 1 J 1. • T NO. 21Casked me if I was interested, and I told him 1 was. Reasons
of Hon. Mr. 
Justice Bond 

X X X X X X X (continued)

10 Q- From then on what opportunity had you for contact
with the late Mr. Winf ield Sifton ?

A. We were in very close contact from the month of Janu­ 
ary 1928, up to the time of his death, on June 13th. As 
a matter of fact I was with him when he died, and I 
was with him, not continuously but frequently, during 
the interval.

xxxxxxx
20 Q. And, from then on, so long as Mr. Sif ton's health per­ 

mitted, you and he were associated in furthering the 
plans of this Syndicate?

A. Yes.
Q. And did vou carry on after his death?
A. I did.

XXXXXXX

Q. Was your relation with the Syndicate practically the 
30 same as Mr. Sif ton's?

A. Practically identical, except to the amount of retainer, 
and so on.

Q. Were your payments made in the same form, by 
cheques from the Marquette Corporation ?

A. Yes.
Q. Through your association with Mr. Sifton, do you know

how far the work had proceeded towards securing the
approval of the Dominion Government to the plans of
the Syndicate and its successors at the date of Mr.

40 Sif ton's death?
A. I think it would be very difficult for anyone to esti­ 

mate the progress in terms of percentages, or on any 
other basis, but it certainly had not progressed to be 
appreciable in such a way that it might have been 
measured in terms of achievement of success."

(Kecord, pp. 72, 73 & 74).
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So, also, Mr. James B. Hunter, the Deputy Minister of Intconrtof 
Public Works, examined in this connection, testified as follows: King'^_Bencl1

No. 21c 
Reasons

''Q. Before this matter could be submitted to the Gover­ 
nor in Council, it would have had to be considered by 
your Department, would it not ? 

10 A. Yes.
Q. And the application was lodged in your Department, 

and would primarily pass through your Department'?
A. Correct.
Q. Can you tell us whether any substantial progress had 

been made upon that application prior to the month of 
June, 1928?

A. The first real action on the application was in De­ 
cember, 1928, when the reference was made to the 
Justice Department to know whether our Department 

20 would have the authority to deal with the application 
under the Navigable Waters Act.

Q. Up to that time the matter had been pressed ?
A. So far as the official end of the Department was con­ 

cerned, there had not been very much activity.
Q. And it was really in December 1928, or January 1929, 

after you received the opinion of the Department of 
Justice to the effect that you could handle the matter, 
rather than having it done by Act of Parliament, that 
you started upon it ? 

30 A. Yes.
Q. So, I do not suppose you did much work with the late 

Mr. Winfield Sift on on that application'?
A. I never saw him at all in connection with that appli­ 

cation."
(Record p. 82).

The Civil Code dealing with contract of lease or hire of 
personal service says, —

™ 1668. It is terminated by the death of the party hired 
or his becoming, without fault, unable to perform the 
services agreed upon

Again, the Civil Code says, —

1202. When the performance of an obligation to do 
has become impossible without any act or fault of the 
debtor and before he is in default, the obligation is ex-
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tinguished and both parties are liberated; but if the IntcoVtoi 
obligation be beneficially performed in part, the ere- Kins^_Bencl1 
ditor is bound to the extent of the benefit actually re- 
ceived by him.

(continued)

No claim, here, is made for a quantum meruit — payment 
10 of the full amount alone is claimed.

The respondents invoke the terms of the contract con­ 
tained in the letters upon which they rely, to show that Winfield 
Siftoii was not obliged to prove that his efforts were the cause 
of the plans being approved. I think there is no room for doubt 
on this point. But his personal services to that end were the 
consideration of the stipulated payments, and this consideration 
ceased with his death. He was no longer able to carry out his 
share of the bargain. So much was this so that, after the death 

20 of Sifton, Sweezey retained the services of Senator Haydon's 
firm to do the same work, and with the same contingent fee of 
$50,000 dangling before them. (Record p. 245). Moreover, the 
approval of the plans was the condition upon which Sifton's right 
to the $50,000 depended. Neither during his lifetime, nor after, 
were these plans approved.

Let us look at the established facts in this connection. The 
respondents point to the two Orders-iii-Council, and claim that 
they establish such a proof. The first Order-in-Council is 

30 Number 422 dated 8th March 1929 (Record p. 190), some nine 
months after Sifton's death. By the very terms of this Order-in- 
Council it was purely tentative or conditional.

Approval was granted subject to 28 conditions,—

" After a careful examination of all the points 
raised at the hearing held in connection with the ap­ 
plication, as amended, the Minister reports that the 

,n approval of the plans and site of the proposed works 
can be recommended, subject to the following regu­ 
lations and conditions:''

(Record pp. 200 & 201).

There then follows the 28 conditions. These were to be 
embodied in an agreement, and to be subject to the approval of 
the Minister of Public Works.
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Condition Number 11 (Record p. 203) reads as follows:

" The Company shall not commence the con- 
struction of the works until detailed plans of construe- 
tion and all necessary information respecting the said 
works have been submitted to and approved of by the 

10 Minister, provided that such plans and information 
shall be submitted within one year."

Condition Number 12 (Record p. 204) is as follows:

" No work in the St. Lawrence River shall be 
undertaken until a programme of construction shall 
have been submitted to and approved by the Minister."

Condition Number 28 (Record p. 208) is as follows:

" It is clearly stipulated and understood that 
nothing is hereby granted except approval of the pro­ 
posed works under the provisions of the Navigable 
Waters' Protection Act upon and subject to these con­ 
ditions."

All these conditions were accepted in advance (Record, p. 
196).

30 The second Order-in-Couneil, Number 1081, dated 22nd 
June 1929 (Record p. 209) merely approved the form of the agree­ 
ment.

But these conditions were not complied with, and the ap­ 
proval that was granted was subject to compliance with such 
conditions.

The Special Committee of the House of Commons ap­
pointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in its re-

40 port dated 28th July 1931 (Record p. 221), expressly found that
these conditions had not been complied with. Paragraph 22 of
this report (Record p. 229) is as follows :

" Subsequently on the 29th July 1929, modified plans 
were submitted to the Department of Public Works by the 
Company, and for these there were on the 22nd August, 
1930, certain other plans substituted. None of these has as 
yet received the approval of the Minister of Public Works,

Intcoeurtof
King' 8 Bench

< contlnued >
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although the Chief Engineer of the Department has re- Intcoeurtof 
commended them for approval. Plans submitted on the 22nd Kmg'j_Bench 
August 1930, did include plans for the remedial works, Beacons210 
but such plans were subsequently withdrawn and as the jirtic^'B^nd 
matter now stands there is not before the Department for (continned) 
approval any plan or plans of these remedial works." 

10
Again, the Committee by paragraph 3 of Section 6 of its 

report, "Authority for Construction Work", declared as follows:

(Record p. 238),—

" The work as it is being carried out is not in ac­ 
cordance with the plans referred to in this Order-in-Coun- 
cil in certain important respects ..."

20 (and there follows, then, an indication in connection therewith). 

Paragraph 4 is to the following effect:

" The remedial works shown on the original plans 
have riot been approved either by Order-in-Council or by 
the Minister."

and again, by paragraph 7 (Record p. 239 )the Committee reports
as follows: 

30
" Your Committee finds as a fact that the work of 
construction is proceeding according to plans which have 
not received the approval of the Governor in Council or of 
the Minister of Public Works."

The evidence of Mr. JAMES B. HUNTER, the Deputy 
Minister, is to the same effect (Record p. 79),—

,ft "Q. We now come to the condition in the Order-in-Coun­ 
cil Number 422 which required further approval of 
plans. Were further plans submitted 1?

A. Yes, further plans were submitted in July 1929.
Q. Were those ever approved?
A. No, those were not approved, and were subsequently 

withdrawn; and others submitted in August 1930.
Q. And were those plans ever approved?
A. No, those plans were never approved — that is by the 

Department of Public Works.
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Q. The next event, in order of time, was the famous Beau- Intc0eurtof 
harnois Enquiry, was it not ? Kinged,

A. Yes, that came on in June 1931. Beacons210
Q. Prior to that Enquiry there had been no approval of JuSSTeB^nd any of the plans? (continued)
A. No. The Minister had approved of no plans up to that 

10 time.''

And again, the same witness (at page 84) testified as fol­ 
lows:

"Q. So far as your Department was concerned, or any­ 
thing proceeding through the Department of Public 
Works, the plans were never approved? 

A. No. This order made it conditional upon the plans 
being approved by the Minister of Public Works, and 

20 he never gave approval of any plans."

But there is still more to be said on this subject. By an 
Act of Parliament, 21-22 Geo. V, chap. 19 (assented to on the 
3rd August 1931) the Order-in-f ouncil Number 422, as amended 
by Order-in-Council Number 1081 (both of which I have re­ 
ferred to )and the agreement referred to in such Orders-iii-Coun- 
cil, were formally annulled; and the preamble to the Act contains 
the following:

30 " And whereas in the opinion of Parliament the said 
company has not complied with all the terms and condi­ 
tions of the said amended Order-in-Council which are also 
embodied in said Agreement."

This Act came into force upon its proclamation on the 1st 
March 1932 (Canada Gazette, Volume 65, page 2416) and this 
was nearly four years after the death of Sifton.

,Q In the light of the foregoing, I find it impossible to agree 
with the respondents that "our plans have been passed and ap­ 
proved by the Dominion Government", which was the condition 
upon which depended the payment by Sweezey to Sifton of the 
sum of $50,000.

There remains yet, however, to be considered one further 
letter written by Sweezey on the llth June 1932 (Record p. 272), 
and upon which the respondents lay great stress as constituting 
an admission of liabilitv bv Sweezev.
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It appears that in April 1932, Mr. Clifford Sifton, one of Intco\rtof 
the executors, in "digging through the record of Winfield's Es- King'^_Bench 
tate" came across the original correspondence above referred to Reaw°nS21c 
between Sweezey and Sifton, and thereupon he began to press 
Mr. Sweezey for the payment of the $50,000. now in question 
(Eecord pp. 269 & 270),

On the 13th May, 1932, Sweezey wrote to Mr. Sifton as 
follows (Exhibit P-14, Record p. 271) :

BEAUHARNOIS POWER CORPORATION 
LIMITED

University Tower 
Montreal

13th May 1932. 
Clifford Sifton, Esq.,

Messrs. Plaxton, Sifton & Co., 
Canada Permanent Building, 

Bay & Adelaide Sts., 
Toronto 2, Canada.

30

40

My dear Mr. Sifton:
Re: W. B. Sifton Estate.

I have your letter of the 12th May, and regret that 
I was unable to see you in Toronto the day I attended the 
enquiry. As there was a meeting of the Beauharnois Com­ 
mittee in Ottawa the same night, I had to hustle away on 
the afternoon train.

I may say that the present situation in which the 
Beauharnois Company finds itself, has left me without any 
capital whatsoever, and unless the Company is reorganized 
on a basis in accordance with my ideas, I shall be left with 
nothing. On the other hand I am hoping to get back into 
the saddle to carry the enterprise through to its proper 
conclusion, and had been counting on this happening long 
before the present date, at which time I had in mind making 
some arrangement with Mrs. W. B. Sifton, whereby the 
Company would carry on with her by allowing a certain 
income on a basis similar to the one which was operative 
about a year ago.

If you can leave the matter in abeyance until such 
time as I am in authority, I believe that an arrangement



satisfactory to Mrs. Sifton and yourself may be brought In 'co
about. King-

10

My getting back into the picture of course is depen- 
dent upon several factors, in all of which I am exerting 
myself to the utmost, but meanwhile it is desirable that this 
information be treated as confidential.

If I should be in Toronto soon, I shall then remain 
over to talk with you, otherwise, if you find it convenient to 
be in Montreal at any time, please give me a call.

court of
King-sJJench

No. 21c 
Reasons

Yours very truly,

R. O. SWEEZEY

20
Received May 14-1932 
Plaxton, Sifton & Co.

30

The executors, however, appear to have been anxious to 
press the matter, and finally, on the llth June 1932, Sweezey 
wrote to Mr. Clifford Sif toil the following letter (Plaintiff's Ex­ 
hibit P-8, Record p. 272) :

June llth 1932. 
Mr. Clifford Sifton,

Executor Estate Winfield Sifton.

Dear Sir,

In consideration of the executors' undertaking not 
to press this matter for six months from today, I hereby 
acknowledge that I owed Winfield Sifton at his death, 
subject only to approval of Beauharnois plans at Ottawa, 
the sum of fifty thousand dollars, this being an under­ 
taking I made in connection with Beauharnois Syndicate 
vhose assests and liabilities were assumed by Beauharnois 
Power Corpn. Ltd.

Yours truly,

R. O. SWEEZEY

It is contended by the respondents that this is a complete 
admission on the part of Sweezey of his indebtedness to Sif ton's 
Estate. I am, however, far from sharing this view. As matters 
then stood, Sweezey was undoubtedly anxious to avoid further 
complications in the way of law suits. The letter, itself, however,

< oontlnued '
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in my opinion, is merely a re-statement of the original letter of Intc0eurtof
the 15th October 1927, as modified by the letter of the 19th Oc- Kin*'l_Bench
tober 1927. Eea?o°ns21c

of Hon. Mr. 
Justice Bond

Sweezey acknowledged that at the time of Winfield Sif- < continne<1 ' 
ton's death he was indebted to him in the sum of $50,000 provided 

10 the Beauharnois plans were approved at Ottawa, and this proviso 
lies at the bottom of the whole matter. As I have attempted to 
show, Sweezey's plans were never approved, and such qualified 
approval as had been obtained was annulled for non-compliance 
with the conditions upon which such qualified approval had been 
given. To my mind, this last mentioned letter adds nothing to the 
claim against Sweezey, and, more — appears to have been written 
by Sweezey partly with a view to shifting any responsibility on 
his part to the shoulders of the Beauharnois Corporation, Li­ 
mited. But Sweezey had severed his connection with the Beau- 

20 harnois Power Corporation some seven mouths before, namely, 
on the 19th November 1931. (Record p. 35).

On the whole, I reach the conclusion that the agreement to 
pay Sif ton $50,000 was clearly subject to the approval by the 
Government of Canada of Sweezey's plans; and I further reach 
the conclusion, from the evidence, that such approval of Sweezey's 
plans was never obtained, either with or without the assistance 
of Sifton. No doubt subsequent plans by those who succeeded 
Sweezey received sanction, as is evidenced by the Plant now in 

30 operation. But that appears to me to have 110 bearing upon the 
contract between Sifton and Sweezey, and, consequently, I should 
say that in assuming the liabilities of the Beauharnois Power 
Syndicate, the Appellant the Beauharnois Power Corporation, 
Limited, assumed no responsibility to the present respondents 
inasmuch as it did not constitute a liability.

I would accordingly MAINTAIN the appeal of the Ap­ 
pellant Sweezey, with costs, and DISMISS the action of the 

*Q Respondents.

AND, for the same reasons, I would MAINTAIN the 
appeal of the Appellant Beauharnois Power Corporation, Li­ 
mited, with costs, and DISMISS the action in warranty of the 
Respondent Sweezey.

(Signed) W. L. Bond
J.K.B. 

Mr. Justice St. Germain dissenting)
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In the
Court of 

No 21d King-stench

No. 21d 
Reasons

NOTES DE L'HONORABLE JUGE GALIPEAULT £%£
Galipeault

Je concours avec nos collegues messieurs les Juges Hall et
10 Bond, et concluant eomme eux, je maintiendrais 1'appel Sweezey,

rejetant 1'action des intimes, et ferais aussi droit a 1'appel de
Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, rejetant Faction en
garantie de 1'intinie Sweezey.

(Signe) Antonin Galipeault,
J.C.B.R. 

3 juin, 3936.

No. 21e
f)() No. 21e 
^u Reasons

NOTES DE L'HONORABLE JUGE ST. GERMAIN *=«•
St. Germain

Pour les raisoiis donnees par 1'honorable juge de premiere 
instance, je suis d'avis que le jugement a quo doit etre confirme 
et les appels respectifs de Robert Oliver Sweezey et de Beauhar­ 
nois Powr Corp., Limited, rcjetes avec depens.

Je considere qu'aux termes du contrat d'engagement in- 
tervenu en octobre 1927, entre Sweezey et W. B. Sifton, la somme 

30 de $50,000, presentement reclamee par les heritiers Sifton, repre- 
sentait un honoraire additiounel que Sifton, en outre de son allo­ 
cation de $100 par jour, pour ses services, avait le droit de tou­ 
cher, si les plans du projet en question etaient approuves par le 
gouvernemeiit federal.

Or ces plans out ete approuves, sujets, il est vrai, a cer- 
taines conditions, mais a des conditions acceptees par la Compa- 
gnie. Des lors, il n'appartenait plus qu'a la Compagnie de res- 

.,. pecter ces conditions, et si plus tard le parlemeiit du Canada a 
juge a }>ropos de revoquer le dit Ordre en Conseil pour entre 
autre motifs que la elite Compagnie ne s'etait pas conformee a 
tons les termes et conditions du dit arrete en conseil, Sifton ou 
ses heritiers ne sauraient en supj>orter les consequences.

L'on objecte que parmi les conditions auxquelles est su- 
bordonnee 1'approbation du gouvernement se trouve entre autres 
la condition suivante:
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The Company shall not commence the construction "courtof 
of the works until detailed plans of construction and all KmgBencl1 
necessary information respecting the said works have been 
submitted to and approved of by the Minister, provided 
that such plans and information shall be submitted within 
one year.

^ et Ton ajoute que ces plans detailles de construction n'ont jamais 
etc approuves par le departement des travaux publics, et que, 
partant, la condition attachee a 1'honoraire additionnel de $50,000 
n'a pas ete remplie.

Je suis d'avis que les plans auxquels 1'on refere dans les 
conditions souscrites par la Compagiiie Beauharnois Power ne 
sont nullement les plans auxquels il est refere dans 1'engagement 
entre Sifton et Sweezey; les plans auxquels refere cet engage­ 
ment sont Men plutot les plans annexes a 1'Ordre en Conseil et 

20 ces plans annexes a 1'Ordre en Conseil sont ceux mentionnes dans 
la requete amendee de la Compagnie. laquelle se lit comme suit:

The application of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and 
Power Company now pending before the Governor in Coun­ 
cil is purely and simply for the approval of plans for hy­ 
draulic development which will be subject to a condition 
that no more than 40,000 cubic feet per second shall be 
diverted from the river — from Lake St. Francis, to be 
returned to Lake St. Louis, and used for power purposes 

3Q by the Company between these two points; and any con­ 
dition that the Government may exact, in any wording sa­ 
tisfactory to the Government, involving that limitation, 
is accepted in advance by the applicant. If the engineers 
think that the plans should be altered to meet this declar­ 
ation the Company will submit to any such alteration.
En d'autres termes, les plans approuves par 1'Ordre en 

Conseil sont les plans generaux du projet, et ce sont ces plans 
que Sifton et Sweezey out en vue dans le contrat d'engagement, 

_, et non les plans detailles auxquels il est refere dans les condi­ 
tions annexees a 1'Ordre en Conseil et auxquelles, encore une fois, 
la Compagnie a souscrit.

Pour arriver a cette conclusion, je ne crois meme pas qu'il 
soit necessaire de prendre en consideration la preuve apportee 
sur ce point, soit par Sweezey, soit par Clifford Sifton.

Quant a 1'action en garantie. je n'ai rien a ajouter aux 
motifs du jugement a quo pour le maintien de la dite action.

(Signe) P. St. Germain,
J.C.B.R.
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In the
Court of 

Jf0 23 King's Bench

No. 23 
Ordonnance

ORDONNANCE S3S£*
appeal to

JUDGMENT ADMITTING APPEAL TO HIS MAJESTY fnisĤ erfvyy
1Q IN HIS PRIVY COUNCIL 193S

Montreal, le 16 octobre 1936.

L 'Honorable Sir Mathias Tellier, J.C., et les Honorables 
Juges Dorion, Rivard, Walsh et St-Jacques.

LA COUR,

Parties ouies sur la requete des intimes sus-noninies, en 
2Q date du 18 septembre 1936, presentee a cette Cour aujourd'hui et 

concue en ces termes :

"WHEREAS by judgment rendered by this Hon­ 
ourable Court 011 the 9th day of June, 1936, St. Germain, 
J. dissenting, the appeal of the Appellant was maintained 
with costs and the judgment condemning the Appellant to 
pay to the Respondents the sum of $53,972.61 with interest 
and costs was dismissed ; and

30 WHEREAS in the present case the amount demand­ 
ed exceeds the sum of $12,000., to wit : the sum of $53,972.61 ; 
and

WHEREAS the Respondents believe themselves to 
be aggrieved by the said judgment and desire to appeal 
therefrom to His Majesty in His Privy Council;

THAT the Respondents be permitted to appeal to 
His Majesty in His Privy Council from the judgment ren- 

40 dered herein 011 the 9th day of June, 1936, and that a delay 
be fixed by this Honourable Court within which the Res­ 
pondents may furnish good and sufficient security as re­ 
quired by law to effectively prosecute such appeal, to satisfy 
any condemnation and to pay such costs and damages as 
may be awarded by His Majesty in the event of the judg­ 
ment appealed being confirmed, the whole with costs re­ 
served."

CONSIDERANT que cette demande n'est pas contest ee;
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CONSIDERANT que la cause dont il s'agit est de celles 
dans lesquelles il y a droit d'appel an Conseil prive de Sa Ma- Intc0eurtof 
jesty, en vertu de Particle 68 du Code de procedure civile; xing-sBen

No. 23 
Ordonnance

PAR CES MOTIFS, '£$$££
appeal to 
His Majesty

FAIT DROIT a la motion des intimes; ORDONNE que
10 le eautionnement a fournir par 1'appelant, suivant que pourvu a

1'article 1249 du dit Code, soit donne dans un delai de quinze
jours du present jugement et qu'il soit de $2,500; et ORDONNE
en outre que les frais des presentes suivent le sort de 1'appel.

(Sgd) J. M. Tellier,
J.C.P.Q.

No. 25 
20

MOTION OF APPELLANTS AS TO CONTENTS
OF RECORD Motto 25

of Appellants

RESPONDENTS' MOTION oafs re°c«rnts
16 Nov. 1936

WHEREAS Plaintiffs-Respondent have appealed to His 
Majesty in his Privy Council from the judgment rendered herein 
the 9th day of June 1936, annulling the final judgment of the 
Superior Court and dismissing their action with costs; and

30
WHEREAS in the Superior Court the Defendant-Appel­ 

lant herein took action as Plaintiff-in-Warranty against Beau- 
harnois Power Corporation Limited as Defendant-in-Warranty 
and the said Superior Court, by interlocutory judgment rendered 
the 4th day of September 1934, did order that "the said principal 
action and the said action in warranty be joined for purposes of 
enquete and merits and be tried at the same time and decided on 
the same evidence''; and

40 WHEREAS the said final judgment of the Superior Court 
not only condemned Defendant to pay Plaintiffs the full amount 
of their said claim, but also condemned said Defendant-in-War- 
ranty to acquit and indemnify Plaintiff-in-Warranty against the 
said judgment rendered against him; and

WHEREAS the said Defendant and the said Defendant - 
in-Warranty filed separate inscriptions in appeal to this Honour­ 
able Court from said judgment, but printed and filed a Joint 
Case herein and the two appeals were argued at the same hearing 
and were disposed of by the said judgment herein, which annuled
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not only the said judgment in the principal action, but also the Intc0eurtof • 
judgment in the warranty action and dismissed said warranty Klne'^_Bencl> 
action with costs; and Motion 25

of Appellants
WHEREAS Defendant-Appellant herein has not appealed %£££ents 

from the said judgment of this Honourable Court in the warranty 1 < C(Jntiimed)i6 
action, and the issues of the warranty action will not be involved 

10 in the Plaintiffs-Respondents' present appeal to His Majesty; 
and

WHEREAS Plaintiffs-Respondents submit that the 
pleadings filed and evidence taken in the warranty action and 
the exhibits filed therein are not relevant to the issues in the 
Plaintiffs-Respondents' present appeal to the Privy Council; and

WHEREAS the Defendant-Appellant has agreed to ex­ 
clude the said pleadings in the warranty action from the Record 
for the Privy Council, but has refused to consent to the exclusion 
of the said depositions and exhibits in the warranty action from 
said Record; and

WHEREAS, before the Joint case was printed for this 
Honourable Court, the Defendant-Appellant and the Plaintiffs- 
Respondents agreed that the exhibits filed in the warranty action 
should not be included in the Case in Appeal in the principal 
action, but said exhibits were included in the Case in Appeal in 
the warranty action, as appears by the Joint Case and by the 
Agreements and Consents printed on pages 265, 266, 267 and 268 

30 of said Joint Case; and
WHEREAS the nine exhibits filed by Plaintiff-iii-WTar- 

ranty in the warranty action, namely Exhibits P-W.l to P.W.9 
inclusive (pages 108 to 146; 151 to 163; and 186 to 239) are con­ 
cerned with the relations between Plaintiff-in-Warranty and De- 
fendant-in-Warranty and have no bearing on or relevance to the 
issues in the principal action; and

WHEREAS Exhibit D.W.I filed by Defeiidant-in-War- 
ranty (p. 239) is a copy of resolution of the Board of Directors 

^0 of Defendant-in-Warranty and is not relevant to the issues in 
the principal action; and

WHEREAS Exhibit D.W.2 filed by Defendant-in-War- 
ranty (pages 193 to 239) comprising some 47 pages, is a copy of a 
Report of a Committee of the House of Commons and was pro­ 
duced by counsel for Defeiidant-in-Warranty and formed no part 
of the record in the principal action and was irrelevant thereto:

MOVED:
1. THAT the Record of Appeal for the Privy Council do
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comprise the following papers (as included in the Joint Case at Intcoeurtof 
the pages mentioned) namely: — -

No. 25 
Motion

The pleadings .............................................. pages 3 to 12
Evidence of Plaintiffs' witnesses " 35 to 72 ?f6 r No°vd i9 36
Evidence of Defendant's witnesses " 73 to 98 < contlnued >

10 Exhibits ...... " 146 to 151
" 163 to 185
" 240 to 251

Final Judgment of the Superior Court " 252 to 264
and the following papers in addition thereto : —

Judgment of the Court of King's Bench, 
June 9th, 1936 ;

Notes of the five Judges therein ;
20 Judgment of the Court of King's Bench 

on this Motion ;
Certificate of the Clerk verifying the 

transcript record ; and
Index of the Privy Council Record.

2. THAT the following papers which were included in the 
said Joint Case at the pages mentioned be omitted from the said 
Record for the Privy Council, namely: — 

30
Inscription in Appeal in principal action pages 1 to 2 
Inscription in Appeal in warranty action " 13 to 14 
Pleadings in warranty action " 15 to 28 
Judgment j oining cases for trial " 29 
Evidence of witnesses for Plaintiff-in-

Warranty .............................................. " 30 to 34
Evidence of witnesses for Defendant-in-

Warranty ............................................ " 99 to 107
- n Exhibits in warranty action ........................ " 108 to 146
*U " 151 to 163

" 186 to 239 
Consent to printing in appeal in principal

action ...................................................... " 265 to 266
Consent to printing in appeal in warranty

action ............... ...... ............................... " 267 to 268

3. THAT, in printing the pleadings in the principal ac­ 
tion, the Amendment to Defendant's Plea, as well as the Plain-
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tiffs' Answer to Defendant's Amendment, be incorporated in the In "court of 
original Plea and in the original Answer respectively, the whole King JLBencl> 
with costs to follow the event. Motion

of Appellants

MONTREAL, November 16th, 1936.
16 Nov. 1936

(Signed) Weldon & Lynch- Stauntoii, (continued) 
10 Attorneys for Plaintiffs-Respondents.

I, JOSEPH WILLIAM WELDON, of 355 Olivier Ave­ 
nue, in the City of Westmount, in the District of Montreal, Ad­ 
vocate, having been duly sworn, make oath and say that:

1. I am a member of the firm of Weldon and Lynch- 
Staunton and had charge of the present case for Plaintiffs in the 
Superior Court and for Respondents in this Honourable Court.

20 2. The facts set forth in the foregoing petition are true.
SWORN TO at Montreal, in 
the District of Montreal, 
this 16th day of November, 
1936, before me,

(Signed) J. W. Weldon 
(Signed) C. E. Germain 
A Commissioner of the 
Superior Court for the 

30 District of Montreal.

To Errol Languedoc, Esq., K.C., 
Attorney for Defendant-Appellant.
Sir,

Take notice of the foregoing Motion and Affidavit and
that they will be presented before the Judge of the Court of
King's Bench, in Appeal, sitting in Chambers, in the Court House

40 at Montreal, on Monday, the 23rd day of November, 1936, at 11
a.m., or so soon thereafter as counsel can be heard.

MONTREAL, November 16th, 1936.
(Signed) Weldon & Lynch-Staunton,

Attorneys for Plaintiffs-Respondents. 
TRUE COPY
(Signed) Weldon & Lynch-Staunton,

Attorneys for Plaintiffs-Respondents.
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Intbe

Court of 
King's Bench

No. 26 
Judgment of 
The Hon. Mr. 
Justice Hall 
on motion 
to fix contents

JUDGMENT OF THE HONOURABLE MR. JUSTICE HALL ST^* i9 36 
10 ON MOTION TO FIX CONTENTS OF RECORD

I, the undersigned Judge of the Court of King's Bench, 
sitting in Chambers, having heard the Parties by their Counsel 011 
the Respondents' Motion asking for directions in the preparation 
of the Record to be submitted to the Judicial Committee of the 
Privy Council;

WHEREAS the Parties agree that the list of documents
set out in paragraph one of the said Motion should be included

20 in the said Record; and that the following papers which were
included in the Joint Case in appeal should be excluded, to wit:—

Inscription in appeal in principal action pages 1 to 2 
Inscription in appeal in warranty action " 13 - 14 
Pleadings in warranty action " 15 - 28 
Consent to printing in appeal in principal

action .............'. ..................... " 265 - 266
Consent to printing in appeal in warranty

action " 267 - 268 
30

WHEREAS Counsel for Appellant object to the exclusion 
of the following papers, to wit:—

Judgment joining cases for trial page 29 
Evidence of witnesses for Plaintiff-in-

Warranty ............................................. pages 30 - 34
Evidence of witnesses for Defendant-in-

Warranty ................................................ " 99 - 107
dn Exhibits in warranty action " 108 - 146

" " 151 - 163
" 186 - 239

CONSIDERING that one of the grounds of the Appellant's 
plea was that the contract with the late Sifton was not made by 
the Appellant personally, but as the representative of the Syn­ 
dicate which was formed for the promotion of the Beauharnois 
project, and that, in consequence, the judgment joining the cases 
for trial is relevant to the issues and should be included.
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CONSIDERING that the witness for the Plaintiff -in-War- In ch0eurt of 
raiity (pages 30-34) was called solely for the purpose of producing 
documents, and that, therefore, his deposition is not essential;

The Hon. Mr. 
Justice Hall

CONSIDERING that, while there is much irrelevant mat- 
ter in the exhibits in the warranty action, there are nevertheless 2v r Noyd 

10 passages to which reference was made in the judgment of this (contintted) 
Court, and to which the Appellant may find it essential to direct 
the attention of their Lordships of the Judicial Committee ;

CONSIDERING, in particular, that, as the Report of the 
Special Committee of the House of Commons (pages 193 to 239) 
deals with the fundamental question of approval of plans by the 
Government, and that, while much of that Report is irrelevant, 
their Lordships may find it advantageous to have before them the 
context of the relevant paragraphs, it would be unwise to exclude 

20 the same, unless Counsel for the Parties can agree between them­ 
selves on what pages should be omitted ;

DO, THEREFORE, direct that the Record for the Judicial 
Committee should contain, in addition to the papers specified in 
the Motion, on which the Parties agree, the following: —

Judgment joining cases for trial ............ page 29
Evidence of witnesses for Defendant-in- 

n Warranty ....... pages 99 - 107
du Exhibits in warranty action ...................... " 108-146

" 151 - 163 
" 186 - 239

The whole with costs to follow the event of the appeal.

(Signed) A. RIVES HALL
J.K.B.

40
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~^ Plaintiff's
Exhibit 
in Warranty

EXHIBITS on Discovery

P.W.-l

and
Marquette

______________ Investment 
' Corporation

12 May 1927

10 PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-W-1 IN WARRANTY
ON DISCOVERY.

Copy of agreement between B. O. Stveezey and
Marquette Investment Corporation with

Schedules A and B attached thereto.

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT made in triplicate 
at the City of Montreal in the Province of Quebec this twelfth 
day of May One thousand nine hundred and twenty-seven:

By and Between: —

ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY of the City of West- 
mount in the said Province of Quebec, hereinafter called the 
"Transferor";

Party of the First Part.
And:

3Q MARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION, a
company duly incorporated by Letters Patent of the Province of 
Quebec, hereinafter called the "Transferee";

Party of the Second Part.

WHEREAS on the third day of February 1927 an agree­ 
ment was entered into between William Henry Robert, Joseph 
Alfred Robert and Miss Sarah Mary Robert as parties of the 
first part and the said Transferor as party of the second part, 

40 a copy whereof signed by the parties hereto for identification is 
annexed hereto as Schedule "A"; and

WHEREAS on the third day of February 1927, an agree­ 
ment was entered into between the said William Henry Robert, 
Joseph Alfred Robert and Miss Sarah Mary Robert as parties 
of the first part, the said Transferor as party of the second part 
and National Trust Company Limited as Trustee and party of 
the third part, a copy whereof signed by the parties hereto for 
identification is hereto annexed as Schedule "B";
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Plaintiff's
Exhibit
in Warranty

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNES- <™i>™ry
P.W.-l 

Agreement 
between 
B. O. Sweezey

1. The Transferor for good and valuable consideration 
the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged by the Transferee 
hereby transfers, assigns and makes over unto the Transferee all 

10 his the Transferor's rights and interests in and to and arising 
out of the said two agreements (copies whereof are hereto an­ 
nexed as Schedules "A" and "B") and in and to all the assets 
and things covered by the said two agreements.

2. The Transfere-e hereby accepts the said transfer and 
hereby assumes, to the exoneration of the Transferor, all the 
liabilities and obligations contained in or arising out of the said 
two agreements.

20 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have exe­ 
cuted these presents at the City of Montreal on the day and date 
firstly above written.

IN THE PRESENCE OF:
(Sgd.) R. O. Sweezey. 

(Sgd.} C. G. Heward.

MARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION,
•-in 

u By (Sgd.} R. W. Steele,
Vice-President.

L. S. 
(Sgd.} Henry Newman.

& (Sgd.) Hugh B. Griffith,
Sec. Treas.

Schedule "A" of No. 1.
40

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT made in quintu- 
plicate at the City of Montreal in the Province of Quebec on the 
third day of February, One thousand nine hundred and twenty- 
seven.

BETWEEN:—

WILLIAM HENRY ROBERT, formerly of the Town 
of Beauharnois, now of the said City of Montreal: JOSEPH
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~~^—— Plaintiff s

Exhibit 
in Warranty

ALFRED ROBERT of the City of Ottawa, Province of On- on Dis^ery 
tario, and MISS SARAH MARY ROBERT, fille majeure et Ag ™enl 
usant de ses droits of the said City of Montreal, as well person- |eto elweezey 
ally as in their quality of Executors and Executrix of the Last Madrquette 
Will and Testament and Codicil thereto of the late Dame Sarah 
Robert in her lifetime widow of the late Joseph Bartholomew 

10 Robert of the Town of Beauharnois in the said Province here­ 
inafter called "Vendors":

Of the One Part 
AND:

ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY of the City of West- 
mount in the said Province of Quebec', hereinafter called "PUR­ 
CHASER";

Of the Other Part.
WITNESSETH:—

zu
WHEREAS the Vendors declare that they together with 

their brother Edmund Arthur Robert of the said City of Mon­ 
treal are the only residuary legatees under the last Will and 
Testament of their father, the said late Joseph Bartholomew Ro­ 
bert, executed before Maitre William de M. Marler and colleague, 
Notaries on the 7th July, 1886, and codicil thereto executed be­ 
fore the said William de M. Marler and colleague, Notaries on the 
12th July, 1886; and

• >A

° WHEREAS the said Vendors declare that the said Ed­ 
mund Arthur Robert by deed executed before the said Maitre 
W. De M. Marler, Notary, 011 the 17th July, 1909, did transfer, 
assign and make over unto his mother the said late Dame Sarah 
Robert, all his right, title and interest to and in the Estate and 
succession of his father Joseph Bartholomew Robert; and

WHEREAS the Vendors declare that they are the Exe­ 
cutors and Executrix of and under the said Last Will and 

40 Testament of the said late Dame Sarah Robert, executed be­ 
fore Maitre W. De M. Marler and colleague, Notaries, on the 
27th July, 1909, and to and under the Codicil thereto in English 
form dated the 5th of March, 1910, and duly probated in the 
Superior Court of the District of Beauharnois on the 12th April, 
1922, and that as such Executors and Executrix they are vested 
with power to make the sale and enter into other covenants 
herein contained and that their seizin extends beyond the year and 
day allowed by law;

s
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Plaintiff s
Exhibit
in Warranty

NOW THEREFORE these presents witness that the ""Discovery 
parties hereto have agreed together as follows:— Agrfenfe'nt

between
E. O. Sweezey

1. The Vendors hereby sell, transfer, assign and make Madrquette
over without warranty of any kind, restitution of prices or other 
recourse whatsoever (except as to their acts and deeds only) un- 

10 to the Purchaser hereto present and accepting, all the Vendor's 
rights title and interest in, to or under:

(A) An agreement bearing date the 28th December 1909, 
between His Majesty The King of the- First Part and the said 
Dame Sarah Robert and the Vendors of the Second Part, the 
Vendors declaring that the said Parties of the Second Part by 
deed passed before L. C. Tasse, Notary, 011 the 26th March, 1910, 
under his number 7156, transferred all their rights under the 
said agreement to the Beauharnois Light Heat and Power Corn- 

20 pany, all the capital stock of which Company is herein conveyed to 
the Purchaser, and that the present transfer of their rights 
under this agreement is made with a view to abandoning to the 
Purchaser any rights that the Vendors might still have in the said 
Agreement.

(B) A certain feeder carrying water from Lake St. 
Francis to the River St. Louis with the land belonging thereto, 
the said feeder and land being known as lot number 341 o'n the 
Official Plan and in the Book of Reference of the Parish of St. 
Cecile, and certain lots at the mouth of the said feeder being 
known as lots numbers 172, 173 and 175 on the said Official 
Plan and in the said Book of Reference; the vendors declaring 
that the said feeder and land lot Number 341 and the said lots 
numbers 172, 173 and 175 have been transferred to the said Beau­ 
harnois Light Heat & Power Company by the said Joseph Bar­ 
tholomew Robert by deed of the 14th May, 1902, passed before 
Maitre W. de M. Marler, Notary, under his number 25280, and 
that the present transfer of their rights to the said lots is thus 

^Q made with a view to abandoning in favour of the Purchaser any 
right which the Vendors may still have thereto.

(C) The following deeds:—

1. Ellice to Robert dated llth September, 1867;
2. Ellice to Robert dated llth May, 1871;
3. Browning to Robert dated llth May 1871;
4. Browning to Robert dated 23rd January, 1884;
5. Ellice to Robert dated 18th March, 1903;

Investment 
Corporation
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Less any and all rights and property transferred with on Discovery 
warranty under clause 2, hereof, as well as those heretofore Ar ^-n 
parted with by the Vendors, and more especially the piece of 
land on the east side of the River St. Louis, transferred to âdr(iue1.te 
the Roman Catholic Church by deed before Tasse, Notary, 
dated 10th October, 1903.

10
(D) That certain deep water lot situate in the said Lake 

St. Francis immediately in front of the said lots 172, 173 
and 175, Parish of St. Cecile, acquired by the late Joseph 
Bartholomew Robert from the Province of Quebec by Letters 
Patent dated 5th June, 1902, the said Vendors hereby declaring 
that the said deep water lot was transferred by the said Joseph 
Bartholomew Robert to the said Beauharnois Light Heat & 
Power Company by Deed of Sale passed before W. De M. Marler, 
Notary Public on the 14th May, 1902, and that the present transfer

20 of their rights thereto is thus made with a view to abandoning in 
favour of the Purchaser any rights which the Vendors may still 
have thereto.

(E) Water power in the River St. Louis.

2. The Vendors hereby sell, transfer, assign and make 
over all Warranty unto the Purchaser thereof accepting the fol­ 
lowing :—

^0 (A) All the issued shares of the Beauharnois Light Heat & 
Power Company a body corporate created by the Act 2. Edward 
VII, Chapter 72, which was amended by the Act 1, George V., 
Chapter 77, of the Province of Quebec, which shares the Vendors 
covenant and agree are fully paid up and non-assessable, but 
without warranty of any kind, restitution of price or other re­ 
course whatsoever in respect of the items described in sub- 
paragraphs (A), (B) and (D) of paragraph one hereof or any 
other property or rights of-the Company, but the Vendors war-

4Q rant that the said Company has no debts or liabilities other than 
current taxes and an indebtedness to the Vendors which is being 
discharged concurrently with the execution of this agreement, 
and those which may have been incurred in the ordinary course 
of business.

(B) That certain lot known as number 266 011 the Of­ 
ficial Plan and in the Book of Reference of the Parish of St. 
Clement.
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(C) That certain lot known as immber 555 on the Of- on Discovery 
ficial Plan, and in the Book of Reference of the Town of Beau- 
harnois, less:

and 
Marquette

(i) The strip of lands sold to the Beauharuois June- 
tion Railway by deed registered in the Beauharnois 

10 County Registry office under No. 25032.

(ii) The rights granted to the Howard Smith Paper 
Company Limited by deed of the 5th of October. 
1912 (Sidings, etc.)

(iii) The rights granted to the Howard Smith Pape-r 
Mills Limited under deed of the 3rd of April, 
1917 (Transmission Lines, gas, water, drains, etc)

20 (iv) The parts of lot 555 of the rights transferred to the 
Howard Smith Paper Mills Limited by deed dated 
the 14th of September,

(v) The part of lot 555 described in paragraph (D) 
(iii) hereof, together with all the rights granted to 
the Vendors by the Howard Smith Paper Company 
Limited, and the Howard Smith Paper Mills, 
Limited tinder the Deeds above mentioned in this 

on paragraph.

(D) That certain lot known as number 556 on the Of­ 
ficial Plan and in the Book of Reference of the Town of Beau­ 
harnois, less:

(i) That part of said lot number 556 sold to the Domi­ 
nion Blanket and Fibre Company by deed dated the 
10th April, 1893, and the water power and other 
rights therein mentioned.

40
(ii) The Homestead property of the Vendors forming 

the South West Corner of Mill and St. Lawrence 
Streets, which with the property sold to Mrs. Le- 
febvre hereinafter mentioned forms the block of 
la'nd not enclosed in green lines on the plan made 
by M. D. Barclay, C. L. S., dated the llth October, 
1921, with the servitudes and other rights apper­ 
taining thereto, including rights to drain with the 
River St. Louis across Mill Street and part of
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Cadastral Lot 559 and the rights to use Mill Street»" _ 
which purchaser recognizes as a public thorough- Agrfe- ê-ni
f Q T>P between 
J- a c< B. O. Sweezey

and 
Marquette(iii) That certain piece of land forming part of said lot" 

number 556, and of said lot number 555, bounded 
10 to the north by St. Lawrence Street, to the east 

by the property of the Howard Smith Paper Mills, 
Limited, to the south by the right of way of the 
St. Lawrence and Adirondack Railway to the west 
by an Avenue known as Victoria on the cancelled 
subdivision plan of the said lot made and filed in 
the Registry office in the Town of Beauharnois 
and the continuation of the said Avenue in a Straight 
line to the said right of way.

^0 (jv) That piece of land sold to Howard Smith Paper 
Company by deed dated 5th October 1912.

(v) Subdivisions 1 and 2 of said lot 556.

(vi) The rights granted to Howard Smith Paper Mills 
Limited by deed dated the 3rd April, 1917, (trans­ 
mission lines gas, water, drains, etc.)

.,Q (vii) That piece of laud sold to Mrs. Arthur Lefebvre by 
deed before J. C. Trudeau, N. P., dated the 7th of 
May, 1917, with servitude over lot number 559.

(viii) The land and rights sold to Howard Smith Paper 
Mills Limited by deed dated the 14th September, 
1922.

Subject to the rights granted by the Vendors in the Deeds 
mentioned in this paragraph and including the reserves therein 

40 also mentioned in favour of the Vendors,

(E) That certain lot known on the said Official Plan of 
the Town of Beauharnois as Lot number 557, less a small corner 
thereof carrying the flume to the property of Jacques Bisaillon 
or his representatives.

(P) That certain lot known on the said Official Plan of 
the Town of Beauharnois as Lot number 559, less:
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(a) A thirty foot roadway on the west side thereof. In^o^r
P.W.-l

(b) Sub-division 1 of said lot number 539.
R. O. Sweezey 
and

(c) All rights granted to the Corporation of the Town 
of Beauharnois under Deed dated the 7th of October 

10 1914. (drain, etc.) (continued,

(d) That piece of land 171/2 by 17 sold to the Howard 
Smith Paper Mills Limited under deed of exchange 
with the Beauliarnois Light Heat & Power Com­ 
pany dated the 5th of October, 1912.

(e) That piece of land owned by Leduc and Fortin and 
all rights acquired by them from their auteurs.

20 (f) The rights granted to the Howard Smith Paper 
Mills Limited under deed dated the 3rd of April, 
1917 (Transmission lines, gas, water, drains, etc.).

(g) That piece of land of about 1161.5 feet sold to 
Howard Smith Paper Mills Limited by deed dated 
the 25th of February, 1918.

(h) That piece of land sold to Howard Smith Paper 
OQ Mills Limited by deed dated the 14th of September 

1922 and corrected by deed dated the 17th of May 
1924.

Subject to the rights granted by the Vendors in the Deeds 
mentioned in this paragraph, and including the benefit of all 
reserves in favour of the Vendors therein.

3. There is reserved and excepted from the present sale
all the rights of all parties other than the Vendors and the

40 Beauharnois Light Heat and Power Company in the said feeder
and in the said River St. Louis and to power from or to take or
use the water of or from the said River St. Louis.

There is also reserved from the present sale the lighthouse 
at or near the mouth of the said feeder together with the land 
serving the same and the right of ingress and egrees thereto in 
favour of the Dominion Government,
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4. It is understood and agreed that it is the intention on Dis!!very 
of the Vendors to sell and transfer and of the Purchaser to Agrfe ê'nl 
purchase, in addition to the properties and rights which the Reto elweeZey 
Vendors may own which may be useful to the Purchaser iiiMadrquette 
carrying out the proposed hydro electric development herein- 
after referred to, except those properties and rights heretofore 

10 sold by the A7endors and those which are herein specifically re­ 
served, and, moreover, the Vendors herein sell and transfer to 
the Purchaser any and all rights and claims if any which they 
may have against the said Beauharnois Light Heat and Power 
Company.

5. The Vendors undertake and agree to deliver to the 
Purchaser forthwith upon demand written resignations of all 
the present Directors of the Beauharnois Light Heat & Power 

2Q Company.

6. The Vendors shall have the right until the month of 
September 1927, to remove from the properties hereby sold all 
moveable property thereon or therein belonging to them.

7. The 'purchaser declares that it is his intention to 
develop or cause to be developed the water powers existing by 
reason of the difference in level between Lake St. Francis and 
Lake St. Louis.

30
8. The present sale is thus made for the following price

and consideration payable by the purchaser to the. Vendors as 
follows:—

A. One hundred thousand dollars ($100000) paid to 
the Vendors at the execution of these presents, by 
accepted cheques payable to the order of William 
H. Robert, the receipt whereof is hereby acknow­ 
ledged by the Vendors.

B. Two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) 
in cash concurrently with the first issue of Bonds 
provided for in sub-paragraph (C) hereof, or at 
the termination of three years from the date of 
these presents if such issue of Bonds be not made 
within that period, but subject always to the right 
of extention as stipulated in paragraph 10 where- 
of,
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C. Five hundred thousand dollars of face of Bonds 
forming part of the first issue of Bonds to be made 
for the purpose of financing the cost of developing |e 
the water power or any part thereof existing by Madr(ltiette 
reason of the difference in level between Lake St. 
Francis and Lake St. Louis, which issue shall have

10 priority over all other issues of bonds or debentures 
for such purpose. The purchaser declares that the 
development aforesaid shall be made by the Beau- 
harnois Light Heat & Power Company or by some 
other Company which he or his assigns shall di­ 
rectly or indirectly cause to be organized and the 
Bonds above referred to shall be the bonds of which­ 
ever such Company may undertake such develop­ 
ment, and if any bonus of common stock is given

2Q to any underwriters of such bonds the Purchaser 
shall at the same time as he delivers the said Five 
Hundred Thousand Dollars in face value Bonds to 
the Vendors, deliver to the Vendors a bonus of 
Common Stock on the same basis as the best bonus 
given to any underwriters of the said Bonds ; such 
Five Hundred Thousand Dollars in face value of 
Bonds together with the said bonus, if any, of Com­ 
mon Stock shall be delivered at the time when such 
first issue of bonds is made, and such issue and de-

30 livery shall not be later than three years from the 
date hereof, but subject always to the right of ex­ 
tension stipulated in paragraph ]0 hereof.

D. One hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) 
in cash on the date when any part of the power 
plant to be erected shall be first put into operation 
for the delivery of electric power to any CTistome-r, 
or the Vendors may at their option demand in lieu 

An. of payment of One hundred and fifty thousand 
dollars ($150,000) cash bonds of the value of One 
hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) at 
the rate paid for such Bonds by the underwriters, 
together with a bonus of Common Stock on the same 
basis as mentioned in sub-paragraph C of this 
paragraph 8.

E. Five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) of First 
Preferred Stock of the Company issuing the Bonds
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provided for in sub-paragraph (C) of this para- onDis™very 
graph 8 and if any bonus of Common Stock of the Agl^ml 
said Company is given to any underwriters of such Reto eIweeZey 
Preferred Stock the Purchaser shall at the same Madrquette 
time as it delivers the said Five Hundred Thousand cnorpor™tTon 
Dollars ($500,000) of First Preferred Stock to the

10 Vendors deliver to them a bonus of Common Stock 
on the same basis as the best bonus given to any 
underwriters of the said Preferred Stock, such Five 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) of First 
Preferred Stock together with the said bonus, 
if any, of Common Stock to be delivered to the Ven­ 
dors at the same time as the payment of the said 
sum of One Hundred and fifty thousand dollars 
($150,000) mentioned in sub-paragraph D, of this

2Q paragraph 8.

F. One hundred (100) shares of a syndicate of Four 
thousand (4,000) shares at the outset, but subject 
to increase up to (5,000) shares, if necessary, to 
be formed to do the preliminary work in respect of 
and the preliminary financing for the said deve­ 
lopment, the said syndicate may be incorporated 
or unincorporated, as the Purchaser may deem 
best, and the Purchaser undertakes that the said 

30 "W". H. Robert, one of the Vendors shall be appoint­ 
ed one of the Directors or Managers, as the case may 
be of the said syndicate; the said One hundred (100) 
shares shall be delivered when the said syndicate is 
organized and the said W. H. Robert shall be ap­ 
pointed at the same time as the Purchaser is ap­ 
pointed a Director or Manager.

9. At the time of the delivery to the Vendors of the said 
Five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) of Preferred the 

40 Vendors shall receive common stock of the Company referred to 
in sub-paragraph (C) of paragraph 8 hereof, on a basis to be 
agreed upon to compensate them for interest at the Preferred 
Dividend rate on the aforesaid Five Hundred thousand dollars 
of First Preferred Stock between the date of the aforesaid first 
issue of bonds and the date of delivery of the said Preferred 
Stock. However, the Purchaser may at his option pay such in­ 
terest in money.
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10. It is expressly understood and agreed, however, that on Discovery 
the Purchaser may obtain a further delay of three years (that is A rfe-^ 
to say until the expiration of six years from the date hereof) for between 
the issue of the bonds and the payment of the instalments of **&'

1 • -L- i • i i -r-i n r\ c Marquettepurchase price mentioned in sub-paragraphs B and ( of para- investment
101 ^i • j ji TT i j j- -.LI • ji Corporationgraph 8 hereof, by paying to the Vendors at any time within three la^May 192? 

10 years from the date hereof the sum of One hundred thousand 
dollars ($100,000) such payment of One Hundred Thousand 
dollars ($100,000) to be applied in satisfaction to that extent of 
the instalment provided for in sub-paragraph B of paragraph 8 
hereof. It being understood, however, that nothing herein con­ 
tained shall entitle the Purchaser to postpone the date of the 
complete payment of the said instalments provided for in sub- 
paragraphs B and C of the paragraph 8 hereof beyond the date 
when the first issue of Bonds is made as aforesaid.

20 11. As security for the payment of the instalments of pur­ 
chase price provided for in sub-paragraphs B and C of paragraph 
8 hereof the shares of the Capital Stock of the said Beauharnois 
Light Heat & Power Company have been transferred to the Na­ 
tional Trust Company Limited, to be held by it as Trustee until 
payment in full of the said two instalments, and in default of 
payment of either of the said instalments within the delay sti­ 
pulated, or any Extensions thereof as herein provided for, the said 
shares are to be returned by the Trustee to the Vendors. So long

3Q as the said shares are held by the Trustee the Purchaser shall 
have complete right and power to vote the same at any and all 
meetings of the shareholders of that Company for any and all 
purposes except the alienation hypothecation or charging of 
the assets of that Company. Provided that nothing herein con­ 
tained shall prevent the said shares being voted for thp purpose 
of authorizing creating and issuing the bonds provided for in 
paragraph 8 hereof.

12. Upon payment of the instalments of the purchase 
40 price provided for in sub-paragraphs B and C of paragraph 

8, hereof, the Vendors shall sign and execute such releases and 
discharges as may be reasonably required by the Purchaser to 
free and clear the properties and rights hereby sold .of all 
claims, rights and privileges of the Vendors, upon the said 
properties and rights and the said shares of the Beauharnois 
Light Heat & Power Company shall be delivered by the Trustee 
to the Purchaser, provided however, that the Purchaser de­ 
livers at the same time to the said Trustee Six hundred and
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fifty thousand dollars ($650,000) in face value of the First onDls!!very 
Mortgage Bonds referred to in sub-paragraph C of paragraph Agrfe-^ 
8 hereof, such bonds to be held by the said Trustee as security Keto elweezey 
for the payment of the instalments of purchase price mentioned Mad quette 
in sub-paragraphs D and E of paragraph 8 hereof, and upon pay- c^poVatSn 
ment of the said instalments to be returned to the Purchaser, or ^co^ttau 

10 in default of such payment to be delivered to the Vendors 
with the right to the Vendors to keep the same as their own 
property or their option to enforce the payment of the 
instalments provided for in said sub-paragraphs D and E. The 
coupons attached to the said bonds shall not be presented for 
payment unless and until default is made in the payment of the 
said instalments of purchase price provided for in sub-paragraphs 
D and E of paragraph 8 hereof.

RESOLUTORY CONDITION.
20

13. If the said instalments of the purchase price 
mentioned in sub-paragraphs D and C of paragraph 8, hereof 
be not made within the delays therein provided for, or the 
extension thereof provided for in paragraph 10 hereof, if 
such be obtained, then the present sale shall thereupon become 
null and void to all intents and purposes and the properties 
and rights hereby sold shall revert to and become properties 
and rights of the Vendors, and all instalments of purchase

^>Q price theretofore paid to the Vendors shall be forfeited to 
them as liquidated damages, but the Purchaser shall not be 
under any further liability or obligation hereunder. The 
mere lapse of the stipulated delay without payment being made 
shall of itself put the Purchaser in default and cause the 
Resolutory condition herein provided for to take effect imme­ 
diately without any demand or other formality whatsoever and 
the Purchaser shall reconvey the said properties and rights 
upon demand to the Vendors without reimbursement 011 
the part of the A7endors of the value of any repairs or im-

40 provements, the Purchaser hereby renouncing thereto as well 
as to any rights to remove improvements. In the event of 
this Resolutory Condition taking effect, any rights, proper­ 
ties, privileges and concessions acquired by or in the name 
of the Beauharnois Light Heat & Power Company shall re­ 
main the property of the said company without any compensa­ 
tion to the Purchaser, and in the event of any rights, privileges 
or concessions having been obtained for the benefit of the 
said proposed hydro-electric development otherwise than in
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the name of the said Beauharuois Light Heat and Power Com- onDis™very 
pany, the same shall be transferred to it upon the said Resolutory Agrfe^ent 
Condition taking effect, and upon the said Resolutory Clause |eto.elweezey 
taking effect any indebtedness of the Beauharnois Light Heat 
& Power Company created after the date hereof by the Purchaser 
or his assigns or nominees, shall be paid and discharged by the 

10 Purchaser.

14. All municipal and school taxes upon the properties 
hereby sold and the properties of the Beauharnois Light Heat 
and Power Company from the First of January, 1926, shall 
be borne by the Purchase-! 1 , and all prior taxes by the Yen- 
dors.

15. The charge of the Vendors' solicitor Henry N. Chau- 
vin, K. C., in connection with the present sale shall be paid by the 
Purchaser.

16. It is understood and agreed in regard to the- suit 
at law (Superior Court Montreal No. 2620) instituted by the 
Great Lakes & Atlantic Canal and Power Company Limited 
against the said William Henry Robert at al (which has been 
dismissed by judgment of the Superior Court of Montreal con- 
firmed by the Court of King's Bench, and is now in appeal to 
the Supreme Court of Canada) that if final judgment be ob- 

30 tained by the said Great Lakes and Atlantic Canal and Power 
Company Limited in its favour and the latter complete the pur­ 
chase from the Vendors referred to in such suit, the present sale 
shall be null and void to all intents and purposes and the Vendors 
shall forthwith repay to the Purchaser such of the price and 
consideration provided for in paragraph 8 hereof as may have 
been the-retofore paid and shall reimburse to the Purchase all 
moneys expended by it in payment of taxes on the properties 
hereby sold without any further liability on the part of the
Vendors. 

40
17. It is further agreed that in the event of the said 

Great Lakes & Atlantic Canal and Power Company Limited 
obtaining final judgment in its favour and completing the 
purchase as aforesaid, the Purchaser will not acquire direct­ 
ly or indirectly from the said Great Lakes and Atlantic Canal 
and Power Company Limited, the properties and rights so 
purchased by it unless he purchase from the Vendors at 
a price to be agreed upon such of the properties and rights
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hereby sold as are not comprised in the properties and rights on Discovery 
claimed by the said Great Lakes & Atlantic Canal and Power 
Company, Limited.

and
18. Any and all payments of the purchase price or 

consideration to be made by the Purchaser hereunder to or 
„ for the benefit or exoneration of the Vendors may be made <oontlnuea > 

to the said William Henry Robert on behalf of all the 
Vendors, or, if he be dead or otherwise incapable of receiving 
the same, then to the said National Trust Company, Li­ 
mited, on behalf of all the Vendors, and the receipt and dis­ 
charge the said William Henry Robert or the said National 
Trust Company Limited as the case may be, shall be a good and 
valid discharge to the Purchaser for such payment, and the Pur­ 
chaser shall not be obliged to se-e to the application of the 
moneys or other things so paid. The foregoing provision is a 

20 stipulation made by the Purchaser and is irrevocable without 
his consent.

19. Any and all payments of money to be made by 
the Purchaser to the Vendors or on their behalf may be made 
by accepted cheque instead of cash, at the Purchaser's op­ 
tion.

20. It is agreed by both parties that the present agree­ 
ment shall not be registered, and the Vendors undertake 
and agree at the expense of the Purchaser to execute and do 

<-™ at the request of the Purchaser all such further documents 
and things as may be necessary or useful to fully and effec­ 
tually carry out the intents and purposes of this agreement, 
or, subject to the terms hereof, to vest in the Purchaser 
the rights and properties aforesaid, including such notarial 
transfers as may be reasonably required by the said Pur­ 
chaser.

21. These presents shall apply to, enure to the benefit 
of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective 

40 heirs, administrators, successors and assigns.
22. Time shall be of the essence of this agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have 
executed these presents in quintuplicate at the place and 
on the date hereinabove firstly written.

Signed W. H. Robert,
Signed Hugh B. Griffith, " S. M. Robert,

J. A. Robert, 
R. O. Sweezey.
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Schedule "B" of No. 1. m m^«y
P.W.-l 

Agreement
Memorandum of Agreement made in quintriphcate at the |eto elweeze7 

City of Montreal in the Province of Quebec on the 3rd day of jJ"adr(lueMe 
February, One Thousand nine hundred and twenty-seven. corpo^ion

12 May 1927 
(continued)

10 BETWEEN:—

WILLIAM HENRY ROBERT formerly of the 
Town of Beauharnois, now of the said City of Montreal, 
JOSEPH ALFRED ROBERT of the City of Ottawa, 
Province of Ontario and Miss SARAH MARY ROBERT, 
fille majeure et usant de- ses droits of the said City of 
Montreal, as well personally as in their quality of Exe­ 
cutors and Executrix of the Last Will and Testament, and 
Codicil thereunto, of the late Dame Sarah Robert, in her 

20 life time widow of the late Joseph Bartholomew Robert, 
of the Town of Beauharnois, in the said Province, here­ 
inafter called the "Vendors";

Of the one Part; 
AND

ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY of the City of 
Westmount, in the said Province of Quebec, hereinafter 
called '' Purchaser'':

Of the second Part;
on A N D

NATIONAL TRUST COMPANY LIMITED, a 
corporation having its head office in the City of Toronto 
and an office in the City of Montreal, hereinafter called 
"Trustee"

Of the third Part, 
WITNESSETH:—

.WHEREAS the Vendors and the Purchaser have this day 
entered into an agreement of sale a copy of which is hereto an- 

40 nexed signed by all the parties hereto for identification: and

WHEREAS by paragraph 11 of the said Agreement of 
Sale it is declared that all the issued shares of the Capital Stock 
of Beauharnois Light Heat & Power Company have been trans­ 
ferred to the Trustee to be held and dealt with by it as Trustee as 
in the said Agreement of Sale provided; and

WHEREAS the said shares have been so transferred to the 
Trustee; and
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Whereas in paragraph 12 of the said Agreement of Sale on ™*<*™y 
provision is made for the delivery to the Trustee upon the hap- Agrfe-we-ni 
pening of certain events of $650 000 in face value of certain First |f5f|^eezer 
Mortgage Bonds to be held and dealt with by it as Trustee as in Madrquette 
the said Agreement of sale provided. corporation

12 May* 1927 
(continued)

10 NOW, THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT
WITNESSETH:—

1. The Trustee hereby acknowledges that Two Thousand 
shares of Beauharnois Light Heat & Power Company have been 
transferred to it by or on behalf of the said Vendors and it 
undertakes and agrees, subject however to the terms, provisions 
and conditions hereof, to hold and deal with the same as Trustee 
in accordance with the provisions of the said Agreement of
sale. 

20
2. The Trustee further agrees that if and when the said 

$650,000 face value of First Mortgage Bonds are delivered to it 
it will hold and deal with the same as Trustee in accordance 
with the terms, provisions and conditions of the said agreement 
of sale.

3. The Trustee may, in relation to these presents or any 
action to be taken hereunder, act upon the advice and opinion

,,Q of its own legal advisers, and shall be under no liability or 
obligation to any of the parties hereto by reason of its so doing, 
and the Trustee shall not be bound or obliged to take co­ 
gnizance of or act upon any default or other event or otherwise 
requiring action on its part unless evidence satisfactory to it 
or tts legal advisers is furnished of the existence of such default 
or the happenings of such other event, the whole without pre­ 
judice to the rights of the Vendors against the Purchaser or of 
the Purchaser against the Vendors under or arising out of the 
said agreement of sale.

40
4. The Vendors hereby warrant that the said Two Thou­ 

sand shares of Beauharnois Light Heat and Power Company 
constitute the whole of the issued Capital Stock of that Com­ 
pany, and that the same have been fully paid up are non-assess­ 
able, and they undertake and agree to hold the Trustee harmless 
against any and all liability as holder of the said stock.

5. The Purchaser undertakes and agrees to pay to the 
Trustee reasonable compensation for its services in exercising
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the trusts herein provided for and to reimburse to it upon demand on Discovery 
all expenditures or loss, costj, or damages incurred by it in con- Agrfê e-nt 
nection with the exercise of the said trusts, including any and all Beto e!weezey 
legal and notarial expenses. Madrquette

Investment 
Corporation

6. The Trustee shall give to the Purchaser or his assigns ' 
10 from time to time upon demand the necessary proxies -to enable 

the Purchaser or his assigns to vote the said shares of Beau- 
harriois Light Heat and Power Company at all meetings 
of shareholders of that Company for any and all purposes save 
those specially excepted in paragraph 11 of the said agreement 
of sale, and the Trustee shall from time to time upon 
demand at the instance of the Purchaser or his assigns allow 
the transfer of such of the said shares as may be necessary for 
the purpose of qualifying Directors of the said Beanharnois 
Light Heat and Power Company upon the execution of appro- 

-^ priate declarations of trust from the said transferees.

7. Any notifications or other communications to be given 
or made to the Vendors by the Trustee shall be deemed to be 
effectively given or made if given or made to them by registered 
letter addressed to them in care of W. H. Robert, 214 Bishop 
Street Montreal, or at such other place in lieu thereof as the 
Vendors or their assigns from time to time may notify in writing 
to the Trustee, and any notifications or other communications to 

30 he given or made to the Purchaser by the Trustee shall be deem­ 
ed to be effectively given or made if given or made to him by 
registered letter addressed to him at number 136 St. James 
Street, Montreal, or at such other place in lieu thereof as the 
Purchaser or his assigns from time to time may notify in writing 
to the Trustee.

8. All payments whether of money or otherwise which 
the Trustee may require to make to the Vendors under the terms 
hereof shall be made to them or to their order at the office of the 

40 Trustee in the City of Montreal.

9. The said shares of the Beauharnois Light Heat & 
Power Company (other than said qualifying shares) are regis­ 
tered on the books of said Company as follows "National Trust 
Company Limited as Trustee for W. H. Robert, J. A. Robert and 
Miss Sarah Mary Robert, personally and es qualite, and R. O. 
Sweezey, the parties to an agreement dated the third of Fe­ 
bruary, 1927." and upon the assignment or other transmission 
of the rights of any of the said parties, the Trustee shall on the
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request in writing of the representative of such party and such 
evidence of title as the Trustee may require, cause appropriate 
changes to be made in such registration.

In witness whereof the parties hereto have signed these 
presents in triplicate this Third day of February, One thousand 

10 nine hundred and twenty-seven.
Sg<l. W. H. Robert

S. M. Robert
J. A. Robert

R. O. Sweezey.
National Trust Company Limited, 

Sgd. J. M. Macdonell, 
Manager.

O. B. MacCallum,
2U Trust Officer. 

Witness:
Sgd. Hugh B. Griffith.
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P.W.-l 
Agreement 
between 
B. O. Sweezey 
and
Marquette 
Investment 
Corporation 
12 May 1927 

(continued)

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-W-2 IN WARRANTY 
ON DISCOVERY.

Copy of agreement No. 2. between P. 0. Stveezeij and 
JJQ Marquette Investment Corporation.

(Syndicate Agreement.)

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT made in duplicate 
at the City of Montreal in the Province of Quebec as of the 
twelfth day of May, One thousand nine hundred and twenty- 
seven :

By and Between:—

40 ROBERT OLIVER SWEEZEY of the City of West- 
mount in the Province of Quebec, hereinafter referred to as 
"Sweezey",

Party of the First Part; 
And:
MARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION, com­ 

pany fully incorporated by Letters Patent of the Province of 
Quebec, hereinafter called the "Depositary";

Party of the Second Part;

p.w,a
R. O. Sweezev 
and
investment
Corporation12 May 192?
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WHEREAS by a Memorandum of Agreement bearing even 
date herewith (a copy of which together with copies of the Sclie- 
dule therein referred to are annexed as Schedule "X" to these 
presents) Sweezey has transferred to the Depositary all his j™adr 
rights and interests in and to and arising out of two agree- " 
merits therein referred to, and in and to the assets and things 

10 covered by the said two agreements, which said rights and in­ 
terests are hereinafter referred to as "the rights and interests 
transferred"; and

WHEREAS "the rights and interests transferred" have 
been so transferred to the Depositary to be held by it in trust 
for the purposes and upon and subject to all the trusts, provi­ 
sions and conditions in these presents set out ;

NOW, THEREFORE, THESE PRESENTS WIT- 
20 NESS AS FOLLOWS:—

1. "The rights and interests transferred" shall be held 
and dealt with by the Depositary in trust for and on behalf of 
the Syndicate hereinafter mentioned, and upon and subject to 
all the trusts, provisions and conditions of these presents.

2. Any and all other property, money, assets or rights 
of whatsoever nature which may hereafter be transferred to or 

30 placed in the custody of the Depositary by or on behalf of the 
said Syndicate shall be held and dealt with by the Depositary 
in trust for and on behalf of the said Syndicate and upon and 
subject to all the trusts provisions and conditions of these pre­ 
sents.

3. The Syndicate shall be known as "The Beauhar- 
nois Syndicate" and shall consist of Sweezey, together with the 
other persons hereinafter nominated as Syndicate Managers 
and such other persons as shall from time to time be admitted 

•10 to membership therein by the Syndicate Managers in accordance 
with the Provisions hereof and of the By-Laws hereinafter pro­ 
vided for.

4. The purposes for which the Syndicate has been or­ 
ganized are all or any of the following, namely:

(a) To acquire, hold, use, administer, develop, improve, 
turn to account, grant leases of, sell, exchange, mortgage, hypo­ 
thecate, pledge or otherwise dispose of or deal with, in whole or 
in part, "the rights and interests transferred";
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(b) To acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise, hold, onDla!!very 
use, administer, develop, improve, turn to account, grant Agrfenfent 
leases of, sell, exchange, mortgage, hypothecate, pledge org0 
otherwise dispose of or deal with any other property, rights Madrquette 
and concessions, and in particular any property, rights and 
concessions which may be necessary or useful for the develop- 

10 ment of the water powers existing by reason of the difference in 
level between Lake St. Francis arid Lake St. Louis;

(c) To develop or cause to be developed the water 
powers existing by reason of the difference in level between 
Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis;

(d) To promote or cause to be promoted, contribute to, 
subsidize or otherwise assist, any companies, syndicates or 
enterprises for the purpose of doing or causing to be, done 

20 any of the above things, or carrying on or proposing to carry 
011 any business or enterprise similar to that of the Syndicate 
or capable of being conducted so as directly or indirectly to 
benefit the Syndicate, and to subscribe, take, acquire, pay 
for, hold, sell or otherwise dispose of or deal in any shares 
or interests in or securities of such companies syndicates or 
enterprises;

(e) To subscribe for, take, acquire, pay for, hold,
^Q sell or otherwise dispose of or deal in such shares, interests

in or securities of any company, syndicate, partnership, firm
or undertakings as the Board of Syndicate Managers may deem
expedient or useful;

(f) To employ engineers, architects, appraisers and 
other experts to investigate, examine into and report upon 
any undertaking, project, proposal, property or rights of any 
kind, and the condition, prospects, value and character of the 
same; 

40
(g) To invest money at interest on the security of pro­ 

perty, moveable or immoveable and generally to lend and ad­ 
vance money to such persons and upon such terms and subject 
to such conditions as may be deemed expedient;

(h) To receive money or deposit at interest or other­ 
wise, and to advance and lend money and assets of all kinds upon 
such terms as may be arranged;
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(i) To take part in the management, super vision or on Discovery 
control of the business or operations of any company or under- 
taking, and for that purpose to appoint and remunerate any R°-0 
directors, accountants or other experts or agents; Madr4uette

Investment 
Corporation

(j) To apply for, purchase or otherwise acquire, any 
10 trade marks, trade names, patents, licenses, concessions and 

the like, conferring any exclusive or non-exclusive or limited 
or unlimited right to use, or any secret or other information 
as to, any invention formula, recipe or process, which may seem 
capable of being used for any of the purposes of the Syndicate, 
or the acquisition of which may seem calculated, directly or 
indirectly, to benefit the Syndicate, and to use, exercise, de­ 
velop or grant licenses in respect of, or otherwise turn to ac­ 
count the property, rights or information so acquired;

20 (k) To enter into partnership, or into any arrange­ 
ment for sharing of profits or expense, union of interests, 
co-operation, joint adventure, reciprocal concession, or make 
other working arrangements with any person, company or enter­ 
prise carrying on any business similar to that which the 
Syndicate is organized to carry on, or business capable of 
being conducted so as directly or indirectly t o benefit the 
Syndicate, and to manage, operate and carry on the property, 
undertakings and affairs of any such business and to acquire the

3Q same, including its goodwill rights, liabilities and other accesso­ 
ries by purchase, lease or otherwise;

( 1 ) To issue, allot and deliver as fully paid up 
and non-assessable, or partly paid up, the part-interest of the 
Syndicate in payment or part payment of any securities, 
rights or things that it can acquire, or in payment or part 
payment for any services rendered to the Syndicate, whether 
in connection with the promotion and organization of its 
business or otherwise, or in or towards the payment or sa- 

40 tisfactioii of debts and liabilities owing by the Syndicate;

(m) To sell, lease, or otherwise dispose of or deal with 
the whole or any part of the undertaking of the Syndicate and 
of its assets and goodwill and rights and obligations of any kind, 
for such consideration as the Syndicate Managers may think fit, 
including shares, debentures and other securities of any corpo­ 
ration, and to distribute among its members any such securities 
or other consideration so received;
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(n) To acquire the goodwill, property, rights and assets, onl)is!!very 
either with or without assuming the liabilities of any person, Ag 
firm, corporation or enterprise, capable of being conducted so s° 
as directly or indirectly to benefit the Syndicate, or possessed 
of property suitable for the Syndicate, and to pay for the same 
in cash or in fully paid up and non-assessable' or in partly paid 

10 part-interests or securities of the Syndicate or otherwise;

(o) To make advances to or guarantee the obligations or 
contracts of or otherwise assist in any manner any company whose 
shares of capital stock, bonds or other obligations are held in 
whole or in part by the Syndicate, and to do any act or thing 
for the preservation, improvement or enhancement of the value 
of any such shares, bonds or obligations; and in like manner to 
advance money to or guarantee the contracts of or otherwise 
assist any person, firm or company having business engagements 

20 with the Syndicate or indebted to it ;

(p) To lend money to persons or companies having deal­ 
ings with the Syndicate and to invest and deal with any funds or 
assets not immediately required for the purposes of the Syndi­ 
cate as may be deemed expedient ;

(q) To enter into any arrangement with any authority or 
government, municipal, local or otherwise, that may seem con- 

OA ducive to the objects of the Syndicate, or any of them, and to ob­ 
tain from any such authority or government any rights, privi­ 
leges, concessions, subsidies or other benefits which it may seem 
desirable to obtain, and to carry out or exercise and comply with 
any such arrangements rights and benefits;

(r) To carry on any other business which may seern to
the Syndicate Managers capable of being conveniently carried
on in connection with its business, or calculated directly or in­
directly to enhance the value of or render profitable any of the

40 property or rights of the Syndicate ;

(s) To distribute amongst the Members of the Syndicate 
and other persons entitled thereto in kind any property of the 
Syndicate, and in particular any shares, debentures or securities 
which the Syndicate may have power to dispose of;

(t) To pay all costs incidental to or in connection with 
the formation and organization of the Syndicate, and to do all
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the above objects, and to promote any company or companies 
for the purpose of acquiring any or all of the undertakings, as- B0b2 
sets, rights or liabilities of the Syndicate, or for any other pur- j£adrquette 
poses which may seem calculated to benefit the Syndicate; Sil^StSn

12 May 1927 
(continued)

10 (u) To do all or any of the above things as principals 
agents, contractors, managers, supervisors or otherwise and by 
or through trustees or agents, or any corporation or other syn­ 
dicates, or otherwise, and either alone or in conjunction with 
others, and to do all such things as may be incidental or con­ 
ducive to the attainment of the above objects;

(v) Such other purposes as may from time to time be 
decided upon by the Board of Syndicate Managers, provided the 
same be approved by the holders of a majority in number of the 

2® outstanding part-interests of the Syndicate.

5. (a) The capital of the Syndicate shall be divided 
into not more than four thousand (4,000) part-interests with­ 
out nominal value, provided, however, that the maximum number 
of part-interests into which the capital may be divided may be 
increased from time to time to not more than five thonsand 
(5,000) part-interests by the Board of Syndicate Managers;

OQ (b) Each part-interest shall be equal to every other 
part-interest. At all meetings of members of the Syndicate 
each member shall have one vote for each part-interest held by 
him;

(c) Part-interests may be allotted by the Board of 
Syndicate Managers from time to time as they deem expe­ 
dient and for such consideration as they deem appropriate, 
and either as fully paid up or subject to subsequent calls there­ 
on; 

40
(d) Part-interest shall be transferable only on the 

books of the Syndicate by the registered holder thereof, or by 
duly authorized attorney, provided, however that no transfer of 
any part-interest shall haATe any effect unless and until 
permitted or approved by the Board of Syndicate Managers, 
who need not give any reason for refusal of such permission or 
approval and shall be free to exercise their unfettered discretion 
in this connection it being hereby undertood and declared that 
the undertaking of the Syndicate is of such a nature that the
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character and identity of the various members thereof is Of on Dis^very 
vital importance to the successful carrying out of such under- Agrfe-wen?
folHno1 - No. 2 between 
Idivlllg , E 0 Sweezev

and 
Marquette

(e) The Depositary shall be the Transfer Agent and S£££™» 
Registrar of part-interests of the Syndicate, and there shall "c^S 

10 be kept by the Depositary on .behalf of the Syndicate a book or 
books wherein shall be kept and recorded;

i. the names alphabetically arranged of all persons 
who are or have been members;

ii. the address and calling of every such person while 
a member;

iii. the number of part-interests held by each member;
iv. the amounts paid in and remaining unpaid respectiv- 

20 ely on the part-interests of each member;
v. all transfers of part-interests in their order as 

presented to the Depositary for entry, with the 
date and other particulars of each transfers and 
the date of entry thereof; and

vi. the names, addresses and callings of all persons who 
are or have been Syndicate Managers, with the 
several dates at which each became or ceased to be 

^Q a Syndicate Manager;
Such book or books during reasonable business hours of every 
day, except Sundays and holidays, shall be kept open for the 
inspection of members of the Syndicate and their personal re­ 
presentatives at the office of the Depositary;

(f) Certificates representing the issued fully paid part- 
interests in the Syndicate shall be issued to the holders of such 
part-interests by the Depositary on behalf of the Syndicate, and 

4(~i the Depositary may decline to register any transfer of the part- 
interests represented by any certificate unless such certificate be 
surrendered to it;

(g) No transfer of any part-interest shall be valid for 
any purpose whatsoever until entry thereof has been duly made 
in the transfer book kept by the Depositary, except for the pur­ 
pose of exhibiting the rights of parties thereto towards each 
other;
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6. The chief place of business of the Syndicate shall be « 
maintained at the office of tlie Depositary, and the Syndicate p.w.-z 
may maintain such other places of business as the Board of Syn-
V j. TIT 11-11 R.O. Sweezeydicate Managers may deem advisable. and

0 J Marquette
Investment

7. (a) The property, rights, affairs and concerns of i^May °927 
10 the Syndicate shall be managed and controlled by a Board of contnue > 

five Syndicate Managers, but the number of Syndicate Managers 
may from time to time be decreased to not less than three, or 
increased, provided such decrease or increase receive the approv­ 
al of members holding a majority in number of the then out­ 
standing part-interests ;

(1)) No person (other than those nominated by sub­ 
section (c) hereof to be the first Syndicate Managers) shall be 
qualified to be elected, or appointed or to act as a Syndicate 
Manager unless he be a member of the Syndicate holding at least 
one part-interest therein ;

(c) The said Sweezev and Henry Newman and Robert 
W. Steele both of the City of Westmounf and Hugh B. Griffith 
and William H. Robert both of the City of Montreal shall be the 
first Syndicate Managers until replaced by others duly appointed 
in their stead ;

30 (d) The said Sweezey, Newman and Griffith are hereby 
acknowledged and declared to be directors and shareholders of 
and financially interested in Newman, Sweezey & Company . 
Limited and it is understood and agreed that the said Sweezey, 
Newman and Griffith shall not nor shall any of them be account­ 
able to the Syndicate nor to any of the members thereof for or in 
respect of any profits which they or any of them may make 
through their or his interest in Newman, Sweezey & Company 
Limited arising out of contracts or dealings which said New- 
man, Sweezey & Company Limited may now or hereafter have

40 with the Syndicate, nor shall the said Newman, Sweezey & Com­ 
pany Limited be accountable for any profits which it may make 
arising out of any such contracts or dealings.

The said Steele is hereby acknowledged and declared to 
be a director and shareholder of and financially interested in 
The Dominion Securities Corporation Limited and it is under­ 
stood and agreed that the said Steele shall not be accountable 
to the Syndicate nor to any of the members thereof for or in
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respect of any profits which he may make through his interest in on Discovery 
said The Dominion Securities Corporation Limited arising out Agrfe- ênf 
of contracts or dealings which said The Dominion Securities gVlweeze 
Corporation Limited may now or hereafter have with the Syn- âdrquette 
dicate nor shall the said The Dominion Securities Corporation g^ 
Limited be accountable for any profits which it may make arising 12(c 

10 out of any such contracts or dealing.

The said Robert is hereby acknowledged and declared to 
be interested in the "rights and interests transferred" in that 
he is one of the vendors thereof to the said Sweezey and it is 
understood and agreed that the said Robert shall not be account­ 
able to the Syndicate nor to any of the members thereof for or 
in respect of any profits which he may make through his inte­ 
rest in the "rights and interests transferred" or the purchase
price thereof; 

Ad
(e) The Syndicate Managers shall be elected by the 

members in general meeting at such times, in such manner and 
for such terms as the By-laws of the Syndicate from time to time 
prescribe. If at any time an election of Syndicate Managers is 
not made or does not take effect at the proper time, such election 
may take place at any subsequent special general meeting of the 
members of the Syndicate called for the purpose, and the re­ 
tiring Syndicate Managers shall continue in office until their 

30 successors are elected;

(f) Every Syndicate Manager and his heirs, executors 
administrators and estate and effects respectively, shall be 
indemnified and saved harmless out of the funds of the Syndi­ 
cate from and against all costs, charges and expo-uses whatsoever 
which such Syndicate Manager sustains or incurs in or about 
any action, suit or proceeding which is brought, commenced 
or prosecuted against him for or in respect of any act, deed, 
matter or thing whatsoever, made, done or permitted by him in 

40 or about the execution of the duties of his office; and also 
from and against all other costs, charges and expenses which 
he sustains or incurs in or about , or in relation to the affairs 
thereof, except such costs, charges or expenses as are occasioned 
by his own wilful neglect or default.

(g) Any member of the Syndicate or person owning a part- 
interest may contract or deal in his own right, or be interested 
in a firm or company which contracts or deals with the Syndi-
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cate, without being responsible to the Syndicate for any profits on Discovery 
made by so doing. Agreement

No. 2 between 
E. O. Sweezey

(h) Any Syndicate Manager may contract or deal in his Madr(luet;te 
own right, or be interested in a firm or company which contracts " 
or deals with the Syndicate and if disclosure is made in writing 

10 to the Syndicate Managers of such separate interest (without it 
being necessary to disclose the nature or extent of such interest) 
neither he nor such firm or company shall be responsible to the 
Syndicate for any profits made by him or such firm or company 
as a result of such contract or dealing.

8. The Board of Syndicate Managers shall in all things 
administer, manage and control the property, rights, affairs, 
concerns, business and undertaking of the Syndicate, and make 
or cause to be made for the Syndicate any description of contract 
which the Syndicate may by law enter into, and do or cause to 
be done anything which the Syndicate as a whole can do, or cause 
to be done, the whole however subject to the restrictions and 
provisions contained in Article 9. hereof.

9. The Board of Syndicate Managers may borrow money 
for and incur liabilities on behalf of the Syndicate upon such 
terms and conditions as they deem expedient, provided however 
that 110 loans may be effected nor other liabilities incurred except 

30 upon the condition assented to by the creditors of sucii loans or 
other liabilities that neither the Syndicate Managers nor any 
other members of the Syndicate shall be personally liable for the 
repayment of such loans or liabilities, and that the creditors of 
such loans or liabilities shall be entitled to look only to the assess 
of the Syndicate, or the proceeds thereof, for repayment. No­ 
thing herein contained, however, shall be construed so as to prev­ 
ent any member of the Syndicate who is willing to do so, from 
personally guaranteeing or rendering himself liable for the re­ 
payment of any loan or other liability of the Syndicate.

10. The Board of Syndicate Managers may, from time 
to time, in their discretion distribute among the members of the 
Syndicate (pro rata in accordance with their respective hold­ 
ings of part-interest) the profits and other assets of the Syn­ 
dicate.

11. The Depositary shall deal with all the property, 
rights and assets of the Syndicate from time to time in its
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custody in accordance with the orders and instructions of the on Dis!!very 
Board of' Syndicate Managers provided tuat in all cases in which j^^me^t 
the Depositary is ordered or instructed by the Board of Syndicate ^b2 !^" 
Managers to do in respect of such property, rights and assets, MaVette 
or any part of them, anything which under the provisions hereof c«potr1afion 
requires the approval of any proportion of the members of the 1 %0In 

10 Syndicate, then the Depositary before doing such things shall 
require evidence satisfactory to it that such approval has been 
obtained.

12. (a) The reasonable remuneration of the Depositary 
for its services, whether rendered under or as a result of this 
agreement, or in connection with any of the property, rights and 
assets of the Syndicate from time to time in the custody of the 
Depositary, and all expenditures and liabilities made or incurred

r>Q by the Depositary under or as a result of this agreement, or in 
connection with such property, rights and assets, shall be paid by 
the Syndicate together with interest at the rate of six per-eeut. 
(6%) per annum on the amount of such remuneration and ex­ 
penditures from the date when such remuneration shall be pay­ 
able, or from the date of such expenditures, and such remunera­ 
tion, expenditures and liabilities shall be a first charge or lien 
upon the property, rights and assets from time to time in the 
custody of the Depositary, and the Depositary shall have the right 
to retain such property, rights and assets until payment of such

30 remuneration, expenditures and liabilities. The Depositary shall 
be entitled to apply any moneys of the Syndicate from time to 
time in its hands towards the payment of such remuneration 
expenditures and liabilities.

(b) The Depositary, in relation to these presents, or hi 
respect of any matter or thing arising out of these pre­ 
sents, may act en the opinion or advice of or information 
obtained from any lawyer, valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, 

.,, or other expert, employed in good faith by it, and shall not 
be responsible for any loss occasioned by acting or not acting 
thereon, and shall be entitled to take legal or other advice and 
employ such assistance as may be necessary to the proper 
discharge of its duties, and to pay proper and reasonable com­ 
pensation for all such legal and other advice or assistance as 
aforesaid.

(c) Any such advice, opinion or information may be 
sent or obtained by letter, telegram or cablegram, or otherwise,
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and the Depositary shall not be liable for acting on any advice, 
opinion or information purporting to be conveyed by any such Agrfenfent 
letter, telegram or cablegram, or otherwise, although the same R°b2 
containing some error or shall not be authentic.

(d) The Depositary shall be at liberty to place all 
10 bonds, stocks, share certificates, debentures or other' secu'r- 

ities or deeds or other documents of title, or records, from 
time to time placed in its custody, in any safe or receptacle 
selected by the Depositary, or with any bank or banking com­ 
pany, or with any lawyer or firm of good repute, or any cus­ 
todian in any part of the World, and the Depositary shall not be 
responsible for any loss incurred as a result of so doing, and 
the Depositary may pay all sums required to be paid in this 
connection.

90 (e) The Depositary shall not be responsible for any
misconduct on the part of any attorney, banker, lawyer, agent 
or other person appointed by it hereunder or bound to supervise 
the proceedings of any such appointee.

(f) The Depositary shall not be required to give 
security for its conduct or administration and shall not be 
responsible for the acts, omissions, defaults, errors, fraud, 
fault or misconduct of any agents whom it may in good faith 

30 employ in the exercise of the powers or duties conferred upon 
it hereunder nor for loss occasioned by its own acts, omissions 
or defaults, unless such acts, omissions or defaults constitute a 
breach of trust knowingly and intentionally committed by the 
Depositary.

(g) The authenticity of all acts, requests, resolutions 
and directions of the Syndicate and /or of the Board of 
Syndicate Managers and / or of any officer or officers of the 
Syndicate shall be deemed for the protection of the Deposit- 

40 ary to be conclusively proven by a certificate signed by any person 
being, or by the Depositary believed to be, a Syndicate Manager 
or officer of the Syndicate.

13. The Depositary may resign as Depositary hereunder 
by giving notice in writing to the Board of Syndicate Managers 
of its intention so to do and such resignation shall take effect 
thirty (30) days after the delivery of such notice to the Board, 
or on such earlier date as a successor Depositary shall be ap­ 
pointed as hereinafter provided.
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14. The Depositary may be removed from office here- onDis^very 
under by a resolution approved by the votes of members holding 
a majority of the issued part-interests of the Syndicate. S°

and 
Marquette

15. In the event of the resignation or removal of the 
Depositary from office hereunder a successor Depositary 

10 (which shall be an incorporated company) shall be appointed 
by the members of the Syndicate in general meeting assembled 
and upon such appointment being made all the powers, duties, 
liabilities and functions of the Depositary hereunder shall 
vest in and become incumbent upon the successor Depositary to 
all intents and purposes and all the property, rights and assets 
in the custody of the Depositary shall be placed in the custody 
of the successor.

16. The By-laws set out in Schedule "Y" hereto annexed 
20 shall be the By-laws of the Syndicate. Such By-laws, and any 

other By-laws which may hereafter come into force and effect, 
may be added to, amended, repealed or re-enacted at any time 
by resolution passed at a general meeting of members called 
for the purpose, or by resolution passed at a meeting of the 
Board of Syndicate Managers, but any addition, amendment 
repeal or re-enactment made by the Syndicate Managers shall 
only have force and effect until the next annual general 
meeting of members of the Syndicate, or until a special 

<^Q general meeting of members of the Syndicate called during the 
interval for the purpose of confirming the same, and in default 
of confirmation at such annual or special general meeting, any 
such addition, amendment, repeal or re-enactment shall have no 
force or effect thereafter.

17. It is understood and agreed that in consideration of 
the transfer to the Depositary by Sweezey of the rights and in­ 
terest transferred—

40 (a) Sweezey shall be entitled to receive forthwith as 
fully paid up and non-assessable Six Hundred (600) part-in­ 
terests of the Syndicate;

(b) Messrs. Newman, Sweezey & Co., Limited and 
Dominion Securities Corporation Limited shall jointly have the 
right to subscribe or procure subscribers for or underwrite any 
and all bonds, debentures, shares and other securities which may 
hereafter be issued by Beauharnois Light Heat and Power 
Company or any other company promoted by, or directly or
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indirectly controlled by or for the Syndicate, at fair and on Discovery 
reasonable prices for such securities, having in view the market 
conditions prevailing at the time of such issue. R0

and 
Marquette

18. This agreement may be modified, amended or added 
to in any manner and to such effect as may be approved by the

10 members of the Syndicate holding a majority of the outstanding 
part-interests of the Syndicate, but no change or modification of 
the Depositary, including its remuneration and compensation, 
shall be made without its, the Depositary's, express written 
consent, and no change or modification shall be made to the 
provisions of sub-paragraph (c) of paragraph 17 hereof without 
the express written consent of the said Newman, Sweezey & Co., 
Limited and the said Dominion Securities Corporation Limited. 
All modifications, amendments or additions to this agreement 
approved by a majority of the members of the Syndicate shall

^ be notified to the Depositary forthwith.

19. This agreement shall continue in full force and effect 
until all the assets of the Syndicate shall have been distributed or 
otherwise disposed of.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have exe­ 
cuted these presents as of the date firstly above written.

30 IN THE PRESENCE OP :—
R. O. Sweezey. 

H. M. Knight.
Marquette Investment Corporation,

By M. W. Steele 
Hugh B. Griffith. 

(SEAL).

40 SCHEDULE "Y".

THE BEAUHARNOIS SYNDICATE. 
BY-LAWS.

Fiscal year. BY-LAW No. 1.

The fiscal year of the Syndicate will end on the 
thirty-first day of December in each year, but the 
first fiscal year shall end on the thirty-first day
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General Meet­ 
ings of 
members.

30

40

of December 1928 and shall comprise the period 
between the twelfth day of May 1927 and the 
thirty-first day of December 1928.

BY-LAW No. 2.

(a) The annual general meeting of the members 
of the Syndicate shall be held at such time, on such 
date not more than three months after the end of 
each fiscal year commencing with the fiscal year 
ending on the thirty-first day of December 1928 as 
the Syndicate Managers may determine, at the 
chief place of business of the Syndicate, or at 
such other place in Canada as the Syndicate 
Managers may determine.

Special gener- (b) Special general meetings may be called at 
al meetings. any time by the President or on resolution of the 

Board of Syndicate Managers, and must be called 
upon written request representing at least one- 
fourth of the outstanding part-interests of the 
Syndicate, and shall be held at the chief place of 
business of the Syndicate or at such other place as 
may be fixed by the notice calling the same.

Notices. (c) Notices of general meetings (whether an­ 
nual or special) shall indicate the time and place 
of the meeting, and shall be given by letter mailed 
to each member at least ten days before the date 
of the meeting to the address shown on the books 
of the Syndicate, or to the last known address, and 
it shall not be necessary to register such letters nor 
to make any newspaper or other publication of the 
notice. Notices of special general meetings must 
specify the business to be transacted thereat, and 
no other business shall be transacted thereat with­ 
out the unanimous consent of all the members of 
the Syndicate.

Quorum. (d) The quorum at any general meeting of mem­ 
bers shall be a representation personally or by 
proxy of a majority of the issued part-interests of 
the Syndicate, provided there be at least two mem­ 
bers entitled to vote present in person. At any 
meeting which is attended by less than a quorum,
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Exhibit 
in Warranty 
on Discovery

P.W.-2 
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(continued)
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10
Proxies

20 Casting Vote.

Officers of 
meetings.

30

Waivers.

40 Minutes of 
meetings.

Decision of 
members.

a majority of the part-interests represented may 
adjourn the meeting for a period of not more than 
thirty days without further notice, and if a quo­ 
rum be represented at such adjourned meeting, 
any business can then be transacted which could 
have been transacted at the meeting as originally 
called.

(e) Each member may vote either in person or 
by written proxy. No person shall act as proxy un­ 
less he is a member entitled to vote, but persons 
not members may be appointed to represent cor­ 
porations holding part-interests in the Syndicate 
and to vote on such part-interests for such corpo­ 
rations.

(f) In case of a tie the Chairman of the Meeting- 
shall have a casting vote in addition to such other 
votes as he may have as a member.

(g) The President, or in his absence a Vice-Presi­ 
dent (in order of seniority), or in the absence of 
any Vice-President, the chairman chosen by the 
meeting, shall preside at all meetings of members 
of the Syndicate and of Syndicate Managers. The 
Secretary of the Syndicate, or in his absence, such 
person as is chosen by the presiding officer, shall 
act as secretary of all meetings of members and of 
Syndicate Managers.

(h) A written waiver of notice of any meeting 
or of the purposes of any meeting, whether signed 
before, at or after the meeting, shall lie effective 
as due notice of that meeting to all intents and 
purposes to the persons executing such waiver.

(i) Minutes shall be kept of the proceedings at 
each meeting of members and shall be signed by 
the Chairman and Secretary of the meeting, and 
such minutes when so signed shall be conclusive 
proof of the proceedings at that meeting.

(j) Except where otherwise provided in the 
agreement constituting and governing the Syndi­ 
cate, all questions which it is required or desired 
should be decided by members of the Syndicate
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169 —

shall be decided by a majority of votes cast at 
any general meeting of members at which a quo­ 
rum is present, but any consent, approval or other 
ing of a general meeting provided such consent, 
approval or other decision is evidenced by a 
written instrument or instruments signed by all 

10 the members of the Syndicate.
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(continued)

Syndicate 
Managers.

Election and 
removal.

BY-LAW No. 3.

Meetings of 
Syndicate 

30 Managers.

(a) The Board of Syndicate Managers shall be 
elected at each annual general meeting of mem­ 
bers to hold office for one year or until their suc­ 
cessors are elected. The first Syndicate Managers 
named in the agreement constituting and govern- 

20 ing the Syndicate shall hold office until the first 
Annual General Meeting. Any Syndicate Man­ 
ager may be removed from office at any time upon 
a resolution of the members at a general meeting, 
and a successor may be elected by the members 
at a general meeting. Elections of Managers do 
not need to be by ballot.

(b) Meetings of Syndicate Managers shall be 
held at such times and places as may be deemed 
convenient and may be called by the President or 
Vice-President, or by a majority of the Syndicate 
Managers then in office, but a meeting shall ne 
held immediately after each annual general meet­ 
ing of members at which the officers of the Syn­ 
dicate will be elected for the ensuing year, or until 
their successors are elected.

Notices. (c) Notices of meetings of Syndicate Managers 
shall be given by letter posted at least one day be- 

40 fore such meeting, but when it is deemed to be 
urgent the Syndicate Managers may be summoned 
at any time before the meeting by telegram or te­ 
lephone, or in any other practicable manner. No 
notice is necessary for the meeting of Syndicate 
Managers to be held immediately after each an­ 
nual general meeting of members.

Voting Power, (d) Syndicate Managers can only vote in per­ 
son and each Syndicate Manager will have one
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vote without reference to the number of part- in- on Discovery 
terests which he holds. The Chairman shall both
have the right to vote as a Syndicate Manager and No- 2 net-ween

i n 1 i j.' j. • r? ,• B. O. Sweezey
shall also have a casting vote in case of a tie. »nd

n Marquette
Investment

Quorum. (e) The quorum for meetings of Syndicate iS'May 1927 
10 Managers shall be three Syndicate Managers. (continued)

Written notes. (£) Any Syndicate Manager's vote may be ob­ 
tained in writing over his signature before or after 
the meeting, or (if unanimous) without any meet­ 
ing being called, and shall then be valid and ef­ 
fective to all intents and purposes.

Waivers (g) A written waiver of notice of any meeting 
or of the purposes of the meeting, whether signed 

20 before, at or after the meeting, shall be effective 
as due notice of that meeting to all intents and 
purposes to the Syndicate Managers executing the 
same.

Vacancies. (h) Any vacancy or vacancies occurring on the 
Board of Syndicate Managers, whether by death, 
disqualification, retirement or otherwise, may be 
filled for the remainder of the term by a majority 
of the Syndicate Managers still in office, whether 

30 such majority constitute a quorum of the Syndi­ 
cate Managers or not.

Remuneration, (i) The members shall decide from time to time 
the remuneration (if any) of the Syndicate Man­ 
agers.

Officers. BY-LAW No. 4.

Election. (a) The Syndicate Managers, after each annual 
40 meeting of members, shall elect the officers of the 

Syndicate for the ensuing year, or until their suc­ 
cessors are elected, but any officer may at any 
time be removed from office by a vote of the mem­ 
bers at a general meeting and a successor may be 
elected by a vote of the members at a general meet­ 
ing.

Personnel. (b) The officers of the Syndicate shall be a Pre­ 
sident who must be a member and a Syndicate 
Manager, and a Secretary and a Treasurer, neither



— 171 —

of whom need be a member or a Syndicate Man­ 
ager, and one or more Vice-Presidents may be 
elected from amongst the Syndicate Managers, 
and any two of these offices (except the offices of 
President and Vice-President) may be held by 
one and the same person. The Syndicate Man- 

;[0 agers may also appoint such other officers and 
assistants as they deem expedient and may confer 
upon such officers such powers and allot to them 
such duties as the Syndicate Managers consider 
advisable.

President. (c) The President shall preside at all meetings
of members and of Syndicate Managers, and shall
perform all the duties which would be incidental to
the office of President of an incorporated com-

20 pany.

Vice- (d) The Vice-President, or Vice-Presidents, if 
President. elected, shall ( in the order of seniority if there 

be more than one) perform all the duties of the of­ 
fice of President whenever the President is ab­ 
sent or for any reason unable to act as President.

Secretary. (e) The Secretary shall keep proper records of 
all meetings of members and of Syndicate Man- 

30 agers and shall have charge of all the books and 
records of the Syndicate (except insofar as the 
Syndicate Managers may otherwise arrange), and 
shall give notice of all meetings of members and 
of Syndicate Managers, and shall attend to snch 
other duties as may lie assigned to him by the 
Syndicate Managers from time to time.

Treasurer. (f) The Treasurer shall have charge of all mo­ 
neys and securities of the Syndicate (except inso- 

40 far as the Syndicate Managers may otherwise ar­ 
range), and shall keep full and accurate accounts 
of all receipts and disbursemnts and shall attend 
to such other duties as may be assigned to him by 
the Syndicate Managers from time to time.

Vacancies. (g) Any vacancy or vacancies occurring among 
the officers mav be filled by the Syndicate Man­ 
agers for the balance of the term.
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Remuneration, (h) The Syndicate Managers shall decide from 
time to time what remuneration (if any) the var­ 
ious officers shall receive as such.

Capital of the BY-LAW No. 5. 
Syndicate.

10
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(continued)

Certificates. (a) Certificates for part-interests shall he in such 
form as the Syndicate Managers may determine 
and shall he signed by the President or a Vice-Pre­ 
sident and the Secretary or the Treasurer, and the 
Syndicate Managers may by resolution authorize 
any Syndicate Manager to sign in place of any of 
the said officers.

Transfers of (b) The part-interest transfer books may be 
20 part-interests, closed before meetings of members and before 

payment of dividends, for such periods and after 
such notice as may from time to time be determin­ 
ed by the Syndicate Managers.

Bills of 
Exchange.

30

Auditors.

BY-LAW No. 6.

All promissory notes and all cheques and other 
bills of exchange to be signed, drawn, accepted or 
endorsed by or on behalf of the Syndicate shall be 
signed, drawn, accepted or endorsed by such per­ 
son or persons as may from time to time be au­ 
thorized by resolution of the Board of Syndicate 
Managers, whether the persons so authorized be 
officers or Syndicate Managers or not, but any bills 
of exchange may be endorsed for collection or for 
deposit on account of or to the credit of the Syn­ 
dicate by means of a rubber stamp, or in any other 
convenient way, the whole however subject to the 
limitation and restrictions set out in Article 9. of 
the agreement constituting and governing the 
Syndicate.

BY-LAW No. 7.

An auditor or auditors of the affairs of the Syn­ 
dicate shall be appointed at each annual general 
meeting of members to hold office until the next 
annual general meeting, and an auditor or audi­ 
tors to hold office until the first annual general



— 173 —
Plaintiff's 
Exhibit 

. . T m T • , i -, i in Warrantymeeting shall be appointed as soon as practicable on Discovery 
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the Syndicate Managers. No Syndicate Manager NO. 2 between 
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-,., TTrn •' !,*• „[.. nMarquetteditor. When any vacancy occurs in the office of investment 
auditor before the end of the term, that vacancy i^May* 1927 
may be filled by the Syndicate Managers for the (continued) 
balance of the term, but while any such vacancy 
continues the remaining auditor or auditors, if 
any, shall continue to act.

This is Schedule "Y" referred to in the annexed agree­ 
ment between Robert Oliver Sweezey and others and Marquette 
Investment Corporation.
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Copy of letter 
from

20 PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-2

Copy of letter from the Defendant to the late
C. Winfield B. Sifton. f •««« 1M7

Letterhead of
NEWMAN, SWEEZEY & COMPANY, LIMITED 

Investment Bankers 
136 St. James Street

Montreal, 6th September, 1927. 
30 W. B. Sifton, Esq.,

Mallorytown, Ont,
My dear Wynn —

This introduces Hugh B. Griffith, who is the Secretary 
of our Power Syndicate, and also a partner in our firm. He is 
very familiar with all the details of the Power proposition, and 
is calling 011 you in case there is anything you might discuss to 
advantage at this time, and also in case you are unable to come 
to Montreal. 

40
My own time is so occupied this week with a number of 

things that I fear I will be unable to get up to Brockville, and I 
would like very much to be acquainted with whatever inform­ 
ation may be of benefit to us in this matter.

With best regards, I am,

Yours sincerely,
"R. 0. Sweezey" 

ROS.HMK
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-3 S^SS"67
C. Winfield 
B. Sifton

Cop!/ of letter from tlie Defendant to the late ** Sept ' 1927
C. Winfield B. Sifton.

10
Letterhead of

E. O. SWEEZEY (BSC. MEIC) 
(Consulting Engineer, 

136 St. James St.

Montreal 28th Sept., 1927.

W. B. Sifton, Esq., 
2U Mallorytown, Out.

My dear Wynn—

I am sorry I have been away for a few days and delayed 
in sending you the letter I promised.

As I am somewhat in a hurry at the moment, and as the
letter will take a little thinking over, I am just sending you the

on cheque for $5,000 in the meantime for your retaining services,
and when I come back to Town in two or three days I will write
the other letter.

I am obliged to you for your memorandum, which came 
duly to hand, and I am very well pleased with the progress you 
are making.

It is likely I shall be in Ottawa to-mororw, and may seize 
the opportunity to have a talk with the Senator.

40 ^ , nYours very truly,

"R. 0. Sweezey" 
ROS.HMK



— 175 —
Plaintiff s 
Exhibit

P-4
Copy of letter 
from 
B. O. Sweezey

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-4 a $£$£!*
B. Sifton
15 Oct. 1927

Cop// of letter from the Defendant to the lute 
C. W infield B. Sifton.

10
NEWMAN, SWEEZEY & COMPANY, LIMITED 

Investment Bankers 
136 St. James Street

Montreal 15th Oct., 1927.

W. B. Sifton, Esq., 
Mallorytown, Out.

20 Dear Sir —

I apologize to you for the delay in writing you, as I pro­ 
mised I would some time ago.

This letter is to confirm our conversation in which I agreed 
to pay you Five Thousand Dollars as a retaining fee, in connec­ 
tion with the St. Lawrence and Beauharnois Power situation, 
which amount has already been sent you.

30 It is agreed between us that we. pay you One Hundred 
Dollars a day and expenses (when employed away from your 
home) for such time as we may require your services as our 
work and efforts proceed.

It is further agreed between us that when our plans have 
been passed and approved by Dominion Clovernment with the aid 
of your counsel and efforts, we shall pay you the sum of Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($50,000).

40 Yours truly,

"R. O. Sweezey" 
"R. O. S."
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-5 K. O. Sweezey 
17 Oct. 1927

Copy of letter from the late C. W infield B. Sifton
to' the Defendant. 

10
Letterhead of 

WINFIELD B. SIFTON

Telephone & Telegraphs Assiniboine Loclg-e 
Brockville, Ont. Mallorytown

Oct 17/27. 
Copy

R. O. Sweezey, Esq. 
20 136 St. Jaines St. 

Montreal

Bear Bob,

I beg you to acknowledge your letter of Oct. 15th confirm­ 
ing arrangement between us, and agree and approve same as 
stated by you.

I think your last paragraph is slightly ambiguous. It is of 
30 course understood that I shall use my best endeavours on your 

behalf, and shall act subject to yr. instructions. Having done so, 
my understanding is that upon the plans being passed and ap­ 
proved by the Bominioii Govt. the additional fee of $50,000 shall 
become due and payable to me. I don't think it will be possible 
now or hereafter to produce evidence that such passing of plans 
will be due to the "aid of counsel and efforts" from any parti­ 
cular person. I think therefore that it would clarify our under­ 
standing if this phrase were eliminated.

40 Yrs. Tly,

(Sgd.) "W. B. S."
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-6 C. Winfield 
B. Sifton

Copy of letter from the Defendant to the late 
C. Winfield B. Sifton.

10
COPY

NEWMAN, SWEEZEY & COMPANY, LIMITED 
Investment Bankers 
136 St. James Street

Montreal 19th Oct., 1927.

W. B. Sifton, Esq., 
20 Mallorytown, Ont,

Dear Sir —

I have your letter of October 17th, which for purpose of 
clearer understanding I quote herewith: —

" It is, of course, understood that I shall use my best en­ 
deavours on your behalf, and shall act subject to your instruc­ 
tions. Having done so, my understanding is that upon the plans 

30 being passed and approved by the Dominion Government, the 
additional fee of $50,000. shall become due and payable to me. I 
do not think it will be possible now, or hereafter to produce evi­ 
dence that such passing of plans will be due to the aid of Coun­ 
sel and efforts from any particular person. I think therefore it 
would clarify our understanding if this phrase were eliminated."

I fully agree with your views as expressed in the above, 
and for this reason it clarifies my letter to you of the 15th in­
stant. 

40
Yours faithfully,

"R. 0. Sweezey" 

ROS.HMK
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-7 E. O. Sweezey 
23 Oct. 1927

Copy of letter from the late C. W infield B. Sifton 
to* the Defendant.

10
COPY

Lodge Get 23/27 
Dear Bob,

Many thanks for yr letter of Oct. 19tli with which I am 
now in complete agreement.

Vi-o tW Plaintiff's
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_____________ Corres­
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Voucher

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P.W-8 IN WARRANTY w°B 0sifton
ON DISCOVERY

13 Dec. 1927

Correspondence, cheque and Voucher No. 101. 
WINFIELD B. SIFTON

30 Telephone & Telegraph Assiniboine Lodge 
Broekville, Out. Mallorytown

Dec. 13/27. 
Dear Hugh

My expenses last week were
Ritz, Montreal, Sunday aft & Evening. Monday & Tues. 

Dec 4/5/6. Ry tickets & expenses Ottawa to Mtl., 
Montreal to Toronto & incidentals 2 days ................ $74.33

King Edward Toronto, Dec 7 .Extra Expense of Ry Tic- 
40 kets & stop off at Battle Creek. Entertainment Tor­

onto & incidentals 1 day ................................................ $64.77
Battle Creek 1 day Dec. 8 expenses & incidentals .......... $10. —

Total 4 days ............................................................ 149.10

Yr tly,
Winfield B. Sifton
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Dec. 12/27.

P.W.-8

On checking my a /'cs I find $29.31 miscellaneous telegrams 
& L. D. Phone calls from Brockville during last months for a/c 
your syndicate which I have not included in my travelling ex- w°'B°sifton 

10 penses.
Vn, + 1-.T 13 Dec - 1927
i 1 f'y, (continued)

Winfield B. Sifton

No 9 Montreal, Dec. 17 1927 

To the BANK OF MONTREAL

Pay to W. B. Sift-on or order
20 exactly one hundred seventy eight dollars forty one cents 

$178.41
Marquette Investment Corporation 

Hugh B. Griffith R. O. Sweezey 
Ledger No. 6 
Dec. 23 1927 
B. of M., Montreal

The Bank of Nova Scotia 
Montreal 

Excise Stamp 
30

ENDORSEMENT

Pay to the order of the Bank of Xova Scotia, Brockville, 
Out. for a/c Payee.

Winfield B. Sifton.

101
MARQIJETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION 

40
Amount $178.41 

Date Dec. 17th 1927 
Pay to W. B. Sifton

Distribution
212.03 Legal-Ottawa 178.41 

Total $178.41

Payment authorized G



— 180 —

Plaintiff s 
EKhibit 
in Warranty 
on Discover;

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-W-8 IN WARRANTY P w-8 
ON DISCOVERY.

cheque & 
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Correspondence, cheque & voucher No. 164. w°'B 6lifton
. A to H. B. 
11) Griffith

Telephone & Telegraph Assiniboiiie Lodge 4 Feby- 1928 
Brockville, Ont. Mallorytown

Feb. 4/28. 

Dear Hugh,

As stated in formal receipt for $1500 mailed to you to­ 
day, same has been credited to fees a/c, leaving my last expense 

20 a/c up to Jan. 21st amount $537.07 unpaid.

Since then my expense a/c. to date has been,
Went from Toronto to Montreal Sunday night, Jan. 22.
Mon. Jan. 23 Montreal 1 day at Ritz
Tues. Jan. 24 Montreal & went to Ottawa in afternoon 

1 day.
Wed. Jan. 25 Ottawa 1 day at. Chateau.
Thurs. Jan. 26 Toronto 1 day at King Edward.
Fri., Sat., Sun. Jan. 27, 28, 29. In Ottawa. I consider that 

no charge for fees should be made for these days.
Mon. Jan. 30 to Sat, Feb. 4 — Five days at Chateau. 
Sat. returned to Brockville. 
In all 9 days in your service.
I now have the detailed statement of Ottawa Hotel Bill

•W for week Jan. 15/21 referred to as "not yet to hand" in my lost
expense a/c, I enclose same herewith. It totals $173.20. I have
circled in red the details which are chargeable against Mrs. Sifton,
who was in Ottawa 3 days of that a/c totalling $69.92.

Week Jan. 15/21. Total of my a/c $173.20
Less 69.92

$103.28



— 181 —

I also enclose detailed bill for week Jan. 22/28. It totals 
$248.40. I have circled in red the details which are chargeable on^?src 
against Mrs. Sifton, who was in Ottawa the night of the 26 the 
27 & 28, & my own luncheon party, totalling $108.50.

cheque & 
voucher

Week Jan. 22/28. Total of my a/c ........................ $248.40 w'i'&ft*.
tn Less $108.50 Grwmh1U 4 Feby. 1928———————— (continued)

$139.90

I think we had better let this Chateau Bill stand until 
we get together in Ottawa. If you will be good enough to bring 
my expense a -'a & these enclosed hotel bills up we can settle it 
finally then, otherwise we will soon be in an awful muddle.

I have not yet had the bill Jan. 28 to Feb. 4.
20

I have now had & paid the Biltmore a/c $19.30, which is
included in the total below.

Leaving the Chateau Bills aside for the moment, my ex­ 
penses excluding same, for the nine days were $236.30, for which 
I would be pleased to receive cheque.

Yours truly, 
Winfield B. Sifton.

30 Feb. 13/28. 
Dear Hugh,

Since last account, as follows: 
Mon. Feb. 6 )
Tues. Feb. 7 ) Toronto King Ed. 2 days. 
Wed. Feb. 8 )
Thur. Feb. 9 ) Ottawa Chateau, 2 days. 

40 Fri Feb 10 Montreal Ritz, 1 day. 
Sat. Feb. 11 Ny Belmont, 1 day. 
Sun. Feb. 12 Montreal Ritz, 1 day. 
The Chateau Bill is not paid.
Total including both our tickets to X.Y. $235.40 for which I 

would be pleased to receive cheque.
Yours truly, 
Winfield B. Sifton.
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Moil. Feb. 20/28.._ -..-r n in Warranty Dear Hugh, on Discovery
P.W.-8

My expenses last week were $21.25 to Ottawa, two days pSmience, 
only, not including Hotel Bill, which we have not yet settled. voucher*

No. 164, 
W. B. Sifton

in Yours truly, Grtmth
Winfield B. Sifton. *<£S&«iS?"

March, 10/28. 
Dear Hugh,

Since last a/c rendered my services & expenses have been 
as follows:—

Moii. Feb. 20 ) 
20 Tues. Feb. 21 ) Ottawa Chateau, 3 days.

Wed. Feb. 22 )
Thurs. Feb. 23 )
Fri. Feb. 24 ) Montreal Ritz, 2 days.
Sat. Feb. 25 )
Sun. Feb. 26 ) New York Biltmore, 2 days.
Tues. Feb. 28 )
Wed. Feb. 29 ) Montreal Ritz, 4 days.
Thurs. March 1 )
Fri. March 2 )
Sat. March 3. Toronto K. Ed., 1 day.
Sun. March 4 )
MOD. March 5 ) Montreal Ritz, 2 days. 

40 Thurs. March 8 Montreal Ritz, 1 day.
In all 15 days.
The Hotel'Bill at Chateau for 3 days remains for adjust­ 

ment & is not included in my expenses herewith.
Total, including Hotel Bills Ry, Fares & expenses Taxis 

& incidentals, $529.70 for which I would be obliged to receive 
your cheque.

Yours truly, 
Winfield B. Sifton.
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March, 10/28.

My accounts against Newman, Sweezey & Co. outstanding cor«sW' 8 
to date are: cheque^'

voucher 
———————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————• No. 164,

Expenses ______Fees %•££""*
JO ————————————————————————————————————— ~ ——————————————————————————— Griffith

a/c of Fef.. 4 — $236.30 — $ 900.00 VonM?8
a/c of Feb. 13 — $235.40 — 700.00
a/c of Feb. 20 — $ 21.25 — 200.00
a/c of Mar. 10 — $259.70 — 1500.00

$1022.65 $3300.00

Added to which there is a balance of fees outstanding as 
at Feb. 1st of $2100.

Total therefore Fees ........................... $5,400.
Expenses 1,022.65

Total $6,422.65

30

It would be a convenience to me if you could let me have 
a cheque on %.

Yours truly, 
Winfield B. Sifton.

No. 61 Montreal, March 22, 1928. 
To the

BANK OF MONTREAL,
Pay to W. B. Sifton or order,
Exactly One Thousand dollars, no cents.

Marquette Investment Corporation,
40 R. O. Sweezev. Hugh B. Griffith. 

$1,000.00. 
(.02 Excise stamp).

Ledger No. 6. — Mar. 27, 1928. — B. of Montreal 
ENDORSEMENT.

Pay to the Bank of Nova Scotia for ",• Payee only Win- 
nifield B. Sifton.
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WarrantyMARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION
Amount $1000.00 

Date Mar., 22nd 1928. 
Pay to W. B. Sifton

Distribution lo 
10 212.03 Legal — Ottawa $1000.00 f Feby. 1928

_________ (continued)

Total .......................... $1,000.00
Payment authorized .........E.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P.W-3 IN WARRANTY
on ON DISCOVERY AgJemem 
ffj between The

Copy of agreement between Beauliamoix Syndicate and the syndicate018 
Beatiliarnoifi Ponder Syndicate.

INDENTURE made in triplicate at the City of Montreal 
in the Province of Quebec, the fourth day of April one thousand 
nine hundred and twenty-eight ;

BY AND BETWEEN:
THE BEAUHARNOIS SYNDICATE, an unincorporat- 

OQ ed syndicate, hereiiiacting and re])reseuted by R. W. Steele the 
Vice-President and Hugh B. Griffith the Secretary-Treasurer 
thereof, duly authorized for the purposes hereof in virtue of a re­ 
solution of the Board of Syndicate Managers a certified copy r.-" 
which resolution is hereto annexed and signed for identification 
by the parties hereto, the said The Beauharnois Syndicate being 
hereinafter referred to as the "Vendor";

Party of the First Part; 
AND:

40 THE BEAUHARNOIS POWER SYNDICATE, an un­ 
incorporated syndicate, hereinaeting and represented by F. S. 
Molson, the President and L. Clare Moyer, the Secretary-Trea­ 
surer thereof, duly authorized for the purposes hereof in virtue 
of a resolution of the Board of Syndicate Managers a certified 
copy of which resolution is hereto annexed and signed for iden­ 
tification by the parties hereto, the said The Beauharnois Power 
Syndicate being hereinafter referred to as the "Purchaser";

Party of the Second Part;
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WHEREAS the Vendor has been organized as an unin- 
eorporated syndicate under and in virtue of a Memorandum of 
Agreement made in duplicate as of the twelfth day of May 1927 
by and between Robert Oliver Sweezey as party thereto of the 
first part and Marquette Investment Corporation as party there- 
to of the second part; and Beauha

- Power
10 WHEREAS the Purchaser lias been organized as an un- fk^ 

incorporated syndicate under and in virtue of a Memorandum < continued > 
of Agreement made in duplicate as of the fourth day of April 
1928 by and between F. Stuart Molson, Ivan L. Ibbotson, Hilda 
Knight, L. Clare Moyer and Robert Haldeuby as parties hereto 
of the first part and said Marquette Investment Corporation as 
party thereto of the second part;

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS IDKNTURE WITNES- 
SETH:

OA
That the Vendor and the Purchaser in consideration of 

the mutual cm enants herein contained have agreed together as 
follows:

1. The Vendor hereby sells, assigns and transfers to the 
Purchaser all the Vendor's undertaking, assets and rights of 
whatsoever nature and wheresoever situate, including but with­ 
out in any way limiting the generality of the foregoing, the rights 
and interests referred to in the said Memorandum of Agreement 
made as of the twelfth day of May 1927 as "the rights and in- 

30 terests transferred'';
TO HAVE AN]) TO HOLD the said undertaking, assets 

and rights hereby so^l, assigned and transferred as the abso­ 
lute property of the Purchaser in full ownership with the right 
to take possession thereof forthwith.

2. The said sale, assignment and transfer hereby made
have been made for and in < consideration of ten thousand (10.000)
fully paid Part-Interests of the Purchaser which prior to the
time of the execution hereof have been allotted to the Vendor

40 and/or its nominees by the Purchaser.
3. The Purchaser hereby assumes and promises to pay, 

fulfill and carry out to the fonr^e.p exoneration of the Vendor 
all the liabilities and oVinations of the Vendor of whatsoever na­ 
ture in existence at the date hereof.

4. The Vendor hereby waives any privilege, lien or charge 
to which it might be entitled to secure the fulfilment by the Pur­ 
chaser of the latter's undertakings as contained in the preceding 
paragraph 3. hereof.
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5. The Vendor undertakes and agrees that all times and 
from time to time when thereto required by the Purchaser it the 
Vendor will execute and do and cause to be executed and done onD?srcroavae% 
at the expense of the Purchaser all such further acts, deeds, p.w.-s 
transfers, conveyances, assurances and things as may be neces- 
sary or useful for the purpose of carrying into effect the intents 
and purposes of this agreement.

10 6. The benefits of this agreement shall enure to and this
agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of < contmued > 
each of the parties thereto.

AND TO THESE PRESENTS INTERVENED, Mar-
quette Investment Corporation a company duly incorporated by 
Letters Patent of the Province of Quebec, hereinacting by R. O. 
Svreezey. its President and F. S. Molsoii, its Secretary, hereto 
duly authorized in virtne of a resolution of its Board of Direc­ 
tors a certified copy whereof is hereto annexed and signed for 

20 identification by the parties, the said Intervenant being the par­ 
ty of the second part in each of the said two agreements, namely, 
the Memorandum of Agreement dated as of the twelfth day of 
May 1927, and the Memorandum of Agreement dated the fourth 
day of April 1928 and bcinr>- referred to in each of the said agree­ 
ments as the "Depositary".

Which said Intervenant hereby acknowledges that it has 
taken communication of the foregoing agreement between the 
Vendor and the Purchaser and that the undertaking, assets and 

o~ rights hereby sold, assigned and transferred are in its custody 
and it hereby covenants and undertakes that the same will be 
held and dealt with by it henceworth in trust for and on behalf 
of the Purchaser and upon and subject to all the trusts, provi­ 
sions and conditions in the said Memorandum of Agreement of 
the fourth day of April 1928 between the Purchaser and it the 
said Intervenant.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said Vendor and the said 
Purchaser and the said Intervenant have executed these presents 
on the date firstly above written.

40 The Beauharnois Syndicate,
In the presence of:

By—(Sgd.) R. W. Steele,
As witness to the signal- Vice-President. 
ure of all the parties
with the exception of & (Sgd) Hugh B. Griffith, 
R. O. Sweezey Secretary-Treasurer. 
(Sgd)

Winfield B. Sifton,
Barrister. 

Assiniboine Lodge, The Beauharnois Power Syndicate,
Mallorytown, Ont.



Witness to signature of
R. O. Sweezey—
(Sgd.) Ivan L. Ibbotson.

10
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By—(Sgd.) F. S. Molson
President. 

& (Sgd.) L. C. Moyer,
Secretary-Treasurer. 

Marquette Investment Corporation,
(Intervenant) 

By—Sgd.) R, 0. Sweezey,
President. 

& (Sgd.) F. S. Molson,
Secretarv.

Plaintiff's 
Exhibit 
in Warranty 
on Discovery

P.W.-3 
Agreement 
between The 
Beauharnois 
Syndicate 
and The 
Beauharnois 
Power 
Syndicate 
4 April 1928 

(continued)

20

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-W-8 IN WARRANTY 
ON DISCOVERY.

Correspondence., cheque & voucher No. 191. 
Dear Hugh, Apr. 6/28.

I think I have neglected in writing receipt of your cheque 
under cover of letter of March 22nd, amount $1,000 which I have 
credited to my disbursements account leaving balance in my 
favour of $22.65, outstanding as at that date.

Yours truly, 
Winfield B.' Sifton.

P.W.-8 Corres­ 
pondence, 
cheque & 
voucher 
No. 191 
W. B. Sifton 
to H. B. 
Griffith 
6 April 1928

30

16th April, 1928

40

R. O. SWEEZEY
(B sc, M. K. i. c.)

Consulting Engineer
136 St. James St., 

Montreal 
R. 0. Sweezey

In account with
MARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION 

1927
Sept. 3 Sheridan $2,000.00 

do ........................... 1,479.79
do .............. 20.08

Loughery 100.00 
do .................................................... 200.00
do ........................................................ 135.00
do 100.00 
do ................ 200.00
do .................................................. 250.00

Cannon ................................ ........................... 2,000.00
Sifton .............................................................. 5,000.00

Oct.
Nov.

Dec.
a

Oct. 
Dec,

3
6
1
8

12
2

19
28
26

E. & O.E.
$ 11,484.87
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•VT r-,c\ -* r i -i i .T-.-»J^^/-X in WarrantyNo. 82 Montreal, April 16 1928 on Discovery

To the BANK OF MONTREAL
cheque & 
voucher

Pay to R. O. Sweezey or order w°'B 9sifton
•> * to H _ B

Griffith

[0 Exactly eleven thousand four hundred eighty four dollars eighty % 
seven cents

Marquette Investment Corporation
$11,484.87 Hugh B. Griffith R. O. Sweezey 
Excise Stamp

ENDORSEMENT.

For deposit only R. O. Sweezey, per H. M. Knight.

191 
20 MARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Amount 11,484.87 
Date Apl 16th 1928 
Pay to R. O. Sweezey

Distribution
212.02 Legal-Quebec ....... 2000.00
212.03 Do -Ottawa .............. 5000.00
212.01 Do -General ................. 4484.87

30 Total ...................... $11,484.87
Payment authorized G

————————————— Plaintiff' s
Exhibit 
at Enctuete

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-27 AT ENQUETE P̂ 7
Letter from 
H. B. Griffith

Letter from H. B. Griffith to Colonel Victor Sifton. victtTikon
19 June 1928

NEWMAN, SWEEZEY & COMPANY, LIMITED
Investment Bankers 

40 136 St. James Street

Montreal 19 June, 1928. 
Colonel Victor Sifton, 

18 Wellington St. East, 
Toronto, Ont.

Dear Sir —

I have been attempting with the assistance of Mr. Moyer 
to arrive at a statement of Marquette Investment Corporation's
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account with Mr. W. B. Sifton, and find that we owed him on p—7 
account of fees, up to the time of his death, and expenses up to 
June 2nd, the sum of $10,094.95. I understand that jo\\ are an 
execiitor of your Brother's Estate, and at the request of Sir 
Clifford Sifton I enclose herewith our cheque for $10,094.95.

10 Would you be kind enough to acknowledge receipt of this 
on account of Winfield's Estate, and in such form that we may 
be protected from any subsequent claim through having made 
the payment to you personally.

In respect to the Expense Account June 3rd to June 10th, 
I will pay directly such of the hotel bills as I receive, and would 
appreciate your advising me of any accounts which are sent di­ 
rect to you.

20 Will you please let me know if you will require a detailed 
statement of the amount enclosed herewith.

Yours truly,
Hugh B. Griffith 

HBG.HMK 
Enclosure

Plaintiff s 
Exhibit

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-9 ON DISCOVERY onw^r,
30 Letter from

Letter from R. 0. Sweeseii to Victor Sifton. *'°i<xmeezes
1 Sifton

14 July 1928
B. 0. SWEEZEY

(B. sc, M. E. i. c.)
136 St. James St.

Montreal, July 14/28 
Dear Victor,

40 You may wonder why I have not written as promised in 
regard to confirming my agreement with Win. The delay is due to 
my secretary's absence on her holidays and she has the private 
file well locked up. I am afraid now that I shall be leaving be­ 
fore she returns and there may be a further delay of some three 
weeks.

Yours sincerely
R. 0. Sweezey
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-33 AT ENQUETE Oldef^3
in Council 
P.O. 422Order in Council P.C. 422. 8 March 192fl 

ADDENDUM
10 TO

VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS
Friday, March 8, 1929 

V 22—2

ORDER IN COUNCIL IN RESPECT TO THE APPROVAL
BY THE DOMINION GOVERNMENT OF THE PLANS

OF THE BEAUHARNOIS LIGHT, HEAT AND
POWER COMPANY

20 Friday, March 8, 1929
P.C. 422

Certified to be a true copy of a Minute of a Meeting of the Com­ 
mittee of the Privy Council, approved by His Excellen­ 
cy the Governor General on the 8th March, 1929.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them 
a Report, dated 8th March, 1929, from the Minister of Public 
Works, submitting: 

30
That the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Company was 

incorporated by chapter 72 of the Statutes of Quebec, 1902, 
amended by chapter 77 of the Statutes of Quebc" 1910 and further 
amended by chapter 113 of the Statutes of the same Proviii'. e of 
1928;

That section 11 (a) of the amending statutes of 1928 reads 
as follows:

40 "The Company may build a new canal or feeder 
from any point on the feeder mentioned in section 9 of 
this Act (or on Lake St. Francis within two miles in a 
southwesterly direction along the shore from the mouth 
of such feeder) to any point on (Lake St. Louis, at 01 
within one mile and a half in a westerly direction along 
the shore of Lake St. Louis from the junction of the St. 
Louis River with Lake St. Louis, the distances above 
mentioned to be measured in both cases from the centre 

; line of the new canal), and for that purpose, and for the
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purpose of enlarging the existing feeder, may expro­ 
priate such lands as may be necessary, not exceeding in 
all six arpents in width. It may, if found advisab!?, us^ 
any part of the bed of the St. Louis river for such canal 
or feeder, subject to first providing a new bed for the 
said river, and it may acquire by expropriation the land 

10 necessary to that end.

The powers of expropriation hereby granted shall 
be exercised, only subject to the provisons of (sections 21 
to 25 inclusive, of chapter 46 of the Revised Statutes, 
1925).

The Company shall not enter into possession of any 
property of the Crown, for the purpose of exercising any 
power conferred by this Act or otherwise, without first 

20 having obtained the right so to do from the Lieutenant- 
Grovernor in Council. Nothing in the present Act shall be 
construed as authorizing the company to violate rights 
now held by any other person or company for the opera­ 
tion of plants producing electrical energy."

PROVINCIAL LEASE

That the Company, under date of June 23,1928, was grant­ 
ed an emphyteutic lease by the Provincial Government of Que- 

30 bee of

"The rights of the Province of Quebec to such part 
of the hydraulic powers of the St. Lawrence River that 
can be developed between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. 
Louis, through a derivation canal on the right (southern) 
shore, having a maximum flowing capacity of 40,000 cu­ 
bic feet per second, the Province reserving the ownership 
and the free disposition of the surplus."

40 The main provisions of the lease are as follows:

1. The present emphyteutic Lease is granted for a period of 
seventy-five (75) years to be computed from the 23rd June, 1928, 
and to end on the 23rd June, 2003.

2. The lessee shall pay to the lessor an annual rental of 
$20,000.00 for the first five years, and of $50,000.00 for each of 
the subsequent years until the expiration of the term. Said rental 
shall be due and payable in advance on or before the 23rd June

Plaintiff's 
Exhibit 
at Enquete

P-33 
Order 
in Council 
P.O. 422 
8 March 1929 

(continued)
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of each year, the first payment becoming due and payable at the p— 3 
date of the signature of the present lease for the current year,

P.O. 422

3, The lessee shall pay to the lessor, over and above the (continued)' 
annual rental hereinabove stipulated, an annual supplementary 
charge or royalty of one dollar ($1.00) for each horse-power- 

10 year (HP year), such power to be measured at the meters or 
wattmeters of the generating station. The horse-power will be 
equivalent to 6534.96 k.w.h.

5. The lessee shall install at its plant hydraulic motors 
having the following capacity:

(a) At the expiration of the first five years following the 
signature of the contract, provided the plans be ap­ 
proved by the competent authorities within a year, 

20 and at the expiration of the first four years from the 
date of such approbation if it is given after a year 
has elapsed: 100,000 H. P.

(6) At the expiration of the sixth ye-r: 200,00 II. P.

(c) At the expiration of the seventh year: 300,000 H.P.

(d) At the expiration of the tenth year: 500,000 H.P.

30 The first instalment of the annual supplementary charge 
(clause 3) will become due and payable six months after the pro­ 
duction of each of such powers and after their respective deve­ 
lopment.

12. This lease is granted without prejudice to the rights 
of third parties or to Federal and Provincial laws concerning na­ 
vigation, mines, fisheries and the driving of logs.

Furthermore, before beginning any work on the premises 
40 hereby demised, the lessee shall, according to the previsions of 

chapter 46 of the Revised Statutes of Quebec, 1925, and to those 
of the present clause, submit to the lessor for his approbation, 
copies of all plans including elevations, profiles, sections or all 
other like drawings, showing and describing the projected mills, 
dams, power-houses, wharves, piers and other buildings, and si­ 
milarly, as well as of modifications and improvemnts thereof 
during the lease, and taking care to give full particulars with 
regard, to the capacity of works and machinery and its produc-



— 193 —
Plaintiff s 
Exhibit

tion, together with all information that the lessor may deem p—
useful or necessary. Moreover, the lessee shall supply and fur- order
nish the lessor with copies of all data it may already have, or p.c°422
,-,,., i j. • • j.1 j? i. • j.i j?i -ill 8 March 1929
that it may obtain in the future concerning the flow and levels (continued) 
of the river.

10 No work in the hed of the St. Lawrence River intended 
for maintaining as they now are either the level of Lake St. 
Francis, or of the flow of the river St. Lawrence between Lake 
St. Francis and Lake St. Louis, or the authorized flow of the 
hydro-electric plants established between Lake St. Francis and 
Lake St. Louis may be executed before it has been proven, to the 
satisfaction of the Minister of Lands and Forests, that the plans 
and specifications and a memorandum of these works and of their 
mode of operation have been approved by the Federal Govern­ 
ment and before the said plans, specifications and memoranda

20 have been approved by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council of 
the Province of Quebec in conformity with section II, chapter 
46 of the Revised Statutes of the Province of Quebec, 1925. Such 
approvals shall have been obtained before July 1st, 1939. In case 
of new concessions of hydraulic power being made between Lake 
St. Francis and Lake St. Louis, the lessee may permit the new 
coiicessionnaire to use, modify or replace the works provided 
compensation is made.

13. The present concession is granted with the under-
30 standing that the lessee who is presently negotiating with the

Federal Government, shall obtain from the latter, insofar as its
rights are concerned, the authorization to divert a flow of 40,000
cubic feet of water per second.

In case the approbation required from the Federal Go­ 
vernment be not obtained within twelve mouths from the sign­ 
ature of the present lease, said lease may be caneellol bv the Lieu­ 
tenant Governor in Council and the Lessee shall not lie eTitit'ed to 
any compensation or indemnity from the Provincial Government. 

*" However, his deposit shall then be returned to him.

16. Unless dispensed with by competent authority, the 
lessee shall erect and maintain at all time's and seasons durable 
and efficient fishways.

17. The lessee shall provide the dam, according to needs, 
with convenient log-slides or gates and erect, if necessary, guiding- 
piers and booms above the dam to bring the logs to the gates or 
the log-slides.
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PRESENT APPLICATION BEAUHARNOIS P^d 
COMPANY p-c - * 22i^wa.vj.x *m -L 8 March 1929

(continued)

That the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Company has 
asked for the approval of its proposed development and in con-

10 nectiou therewith made application for all such authority from 
the Dominion Government as may be necessary to divert from 
Lake St. Francis to Lake St. Louis and use an initial flow of 
40,000 cubic feet of water per second, and, pursuant to the provi­ 
sions of section 7, chapter 140, Revised Statutes of Canada, 1927, 
the Navigable Waters Protection Act — the Company has ap­ 
plied for the approval of the plans and site of works proposed 
to be. constructed in the St. Lawrence River with respect to the 
diversion of the flow of water mentioned above (Plans of the 
works consisting of 12 sheets and descriptions and plans of the

20 site thereof in booklet form, annexed) ;

That the Company in depositing its application submitted 
the basis of an agreement with the Dominion Government a.s 
follows:—

(a) When making its initial installation, the Company 
will construct its power canal to such plans and specifications 
and will operate its power development in such a manner that 

,,Q the canal when completed will conform to the navigation standards 
as set out in paragraph 111 of the main report and paragraph 
13 of Api>endix C of the report made bv the International Joint 
Board of Engineers 1926-1927.

(&) The capital amount properly chargeable to navigation 
in this connection as calculated by the international Joint Board 
of Engineers will be approximated Sixteen million dollars 
($16,000,000) and will be paid by the Company. The Company 
will also install such remedial works as may be necessary to avoid 

40 injury to existing power developments and will maintain the 
level of Lake St. Francis at such elevation as may be required 
for navigation.

(c) At any time that the Government may demand, and 
after three years' notice the Company undertakes to install in 
connection with its power canal, such locks and other necessary 
works as may be required to make the power canal available for 
through navigation for vessels of a size and draught as large 
as any vessels which will be able to use the new Welland Canal 
upon its completion, provided—
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20

30

i. That concurrently with the installation of such locks 
the Company shall have the right to enlarge its canal 
and to divert through it and utilize for the develop­ 
ment of power all the flow of the St. Lawrence River 
between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis with the 
exception of water required for flotage through the 
existing Soulanges Canal, and with the exception of 
that quantity of water to the user of which existing 
power plants are now legally entitled.

ii. That the cost of such locks and other improvements to 
be borne by the Company shall not exceed Eighteen 
Million Dollars ($18,000,000).

iii. That in any event the Company shall not be obliged 
to install such locks and other works above referred to 
until such time as will enable the Company to com­ 
plete such installation concurmitly with the final 
completion of the remainder of the St. Lawrence deep 
waterway.

(rf) Should the Company desire to enlarge its canal and in­ 
crease the flow of water through it prior to the time at which 
the Government shall notify it to install the locks above referred 
to the Company shall have the right to enlarge its canal and 
divert through it and utilize for the development of power all the 
flow of the St. Lawrence River between Lake St. Francis and 
Lake St. Louis with the exception of water required for flotage 
through the existing Soulanges Canal and with the exception of 
that quantity of water to the user of which existing power plants 
are now legally entitled, if at the same time it either constructs 
the locks above referred to, or alternately, at the option of the 
Government, deposits with the Government suitable guarantees to 
ensure the installation of the locks when they are required.

(e) The Company is prepared to make such agreements as 
may be necessary for the purpose of ensuring that after the com­ 
pletion of the locks above referred to the Dominion of Canada 
will be entitled to the use without charge to it of the canal and 
other works for navigation purposes.

PROTESTS

That protests were filed with the Department in connection 
with the application of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power 
Company, as follows:
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8 March 1929 

(continued)
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1. Canada Steamship Lines, Limited. a n̂ g e
2. Canadian Light & Power Company. ^c%2U
3. Cedars Rapids Manufacturing Company. (continued)'
4. Dominion Marine Association.

10 5. Great Lakes & Atlantic Canal Power Co. Ltd., jointly 
with Transportation & Power Company, Limited.

6. Montreal Light, Heat & Power Consolidated.
7. The Shipping Federation of Canada.
8. The Soulanges Power Company.
9. Miss Albina Bisson.

HEARING
20

That a hearing was held in the office of the Minister of 
Public Works on January 15, 1929, at which the various pro- 
testants were allowed to submit their representations against the 
project from the point of view of navigation;

AMENDMENT OP APPLICATION

That at the hearing the Company amended its applicat­ 
ion in the following manner:

30
"The application of the Beauharuois Light, Heat 

and Power Company now pending before the Governor 
in Council is purely and simply for the approval of plans 
for hydraulic development which will be subject to a con­ 
dition that not more than 40,000 cubic; feet per second shall 
be diverted from the river — from Lake St. Francis, to 
be returned to Lake St. Louis, and used for power pur­ 
poses by the Company between these two points; and any 
condition that the Government may exact, in any wording

*0 satisfactory to the Government, involving that limitation, 
is accepted in advance by the applicant. If the engineers 
think that the plans should be altered to meet this declara­ 
tion the Company will submit to any such alteration."

REFERENCE TO SUPREME COURT

That in view of the combination of the two questions of 
power and navigation, it was deemed advisable to refer to the
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Supreme Court of Canada, a series of questions to the end of P̂ 3 
determining the respective rights of the Dominion and Provin- ?r£e0runcll 
cial Governments in the development of power. The Supreme 
Court has recently submitted the result of its consideration of 
the various questions asked. The conclusions of the Court do 
not furnish sufficient ground to establish a well defined line of 

10 action with respect to power but as the question of fully protec-t- 
ing navigation is the dominant issue so far as the Dominion Go­ 
vernment is concerned, it is found that favourable consideration 
may be given to the proposal of the Beauharnois Light, Heat & 
Power Company,which, with certain modifications, may be util'zed 
for the requirements of navigation in that stretch of the river.

REPORT OF COMMITTEE OF ENGINEERS

20 That a Committee of Engineers composed of K. M. Ca- 
meron, Chief Engineer, Department of Public Works, Duncan 
W. McLachlan, of the Department of Railways and Canals, who 
was Chairman of the Canadian Section of the Joint Board of 
Engineers, L. E. Cote, Chief Engineer, Department of Marine, 
and J. T. Johnston, Director of the Dominion Water Power and 
Reclamation Service, Department of the Interior, have made a 
careful study of the project, together with the objections made 
by the protestants of the hearing of January 15, 1929;

30 That the report of the Committee of Engineers deals with 
the four divisions to which the inquiry was addressed:

(«) The effect of works 0:1 existing 
navigation.

•anal and river

(&) The effect of work on present power development.

(c) The effect of works on future navigation.

(f/) The effect of works on future power development.

(a) With regard to the effect of works on existing canal 
navigation the Committee finds that the regulating works pro­ 
posed by the Company in the Coteau Rapids combined with the 
40,000 cubic feet per second diversion do not provide adequate 
regulation, according to the plans filed. An extension of these 
Ayorks would permit them, when satisfactorily operated, to pro­ 
tect existing navigation and the levels of Montreal Harbour.
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The Committee finds that so long as tlie flow through the 
Soulauges section is prevented from varying, there will be no ordef" 33 
adverse effect on navigation below, but if a variation in flow p.c 0"?" 
in the future is permitted it will necessitate a regulating dam 8 <™ntta 
about at the foot of Lake St. Louis and, under such circumstances, 
all interests developing power in the Soulanges section should 

[0 be assessed for the construction of such a work.

With respect to the effect of works on river or rapids 
navigation, the Committee finds that the diversion of 40,000 
cubic feet per second will adversely affect navigation in the 
Soulanges section and that the works proposed by the Company 
for rectification purposes in this section are not satisfactory.

The Committee finds, however, that with modifications 
therein, there is a reasonable likelihood of the present condition 

20 being largely recovered. It is pointed out by the Committee that 
these works are largely experimental are relatively costly, and, in 
view of the possibility of the balance of power being developed in a 
short time, the expenditure involved is likely to be lost before 
many years.

In respect to ice conditions and navigation, the Committee 
does not find any reason to believe that there will be an increase 
in quantity of ice formed which would advance the date of closing 
of navigation in the river or delay the date of opening of na- 

30 vigations, and has been unable to see from the point of view of na­ 
vigation that it will be adversely affected on that account.

If remedial works for preserving 14-foot navigation are 
operated as intended, the water levels at the head of Lake St. 
Francis, where the International boundary leaves the St. Law­ 
rence River, will not be affected.

(ft) The 40,000 cubic feet per second diversion might be 
authorized without adversely affecting the present power deve­ 
lopments for which the Federal Government is responsible, i. e., 
The Canadian Light, Heat and Power Company; The Provincial 
Light and Power Company, and The Montreal Cottons Com­ 
pany.

There would be some adverse effect upon the plant of the 
Cedars Eapids Manufacturing and Power Company, which de- 
lives its basic rights from the Provincial Government. The 
Committee considers the protection of the Company's rights as 
primarily the responsibility of the Provincial Government.
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(c) The effect of works on future navigation — p— 3
Order
in Council

A summary of the schemes for deep water navigation is : — » 'March 1929
(continued)

(a) Works necessary for navigation as a river de­ 
velopment prior to the installation of power, estimated at 
$79,780,000.

20

30

Lateral canal for navigation alone on the north 
side, estimated at $41,633,000.

(c) Lateral canal for navigation alone on the 
south side, estimated at $38,565,000.

(d) To add to a previously constructed power de­ 
velopment in the river the works necessary to allow deep 
water navigation between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. 
Louis, estimated at $31,769,000.

(e) Power canal proposed from Hungry Bay to 
Melocheville, if given a width of 600 feet, depth of 27 feet 
and suitable velocity and made usable as a navigation canal, 
can be completed as a through route between Lake St. 
Francis and Lake St. Louis by the addition of works es­ 
timated at $21,600,000.

Comparing the Hungry Bay-Melocheville combined power 
and navigation canal with the river navigation scheme of the 
Joint Board, which is the next cheapest and estimated at 
$31,769,000, the Committee find there will probably be five 
bridges oil the south or Hungry Bay route, as against three on 
the river or north route. There will be two canal entrances on 
the Hungry Bay-Melocheville route both of which can be enter­ 
ed under excellent conditions as against four canal entrances on 
the north or river route, all of which are made from river stret­ 
ches with some cross currents.

On the Hungry Bay-Melocheville route there will be two 
lift locks required ; on the north route there will be three locks re­ 
quired.

In so far then as the diversion of 40,000 cubic feet per 
second from Lake St. Francis via the Hungry Bay-Melocheville 
route is concerned, the conclusion of the Committee is that it will 
not make deep water navigation via that route, or any route de-
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veloped to date, more costly, or difficult, provided suitable safe- p— g 
guarding regulations are imposed.

P.O. 422

(d) The effect of works on future power development — (continued)

The Committee states that the diversion of 40,000 cubic 
10 feet per second may not increase the cost of future power de­ 

velopment, depending on whether or not this project stands by 
itself or becomes part of a co-ordinated project.

In all future projects regulations designed to preserve the 
opportunity of building deep navigation works on either side of 
the river ought to be imposed on applicants for the development 
of power.

The Committee concludes that, having regard to the ap- 
20 plication under the Navigable Waters Protection Act, now 

under consideration, the Committee are of the opinion that the 
site and works proposed in the plans and application filed by the 
said Company, will not impede or interfere with navigation 011 
the St. Lawrence River if the conditions recommended by the 
Committee which conditions are hereinafter incorporated are met 
by the Company, and that having consideration to the interests 
of the country as a whole, the Committee is of the opinion that 
if the works are constructed in accordance with such application 
and plans subject to the said conditions, the same can be effi- 

30 clently utilized in connection with, and as part of any feasible 
and economical scheme for the deep waterway development of the 
St. Lawrence River.

That the Chief Engineer of the Department of Public 
Works, together with his assistant engineers after a careful 
study of the proposed scheme, has recommended the approval of 
the application from the standpoint of navigation, subject to the 
conditions hereinafter set out, in which recommendation the De­ 
puty Minister of Public Works has concurred.40

That the Department of Justice, on examination of the 
application from the legal point of view, has stated that all the1 
requirements of section 7 of the Navigable Waters Protection 
Act have been complied with and that the said application may 
now properly be submitted to the Governor General in Council 
for approval.

After a careful examination of all the points raised at the 
hearing held in connection with the application, as amended, the
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proposed works can be recommended, subject to-the following £r{£runcll
regulations and conditions: p.c.4228 March 1929 

(continued)

Conditions

(1) In any question which may arise from the applica-
10 tion of this approval the settlement thereof shall be governed by

full recognition of the dominant interest of navigation and the
necessity of reserving therefor all or any requisite part of the
natural flow of the St. Lawrence River.

(2) The works approved, or which may hereafter be ap­ 
proved, or designed, or made, shall at no time raise the natural 
level of water in the River St. Lawrence above the international 
boundary, or in any way contravene the terms of the Boundary 
Waters Treaty of 1909, or the Treaty of Washington of 1871.

20
(3) The works approved, or any modifications therein, 

which may hereafter be made or approved, shall be operated in 
conformity with the requirements of navigation on the St. Law­ 
rence River and the diversion of water shall not at any time ex­ 
ceed the maximum quantity of 40,000 cubic feet per second.

(4) Notwithstanding the approval herein contained the 
Minister of Public Works may at any time

30 (a)

40

order any additions to, improvements, alterations, 
or changes in substituting for or modifications or 
removals of works constructed or in course of con­ 
struction or proposed or required to be constructed 
by the Company pursuant to this approval, and,

at any time require the Company to construct and 
maintain such further or other works as the Minister 
may consider are required fully to preserve or 
restore and maintain the navigation on the St. 
Lawrence River, and may from time to time re­ 
quire the Company to make such changes or mo­ 
difications in the said works or to remove the same 
or any part thereof, or to substitute other works in 
their stead, as he may in his judgment consider ne- 
nessary for such purpose, and

The Company shall comply with, observe and 
perform all orders and requirements under clauses 
(a) and (&) hereof.
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(5) The Company shall construct ami maintain its canal p— 
so as to give a clear width of 600 feet on the bottom, a depth of gfg™,,,^ 
27 feet at low stage, and so as to afford average velocities of not *-£a*|| 1929 
more than 2.25 feet per second under any conditions of optera- (continued) 
ation.

10 The radius of curvature shall not be less than 5000 feet 
and one embankment shall form a prism on the north side of the 
canal. The Company shall construct and maintain the embank­ 
ments, walls and retaining structures in an approved manner ge­ 
nerally in accordance with the standards of the International 
Joint Board of Engineers report. Such protection lining as will 
be required to preserve slopes when the canal is used for naviga­ 
tion shall be furnished.

The dam and all other works of the Company, upon and 
20 along the Canal, including 4he Canal itself, and the embankments, 

walls and retaining structures, and the sub-structures for the 
movable spans mentioned in clause 10, shall at all times be main­ 
tained in a proper state of repair by the Company, so that the 
Canal and every part thereof shall be constantly available for 
the purposes of navigation throughout the period of the above 
recited lease or any renewal thereof so far as the dam and works 
situate upon Provincial Crown property are concerned ani for all 
time so far as works situate the property of the Company are con­ 
cerned. For the purposes of these conditions "navigation" means 

30 local navigation throughout the reach of the canal and through 
navigation when the locks and appurtenant works mentioned in 
clause 7 are completed.

(6) Whenever the Governor in Council so declares, the 
right of public navigation within and along the proposed canal or 
any portion thereof to the same extent and in manner similar to 
that provided in the case of the new Welland Ship Canal shall 
thereafter exist and be recognized by the Company.

40 (7) Whenever the Governor in Council shall decide to
construct locks and appurtenant works to connect Lake St. Louis 
with the canal reach for navigation purposes, His Majesty shall 
have the right, by his servants or agents, to enter upon and use 
any part of the applicants' lands buildings, property or works 
which may be required for the purposes of such construction, and 
for the operation and maintenance of such locks and appurtenant 
works when completed, and the applicants shall convey to His 
Majesty the King in the right of the Dominion of Canada, free 
of all costs or encumbrance, the title to the necessary land suf-
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ficient for the site of such locks and appurtenant works, and no 
claim for any indemnity whatsoever owing to loss or inconve­ 
nience to works operations, installations or distribution of power 
will be made by the Company arising out of the construction of, 
temporary or permanent works by His Majesty, either at the 
entry works, along the course of the stream, or at or below the 

10 proposed works.

(8) The Company shall provide, maintain and operate, 
when required by and to the satisfaction of the Governor in Coun­ 
cil, all aids to navigation made necessary by the Company's 
works, and shall submit to all regulations in respect to the oper­ 
ation of the Company's works as may be promulgated in the inte- 
icst of navigation.

(9) The Company shall grant to His Majesty sites for 
20 all aids to navigation other than those mentioned in the preced­ 

ing section which may be required for the use and convenience 
of shipping using the canal and for public wharves, and shall 
keep and maintain such sites free and unobstructed, and shall give 
to His Majesty and his agents free and unobstructed access at 
all times to such sites, and the Company on demand shall provide 
and deliver free of charge to His Majesty at such point as lie may 
designate adequate and suitable electric power for operating, 
repairing lighting and otherwise maintaining the canal and ap­ 
purtenant works up to but not exceeding 3,500 horse-power 
maximum demand and in case additional power should be re­ 
quired the Company shall supply same at a rate not to exceed 
that paid by the customer having the lowest contract price with 
the Company.

(10) The Company shall provide, operate, maintain and 
light all bridges over the canal to the satisfaction of the Governor 
in Council, it being understood that the Company may initially 
install fixed spans but with substructures sufficient and suitable 
for carrying movable spans and when in the opinion of the Go­ 
vernor in Council it becomes necessary for navigation, the Com­ 
pany shall at the request of the Minister remove the fixed spans 
and the Minister may at the cost of His Majesty in the right of 
the Dominion install movable spans on such substructures.

(11) The Company shall not commence the construction 
of the works until detailed plans of construction and all neces­ 
sary information respecting the said works have been submitted 
to and approved of by the Minister, provided that such plans and 
information shall be submitted within one vear.
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(12) No work in the St. Lawrence River shall be under- p—g 
taken until a programme of construction shall have been sub- {^j^,^ 
mitted to and approved by the Minister. s'March 1929

(continued)

(13) The construction and operation of the works of the
Company as are now, or as may hereafter be approved, ordered,

10 or required, shall be at the sole cost and expense of the Company
and shall be subject to such further regulations as the Minister
may from time to time deem necessary.

(14) The works shall be constructed by the Company 
subject to the approval of an Engineer or Engineers authorized 
for such purpose by the Minister and the decision of the said en­ 
gineer or engineers shall be final and conclusive upon all questions 
that may arise in connection with such construction.

20 (15) The Minister, or his duly authorized representative, 
shall have full and free access at any and all times to the works of 
the Company and shall have free control of the operation of the 
compensating or regulating sluices wherever situated, shall have 
the right to measure the discharge of the various channels and 
passages, and to adjust the flow of water in the interest of naviga­ 
tion. The Company shall take and keep such records of the flow 
of the St. Lawrence River, or the waters thereof, as the Minister 
or his representative shall deem necessary, and shall calibrate 
or cause to be calibrated to the satisfaction of the Minister such

3® turbines penstocks, sluices or other water passages as the Mi­ 
nister may require, and shall furnish at such times and in such 
manner and in such form and based on ratings satisfactory to 
the Minister certified copies of its records of flow and its records 
of operation.

(16) The Company shall furnish and deliver to the Mi­ 
nister immediately after the construction of the proposed works 
has been completed) such complete general and detail tracings 

<n of all parts of said works as actually built as may be required by 
the Minister, or his representative. Such plans shall show all 
dimensions, nature of material and other appurtenant inform­ 
ation and shall be made on tracing linen and shall be provided 
with proper titles, headings and numbers.

.(17) Should remedial works become necessary in the opi­ 
nion of the Minister in the interest of navigation, because of 
surge conditions in the river below caused by the development of 
the Soulanges section for power, the Company will pay such pro­ 
portionate cost of said works as may he required by the Governor 
in Council.
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20

30

(18) The Company shall not set up any claim

(«) for damages or for loss of property should any 
remedial works built under this approval become an im­ 
pediment to future improvement of the section and re­ 
quire removal, or

(&) for damages should the works or any part 
thereof no longer be required for the purpose for which 
they were constructed and be put to other approved use, 
or

(c) for damages should any works or things order­ 
ed or required to be done by the Company under the pro­ 
visions of paragraph 4 or any other paragraph hereof 
prove to be defective or insufficient for the purposes 
intended.

(19) The Company shall provide gates in its power house 
of such capacity as will discharge 40,000 c.f.s. under the most 
adverse conditions of head and tail water level to be anticipated 
and to the satisfaction of the Minister.

(20) His Majesty shall at any time be entitled to acquire 
and take over:—

The canals, works, buildings, erections or other pro­ 
perty of the Company constructed under or pursuant to 
or in lieu of the works shown in the plans approved by 
this Order in Council, and the lands upon which the same 
are made or constructed, or so much of or such Dart of 
such works buildings, erections, property or lands as in 
the opinion of the Governor in Council may be necessary, 
paying such compensation as may be agreed between the 
parties, or as may be fixed by the Exchequer Court of 
Canada in case of failure to agree, but in fixing such 
compensation consideration shall not be given to any rights 
or privileges acquired by the Company under or by virtue 
of this Order in Council; and consideration shall be 
given to the relief which the Company would thereby 
obtain from the obligations imposed on the Company by 
condition (5) hereof.

(21) The approval hereby granted is given upon and sub­ 
ject to the condition that in case it should be judicially determin-
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ed tliat His Majesty in the right of the Donrnioii is entitled to p 3 
any of the power now or hereafter to be developed in connection ^'council 
with the works the subject of this approval or any works here- f •%*** 1929 
after to be constructed by virtue hereof by the Company or which " 
His Majesty may construct then and in such event the Compay 
shall pay to His Majesty in the right of the Dominion such com- 

10 pensatiou by way of annual rental as the Governor in Council 
may from time to time determine, and shall comply with all rules 
and regulations which may be made by the Governor in Council 
with respect to the rentals to lie paid to the Government, the sale 
of power, the regulation of price thereof and the other matters 
now referred to in the regulations respecting Dominion Water 
Powers.

(22) The Company shall commence its work within one 
year after the approval contemplated in paragraph 11 of these 

20 conditions, and shall complete its authorized works within five 
years from the date of such approval.

(23) The Company shall save the Dominion Government 
harmless should the construction of the works affect rights here­ 
tofore existing above, below or comprised within the area of the 
proposed works, the Company to be responsible for and to com­ 
pensate for any damage which may lie caused by the works to 
other companies or interests owning or operating water-power 
on the St. Lawrence River including Lake St. Francis, and the 

30 Company shall settle, pay and fully provide for the claims of 
riparians and other persons who may sustain anv loss or dam­ 
age in consequence of the construction of the said works or any 
of the works which the Company may require to construct and 
maintain for the purpose of restoring and maintaining the navi­ 
gation of the St. Lawrence.

(24) The Company shall, before commencing construc­ 
tion of any part of the approved works, procure the execution 
by the Province of Quebec of an agreement with and to the sa- 

40 tisfaction of the Dominion Government, whereby the Province 
will undertake and agree that should the said dam or appur­ 
tenant works or any part thereof become the property of the 
Province under any provision of the said lease, or otherwise, the 
Province will either transfer the same to the Dominion or will 
maintain the same or cause the same to be maintained in a pro­ 
per state of repair, so that there shall always be a minimum depth 
of twenty-seven feet of water in the said Canal, and so that the 
same and every part thereof shall always be available and in pro­ 
per condition for the maintenance of navigation in the said Canal.
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(25) In case of failure by the Company to observe or per­ 
form any of the provisions and conditions upon which this ap­ 
proval is granted, or to proceed with and complete such works 
and things as may be ordered or required by the Minister under 
Clause 4 hereof, or under any other authority in that behalf, 
the Minister may, by notice in writing specifying generally the' 

10 particulars of alleged failure, require full and complete obser­ 
vance and performance in that regard within a period named in 
said notice, or may stipulate the respective times and manner 
in which the observance and performance of the provisions and 
conditions herein mentioned and the carrying out of such works, 
and things, shall be commenced, carried on and completed, and 
if such notice is not complied with within the time or any of the 
respective times so specified, His Majesty may jointly, severally 
or in the alternative,

20 (a) take over and operate the whole or any part of the 
works compensating the Company for the value there­ 
of, but such compensation not to include any allowance 
for forcible taking or based upon the approval hereby 
granted,

(ft) proceed with and complete or maintain and repair the 
whole or any part of such works and things and recover 
the full cost thereof from the Company by suit in the 
Exchequer Court of Canada, as for a debt due from 

30 the Company to the Crown in the right of the Domi­ 
nion,

(c) cancel this approval,

all of the remedies specified in clauses (a} (ft) and 
(c) hereof to be additional to, and without prejudice to 
any other remedies open to His Majesty in the pre­ 
mises, and to all or any proceedings in the courts avail­ 
able to the Crown. Any action by His Maiesty under 

40 this paragraph shall not be deemed an infringement of 
the rights of the Company.

(26) The approval hereby granted shall inure only to 
the benefit of the applicant or its assigns, and shall endure only 
for the period of the said emphyteutic lease or any renewal there­ 
of. Upon the termination of the said lease or of the rights granted 
thereunder or in case there should be at any time a reversion to 
the Crown of the rights granted thereunder the approval hereby 
granted shall cease and determine and in no event shall the ap-
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proval hereby granted or any rights dependent upo_i or connected atEn<1_]Lete 
therewith pass to the. Crown in the right of the Province. No " 
assignment of the approved works or of the approval hereby

°, j .c i • i j. i n i ^ •j.-i j. j_i 8 March 1929granted, or or any of such rights, shall be made without the ap- (continued) 
proval of the Governor in Council first had and obtained.

10 Should the Company make any such assignment without 
such approval, the Government may take over and operate the 
whole or any part of the works without compensation.

(27) Any proprietary, legislative or executive powers, 
rights, authorities or privileges now or hereafter vested respec­ 
tively in His Majesty, the Parliament of Canada, the Governor 
in Council or any Minister or Officer of the Dominion Govern­ 
ment shall not be in any way prejudiced or impaired by, and may 
he exercised in conjunction with, in substitution for or in addi- 

20 tion to the powers, rights, authorities and privileges reserved to 
or conferred upon the Dominion by these conditions or the agree- 
in nit incorporating the same.

(28) It is clearly stipulated and understood that nothing 
is herby granted except approval of the proposed works under 
the provisions of the Navigable Wafers Protection Act upon and 
subject to these conditions.

The Committee, on the recommendation of the Minister of 
30 Public Works, submit for Your Excellency's approval, under 

Setciou 7, Chapter 140, Revised Statute; of Canada. 1927 — the 
Navigable Waters Protection Act — (subject to the foregoing 
conditions and to such additions, improvements, alterations, 
changes, substitutions modifications or removals as may be or­ 
dered or required thereunder) the annexe:] plans o" works, and 
the side thereof, according to the descriptions and plans attach­ 
ed, in booklet form, which works are proposed to be c obstructed by 
the Beauharnois Light, Heat & Power Company, with respect to 
the diversion of 40,000 cubic feet of water per second from Lake 

'™ St. Francis to Lake St. Louis, in connection with a power canal 
to be built by the said Company along the St. Lawrence River 
between the two lakes mentioned; the said approval to take ef­ 
fect o-ily after an agreement incorporating- the conditions enu­ 
merated above and satisfactory to the Minister of Public Works 
of Canada has been executed between the Beauharnois Light, 
Heat & Power Company and His Majesty the King, as repre­ 
sented by the said minister.
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In connection with the foregoing, the Committee submit P7^s
for Your Excellency's information the following documents _____
which are hereto annexed:— f Slarcu 1929

"Study of Remedial and Control Works".
by Messrs. Brown, Hogg and Lee, Consulting En- 

10 gineers;
"Supplementary Memorandum Regarding Ultimate pos­ 

sibilities of proposed Hydro-Electric Power de­ 
velopment of the St. Lawrence River between 
Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis."

by F. B. Brown, M.Sc., Consulting Engineer, Mont­ 
real;

"Report of proposed Hydro-Electric Power Development 
on the St. Lawrence River between Hungry Bay 

^ on Lake St. Francis and Melocheville on Lake St. 
Louis."

by F. B. Brown, M.Sc., Consulting Engineer, Mont­ 
real.

Report, dated 30th January, 1929, of Messrs. Cameroii, Mc- 
Lachlan, Johnston and Cote, on the project.

E. J. LEMAIRE, 
Clerk of the Privy Council. 

30 ————————

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-34 AT ENQUETE ^council
P.C. 1081
22 June 1929

Order in Council P.C. 1081. 
Privy Council 
Canada

P.C. 1081.

Certified to be a true copy of a Minute of a Meeting of the Corn- 
40 mittee of the Privy Council, approved by His Excellency 

the Governor General on the 22nd June, 1929.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them 
a report, dated 17th June, 1929, from the Minister of Public 
Works, submitting as follows:

That an Order in Council — P.C. 422 — was passed on 
8th March, 1929, granting the application of the Beauharnois 
Light, Heat and Power Company, under Section 7, Chapter 140,
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Revised Statutes of Canada, 1927 — the Navigable Waters Pro- P"^4 
tection Act — for the approval of the plans and site of works 
proposed to be constructed with respect to the diversion of 40,000 
cubic feet of water per second from Lake St. Francis to Lake <contlnued > 
St. Louis, in connection with a power canal to be built by the said 
Company along the St. Lawrence River between the two lakes 

10 mentioned, the said approval, however, being granted subject to 
certain conditions, and to such additions, improvements, altera­ 
tions, changes, substitutions, modifications or removals as may 
be ordered or required thereunder, and to take effect only after 
an agreement in corporating the conditions of approval and sa­ 

tisfactory to the Minister of Public Works has been executed by 
the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company and His Ma­ 
jesty the King as represented by the said Minister;

That the agreement referred to, incorporating the condi- 
20 tions of approval, has been submitted to the Minister of Public 

Works, and is satisfactory to him, clauses 3, 7, 10, 24, and 26 hav­ 
ing been extended so as to clarify their meaning and remove any 
possibility of doubt as to the intention thereof.

The Minister, therefore, recommends that the agreement 
between the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company and 
His Majesty the King, required pursuant to the approval grant­ 
ed by Order in Council (P.C, 422) of March 8, 1929, be approv­ 
ed in the form attached, and that the Minister of Public Works 

30 be authorized to execute it.

The Committee concur in the foregoing recommendation 
and submit the same for approval.

(Sg.) E. J. Lemaire 
(SEAL) E. J. Lemaire,

Clerk of the Privv Council.

40
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P.W.-4 IN WARRANTY 
ON DISCOVERY

of agreement between Beauharnois Potver Syndicate and 
BeatcJiarnois Power Corporation Limited.

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT made in triplicate 
at the City of Montreal in the Province of Quebec this 31st day 
of October One thousand nine hundred and twenty-nine;

BY AND BETWEEN

THE BEAUHARNOIS POWER SYNDICATE (here­ 
inafter called the "Syndicate") an unincorporated syndicate or­ 
ganized and existing under and in virtue of an agreement made 
at the City of Montreal on the Fourth day of April, 1928 by and 
between F. Stuart Molson and others of the First part and Mar- 
quette Investment Corporation of the second part;

Plaintiff s 
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F.W.-4 
Agreement 
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Beauharnois 
Power 
Syndicate, 
Beauharnois 
Power 
Corporation 
Limited 
and Marquette 
Investment 
Corporation 
31 Oct. 1929

Party of the First Part. 
AND

BEAUHARNOIS POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
(hereinafter called the "Corporation") a company incorporated 
by Letters Patent issued under the Companies' Act of the Dom­ 
inion of Canada;

30 Party of the Second Part. 
AND

MARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION (here­ 
inafter called the "Depositary") a company incorporated by 
Letters Patent issued under the Quebec Companies' Act;

Party of the Third Part.

WHEREAS the Corporation lias an authorized Capital 
Stock consisting of —

(a) five Management Preferred Shares without 
nominal or par value, the holders of which have the exclu­ 
sive right for a period of ten years from and after the date 
of the Letters Patent of the Corporation to elect and re­ 
move the Directors thereof, the holders of each of which 
Management Preferred Shares has otherwise the same 
rights in respect thereof as if lie were the holder of One 
Common Share and which Management Preferred Shares
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at the end of the said Period of ten years shall automati- on Discovery 
cally be converted into Common Shares ; . p-w--f

•> ' Agreement
between The

(b) 4,999,995 Common Shares without nominal or 
par value; of which 1,799,995 are Class "A" Common |eauharnois 
Shares and 3,200,000 are Class "B" Non- Voting Common coloration
,^1, ' 7 ° Limited

10 Shares: aild andMarquette 
1 " ' Investment

Corporation 
_ _ 01 Oct 1929

WHEREAS the said five Management Preferred Shares (continued) 
have been subscribed for by or on behalf of Newman, Sweezey & 
Company, Limited and Dominion Securities Corporation, Limit­ 
ed at One Dollar ($1.00) per share and have been issued to them 
and/or their nominees.

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNES- 
SETH:

20
That in consideration of the undertakings and agreements 

hereinafter expressed the syndicate and the Corporation have 
agreed together as follows :

1. The Syndicate agrees to sell, transfer and deliver to 
the Corporation and/or its nominees and the Corporation agrees 
to buy, receive and pay for all the undertaking and assets of 
whatsoever nature (except any unpaid balances and any uncalled 
balances for which the Syndicate Members may be liable to the 

30 Syndicate in respect of the Part-Interests or the Syndicate held 
by them respectively) of the Syndicate.

2. The said transfer of the undertaking and assets of the 
Syndicate to the Corporation shall be made without any repre­ 
sentations or warranty whatsoever as to the title to the assets 
or otherwise the intention being that the Syndicate shall soil, 
transfer and deliver and the Corporation buy, receive and pay 
for all the Syndicate's right, title and interest in and to such 
undertaking and assets, but without any warranty of any kind 

40 on the part of the Syndicate.

3. The consideration for the said sale and transfer shall 
be —

(a) the sum of Eour million seven hundred and 
fifty thousand dollars ($4,750,000) in lawful money of 
Canada payable to the Syndicate by the Corporation at the 
time and upon the conditions hereinafter mentioned ; and
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and

(b) the assumption by the Corporation of all the 
liabilities and obligations of the Syndicate (except its lia­ 
bilities and obligations to its Members as such:

(c) the undertaking by the Corporation to defray 
the expenses (to an amount not exceeding ten thousand dol- 

10 lars ($10,000.00) of the winding-up of the affairs of the 
Syndicate and the distribution of its assets among its Mem­ 
bers.

4. The said sum of Pour million seven hundred and fifty 
thousand dollars ($4,750,000) shall be paid by the Corporation 
to the Syndicate upon the transfer and delivery of the said un­ 
dertaking and assets of the Syndicate to the Corporation.

5. The obligation of the Syndicate hereunder to sell, 
20 transfer and deliver and of the Corporation hereunder to buy, 

receive and pay for, shall be conditional upon the following con­ 
ditions having been fulfilled not later than the First day of 
November, 1929, or such later date as the Syndicate may from 
time to time approve by resolution of the Syndicate Managers 
(which may be passed before, on or subsequent to the said First 
day of November, 1929;

(a) That the necessary approval shall have been obtain­ 
ed under The Watercourse Act of the Provhr o of Quebec of t ic 

30 site and plans of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Com­ 
pany in order to permit that Company to commence the con­ 
struction of its proposed power development;

(b) That the agreement between the Dominion of Can­ 
ada and the Province of Quebec requirol by Condition 
No. 24 of the Order in Council of the Dominion of Canada 
dated March 8th, 1929 respecting the Beauharnois Light, Heat 
and Power Company and any subsequent Order or Orders in 
Council which may have been passed modifying, extending or 

*^ affecting the same shall have been executed;

(c) That the requisite approval and permission of the 
Quebec Public Service Commission shall have been obtained in 
order to permit the said Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power 
Company to commence the construction of its proposed power 
development; and
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(continued)

(d) That the Syndicate and / or the Corporation shall 
have acquired the ownership or control of all the outstanding
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shares of the Beauharnois Light, Pleat and Power Company on Discovo.-y 
free from all liens, charges or encumbrances. A p - w - -*7 ° Agreement

between The

And if all the conditions set out in this paragraph 5, shall 
not have been fulfilled on or before the First day of No- 
vember, 1929 or such later date as may be approved by the 

[0 Syndicate as hereinabove in this paragraph 5 provided then this an^
agreement shall be and become of no force and effect. ??r|i; r?tl<?J,» n

^ 31 Oct. 192.7
(continued)

If all the conditions set out iii this paragraph 5 shall 
have been fulfilled on or before the First day of November, 
1929, or such later date as may be approved by the Syndicate as 
hereinabove in this paragraph 5 provided, then the transfer of 
the assets and undertaking of the Syndicate herein provided for 
shall be made as soon thereafter as the Corporation shall have 
available from the proceeds of the sale of the Collateral Trust 

20 Bonds provided for in the agreement hereto annexed as Sche- 
clue "A" sufficient moneys to make payment of the cash consi­ 
deration herein provided for.

6. Provided the said undertaking and assets of the Syn­ 
dicate are transferred to and paid for by the Corporation as here- 
inabove provided, the Syndicate agrees to subscribe for at One 
dollar ($1.00) per share One million ($1,000,000) Class "A" 
Common Shares without nominal or par value of the Corpora­ 
tion, such shares to be allotted and issued to or to the nominees of 

30 the Syndicate, the said shares to be paid for at the time of the 
transfer and delivery of the undertaking and assets of the Syn­ 
dicate to the Corporation and / or its nominees and the payment 
of the said sum of Four million seven hundred and fifty thou­ 
sand dollars ($4,750000) by the Corporation to the Syndicate.

7. The undertakings of the Syndicate hereunder are given 
and made upon the understanding and conditions that the Cor­ 
poration will enter into an agreement with Newman, Sweezey 

,„ & Company, Limited and Dominion Securities Corporation, 
Limited respecting the subscription for and purchase by said 
Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited and Dominion Secu­ 
rities Corporation, Limited, of certain Collateral Trust Bonds 
and Common Shares of the Corporation and respecting the ar­ 
rangements in regard to the purchase of certain First Mortgage 
Bonds of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, the 
whole substantially in the form of the agreement annexed he-reto 
as Schedule " A" or to like effect.
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8. The Syndicate shall not be obliged to deliver any title- 
deeds certificates of search, abstracts of title, proof or evidence 
of title, or copies thereof, respecting the undertaking and assets 
hereby agreed to be sold and purchased other than those in its 
possession.

9. The Depositary hereby acknowledges to have taken 
communication of the terms, provisions and conditions of this 
agreement and acknowledges that the assets of the Syn­ 
dicate are in its custody as depositary of the Syndicate and here­ 
by covenants and agrees that subject to any privilege or 
lien to which it mav be entitled the same will be held and dealt 
with by it upon and subject to all terms, provisions and condi­ 
tions set out in this agreement, and hereby agrees to execute a:id 
do, at the expense of the Corporation, all such documents and 
things as may be necessary or useful to transfer to and ve ~t in 

2Q the Corporation and / or its nominees the title to the under­ 
taking and assets of the Syndicate, the whole upon and subject 
to all the terms, provisions and conditions of this agreement,

10. This agreement shall have no force or effect and shall 
not be binding or obligatory upon any of the parties hereto un­ 
less and until the same shall have been approved by a resolution 
passed at a general meeting of the Members of the Syndicate 
called and held for the purpose; PROVIDED^ HOWEVER, 
that such approval if granted prior to the time of execution of 
this agreement shall be deemed to be a fulfilment of the condi­ 
tion contained in this paragraph 10.

11. This agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be 
binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have exe­ 
cuted these presents on the date and at the place firstly above 
written.
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(continued)

30

In the presence of: 
(sgd.} E. S. Coleman

The Beauharnois Power Syndicate,
By (*</</.) R. 6. Sweezey, 

40 President.
(.sY/d.) Hugh B. Griffith,

Secretary.
Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, 

(sgd.) N. McCallan (sgd.) M. H. Kelly,
President. 

(sgd.} Lyla Brennan,
Secretary.

Marquette Investment Corporation,
(sgd) E. S. Coleman ($fjd) Henry Newman.

(sgd.) P. S. Molson.
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Beauharnois

Copy of agreement between Beauliarnois Power 
10 Syndicate and Marquette Investment Coporation.

17 Dec. 1929

INDENTURE made in triplicate at the City of Montreal 
in the Province of Quebec this Seventeenth day of December, 
One thousand nine hundred and twenty-nine;

BY AND BETWEEN :—

THE BEAUHARNOIS POWER SYNDICATE (here­ 
inafter called the "Syndicate") an unincorporated syndicate 

20 organized and existing under and in virtue of an agreement made 
at the City of Montreal on the Fourth day of April On© thou­ 
sand nine hundred and twenty-eight between F. Stuart Molson 
and others of the First part and Marquette Investment Corpo­ 
ration of the second part;

Party of the First Part; 
AND: —

BEAUHARNOIS POWER CORPORATION LIMITED 
(hereinafter called the "Corporation") a company incorporated 

30 by Letters Patent issued under the Companies' Act of the Do­ 
minion of Canada;

Partv of the Second part; 
AND: —

MARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION (here­ 
inafter called the "Depositary") a company incorporated by 
Letters Patent under the Quebec Companies' Act;

40 Party of the Third Part;

WHEREAS the Parties hereto entered into a Memoran­ 
dum of Agreement dated the thirty-first day of October One 
thousand nine hundred and twenty-nine providing for the trans­ 
fer herein contained and the subscription for shares herein 
made;

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS INDENTURE WITNES- 
SETH as follows:
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1. The Syndicate hereby sells, transfers and makes over 
to the Corporation and the Corporation hereby purchases and 
accepts all the undertaking and assets of whatsoever nature of 
the Syndicate,, except any unpaid balances and any uncalled 
balances for which the Syndicate Members may be liable to the 
Syndicate in respect of the Part-Interests of the Syndicate held 

10 by them respectively.

2. The sale and transfer hereby made are so made with­ 
out any representations or warranty whatsoever as to the title 
of the said undertaking and assets or otherwise, the intention 
being that the Syndicate sells and transfers and the Corporation 
purchases and accepts all the Syndicate's right, title and interest 
in and to such undertaking and assets, but without any warranty 
of any kind on the part of the Syndicate.

20

30

40

3. As part consideration for the said sale and transfer 
the Corporation has paid to the Syndicate the sum of Four 
million seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($4,750,000) 
the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, and as further 
consideration for the said sale and transfer the Corporation as 
hereby assumes and undertakes to pay all of the liabilities and 
obligations of the Syndicate except its liabilities and obligations 
to its Members as such, and hereby undertakes to defray the 
expenses to an amount not exceeding Ten thousand dollars 
($10,000) of the winding up of the affairs of the Syndicate and 
the distribution of its assets among its Members.

4. The Syndicate hereby subscribes at One dollar ($1.00) 
per share for One million ($1,000,000) Class "A" Common 
Shares (without nominal or par value) of the Corporation and 
has paid to the Corporation the purchase price thereof namely, 
One million dollars ($1,000,000), the receipt whereof is hereby 
acknowledged by the Corporation, and the Corporation hereby 
undertakes that the said shares have been allotted and will lie 
issued to or to the nominees of the Syndicate.

5. The Depositary hereby acknowledges to have taken 
communication of the terms, provisions and conditions of this 
Indenture and acknowledges that the assets of the Syndicate are 
in its custody as Depositary of the Syndicate and covenants and 
agrees that the same will be held and dealt with by it in accord­ 
ance with the instructions which may from time to time be given 
to it by the Corporation.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have exe­ 
cuted this Indenture in triplicate at the place and on the day 
firstly hereinabove written.

In the Presence of:

10

The Beaullarnois Power Syndicate,
~Bj—(Sgd.) J. P. Ebbs, 

& " F. S. Molson. 
Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited,

By—(Sfjd.) R, O. Sweezey,
President. 

& " Hugh B. Griffith,
Secretary. 

Marquette Investment Corporation,
By— (Sgd.) Henry Newma;i, 

& " Ivan L. Ibbotsoii.

20

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT D-W-2 IN WARRANTY
AT ENQUETE.

Report o[f Special Committee on Beduhar'.ioix Power project.

21-22 George V Appendix No. 5 \ -£*-•

30

HOUSE OF COMMONS
SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON

BEAUHARNOIS POWER PROJECT
Session 1931 

Printed by Order of Parliament.
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Members of the Committee 
Hon. W. A. Gordon, Chairman.

Mr. C. Dorion, 
Sir Eugene Fiset, 
Mr. Robert Gardiner,

Mr. S. W. Jacobs,

Hon. G. B. Jones, 
Mr. T. H. Lennox, 
Hon. lan Mackenzie (Van­ 

couver C0:itre), 
Mr. J. S. Stewart (Letli-

bridge'). 
John T. Dun,

Clerk of tlie Committee. 
H. E. Taschereau, 
J.-P.Doyle, 

Assistant Clerks of the Committee.
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Special Committee.
ORDERS OF REFERENCE

House of Commons

Wednesday, June 10, 1931.
10 Resolved, That Messrs. Dorion, Fiset (Sir Eugene), 

(lardiner, Gordon, Jacobs, Jones, Lennox, Mackenzie (Vancouver 
Centre), Stewart (Lethhridge) be a Committee to investigate 
from its inception the Beauharnois project for development of 
hydro-electric energy by the use of the waters of the St. Law­ 
rence River so far as the matters referred to are within the juris­ 
diction of the Parliament of Canada, and without restricting the 
generality of the foregoing words in particular to investigate the 
matters referred to in the speech made in the House of Corn- 

20 mons, by Mr. Robert Gardiner, the honourable member for Aca- 
dia, on the 19th day of May last, as reported on pages 1875-1887 
of Hansard, and to report from time to time their observations 
and opinions thereon; with power to send for person, papers 
and records.

Attest.
Arthur Beauchesne,

Clerk of the House.

30

40

Monday, June 15, 1931.

Ordered, That the said Committee be given leave to print, 
from day to day, the minutes of proceedings and evidence taken, 
and also such representations, arguments and papers submitted 
as may be directed by the said Committee to be printed, for the 
use of the said Committee and Members of the House, not to ex­ 
ceed 600 copies in English and 200 copies in French.

Ordered, That the said Committee be given leave to sit while 
the House is in session.

Ordered, That the said Committee be granted to leave to 
employ counsel for the purpose of assisting the investigation of 
the matters referred to them by the House.

Attest.
Arthur Beauchesne,

Clerk of the House.
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Monday, June 29, 1931.
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Ordered,—That the said Committee be given power to em- Jj^^™* 7̂ 
ploy a secretary to assist counsel to the Committee in the investi­ 
gation now proceeding until the Final Report of the said Corn- 

10 niittee is presented to the House.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be given power to em­ 
ploy a firm of auditors to assist in the investigation now pro­ 
ceeding, until the Final Report of the said Committee is pre­ 
sented to the House.

Attest.

20
Arthur Beauchesne,

Clerk of the House.

30

REPOETS TO THE HOUSE
FIRST REPORT

House of Commons,

Monday, June 15, 1931.

The Special Committee on the Beauharnois Power Pro­ 
ject have the honour to present the following as their First Re­ 
port :—

Your Committee recommend that they be given leave to 
print, from day to day, the minutes of proceedings and evidence 
taken, and also such representations, arguments and papers sub­ 
mitted as may be directed by the Committee to be printed, for 
the use of the Committee and members of the House, not to ex­ 
ceed 600 copies in English and 200 copies in French.

Your Committee also recommend that they be given leave 
to sit while the House is in session.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

Reports 
to the House 
of Commons 
First Report 
15 June 1931

W. A. Gordon,
Chairman.
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10

SECOND EEPOET

Monday, June 15,1931.

The Special Committee on the Beauharnois Power Pro­ 
ject have the honour to present the following as their Second Re­ 
port :—

Your Committee recommend that leave be granted them to 
employ counsel for the purpose of assisting in the investigation 
of the matters referred to them bv the House.
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Second Report 
to the House 
of Commons 
15 June 1931

30

All of which is respectfully submitted.

20
THIRD REPORT

W. A. Gordon,
Chairman.

Monday, June 29, 1931.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the Beau- 
harnois Power Project beg leave to present the following as their 
Third Report.

Your Committee recommend that they be given power to 
employ a secretary to assist counsel to the Committee in the in­ 
vestigation now proceeding, until the Final Report of the Com­ 
mittee is presented to the House.

Your Committee further recommend that they be given 
power to employ a firm of auditors to assist in the investigation 
now proceeding, until the Final Report of the Committee is pre­ 
sented to the House.

Third Report 
to the House 
of Commons 
29 June 1931

All of which is respectfully submitted.
W. A. Gordon,

Chairman.

FOURTH REPORT

Tuesday, July 28, 1931.

The Special Committee appointed to investigate the Beau­ 
harnois project beg leave to present the following as a Fourth 
Report.

Fourth Report 
to the House 
of Commons 
28 July 1931
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1. On the 10th day of June, 1931, the House of Commons 
adopted the following Resolution; that Messrs. Dorion, Piset 
(Sir Eugene), Gardiner, Gordon, Jacobs, Jones, Lennox, Mac­ 
kenzie (Vancouver Centre), Stewart (Lethbridge), be a commit­ 
tee to investigate from its inception the Beauharnois project for 
the development of hydro-electric energy by the use of the waters

10 of the St. Lawrence River so far as the matters referred to are 
within the jurisdiction of the Parliament of Canada, and with­ 
out restricting the generality of the foregoing words in particu­ 
lar to investigate the matters referred to in the speech made in 
the House of Commons by Mr. Robert Gardiner, the honourable 
member for Acadia, on the 10th day of May last, as reported on 
pages 1875-1887 of Hansard, and to report from time to time 
their observations and opinion thereon; with power to send for 
papers, persons and records. Honourable W. A. Gordon was on 
the 15th of June, 1931, appointed Chairman of the Special Select

20 Committee.

2. (1) The Committee sat from the 15th day of June, 
1931, to the 22nd day of July, 1931, held on most of'these days 
more than one session and examined 35 witnesses.

40

30

On the 1st of July, the members of the Committee 
visited and irspected the site of the works.

There were filed with the Committee 129 exhibits. 

3. Soulanges Section—St. Lawrence River

(1) The Soulanges section of the St. Lawrence River is 
that portion thereof lying between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. 
Louis which are some 14y2 miles apart, and between which there 
is a fall of 83 feet. The average normal available flow of the ri­ 
ver through this section is in the vicinity of 230,000 cubic feet per 
second for 50 per cent of the time, making possible a develop­ 
ment of 2,000,000 horse power of commercial electric energy at 85 
per cent load factor. The site is in close proximity to the City and 
Port of Montreal, and is conveniently located on what must soon 
be a waterway capable of accommodating ocean-going vessels. It 
has therefore great possibility for industrial development if 
cheap power is available.

(2) It is apparent that the Soulanges section thus pre­ 
sents an opportunity for hydro-electric development almost if not 
quite unique on the face of the globe. It is one of the greatest na­ 
tional rescources in Canada, and in its natural state of great po­ 
tential value.
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4. History

(1) About the year 1800, Edward Ellice, the Seigneur of 
Beauharnois, erected a small "moulin Banal" at the mouth of 
the St. Louis River and in order to increase the flow of the river, 
in 1807 built a small feeder, four miles in length, from Lake St. 
Francis to the head waters of the River. This constituted the first, 
diversion in the Soulanges section of the St. Lawrence River for 
power purposes. Whatever water rights were incidental to this 
feeder later passed into the hands of a family named Robert and 
apparently formed the basis of the application for power rights 
hereinafter mentioned. Details concerning the Robert 'rights" 
may be found in a judgment delivered in the Exchequer Court of 
Canada in the case of Robert vs. the King (9 Exchequer Court 
Reports). Reference may be had also to Exhibit No. 29, a memo­ 
randum prepared by Mr. R. C. Alexander.

(2) In 1855 the Government of the Province of Canada 
built a dyke, known as the Hungry Bay Dyke, as a protection 
against floods. It rebuilt the control gates of the feeder and in 
1883 the Government of Canada deepened and widened the feeder 
and installed new gates in the dyke at the feeder entrance, con­ 
siderable sums of money having beea appropriated for this pur­ 
pose.

(3) In 1902, J. B. Robert, as the grantee of the repre- 
30 sentatives of Edward Ellice, brought action against the Crown 

for a declaration of his rights and judgment was pronounced on 
the 17th October, 1904, deciding that Robert held substantial 
rights in the feeder. A compromise was arrived at by which the 
feeder was leased to the heirs of J. B. Robert by the Department 
of Public Works under date of the 28th December, 1909, for a 
period of 21 years. This was authorized by Order in Council, 
P. C. 2168, of the 9th December, 1909.

(4) In 1902 by Quebec Statute 2 Edward VII, Chapter 
40 72 of the 26th March, 1902, the Beauharnois Light Heat and 

Power Company was incorporated with the power to enlarge and 
extend the feeder. As a consequence of the finding of the Ex­ 
chequer Court that J. B. Robert was not the owner of the feeder, 
in 1910 another Provincial Act was passed giving the Company 
the right to build a new canal or feeder from any point on the 
original feeder to any point on the St. Louis River at or near the 
town of Beauharnois. This Company thus became possessed of 
certain rights in respect of the diversion of water for power
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10

purposes from Lake St. Francis. The shares of the Beauhar­ 
nois Light, Heat and Power Company were all owned by W. H. 
Robert and other members of the Robert family. On the 3rd 
February, 1927, Mr. R. O. Sweezey obtained from the Roberts 
an option of all the issued capital stock of the Company and the 
Company's rights.

The Robert Interests

(5) W. H. Robert and the other Robert heirs received 
for the 2,000 shares of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power 
Company and such other rights, if any, as were then outstanding 
in them.
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20

(1) Cash $1,520,000.
(2) 200 fully paid part interests in the Beauharnois 

Syndicate.
(3) 21,000 Class A shares of the Beauharnois Power 

Corporation.
(4) 100 fully paid part interests in the Beauharnois 

Syndicate transferred from R. O. Sweezey ac­ 
count, which became 200 part interests in the Beau­ 
harnois Power Syndicate.

30 (6) In addition to the above-mentioned 400 part interests 
in the Power Syndicate owned by the Roberts, W. H. Robert 
held a further three hundred units in his own name on which he 
owed $10,000 as at December 17th, 1929. For the 700 part inte­ 
rests, referred to above, the Robert heirs received, on the disso­ 
lution of the Syndicate, cheques aggregating $95,000, together 
with 28,000 shares of the Class A Common stock of the Beau­ 
harnois Power Corporation Limited.

(7) In the same year, Mr. Sweezey applied to the Que- 
40 bee Legislature for an amendment to the Act incorporating the 

Company permitting the construction of a canal between Lake 
St. Francis and Lake St. Louis. This application was refused.

(8) On the 17th March, 1927, the Beauharnois Light, 
Heat and Power Company applied to His Excellency the Go­ 
vernor General in Council for approval of a proposal to build a 
power canal "which can be readily adapted for thirty foot na­ 
vigation requirements also" from a point on Lake St. Francis
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near the mouth of the St. Louis feeder to Lake St. Louis and to 
use so much of the water of the St. Lawrence River as can be 
taken through the proposed canal without interfering with na­ 
vigation and without interfering with existing prior rights 
in the River St. Lawrence." This application was not pressed.

10 (9) On the 17th January, 1928, the Beauharnois Light, 
Heat and Power Company applied to His Excellency the Go­ 
vernor General in Council " for approval under the Navigable 
Waters Protection Act of its plans and site of proposed works 
herein described and for the right to divert forty thousand cubic; 
feet per second (40,000 c.f.s.) from Lake St. Francis."

(10) In March, 1928, by Statute of the Province of Que­ 
bec (18 George V Chapter 113), a new section, 11A, was added 
to the original Act of incorporation giving the Company the 

20 right to build a new canal from any point within two miles in 
a southwesterly direction from the mouth of the St. Louis feeder 
to any point on Lake St. Louis within one and a half miles in a 
westerly direction along the shore of Lake St. Louis from the 
mouth of the St. Louis River and giving the Company the right 
to expropriate lands not exceeding six arpents in width.

(11) On the 27th April, 1928, Mr. Sweezey and his as­ 
sociates obtained the passing of an Order in Council by the Exe­ 
cutive Council of Quebec authorizing the granting to the Beau­ 
harnois Light, Heat and Power Company of an emphyteutic 
lease, which lease was subsequently executed on the 23rd June, 
1928, and which grants to the Beauharnois Light, Heat and 
Power Company the rights of the Province of Quebec to such 
part of the hydraulic power of the St. Lawreace River as can 
be developed between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis 
through a derivation (six diversion) Canal on the right (south­ 
ern) shore of a maximum flowing capacity of forty thousand 
cubic feet per second (40,000 c.f.s.), (the Province reserving the 

40 ownership and the free disposition of the surplus) for a period 
of 75 years from the 23rd June, 1928, at an annual rental of 
$20,000 for the first five years and $50,000 for each of the sub­ 
sequent years and an additional payment of $1 for each horse 
power year revisable after each period of ten years from 
the date the plant will have been put in operation. The Company 
agrees that at the expiration of the first five years it will have 
installed 100,000 h.p.; at the expiration of the sixth year, 
200,000 h.p.; at the expiration of the seventh year, 300,000 h. 
p; and at the expiration of the tenth year, 500,000 h. p. The

30
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lease is granted without prejudice to Federal and Provincial 
laws concerning navigation, mines, fisheries and the driving of 
logs and also upon the understanding that the lessee "who is 
presently negotiating with the Federal Government shall obtain 
from the latter in so far as its rights are concerned, the authoriza­ 
tion to divert a flow of forty thousand cubic feet per second 

10 (40,000 c./.-s.)" and in the event of the approval of the Federal 
Government not being obtained within twelve months, the lease 
may be cancelled by the Lieutenant Governor in Council.

(12) Having obtained the amendment to its Charter and 
the lease from the Province of Quebec5 , the Company pressed its 
application to the Governor General in Council and on the 15th 
January, 1929, a hearing was held by the then Minister of Public 
Works and two other members of the Dominion Government, 
at which were considered protests from shipping companies and 

20 power interests.

(13) The application originally contemplated the diver­ 
sion of the whole flow of the St. Lawrence Kiver. To meet the 
opposition to the application at this hearing, Mr. Aime Geof- 
frion, K. C., who appeared for the applicant, amended the ap­ 
plication to read as follows:

30

40

The application of the Beauharnois Light Heat 
and Power Company now pending before the Governor in 
Council is purely and simply for the approval of plans 
for hydraulic development which will be subject to a con­ 
dition that not more than 40,000 cubic feet per second 
shall be diverted from the river — from Lake St. Francis, 
to be returned to Lake St. Louis, and used for power pur­ 
poses by the Company between these two points; and any 
condition that the Government may exact, in any wording 
satisfactory to the Government involving that limitation, 
is accepted in advance by the applicant. If the engineers 
think that the plans should be altered to meet this decla­ 
ration the Company will submit to any such alteration.

(14) It should be noted that notwithstanding the limita­ 
tion to the 40,000 c.f.s. the plans of the Company and the works 
so far as constructed clearly show and the officers of the Com­ 
pany and of the Department of Public Works admit that at all 
times there has been in contemplation the diversion of the whole 
flow of the River by the Company.
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(15) A Committee of Departmental Engineers was con­ 
stituted, composed of Mr. K. M. Cameroii, Chief Engineer of the 
Department of Public Works, Mr. D. W. McLachlan, Engineer 
in charge of the St. Lawrence Waterway Project, Mr. J. T. 
Johnstone, Director Dominion Water Power and Reclamation 
Service and Mr. Louis E. Cote, Chief Engineer of the Depart- 

10 ment of Marine, and on the 30th January, 1929, made a report 
which is part of Exhibit No. 17, in the file of the Public Works 
Department 804-1-D.

(16) Certain paragraphs of this report are as follows:

83. The 40000 c.f.s. diversion project can be au­ 
thorized without injury to existing navigation, if the p 7anx 
submitted are subject to modification and to regulation* 
embodying the restrictions referred to in tins report.

20

30

89. Having regard to the application under the 
Navigable Waters Protection Act, now under considera­ 
tion, your Committee are of the opinion that the site and 
works proposed in the plans and application filed by the 
said Company will not impede or interfere with naviga­ 
tion on the St. Lawrence River if the conditions attached 
hereto are met by the Company and, having consideration 
to the interest of the country as a whole we are of the 
opinion that if the works are constructed in accordance 
with such application and plans subject to the said con­ 
ditions the same can be efficiently utilized in connection 
with and as part of any feasible and economical scheme 
which the Government of Canada may eventually decide 
upon for the deep waterway development of the St. Law­ 
rence River.

14. The works proposed by the Beauharnois Com­ 
pany consist of the following:

1. A canal extending from Hungry Bay, at the foot 
of Lake St. Francis to Melocheville, at the head of 
Lake St. Louis, said canal being contained be­ 
tween banks which are 1,100 feet apart where 
hard materials are encountered, and 4,100 feet 
apart, where soft materials are encountered.
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2. A power house at Melocheville equipped with 
ten 50,000 H. P. units.
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3. Regulating works at Thorn Island and at Leo- at Enouete 
nard Island. These are designed to hold up the Bxt°-^-2 
level of Lake St. Francis, when a diversion of 
40,000 c.f.s. from that Lake is made.

Beauharnois 
Power Project

4. A series of works in the four rapid stretches of 
10 the river between Thorn Island and the head of 

Lake St. Louis. These are designed to maintain 
existing depths in channels, and also to maintain 
existing levels at the head and foot of the Cedar < c°ntinned > 
Rapids works.

15. The works proposed by the Beauharnois Company 
affect in varying degrees canal navigation river navigation, 
power developments, and future plans for a deep waterway.

20 (17) The Committee expressed disapproval of the remedial 
works and channel improvements and in Paragraph 28 stated that 
the Committee while offering the suggestions aforementioned can 
only recommend approval of these works subject to modifications 
to meet conditions as experience shows them to be necessary. In 
Paragraph 31, the Committee says, " the design of remedial 
works for use in the Rapids below Graude Island is not yet work­ 
ed out in a satisfactory manner." It will thus be seen that the 
approval of this Committee was qualified and that certain of the
plans were not in their view sufficient. 

30
(18) On the 8th March, 1929, Order in Council P. C. 422 

was approved by His Excellency the Governor General on the 
report from the Minister of Public Works. This Order in Council 
recites the application of the 17th January 1928, the deposit of 
plans, the grant of the emphyteutic lease and the report of the 
aforementioned Engineers.

(19) It sets out twenty-eight conditions, subject to which 
4Q the recommendation for approval is made.

(20) The Committee, on the recommendation of the 
Minister of Public Works, submitted for His Excellency's ap­ 
proval, under Section 7, Chapter 140, Revised Statutes of Can­ 
ada, 1927 — the Navigable Waters Protection Act — (Subject 
to the foregoing conditions and to such additions, improvements, 
alterations, changes, substitutions, modifications or removals as 
may be ordered or required thereunder), the annexed plans of 
works and the site thereof according to the descriptions and
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20

30

plans attached in booklet form, which works were proposed to be 
constructed by the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Compa­ 
ny with respect to the diversion of 40,000 c.f.s. from Lake St. 
Francis to Lake St. Louis in connection with a power canal to be 
built by the said Company along the St. Lawrence River between 
the two lakes mentioned.

(21) By reference to the large plan submitted with the 
application, and referred to in the Order in Council P. C. 422, and 
which is Exhibit No. 2A, it will lie observed that there are two 
cross sections shown, one at Mileage 144-3 which shows a width 
between the embankments of about 1,100 feet, this being typical 
of the rock section of the work. This cross section also shows 
a width at the bottom of the deep section of the canal of some­ 
thing over 1,000 feet. In the cross section which is given as typi­ 
cal for each section, at Mileage 152-0 the width between the em­ 
bankments is shown as about 4,100 feet, and the bottom of the 
deep section, approximately 27 feet, is shown as having a width 
of about 500 feet.

(22) Subsequently on the 29th July, 1929, modified plans 
were submitted to the Department of Public Works by the Com­ 
pany, and for these there were on the 22nd August 1930, cer­ 
tain other plans substituted. None of these has as yet received 
the approval of the Minister of Public Works, although the Chief 
Engineer of the Department has recommended them for approval. 
Plans submitted on the 22nd August, 1930, did include plans for 
the remedial works, but such plans were subsequently with­ 
drawn and as the matter now stands there is not before the De­ 
partment for approval any plan or plans of these remedial 
works.

(23) On the 10th February, 1931, the Beauharnois Light, 
Heat and Power Company applied to the Quebec authorities for 
a lease of a further 30,000 cubic feet per second and has now 
obtained this right.

(24) On the 25th June, 1929, an agreement was entered 
into between the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Compam 
and His Majesty represented therein by the Minister of Public 
Works of Canada, Exhibit No. 43, which agreement incorporates 
the terms and conditions of P. C. 422.

(25) On the 6th November, 1929, the Governor in Coun­ 
cil passed three Orders in Council, numbers P.C. 2201, 2202 and
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2203, authorizing the transfer of three waters power leases from 
the Montreal Cotton Company to the Beauharnois Light, Heat 
and Power Company, and on the 3rd December, 1929, three agree- °[ 
ments were entered into between the Montreal Cotton Company, 
the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, and His Ma- 
jesty represented therein by the Minister of Railways and Canals 

10 of Canada (Exhibits 7A, 8A and 9A) by virtue of which the 
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company acquired with the 
consent of His Majesty the right to use and divert into the canal Sf8 cjuiy°i93i 
to be built 13,072 cubic second feet presently used by the Cotton < continued > 
Company at or near Valleyfield under an effective head of about 
10 feet. "

(26) A difficulty may arise in connection with the three 
leases by reason of the fact that the Department of Public Works 
takes the position that under the Order in Council P.O. 422 there 

20 is only authority to grant an opening in the Hungry Bay dyke 
sufficient to take 40,000 cubic feet a second (See Evidence Page 
363).

(27) On the 5th December, 1929, the Lieutenant Gover­ 
nor in Council of Quebec passed on Order in Council authorizing 
the diversion of this 13,072 feet,

(28) On the 20th March, 1930, the Charter of the Beau­ 
harnois Light, Heat and Power Company was further amended 

30 by enactment 20 George V, Chapter 136 (Quebec), which extend­ 
ed the expropriation powers of the Company so that for the pur­ 
pose of building its new canal it might "expropriate such lands as 
may be necesary, not exceeding in all 21 arpents in width.''

(29) In the final result, the Beauharnois Light, Heat 
and Power Company appear to have obtained from the Dominion 
of Canada Orders in Council purporting to authorize the diver­ 
sion of 53,072 cubic second feet, subject to their obtaining permis­ 
sion to breach the Hungry Bay Dyke sufficiently for that pur- 

40 pose, and subject also to compliance with the conditions of the 
Orders in Council and the approval of plans.

(30) They have also obtained from the Province of Que­ 
bec a 75 year lease for 40,000 cubic second feet, authority from 
the Lieutenant Governor in Council of Quebec to acquire the use 
of 13,072 c.s.f. and in 1931 the right to use an additional 30,000 
c.s.f.
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5. Corporate Organization

(1) There were two syndicates prior to the incorporation 
of the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, the present 
holding company, the first being the Beauharuois Syndicate and 
the second the Beauharnois Power Syndicate. These will be re- 

10 ferred to, sometimes, for convenience as the First Syndicate and 
the Second Syndicate, respectively.

The First Syndicate

(2) About the 12th May, 1927, Mr. Sweezey organized 
the Syndicate known as the Beauharnois Syndicate, having 5,000' 
units or part interests. This Syndicate existed until the 4th April, 
1928, at which date the holdings were as follows:—
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20
Member

Blaiklock, S. Turiistall ......
Credit Generale du Canada
Dobell, Wm. M.
Geoffrion, Aime P. ............
Griffith, Hugh B. ...

on Ibbotson, Ivan L. ......
^U Molson, F. S. .............................

Mover, L. Clare ........................
McGinnis, Thos. A. ..........
Newman, Henry ...........
Newman, Sweezev & Co., Ltd., In Trust
Robert, Wm. H.". ...........'..........................
Shortt, Dr. Adam ....
Stadler, John ...................
Sutherland, Wm. ......

40 Steele, R. W. ........
Sweezey, R. O. .............................
Kenny,' T. Fred ........

JCum*>er 
of part 

interests

25
800

50
200
150

25
350
800
100
50

1,050
100

10
100

25
250
900

15

Issue 
price

$ C.
100.00
37.50

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
45.71
37.50

100.00
100.00

42.86
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

ioo!oo

Amount

$
2,500

30,000
5,000

20,000
15,000

2,500
16,000
30,000
10,000
5,000

45.000
10,000

1,000
10,000

2,500
25,000
30,000
1,500

5,000 261,000

(3) The units subscribed for in the name of the Credit 
Generale du Canada were subscribed and held for Senator Douat 
Raymond.
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(3A) 1,000 of the units in the name of Newman, Swee- at En«^te 
zey & Company, Limited, were held for Frank P. Jones and 50 
for Fred M. Connell. The Honourable Walter G. Mitchell had a 
half interest in Mr. Jones' holdings.

Beanharnois 
Power Project

(4) The units in the name of L. Clare Moyer are said 
10 to have been subscribed on behalf of the late Winfield Sifton. _ 

Senator Wilfrid L. McDougald states that on the 18th May, 1928, 
he agreed to acquire them, the transaction being completed about 28 CjSy°i93i 
the end of that month. (continued)

(5) The units in the name of R. W. Steele were held for 
the Dominion Securities Corporation.

(6) The price to subscribers Raymond and Moyer was 
$37.50 per unit and Frank P. Jones acquired 800 of his and Mr. 

20 Mitchell's units from Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited, 
at the same price.

(7) Of the 900 units in the name of R. O. Sweezey, 600 
were issued pursuant to the syndicate agreement for considera­ 
tion other than cash and the balance of 300 subscribed for at $100 
per unit.

(8) The 350 units subscribed by F. S. Molson were at an 
average price of $45.71 per unit. 

30
(9) The Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited, units 

were at an average price of $42.86 and all other subscribers paid 
at the rate of $100 per unit.

(10) The average price of the 4,400 units sold for cash 
was $59.32.

The Second Syndicate

(11) On the 4th April, 1928, the Beanharnois Power Syn- 
40 dicate was organized and acquire the assets of the Beauharnois 

Syndicate, the consideration being two units of the new Syndi­ 
cate for each one unit of the old Syndicate with the right to unit 
holders to subscribe for as many units in the new Syndicate as 
each already held therein at $100 per unit, being the par value 
thereof.

(12) The members of the Beauharnois Power Syndicate 
holding 100 or more units or part-interests, as on the 17th De­ 
cember, 1929, were as follows:—
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Members
Number 
of Part

Interests

Gerald E. F. Aylmer & E. J. Mackell ...................... 100
S. Turnstall Blaiklok .................................................... 100

10 A. L. Caron .................................................................. 221
Fred M. Connell ............................................................ 200
H. V. Cullinan & D. M. Carmichael .......................... 250
William M. Dobell ........................................................ 200
Dominion Securities Corporation Ltd. .................... 1,492
John P. Ebbs ................................................................ 5,200
Aime Geoffrion ............................................................ 800
Hugh B. Griffith .......................................................... 600
Hanson Brothers Inc. .................................................. 110
C. J. Hodgson & Co. ................................ ..................... 175

20 Angus W. Hodgson ...................................................... 740
J. Charles Hope ............................................................ 130
Jones Heward & Co. ...................................................... 210
Thomas A. McGinnis .................................................... 450
F. Stuart Molson .......................................................... 465
F. W. Molson ................................................................ 100
Montreal Trust Co. ...................................................... 8,000
Henry Newman ............................................................ 395
Newman, Sweezey & Co. Ltd. .................................... 410
O'Brien & Williams .................................................... 101

30 Joseph H. Paull ............................................................ 100
W. C. Pitfield & Co. Ltd. ............................................ 152
Hon. Donat Raymond .................................................. 351
Ritchie ( R. L. ) and Gilmore ( K. F. ) in trust .......... 350
Wm. H. Robert, Joseph A. Robert, Miss Sarah M. 

Robert, personally, and as executors of the late
Sarah Robert ........................................................ 200

William H. Robert ........................................................ 366
William Sutherland .................................................... 100
Robert O. Sweezey ...................................................... 1,000

40 Part interest holders of less than 100 part interests 1,932
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25,000

All of these with the exception of part interests exchanged 
for holdings of part interests in the first syndicate, and the 2,000 
part interests that were used to purchase the shares of the Ster­ 
ling Corporation, and also except 200 units issued to the Robert 
heirs, were paid for at the rate of $100 per part interest. These 
2,000 units are included above in the holdings of John P. Ebbs.
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The 5,200 units in his name were held for Hon. W. L. 
Dougald, and will be referred to hereafter. Ext?a'J'"2

of Report 
of Special

12 A) The capital of the Beauharnois Syndicate consist- 
ed of 30,000 units at the par value of $100 each, of which 25,000 
were issued.

10
(13) The tangible assets of the first or Beauharnois Syn- 

dicate totalled not over $261,000 as on the 4th April, 1928.
(continued)

Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company

(14) This Company has been in existence since 1902, as 
previously mentioned. The control passed to Mr. Sweezev md his 
associates on or about the ?rd February, 1927. Under the • o-reo- 
ment of that date (Exhibit No. 60) and according to the Minutes of 

20 the meeting of the directors held 011 that day, Mr. H. B. Griffith 
was elected a Director and Secretary of the Company. It was not, 
however, until the 13th June, 1927, that a Board of Directors con­ 
sisting of Mr. Sweezev and his associates including Mr. B. W. 
Steele, representing the Dominion Seeuritio- Corporation, took 
charge of the Company's affairs.

Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited

(15) This Company was incorporated on the 17th Sep- 
30 tember, 1929, by the Ottawa legal firm of McGiverin, Haydou 

and Ebbs by letters patent under the Dominion Companies Act. 
It was granted wide powers of acquisition and development of 
natural resources and in connection with the production, use, 
distribution or disposal of energy, power, water light or heat.

(16) The authorized capital stock is five Management
Preferred shares without nominal or par value; 1,799,995 Class
A Common shares without nominal or par value and 3,200,000
Class B non-voting Common shares without nominal or par value.

40
(17) The holders of the five Management Preferred 

shares during the ten years succeeding the date of the letters pa­ 
tent have the exclusive right to vote for the election of Directors 
of the Company. At the expiry of this period these automatically 
become Class A Common Shares.

(18) At a meeting of the Company on the 31st October 
1929 held at the office of Messrs. McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs 
in the City of Ottawa, a proposed memorandum or agreement, 
dated the 31st October 1929, between the Beauharnois Power
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20

Syndicate, the M-arquette Investment Corporation and the Beau- 
harnois Power Corporation Limited, was submitted for the ac­ 
quisition by the Company or its nominees of all the undertakings 
and assets of the Syndicate except unpaid or uncalled balances in 
respect of purchase of units or part interests of the Syndicate. 
The consideration was

(a) $4,750,000 cash

(6) the assumption by the Company of the liabilities and 
obligations of the Syndicate and

(c) the undertaking by the Corporation to defray expen­ 
ses not exceeding $10,000 of the winding up of the af­ 
fairs of the Syndicate and the distribution of its as­ 
sets amongst the members.

The Syndicate, on the other hand, agreed to subscribe at $1 per 
share for 1,000,000 Class A Common shares of the Company.

(19) It was resolved that this memorandum of agree­ 
ment be approved and executed on behalf of the Company.

(20) The Directors present at this meeting were O. F. 
Howe, and D. K. McTavish, Barristers of Ottawa, and the Mis­ 
ses Belle Eraser, Lila Brennan, Edythe H. O'Malley, Bessie Con- 

30 m'ffe, Lillian Dell, Elsie M. Burritt, Gwen GUinderson, Kathleen 
Harvey and Mary H. Kelly, stenographers, all of the City of 
Ottawa.

(21) At this same meeting, according to the minutes, 
there was authorized a proposed agreement, dated the 31st Oc­ 
tober 1929, between Beauharnois Power corporation Limited of 
the first part and Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited and 
the Dominion Securities Corporation of the second part, provid­ 
ing for the creation and issue of thirty year 6 per cent collateral 

40 trust sinking fund bonds of the Company to the authorized prin­ 
cipal amount of $30,000,000 and for the sale to Newman, Swee­ 
zey & Company, Limited and the Dominion Securities Corpora­ 
tion of the said bonds, together with 770,000 Class A Common 
shares of the Company for the price of $27,000,000 and accrued 
interest of said bonds. This agreement was subsequently ratified 
by the shareholders at a meeting held on the same day and at the 
same place, the above named Directors being all of the share­ 
holders and all being present.
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(22) The agreement were subsequently executed and
carried out. The Beauharnois Power Syndicate was dissolved
as of the 17th December, 1929, its tangible assets at that time °f Report

OI !S6C13il

consisting of the amount paid in — aggregating for the two Syn- com 
dicates $1,561,000. This includes unpaid balances of subscrip- 
tious which on the final settlement were deducted from the 

[0 amounts payable to the individual members and $20,000 par of 
units issued to Robert in part payment for Robert's rights.

of Commons 
28 July 1931

(23) The tangible consideration received in respect of < continued > 
the 25,000 part interests issued by the Beauharnois Power Syndi­ 
cate may be shown thus :

Particulars Part Amount 
_____________________________________________ Interest ___________

*P

Issued to members of Beauharuois Syndicate
for the acquisition of the undertaking
of that Syndicate..... ..................... 10,000 261,000

Issued for cash consideration .......... 13,000 1,300,000
Issued for the capital stock of Sterling In­

dustrial Corporation Limited .......: 2,000 ................

25,000 1,561,000

30 For purposes of exactness, it should perhaps be noted that
the above amount of $1,300,000 includes $20,000 in respect of 200 
part interests of Beauharnois Power Syndicate issued as fully 
paid to the Robert Heirs in part consideration of the purchase of 
the shares of Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, 
etc.

(24) As a result of the agreement above mentioned, the 
Syndicate members receive for each part interest $150, and 40 

40 Class A shares of the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, 
which Class A shares are set up in the books of the Company at 
$1 per share and have had a market value as high as $17 per 
share, the low price being $4 per share.

(25) On the above basis the cash profit paid to the mem­ 
bers of the Syndicate would amount to $2,189,000, to which should 
be added 1,000,000 Class A shares, which were purchased by an 
additional $1,000,000.00 part of the consideration for the trans­ 
fer of the Syndicate assets. The above mentioned $2,189,000 was
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paid out of $27,000,000 received from the sale of the bonds and 
shares under the agreement with Newman, Sweezey and Com­ 
pany, Limited, and the Dominion Securities Corporation.

(26) The Marquette Investment Company is a company
controlled by Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited, and orga-

10 nized for the purpose of acting as trustee and depository and
dispersement agent of the Beauharnois Syndicate. (Exhibit No.
59).

Subsidiary Companies

(27) There are also the following wholly owned subsi­ 
diaries of the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, in ad­ 
dition to the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, 
namely:—

20 The Beauharnois Construction Company, having charge 
of the actual work of construction under contract; and the

Beauharnois Transmission Company, having to do with the 
actual transmission lines and the transmission of the electric- 
energy to be produced; the

Beauharnois Land Company, in which is vested the lands
of the Company, including land acquired in addition to all that
required for actual canal construction and which it is hoped to

^ dispose of for industrial sites, residence and other purposes in
connection therewith, the

Beauharnois Railway Company, organized to build and 
operate the construction railway; the

Marquette Construction Company, a Delaware corporation, 
organized to purchase in the United States and lease to the Can­ 
adian Construction Company certain machinery which it is hoped 
to return duty free to the United States after use on the canal,
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40 where it is said to be more readily saleable.

6. Authority for Construction Work

(1) According to Mr. Henry, actual construction on the 
north embankment was commenced on the 7th August, 1929, in 
the vicinity of Lake St. Francis, and on the south embankment on 
the 23rd April, 1930.
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(2) Condition 11 of Order in Council P. C. 422 provides 
that the Company shall not commence the construction of the 
works until detailed plans of construction "...... ......... have been
submitted and approved of by the Minister................" parliamentary

1 ^ ^ Committee on
Beauharnois

(3) The work as it is being carried out is not in accord- 
10 ance with the plans referred to in this Order in Council in cer- 

tain important respects, viz.:
of Commons

(1) The banks are about 3,300 feet apart, whereas 
the original plans show a width of about 1,100 feet in the 

rock section and 4 100 feet in the earth section.
(2) The width at the bottom of the navigation part 

of the canal is shown in the original plan, Exhibit N. 1A, 
in one place as considerably less than 600 feet, and Li an­ 
other at considerably more, whereas the actual 27 foot 

20 channel is being dug at a bottom width of 600 feet.
(3) The entrance to the canal from Lake St. 

Francis according to the last plan fyled on the 22nd Au­ 
gust, 1930, and as actually being excavated, is some 3,000 
feet northerly and nearer the head of the Cedar Rapids 
than shown on the Plan, Exhibit No. 2A.

(4) The remedial works shown on the original plans have 
not been approved either by Order in Council or by the Minis- 

30 ter-

(5) The Hungry Bay dyke has been breached and a sub­ 
stitute feeder for the old St. Louis feeder dug on the south side 
of the proposed canal wholly without governmental authority.

(6) Certain questions have been raised as to the rights to 
pass Order in Council P. C. 422:

(1) Does the Navigable Waters Protection Act 
4ft give the Governor General in Council the right to authorize 

the diversion of the water from a navigable river ?
(2) Can any of the powers given under that Act 

to the Governor General in Council be delegated to a 
Minister, or to anyone 1

(3) Is the right of the Governor General in Coun­ 
cil limited to the approval of plans already submitted, i.e., 
can the Governor General in Council approve of plans to 
be submitted in the future.
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(4) Can the Governor General in Council approve 
of the plans after the work has been done or partly done, 
or in the alternative is his power limited to approval of 
work the plans of which have been submitted before the 
commencement of the work.
(7) Your Committee finds as a fact that the work of 

construction is proceeding according to plans which have not 
1° received the approval of the Governor in Council or of the Mi­ 

nister of Public Works.

7. Hungry Bay Dyke
(1) The Province of Canada in 1856 and subsequent 

year, constructed a dyke along the shore of that part of Lake 
St. Francis known as Hungry Bay. This dyke at Confederation 
passed to the control of the Dominion of Canada, and it has since 
been maintained through the agency of the Federal Department 

20 of Railways and Canals. It will be necessary before water can be 
diverted to the canal from Lake St. Francis that permission be 
obtained from the Crown in the right of the Dominion of Can­ 
ada to breach this dyke.

(2) An application was made on the 29th day of July, 
1929 for a conveyance to the Company of that part of the dyke 
opposite the lands owned by the Beauharnois Company to the 
extent of 9,064 feet measured along the dyke. This application is 
now pending.
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30
8. Ambiguity in Order in Council

(1) Condition Number 3 of Order in Council P. C. 422 
provides that "the diversion of water shall not at any time exceed 
the maximum quantity of 40,000 cubic feet per second." If this 
means that at no time can the quantity of water diverted exceed 
40,000 cubic feet per second, it is doubtful whether 500,000 h.p. can 
be developed by the use of that quantity of water, even adding 
thereto the 13,072 cubic feet obtained by assignment of the Mon- 

,„ treal Cotton Company's lease.
(2) Your Committee is of the opinion that any ambi­ 

guity in this respect should be removed.

9. Control of Water
(1) The present plans do not provide for the control 

of the water at the entrance to the proposed canal. It has been 
stated in evidence that for this purpose and for reasons of safety, 
some method of control should be adopted, whether by way of a 
dam and gates, or a control lock at this point.
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(2) Considerable time was spent by Mr. Henry in an en- atEnquete 
deavour to establish that proper control could be maintained by 
the Dominion authorities at the gates leading to the water
Wheels. Parliamentary

Committee on 
Beauharnois

(3) Your Committee was impressed with the idea that 
[0 there should be some means of control at the entrance to the 

canal.
10. Site of Works

(continued)

(1) The topography of the locality and the ground at 
the site of the works are of such a character as to render pos­ 
sible and of comparatively easy attainment the large power de­ 
velopment contemplated at a quite reasonable cost.

(2) Your Committee is of the opinion that from the 
20 physical standpoint a power development on the south shore of 

the Soulaiiges section of the St. Lawrence- River is fundamentally 
sound and that with proper safeguards and regulation a navi­ 
gable canal can be developed synchronously with the power de­ 
velopment and iitilized as a link in the St. Lawrence Great 
Waterway, at a reasonable cost to the Dominion of Canada for 
locks and bridges.

(3) While the present plans are not in accordance with 
the proposals of the International Joint Board for this section 

30 of the river mentioned in their Report of 1926, nevertheless, in 
view of the amount of money already expended, and of the 
possibility, as we believe, of the utilization of this canal for na­ 
vigation purposes, we think that from the navigation standpoint 
the scheme should not be abandoned.

11. Robert A. C. Henry — Vice President and General Manager

(1) Mr. Henry is an engineer of considerable imagin-
, ation. He first became interested in the canalization of the Sou­

langes section of the St. Lawrence River as early as 1922 or
1923. He then discussed the project with Senator McDougald.

(2) This resulted in an arrangement between them by 
which Mr. Henry was to make an investigation, Senator Mc­ 
Dougald agreeing to finance him up to $10,000. As a result, a 
Company called the Sterling Industrial Corporation, Limited, 
was formed in the office of Messrs. McGiverin, Haydon and 
Ebbs (Exhibit No. 63). The incorporators were Honourable
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Andrew Haydoii, John Parsons Ebbs, and Mary Hilda Kelly, 
Belle Eraser and Lila Bremiau, stenographers of the City of 
Ottawa. By the letters patent dated the 5th July, 1924, the Com­ 
pany was impowered to carry on the business of an electric 
light, heat and power company in all its branches and incidentally 
thereto has wide powers. The authorized capital consist of 500 

10 shares without nominal or par value and the letters patent pro­ 
vide that the Company shall carry on business with a capital of 
$2,500, of which only five shares have ever been issued.

(3) On the same day — the 5th July 1924 — this Com­ 
pany made application to the Department of Railways and Canals 
for the right to divert from the St. Lawrence River 30,000 c.s.f. 
at Lake St. Francis and to use the same for power purposes. On 
the 7th July, 1924, a similar application was made to the Depart­ 
ment of Public Works. The Company never acquired any rights 

20 and so far as its Minutes show never attempted to do anything 
other than file these applications. To each was attached a plan, 
Exhibit No. 62, dated Ottawa, 20th June, 1924, and signed John 
B. McRae, engineer, and having this note on its face, "This plan 
has been traced from plans made by the Department of Rail­ 
ways and Canals."

30

(4) Mr. Henry joined the Department of Railways and 
Canals in 1912 as Inspecting Engineer of Railways and Struc­ 
tures. He remained in various capacities with the Department 
until 1923 when he joined the Canadian National Railways on 
the 1st March of that year as Director of Bureau of Economics. 
He remained with the Railways until the 14th February, 1929, 
when he was appointed Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals, 
on the recommendation of the Prime Minister, by Order in 
Council, P. C. 192 (Exhibit 76). He held this position until 
the 10th March, 1930 and was appointed General Manager of 
the Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited, by agreement, 
dated the 10th March, 1930. His appointment to the Beauharnois 

40 Company had evidently been under discussion for some time for 
Senator McDougald says (Evidence, page 960) that there was an 
arrangement with him (McDougald) and Mr. Sweezey that Mr. 
Henry would go in with Beauharnois as soon as he could get 
away from the Canadian National Railways and that that was 
some time in 1929 and prior to the 13th January of that year, so 
that Mr. Henry accepted the position of Deputy Minister at a 
time when he had an arrangement to go in with Beauharnois. 
Senator McDougald says he was surprised when he saw a report 
in the newspaper of Mr. Henry's appointment as Deputy Mi-
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n arra
risto;- — so surprised that he telephoned from Loud'":! to Can- »tEnquet 
ada "because my understanding with Mr. Henry before I left Ext°-^" 2 
Canada was that he would take up his duties with the Beauhamois $ fp?°£i 
Company with Mr. Sweezey and myself just as soon as he could 
make arrangements to get away from the National Railways."

19 Nov. 1931 
(continued)

10 (5) It is worthy of note that the three Orders in Council — 
numbered respectively" 2201, 2202 and 2203, approving of the t^no^e011 
transfer of the leases from the Montreal Cotton Company all 28 CjSy10i93i 
dated the 6th November, 1929, each contain the following :—

The Minister, on the advice of the Chief Engineer 
of the Department, concurred in by the Deputy Minister, 
recommends that authority be given, etc.

(6) Evidence was submitted that Mr. Henry had not 
20 been consulted about any matters pertaining to Beauhamois. His 

position, however, was to say the least, quite anomalous.

(7) The beneficial ownership of the Sterling Industrial 
Corporation Limited was and always has been in Senator McDou­ 
gald and Mr. Henry until the transfer thereof to the Beauhar- 
nois Power Syndicate pursuant to the agreement dated the 18th 
December, 1928. By that agreement, Mr. Henry and his partner, 
Senator McDougald, were to receive 2,000 units in the Beauhar- 
nois Power Syndicate, conditional on the passing of P.C. 422. It

30 was not until August, 1929, that the actual interests of Senator 
McDougald and Mr. Henry were agreed upon at 50 per cent each 
but each affirm that it was always understood that they were 
partners in the transaction, so that during all of the time Mr. 
Henry was Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals, he had a 
very substantial interest in the Beauhamois Power Syndicate 
or, after the 17th December, 1929, in the Beauhamois Power Cor­ 
poration Limited, an interest out of which he made quite subtan- 
tial profits as will hereafter appear. He was Deputy Minister of 
Railways and Canals at the time of the passing of the Order in

'™ Council P.C. 422, and was deeply interested in securing the ap­ 
proval of the plans of the Beauhamois project and your Commit­ 
tee is asked to believe that he took no active interest in securing 
the approval of the Governor in Council. One can easily ima­ 
gine, however, that in his position as Deputy Minister he threw 
no obstacle in the way, once the obstacle or nuisance value of the 
Sterling application had been determined.

(8) Mr. Henry, at his appointment to the Managership 
of the Beauhamois Power Corporation Limited, also obtained
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8,995 shares of that Company at $1 per share. Your Committee 
is also satisfied that Mr. Henry participated to some extent at 
least in the withdrawal of Company's funds for political pur­ 
poses.

(9) Mr. Henry's connection with Senator McDougald, 
10 and their success in despoiling the Company of a large sum of 

money or money's worth for something that on the evidence was 
entirely worthless, does not commend him to your Committee as 
a fit and proper person to continue in the management of .this 
great public utility.

12. Mr. B. O. Sweezey

(1) Mr. Sweezey seems to have been the principal pro- 
motor of the Beauharnois project. He is now President of the 

20 Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, and is a civil engineer 
by profession.

(2) In 1912 he was engaged by the Royal Securities Cor­ 
poration to investigate certain waters powers, and in 1913 was 
instructed by the present Lord Beaverbrook, the then President 
of the Royal Securities, to investigate the water power now 
known as Beauharnois. A copy of his report is filed as Exhibit 
No. 123.

30 (3) Mr. Sweezey states that in 1925 or 1926 Mr. Nar- 
cisse M. Cantin brought the matter again to his attention and it 
is stated by Mr. Cantin in his evidence, and not denied by Mr. 
Sweezey, that from the 4th April, 1925, to December of 1926, Mr. 
Sweezey was chief engineer of the Transportation and Power 
Corporation Limited, the Cantin company.

(4) As early as the 14th October, 1926, Mr. Sweezey had 
conceived the idea of forming a syndicate to take up the Beau­ 
harnois project, and his ideas of how to go about it are outlined 

40 in a letter written by him to Mr. Alderic Raymond, brother of 
Senator Raymond, on that date. In this letter he states: "To place 
ourselves in possession of all the rights essential to this under­ 
taking we should pursue the following course:—

"1. Acquire the Robert rights which are fundamental in 
regard to an initial grant which he holds to divert 40,000 c.f .s. He 
also holds rights granted by charter to expropriate for the pro­ 
posed canal route. Numerous other incidental rights are included 
in his holdings which he is anxious to sell, though he wishes to 
participate partially in the organization syndicate.
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2. Acquire the control of the St. Lawrence Waterways atEnquete 
and Power Company stock, which is available to us, and upon 
which we have already a substantial hold.

Parliamentary 
Committee on

3. Enlist with our syndicate two or three individuals,
who in addition to providing some cash as their fair share, can 

10 assist us in getting our rights extended or enlarged so as to de- 
velop the entire available flow of the St. Lawrence of this point. 
As the whole situation is entirely within the Province of Quebec, 
our influence has to be exerted only in Canadian political circles (continued) 
— that is at Ottawa and at Quebec. He further says: "In con­ 
nection with personnel of syndicate, I have in mind the indivi­ 
duals we should enlist with us I have hesitated to accept any­ 
one definitely until certain that each and every one is persona 
grata to all others."

20 (5) Asked as to who the persons he had in mind were, he 
at first could not remember. When later recalled and confronted 
with his answers on a former occasion under oath, he admitted 
that they were Senator Raymond, Honourable W. G. Mitchell, 
and Frank P. Jones, the latter of whom was desirable only for 
his ability to hell) with the finances.

(6) It is obvious therefore, that from the very threshold 
of this undertaking he had in mind that he had to associate with 
him men who could exert influence in political circles at Ottawa 

30 and at Quebec. How well he succeeded remains to lie seen.

(7) He states that he had talks with Senator McDougald, 
"and I was trying to get from Senator McDougald his view as 
to what the difficulties would be in overcoming the political work 
to be done." This was probably in 1925 or 1926.

(8) Mr. Sweezey succeeded in enlisting the help of all 
these gentlemen, first Senator Raymond, who was a subscriber • 
for 800 part interests or units in the first syndicate though the 

40 Credit Generale du Canada; Honourable Walter Mitchell, who 
was an equal partner with Mr. Jones in the units purchased by 
Mr. Jones from Newman, Sweezey & Company ; and Mr. Jones 
himself; and ultimately Senator McDougald, who agreed to join 
the ranks on the 18th May, 1928.

(9) On the formation of the first syndicate Mr. Sweezey 
obtained 600 part interests for his activities up to that time, and 
he subscribed and paid for 300 units at $100 per unit. On the 
transfer of the assets to the second syndicate, his holdings doubl-
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ed in number, and at the period of distribution, as of the 17th 
December, 1929, he appears by the books to have been the holder 
of 1,000 part interests.

(10) Mr. Sweezey's idea from first to last seems to have 
been that in order to secure the approval of the authorities at 

10 Quebec and Ottawa, it was necessary to deal with a lavish hand 
with his own moneys and those of the companies concerned. In 
pursuance of this idea he proceeded to employ a formidable array 
of legal talent, resulting ultimately in the payment up to the 
33 st December, 1930, of so called legal fees amounting to $436,000.

(11) The bills of some of these legal gentlemen show that 
the work was not a strictly legal nature, and consisting to a cer­ 
tain extent of lobbying, and in fact one fee of $50,000 to Senator 
Haydoil's firm was made contingent upon the Beauharnois Light, 

20 Heat and Power Company obtaining approval of its plans.

(12) Mr. Sweezey was also, in association with Mr. H. B. 
Griffith and at least two other u.inamed directors, the instrument 
by which approximately $300,000 of Company funds were mis­ 
used, as he alleges for campaign purposes. This is surely contra­ 
ry to the purposes for which these moneys were borrowed from 
the public through the issue and sale of the Company's bonds.

(13) Your Committee considers that Mr. Henry as Ge- 
30 neral Manager and Mr. H. B. Griffith, as Secretary-Treasurer, 

and Director of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Com­ 
pany, and other subsidiaries, are involved in this misuse of Com­ 
pany funds. Mr. Sweezey's further activities in repcet to cam­ 
paign funds will be dealt with in a separate paragraph.

(14) According to the evidence of Senator McDougald, 
Mr. Sweezey and he had arranged that Mr. Henry should join 
the Beauharuois Company and the matter had been discussed 
prior to the death of the then Deputy Minister Graham Bell, 

40 which occurred on the 13th January, 1929. It is, therefore, ob­ 
vious that Mr. Sweezey must have released him from his arran­ 
gement and agreed to Mr. Henry's joining the Department of 
Railways and Canals at a time when he, Mr. Sweezey, knew that 
Mr. Henry had arranged to become interested as an employee 
of Beauharnois and this at a time when Mr. Henry, as the part­ 
ner of Senator McDougald in the Sterling transaction, had acquir­ 
ed a substantial interest in the Beauharnois Power Svndicate.
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(1) Mr. R. O. Sweezey had admitted in his evidence that |}J |« 
he was responsible for the following contributions:—

Beauharnois 
Power Project

(2) For contributions for political purposes aggregating 
10 $864,000 and which includes the sum of $125,000 paid to John 

Aird Jr., of which mention will be made hereafter. Of this total, 
approximately $300,000 were Company funds and the balance was !& cj!5y 0i93i 
raised by Mr. Sweezey personally and probably at least in part < continued ) 
came out of the large profit made on the sale of the Syndicate 
assets to the Beauharnois Power Corporation, and, therefore, 
indirectly out of the moneys borrowed on the sale of the Com­ 
pany's bonds. Mr. Sweezey states (Evidence page 821) that he 
contributed personally to the Liberal Party "somewhere around 
$600,000 to $700,000. This large sum was paid to Senators Hay- 

20 don and Raymond. On page 822, Mr. Sweezey says that the total 
contributions to the Liberal party would run up well over $700,- 
000 and in this there was included a sum stated by Mr. Sweezey 
to be in the neighbourhood of $100,000 and by Mr. Griffith to 
be about $120,000, which were Company funds.

(3) Mr. Sweezey is unable to state how much was paid to 
them but he and Mr. Griffith agree that out of the sums paid 
to Senator Raymond, the Liberal Party of the Province of Que­ 
bec was to be taken care of. Mr. Sweezey says that he has no 

30 knowledge of how much went to the Province of Quebec nor does 
he tell how much of the total amount was paid each of these two 
Senators. He, however, ventures the statement that the amount 
received by Senator Raymond might have been in the neighbour­ 
hood of $200,000.

(4) On page 822, Mr. Sweezey is asked the question. 
"Then you spoke of contributions to the Conservative party. 
What amounts were they and to whom were they paid''? Answer 
— "They were small amounts. Some of them were to help personal 

40 friends whom I had been helping, as a matter of fact, for a num­ 
ber of years in their campaign work." Mr. Sweezev spoke of con­ 
tributing $6,000 to the campaign of Mr. Leslie Bell and Mr. Bell 
in his return under the Dominion Elections Act is said to have 
published this contribution as required by Section 80 of such Act. 
Contributions were also made, according to the testimony of Mr. 
Sweezey and Mr. Griffith, to General McCuaig, understood to 
be a collector for the Conservative Campaign Fund in Montreal, 
of $10,000. Mr. Sweezey is not clear as to whether there were any 
further contributions to the campaign fund of this party. Mr.
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Griffith, however, states that there was a contribution to Mr. 
Cartier and that the total contributions to Conservative candi­ 
dates or party organizers were $25,000. Mr. Sweezey, on the other 
hand, thinks that the amount was $30,000 but refers to Mr. Grif­ 
fith for the correct amount.

(5) Contributions were also made to Mr. W. R. P. Par- 
10 ker, President of the Ontario Liberal Association amounting to 

about $3,000. There was also a suggestion with reference to a 
proposed contribution to the Conservative Federal Campaign 
fund through its organizer, General McRae. This, however, was 
not made. Asked if the reason for its not having been made was 
that Mr. Bennett would not accept it, Mr. Sweezey in his reply 
said "I do not know that but I presume that may be so".

(6) There appears also to have been a contribution of 
$20,000 to Mr. Cartier on behalf of the Conservative Party of the 

20 Province of Quebec, but it does not appear clearly whether this 
was included in the sum of $30,000 above mentioned or in addition 
thereto. This item of $20,000 appears in a cheque of the Marquette 
Investment Corporation, dated the 7th March, 1931, payable to 
cash, endorsed by Mr. Sweezey and charged to accounts receivable, 
in respect thereto Mr. Sweezey says "I think probably that must 
be the item contributed to the Conservative Party in Quebec."

(7) Asked by Mr. Jacobs who got that money, the answer 
was "That went to the funds of the Conservative Party." Asked 

30 who received the money Mr. Sweezey states "Mr. Cartier, I un­ 
derstand it was on behalf of Mr. Houde's party."

The John Aird Jr. Payment

(8) This leaves but one further item to be discussed,—the 
sum of $125,000 paid by Mr. Griffith at the direction of Mr. 
Sweezey to Mr. John Aird, Jr., of Toronto. This sum as to $120,- 
000 thereof, was procured by a rather ingenious device; Mr. 
Griffith purchased 8,000 shares of the Marquette Construction 

40 Company, at $5 a share, for $40,000, and immediately purported 
to sell them to the Beauharnois Construction Company at $20 a 
share, for $160,000, and took out the difference, $120,000, in cash 
which he used to purchase through Newman Sweezey & Company 
Dominion Bonds of Canada at a par value of $120,000.

(9) Mr. Sweezey says (Page 823): "I know we made a 
contribution to some one who represented himself as standing up 
for an Ontario fund of this kind," and that this representation
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was made to him by Mr. John Aird, Jr. Asked what Mr. Aird said,
Mr. Sweezey 's answer is: "That he thought a contribution would D.w.. 2
be in order to the Ontario Conservative Party because we would
probably be having a lot more dealings with the Ontario people
and that gratefulness was always regarded as an important fac-
tor in dealing with democratic governments." ?9°*NoyPr(i93i

j ,-. (continued)

(10) The delivery of the bonds is said to have taken place 
some substantial time after the last Ontario general election, and 28 Cjuiy°i93i 
the conversation between Mr. Aird and Mr. Sweezey is said to < continued > 
have occurred some mouths before the delivery of the bonds, 
which were handed over on the 6th December, 1929.

(11) Mr. Aird says in his evidence that the first inter­ 
view with Mr. Sweezey took place at the Ritz Carlton Hotel, 
Montreal, in the early Pall of 1929, at a time when the Beauhar- 

20 nois organization was negotiating for a contract for the sale of 
electric power to the Hydro-Electric Power Commission from 
whom they obtained a contract for 250,000 h.p. at $15 per h.p., on 
or about the 21st November, 1929.

(12) Mr. Aird, evidence page 844) is asked whether the 
receipt of these bonds was 011 behalf of any political party, and 
his answer is "No." Asked on whose behalf it was, his answer is: 
"On my own." Asked this question: "Was it on behalf of any­ 
body, or was anybody interested but John Aird Junior personally 

30 in these particular bonds to the extent of $120,000'"? his answer 
is: "No, sir, decidedly not."

(13) On page 847 of the Evidence there appears the follow­ 
ing:

By Mr. Jacobs:

Q. It was not your intention to turn this over to the 
organization at all? — A. No, I did not give Mr. Sweezey 
any communication that I was going to do so. 

40 " Q. You swear to that?— A. Yes.
(14) On page 849, by Mr. Jacobs:

Q. You would swear you did not, directly or in­ 
directly, represent to Mr. Sweezey that you were an emis­ 
sary of the Conservative political organization in Toronto ? 
—A. Yes.

Q. You swear to that? — A. Yes, I do.
(15) Mr. Aird states that he belonged to no political or­ 

ganization of any kind and had not taken any interest in party
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30

politics, and also that the arrangement between him and Mr. 
Sweezey was purely a personal one between the two of them.

(16) Whether the truth lies on one side or the other, it 
is clear there is no evidence before the Committee that would indi­ 
cate that any of these bonds have reached any political organiza- 

10 tlon. or any person authorized to receive campaign funds.

(17) Mr. Aird's statement is svipported by the evidence 
of various Bank officials as per details set out hereunder. Mr. 
Aird further stated that the coupons were personally collected by 
Mr. Aird. (Evidence Page 974).

(18) The evidence establishes that the $120,000 par of 
bonds handed to Mr. Aird by Mr. Griffith on the 6th December, 
1929, have been dealt with as follows:

20
(A) Held for safekeeping or as collateral by the 

Eoyal Bank of Canada, the Canadian Bank of 
Commerce, and the Bank of Nova Scotia ........

(B) Sold ...............................................................................
(C) Exchanged ....................................................................

$ 65,000
5,000

50,000

The detail of the bonds exchanged is:— 
(1) $10,000 for £3, 100 U.T.P. 1962 .....

£2,600 held at Canadian Bank 
of Commerce account 
Concrete Masonry ............

Sold ..............................................

$ 120,000

£ 3,100

2,600
500

£ 3,100

(2) $10.000 for $11,000 Province of British Columbia 
1955 ............................................................................

Later exchanged for $11,500 
Province of Alberta 1957 
—of which held at Can­ 
adian Bank of Commerce 
for sake keeping .............. $ 9,500

Held at Royal Bank, account 
Champlain Construction 
Co. ...................................... 2,000

$ 11,500
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(3) $10,000 for $11,000 Toronto Harbour Commission 
1953 ............................................................................

Held at Canadian Bank of 
Commerce for sake keep­ 
ing ...................................... $ 5,000

Exchanged for Eglinton Hunt 1,000 
10 Sold ............................................ 5,000

$ 11,000

20

$ 11,000

(4) $10,000 for $12,000 Province of Saskatchewan 
1957 ..........................................................................

Held at Aird, McLeod & Co. as
collateral ............................ $ 4,000

Held at Royal Bank, account
Champlain Construction 8,000
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$ 12,000

$ 12,000

(5) $10,000 for $12,000 Hydro-Electric Power Com­ 
mission 1957 ........................................ ..................... $ 12,000

Held at Royal Bank, account
Champlain Construction $ 12,000

$50,000

30 Summary of Sales 
Bonds originally obtained

from Griffith .................... $ 5,000
Grand Trunk Pacific £500 say 2,500 
Toronto Harbour Commission 5,000

$ 12,500

Mr. Aird's evidence is that the proceeds of bonds sold were 
expended for his personal purposes.

(19) Neither Mr. Sweezey nor Mr. Griffith pretended to 
speak with exactitude as to the actual amount of moneys contri­ 
buted for political purposes. In this connection Mr. Sweezey says: 
"It was a very distasteful thing to me and I personally preferred 
not to know or remember much about it."

(20) Your Committee considers that return should be 
made immediately of any moneys improperly taken from the 
companies' funds for political subscriptions by those responsible 
for their extraction.
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20

(21) It is also to be observed that no pretence is made 
that the personal subscriptions were because of the adherence of 
Mr. Sweezey to any particular party and we are of the opinion 
that they were shamelessly, wastefully and needle-sly made for 
the express purpose of obtaining favourable consideration of 
the Company's proposals to the Government.

(22) That Mr. Sweezey was solicited for these contribu­ 
tions appears on page 822 of the Evidence, when in answer to 
Mr. Lennox he states: "I could not deliver that amount of money 
in one fell swoop. I had to scratch it up where I could from time 
to time." Further on, in speaking of the $10,000 campaign fund 
to General McCuaig, Mr. Lennox remarked: "You did not treat 
us very generously." Mr. Jacobs: "The fact that the party is in 
power is some indication." Witness: "They did not press me so 
hard, sir."

(23) The evidence on Page 826: 
By Mr. Lennox:

Q. You said Senators Raymond and Haydon were 
designated as the proper persons to whom you should pay 
this fund? Who designated them?" Answer: "Nobody 
specifically designated them; I just happened to know it; 
they came and told me they were."

14. Senator Haydon

(1) The first connection of- Senator Haydon with the 
Beauharnois project appears to be in 1924, when his firm incor­ 
porated for Senator McDougald and Mr. Henry the Sterling In­ 
dustrial Corporation on the 5th July of that year and made the 
application of that Company to the two departments of the Go­ 
vernment for the right to divert 30,000 c.f.s.

(2) His firm was retained by Mr. Sweezey for the Beau- 
40 harnois Power Syndicate in the fall of 1928 under somewhat pe­ 

culiar circumstances.

(3) Senator Haydon has been a member of the Senate 
since March llth 1924, and was known to Mr. Sweezey to be a 
member of the Liberal Party who collected campaign funds. The 
retainer was of an unusual character. The firm demanded in ex­ 
cess of $30,000 per year but Mr. Sweezey demurred and finally 
arranged that the firm of McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs would be 
paid the sum of $50,000, conditionally upon approval of its ap­ 
plication by the Governor in Council. On October 3rd, 1928, this
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firm received a cheque from the Marquette Investment Compa-
ny for $7,500 for legal services. On page 728, Mr. Sweezey says
in an interview with Mr. McGiveriu, "However, by a compromise
I agreed that if the thing got through, I would prefer to pay on
that basis; if it went through I would pay him $50,000, and a re- t
tainer for three years at $15,000... it is human nature to work i» NOV. 1931

1 i i • n t i i • xi .L X- _c -1 1 j 11 (continued)
10 harder at a price. Asked, in the event of failure what would _ 

happen, Mr. Sweezey's answer was "Well, he would have his £0tt5HonKrt 
expenses. At least I presumed that he would have to have his ex- 28 CjSy°i93i 
penses... I was sure he would charge me something for it." This < continu(!d> 
arrangement was apparently made, according to Mr. Sweezey, 
some time prior to the 2nd October, 1928 (Evidence Page 729).

(4) On the 2nd October, 1928, a transfer was made to Mr. 
Ebbs of the Haydoii firm, from Mr. Clare Mover of the. riter^st 
Mr. Mover then held in the Beauharnois Power Syndicate for 

20 Senator'McDougald.

(5) Mr. Ebbs, Senator Haydon's partner, acted as Syn­ 
dicate Manager for some time representing Senator McDougald. 
The Order in Council was approved, Senator Haydon's firm was 
paid $50.000 and thereafter received several cheques in pursu­ 
ance of the arrangement made with Mr. Sweezey by which that 
firm was to be paid a retainer of $15,000 per year.

(6) Senator Haydoii was a man of note and standing in 
30 his party and was recognized as one of the official organizers of 

the Liberal party in Canada. Senator Haydoii became the reci­ 
pient from Mr. Sweezey and the Beauharnois Company of sums 
of money for campaign purposes, said to be in excess of half 
a million dollars, and it is also to be noted that throughout this 
firm did not render any detailed bill for professional services, 
as shown by the vouchers (Exhibit Nos. 85 to 87 inclusive).

(7) In these circumstances, your Committee is of opinion 
that the acceptance of the above mentioned contingent retainer 

40 and of the $50,000 involved and of the campaign funds by Se­ 
nator Haydoii cannot be defended and is strongly condemned.

15 Senator Raymond

(1) Senator Raymond was appointed to the Senate on 
the 20th December, 1926. He, voluntarily, after the permission 
of the Senate had been granted, appeared before the Committee 
on the afternoon of the 16th July, 1931, and stated that he had 
subscribed on the 1st April, 1927, at the suggestion of Honour-
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able Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Prank P. Jones, for 800 units of the 
Beauharnois Syndicate at a price of $30,000, which he paid. These 
became 1,600 units in the second syndicate and as was his right, 
he subcribed for 1,600 further units, in the name of J. E. Le 
febvre, and made his holdings 3,200 units. On the whole trans­ 
action he realized as of the 17th December, 1929, $529,600 profit

10 and 14,040 shares of Class A stock of the Beauharnois Power 
Corporation, Limited. Senator Raymond sold all his originally 
acquired units at the same time that Mr. Frank P. Jones sold 
his at $550 per unit, and later Senator Raymond bought from 
W. G. Mitchell 350 units and from R, T. Fuller one unit in the 
Beauharnois Power Syndicate and he held these at the dissolu­ 
tion of the Syndicate on the 17th December, 1929. His total profit 
was as above mentioned. He states that neither at Quebec nor at 
Ottawa did he exert or attempt any political influence on behalf 
of the Beauharnois applications. His evidence is that he "did

20 nothing to push the deal." On page 794 of the evidence, Senator 
Raymond was asked:—

Q. Then are we to understand you to say, that 
having this interest in this project and knowing that there 
was a very strong opposition and a big fight being put up, 
you never turned a hand to help it at all?A. I do not 
know if there was anything in my power to do towards 
helping it.

Q. Well, you could help?—A. I thought the only 
30 help that I could give was to put my money in.

Q. I may take it then, from what you say, that we 
have your unequivocal statement that at no time did you 
attempt to exert your personal influence on behalf of this 
project?—A. At no time.

(2) At the conclusion of his evidence one of the mem­ 
bers of the Committee expressed the view that he ought to be 
commended for his frankness in giving his evidence. It was, 
however, later disclosed in evidence that according to the bill of 

40 Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud'homme, Counsel for the Beauharnois 
Syndicate (Exhibit No. 114) from September 10, 1927, to May 
23, 1928, there appear some sixteen entries charging for inter­ 
views with and telephones to and from Senator Raymond. An in­ 
terview appears to have taken place on one occasion with Hon­ 
ourable Mr. Mitchell and on another occasion in Ottawa with 
Senator McDougald.

(3) On page 391, Mr. Frank P. Jones states "I certainly 
asked Senator Raymond over and over again if he could not do 
something to get some action."

Defendant's 
Exhibit 
in Warranty 
at Enquete

D.W.-2 
Extract 
of Report 
of Special 
Parliamentary 
Committee on 
Beauharnois 
Power Proje-t 
19 Nov. 1931 

(continued)

Fourth Report 
to the House 
of Commons 
28 July 1931 

(continued)



— 254 —

Defendant's 
Exhibit

(4) It transpired when Mr. Sweezey returned to give atEnquete 
further evidence that Senator Raymond had received from Mr. BxtD.w.-2 
Sweezey some $200,000 of campaign funds for the Liberal party, of Report 
The commendable frankness would seein to require that Senator 
Raymond should have disclosed this to the Committee if he wished 
the Committee to understand that he was stating fairly his con- 

j[0 nection between the Government and the Beauharnois promoters.
Fourth Report 
to the House(5) In view of Mr. Sweezey's attitude throughout and §f8 c5S™°J| sl 

his views as to the necessity for political influence, it is hardly (continued) 
conceivable that Mr. Sweezey would pay this large sum of money 
over to Senator Raymond unless he at least was satisfied that the 
Senator's influence had been or would be worth the money and 
it is remarkable that Senator Raymond did not insist on making 
some explanation of his position in this regard, in view of his 
evidence. 

20
16. Senator Wilfrid Laurier McDougald

(1) Senator McDougald was first summoned to the Se­ 
nate on the 25th June, 1926, but owing to the dissolution of Par­ 
liament was not then sworn hi and his appointment lapsed. He 
was again summoned in October of that same year and was 
sworn in the following year. Since 1922, except for a short in­ 
terval in 1926 until 3930, Senator McDougald occupied the position 

o^ of Chairman of the Montreal Harbour Board and, as he stated 
in evidence, assumed a position of high responsibility in con­ 
nection with the development of the St. Lawrence Deep Water­ 
way.

(2) In May 1924, the then Dr. McDougald was appoint­ 
ed a member of the National Advisory Committee, whose mem­ 
bership included the Honourable G. P. Graham, as Chairman, 
and Honourable Clifford Sifton, and several gentlemen inte­ 
rested in existing hydro-electric power developments.

40
(3) On the 20th April, ]928, Senator McDougald was ap­ 

pointed a member of the Special Committee of the Senate to 
inquire into and report from time to time on the matter of the 
development and improvement of the St. Lawrence River for the 
purposes of navigation and production of electric current and 
power and matters incidental to such a project. That Committee 
held several meetings in the month of May, 1928, and to which 
reference will be made more specifically hereafter.
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(4) In 1923, Mr. McDwapii became associated with Mr. 
E. A. C. Henry, as has been previously pointed out in this report, 
and as a result the Sterling Industrial Corporation Limited was 
incorporated and applications made to the Departments of Pu­ 
blic Works and Railways and Canals on the 5th and 7th July, 
1924, as already indicated.

10 (5) From this small beginning, the interests of Senator 
McDougald have expanded until at the time of his giving 
his evidence he was Chairman of the Board of the Beau- 
harnois Power Corporation, Limited, elected on the 20th of 
December 1929, the holder of Management Preferred shares; a 
director of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, 
the Beauharuois Construction Company, the Beauharnois Land 
Company, and the Beauharnois Transmission Company.

(6) This expansion is almost comparable to the present 
20 Beauharnois project as compared with the original St. Louis 

feeder.

(7) The application of the Sterling Industrial Corpora­ 
tion was allowed to lie dormant until some time in 1928. On the 
18th of May, 1928, Senator McDougald agreed to take over 800 
units of the first syndicate which had been subscribed for by 
Mr. Clare Mover on the 4th of April, 1928 the day upon which 
that syndicate was dissolved, and upon which day a payment of 
$15,000 was made by Mr. Moyer, of moneys which he says he 

30 received in cash from Mr. Winfield Sifton. A further payment 
was made on the 18th of May, in an amount of $15,000 out of 
moneys which Mr. Moyer says were received by him from Mr. 
Sifton by way of a bank draft containing no information as to 
the person who was providing the funds.

(8) The 800 units thus acquired by Senator McDougald 
became 1,600 units on the formation of the second syndicate, and 
he in the name of Mr. Moyer, subscribed as he had the right to 

AQ do for 1,600 more units at a price of $100 per unit, and for which 
he agreed to pay $160,000 and on which at the dissolution of the 
syndicate on the 17th December 1929, he had paid $80,000.

(9) In the meantime, however, namely on the 2nd Oc­ 
tober, 1928, these had been transferred from Mr. Moyer to Mr. 
John P. Ebbs, a member of the Haydon firm, by reason of some 
instructions from Senator McDougald, about which there seems 
to be some insolvable mystery, and about which there need not 
have been any mystery at all if the transactions were an ordinary 
business one.
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(10) As previously pointed out, Senator McDougald * 
through his representative, Mr. Ebbs, acquired for the five issued 
shares of the capital stock of the Sterling Industrial Corpora- 
tion, Limited, 2,000 part interests in the second syndicate. Theset 1-1 r» i • i 11 Beauliarnoisunits were given for a corporation the rights of which, as has been Power^roj^t 
pointed out by Mr. Camerou, ,Chief Engineer of the Public (continued)

10 Works Department, on page 1019 of the evidence "would be of no _ 
value". The agreement was made in the fall of 1928, and the t^nS" 
Beauharnois Company considered these shares to be of such value 28 CjSy°i93i 
that they still remain endorsed in blank, and have never been (contlnued) 
transferred on the books of the Company. It can hardly be pre­ 
tended that this Company had any value, even as suggested, any 
"nuisance value" or was or could be thought to be any serious 
obstacle in itself to the application of the Beauharnois Light, 
Heat and Power Company to the Governor General in Council 
then pending. If so, there were two former applications in the

20 Department, one of which at least was based on an alleged ac­ 
quisition of the Robert rights which rights were the foundation 
of the Beauliarnois application. Still, the carrying out of the 
agreement was made conditional upon favourable action by the 
Governor General in Council, and it is beyond belief that had 
that Company not been owned by Senator McDougald, who re­ 
presented himself to be a close friend of the administration, and 
R. A. C. Henry, soon destined to become Deputy Minister of 
Railways and Canals or others equally influential, the Beauliar­ 
nois Power Syndicate would have hardly considered paying for

^ it even the nominal amount that had been subscribed as its capital 
stock, much less 2,000 units, which ultimately became $300,000 
in money and 80,000 shares of the Beauharnois Power Corpora­ 
tion Limited but would doubtless have received the same con­ 
sideration as was accorded the other prior applicants — namely 
the privilege of being completely ignored.

(11) It is suggested that the handing over of this large 
number of units was in order to induce Mr. Henry to go over to 

4Q the Beauharnois Company. Why any inducement, other than a 
doubling of his salary which actually occurred, should have beeui 
necessary in order to induce the man who had for at least six 
or seven years been most anxious to be connected with a Beau­ 
harnois project is difficult to understand, and your Committee 
cannot accept that as the explanation. On the contrary we are 
convinced that the "nuisance value" consisted in the necessity 
of a large inducement to Senator McDougald in order that he, 
a possible obstacle in the attainment of the objects of the syndicate, 
might become so vitally interested therein that any possible 
opposition on his part might be obviated.
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(12) That Senator McDougald was a factor in the 
success of this venture is apparent from the Proceedings of the 
Special Committee of the Senate above referred to, of which he 
was a member. It appears that on the 31st of May, 1928, he was 
instrumental in having Mr. Henry, then his partner in the 
Sterling Company, come before that Committee and answer 

10 certain questions. These questions had (See page 215 of the 
Proceedings) been prepared beforehand by Senator McDougald 
and submitted to Mr. Henry.

. (13) Mr. Sweezey in his evidence makes it very clear 
that the reason for his having done some of the extraordinary 
things which he did do was that time was of great importance 
from the standpoint of financing the enterprise, owing to the 
threatened financial crisis.

20 (14) On the 25th May, 1928, Mr. Aime Geoffrion, Chief 
Counsel for the Beauharnois Syndicate and who according to 
his bill for professional services had a number of interviews, 
starting on the 17th December, 1917, with Senator McDougald 
wrote to Senator McDougald urging that there was "no reason 
for delaying the application to the Dominion Executive for ap­ 
proval of the Beauharnois plans under the Navigable Waters 
Act."

(15) The last question which Senator McDougald asked 
30 Mr. Henry on this occasion, on the 31st of May, 1928, was as fol­ 

lows:

(Page 232 of the Committee's Proceedings).

Hon. Mr. McDoufjuld: The last question which I 
have, Mr. Henry, is, in your opinion should the improve­ 
ment of the St. Lawrence Waterway be gone on with as 
soon as possible, and if so, why?

It is to be recalled that thirteen days previously, on his own 
testimony, Senator McDougald had agreed to become interested 
in this enterprise to the extent of 800 Part Interests in the Beau­ 
harnois Syndicate.

(16) On the 19th of April, 1928, Senator McDougald in 
a speech delivered by him from his place in the Senate stated: 
"I want to say here, and to say it with emphasis, that I do not 
own a dollar's worth of stock in this enterprise, and have no

Defendant's 
Exhibit 
in Warranty 
at Enquete

D.W.-2
Extract 
of Report 
of Special 
Parliamentary 
Committee on 
Beauharnois 
Power Project 
19 Nov. 1931 

(continued)

Fourth Eeport 
to the House 
of Commons 
28 July 1931 

(continued)



Fourth Report 
to the House

— 258 —

Defendant's 
Exhibit 

. ..in Warrantyinterest u or association with that Company in any way, shape ~ 
or form".... "So far a:-; I myself am concerned I cannot add too 
much emphasis to my denial of the suspicions and aspersions 
which these despatches" (referring to despatches of the To­ 
ronto Mail and Empire and the Globe of April 18, 1928) "have 
cast upon me as a member of the Advisory Committee, as a mem- 

10 her of this honourable body, and as a private citizen."

(17) On the 20th of May, 1931, Senator McDougald, in 
referring to his former statement on this subject, and the date (contlnued > 
thereof, the 19th of April 1928, made the following statement 
from his place in the Senate: "Honourable Members of the 
Senate, before the orders of the day, I rise on a question of 
privilege. According to the newspapers of this morning my honour 
and integrity as a member of this House have been attacked in 
another place, and I desire to draw attention at once to a state- 

20 ment which I made in the Senate in April, 1928, regarding my 
position in the much-discussed Beauharnois Power Company. 
Newspaper articles had reflected on myself and other members of 
the National Advisory Committee reporting on the St. Lawrence 
Waterways. It was insinuated that our decisions and recom­ 
mendations were influenced by personal interest in power de­ 
velopment on the St. Lawrence. In this house I stated at the time 
that I had no interest in the Beauharnois Power Company or in 
the Syndicate. That was absolutely true and correct. I may 
say at once that up to that time...." (that is April 1928) "I had 
been invited on many occasions to become a member of that Syn­ 
dicate but had always declined. After that date I was asked 
again, and had the whole project investigated from every angle. 
When I was satisfied that it was a proper project for me as a 
member of this Senate, as a business man, and as a citizen of 
Canada, to take a financial interest in, I agreed to do so. Some 
six months later, in October, 1928, I took an interest in the Beau­ 
harnois Syndicate.''

^Q (18) On Page 930 of the Evidence appear these Ques­ 
tions and Answers:

By tlie Chairman:—

Q. That is not a correct statement, Senator, I sug­ 
gest to you?—A. I suggest, Sir, that it is a correct state­ 
ment.

Q. Then your evidence yesterday was wrong, be­ 
cause you bought from Sifton in May?—A. I did not
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30

appear in it until October. Mr. Ebbs was my representa­ 
tive in October, and I became active in it in October.

Q.—Is that your explanation for that statement?—
A. That is my explanation for that statement. I 

was in the syndicate—
Q.—Why, of course you were in the syndicate; here 

is your evidence ?—A. The end of May, 1930, and not when 
I made the speech in the Senate.

Q. You say in your speech distinctly that in October, 
1928, you first took an interest in the Beauharnois Syn­ 
dicate. Yesterday in your sworn testimony you admitted 
that you had purchased from Sifton in May, 1928?—A. 
That is correct.

Q. I suggest to you that your statement in the 
Senate was entirely wrong?—A. It may have been ambi­ 
guous, but it was not wrong. What I meant was I came 
into it in October through Mr. Ebbs. That is the- first time 
I came into it...."

Q. Just before you go on with that, Mr. White, I 
want to complete the question I was putting to the Sena­ 
tor a moment ago (To the witness). While you were mak­ 
ing this ambiguous speech, as you call it now, in the Se­ 
nate on the 20th May, 1931, of course you were interested 
with Mr. Henry in the Sterling Industrial Corporation— 
A. That is right.

(19) Further in his speech on the 20th May, 1931, Se­ 
nator McDougald said: "I might add that I paid into the syn­ 
dicate dollar for dollar with every other member of it."

(20) As previously pointed out in this Report, Senator 
McDougald, Senator Raymond, and Mr. Frank Jones, bought 
their units in the first syndicate for many fewer dollars per 
share than any other of the members, except possibly Mr. Swee- 
zey who got some of his for a consideration other than cash.

(21) It is also significant that Senator McDougald re­ 
ceived considerable sums of money from the Company for tra­ 
velling expenses.

(22) How one holding the high offices to which he had 
been called, as Chairman of the Montreal Harbour Board, mem­ 
ber of the National Advisory Committee on St. Lawrence Water­ 
ways a Senator of Canada, and a member of the Special Com­ 
mittee of the Senate, above referred to, and as he himself has
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stated, having a high regard for his public duties, should allow 
his private interest to . o interfere with his public1 duty that he 
found it necessary, speaking from his place in the Senate to be 
"ambiguous" and incorrect it is difficult for your Committee to 
understand.

19 Nov. 1931
(23) Senator McDougald's actions in respect to the (continued) 

Beauharnois project cannot be too strongly condemned.
17. James B. Hunter, Deputy Minister of Public Works, 

and Mr. Kenneth McKenzie Cower on, Chief Engineer of that De- 
partment were called as witnesses and gave evidence. The Com- (coiitlniiea ) 
mittee desires to say that the evidence, of neither of these officers 
appeared to be given in the manner which one might expect from 
Departmental Officials.

18. Present Financial Position
(1) The Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Beauharnois 

20 Power Corporation Limited and subsidiaries, as of the 31st De­ 
cember, 1930, dicloses:—

1. Capital Stock—
5 Management Preferred Shares, no par .... $ 5.00 
1,799,995 Class A Common Shares, no par 1,799,995.00

$ 1,800,000.00
2. Funded Debt- 

Collateral trust sinking fund 6% bonds, due 
30 1st October, 1959 ................................................ 30,000,000.00

$31,800,000.00 
The assets consist of—

Cost to date of property rights and power 
development in the course of construc­ 
tion .............................................................. $28,768,816.53

Securities on deposit with the Quebec Pro­ 
vincial Government and the Hydro- 

40 Electric Power Commission of Ontario,
etc. ................................................................ 1,021.385.00

Investments (Brubacher et al) ...................... 200,168.00
Sundry accounts receivable ............................ 221,434.67
Cash and marketable securities held by the

Royal Trust Company in escrow .......... 2,325,546.67
Cash on hand and in bank ................................ 186,130.73

$32,723,481.60 
Less sundry liabilities ...................................... 923,481.60

$31,800,000.00
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The item of $28,768,816.53 is made up as follows- 
Real Estate ........................................................
Construction accounts ......................................
Equipment and temporary construction less 

depreciation ................................................
Engineering expenses ......................................
Interest during construction ..........................
Property rights and interest ..........................
Miscellaneous ....................................................

5,189,783.82
6,193,497.17

3,012,337.33
1,081,431.59
1,338,795.43

11,357,888.87
595,082.32

$28,768,816.53
The item for property rights and interest of $11,357,888.87 

20 is made up of the items set out in Exhibit No. 127, and consists in 
part as follows:—

Issue of 10,000 part interests at $100 
each to members of the Beauhar- 
nois Syndicate, as of 4th April, 
1928, as part consideration for 
the taking over of assets and un­ 
dertaking of Beauharnois Syndi­ 
cate .................................................. $1,000,000

30 Less net book value of assets acquired 261,000 $ 739,000
Issue to J. P. Ebbs, 2,000 part inte­ 

rests Beauharnois Power Syndi­ 
cate, consideration for acquisi­ 
tion of capital stock of Sterling 
Industrial Corporation ......................

Amount paid to Beauharnois Power
Syndicate 17th December, 1929,
as part consideration for the ta-

40 king over of Beauharnois Power
Syndicate undertaking ........ $4,750,000

Less net book value of assets acquired 2,500,000

200,000

2,250,000

$ 3,189,000
Note this figure represents the profits made by the Syndi­ 

cates and in-cludes $1,000,000 which was used'to purchase 1,000,000 
shares Beauharnois Power Corporation at $1 per share—the ac­ 
tual cash profit to the Syndicate members being $2,189,000.
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20

Further items in Exhibit No. 127 are:—
Discount of 10% on issue of $30,000,- 

000 Beauharnois Power Corpo­ 
ration Limited, 6% collateral 
trust sinking fund bonds, due Oc­ 
tober 1, 1959, underwrite!! at 90 ....................

770,000 shares of Beauharnois Power 
Corporation, Class A Common 
stock issued to underwriters, on 
which a book value of $1 per 
share was placed .............................................

Purchase by Beauharnois Construc­ 
tion Company of 8,000 shares of 
capital stock of Marquette Con­ 
struction Corporation at $20 per 
share ................................................ $ 160,000

$ 3,000,000
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770,000

Less issued price 40',000 120,000

$ 7,079,000

An unaudited statement of the 31st of May, 1931, exhibit
No. 128, as compared with the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
the 31st December, 1930, disclosed that the property account had
increased by $5,781,185.74 to a total of $34,550.002.27, as com-

30 pared with $28,768,816.53.

The Royal Trust Company escrow fund had been decreas­ 
ed by $1,430,396.67 for payments made to the Company for out­ 
goings. Cash on hand had decreased by $113,857.31.

(2) In the liabilities the most important increase is a 
bank loan of $3,500,000 secured by the hypothecation of $5,250 000 
of bonds of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, 
being part of an issue of $20,000,000 bonds authorized for tem- 

40 porary purposes 011 the 15th day of January, 1931. At present 
the bank loans are, according to Mr. Griffith, about $6,000,000 
secured by the hypothecation of $9,000,000 of these bonds.

(3) Accrued interest of bonds had been decreased by 
$150,000 which means that having regard to the monthly accrual of 
interest amounting to $150,000 in the interval between Decem­ 
ber 31st, 1930, and May 31st 1931, $900,000 of bond interest had 
been paid. Miscellaneous accounts payable had increased by 
$881,770.75 to an amount of $1,355,252.35.
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(4) As the situation now stands, the promoters of the 
Beauhaniois Project involving the exploitation of a great natural 
resource have been able to secure to themselves a return of all 
moneys advanced by them or any of them, a profit of $2,189,000 
in cash and 1 000,000 Class A Common shares, which if saleable 
at the market quotation would at one time have been worth 

10 $17,000,000 and at to-day's quotation of $4 per share, would be 
worth $4,000,000. This cash profit was paid out of moneys bor­ 
rowed by the Beauharnois Corporation Limited by the sale of its 
bonds.

(5) According to Mr. Henry, in order to complete the 
project up to the point where 500000 h. p. will be produced, they 
will require a further sale of bonds in a capital amount of 
$46,000,000. If this were accomplished the power project would 
have been constructed completely on borrowed money and the 

20 promoters would be in control of this vast enterprise owning 
1,620,000 of the Class A shares out of a total issue of 1,799,995 
and also the 5 Management Preferred shares which for 10 years 
give to the under-writers practical control of the Company's af­ 
fairs and all of this without the present investment of any 
money.

Your Committee Recommend*:

1. That the Parliament of Canada take such action as 
30 may be within its power, and without prejudicing the rights of 

the Province of Quebec, to procure the development of this pro­ 
ject in such a manner as will best serve the people of Canada.

2. That should the rights of the Dominion and the Prov­ 
ince of Quebec come in conflict, every effort be put forth to arrive 
at a satisfactory agreement, so that the project may not be im­ 
perilled by delay.

.„ 3. That definite action be taken to preserve the rights of 
navigation and the complete jurisdiction of Parliament in res­ 
pect thereto.

4. That the Order of Eeference, the Report of the Com­ 
mittee, the Minutes of Proceedings, the Minutes of the evidence 
taken ,and the exhibits filed, be printed as an appendix to the 
Journals of the House.
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5. That a copy of this report be remitted to the Speaker 
of the Senate for the information of that House.
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6. That such of the Exhibits as have not been read into 
the rcc ord and are not on departmental files were referred to be 
copied and the originals thereof be returned to the person pro- 
ducing the same.

Beauharnois

All of which is respectfully submitted.
10

W. A. Gordon,

DEPENDANT'S EXHIBIT D.W-1 IN WARRANTY
AT ENQUETE.

Certified copy of Extract from the minutes O'f the hoard of di- 
rector* of Beauharnois Power Corpn, Ltd. held on Nov. 19/31.

Beauharnois 
Power

20 BEAUHARNOIS POWER CORPORATION LIMITED Limited
19 Nov. 1931

Extract from the minutes of a meeting- of the Board of Directors 
held on November 19, 1931

The Secretary reported that no legal retainers had been 
paid subsequently to August 31st, 1931, and that the only re­ 
tainer payable by the Company for which there was any con­ 
tractual obligation was that of Lacoste & Lacoste at One thousand 
dollars ($1,000) per annum up to October 1st, 1934.

30
After discussion, on motion duly seconded, it was unani­ 

mously Resolved that the action of the officers in discontinuing 
the payment of retainers other than a retainer to Lacoste & La­ 
coste, be approved; that the services of Dr. A. Plante and Mr. 
G. H. Rioux be dispensed with from November 30th, 1931; that 
the allowance payable to Mrs. W. B. Sifton be discontinued from 
November 30th, 1931, and that the other matters referred to in 
the letters of Messrs. P. S. Ross & Sons he submitted to the Ad­ 
visory Committee for report to the next meeting of this Board.

40 SEAL
Certified a true copy.

L. C. Christie
Secretary.

Beauharnois Light, Heat 
and Power Company— 

Incorporated 1902.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P.W-9 IN WARRANTY 
ON DISCOVERY

List of Cheques. 

MARQUETTE INVESTMENT CORPORATION

Payments made to W. B. Sifton

Voucher no. AmountDate
1927
Sept.

Oct.
20

Nov.

Dec.

1928
30 Jan.

Mar.

Apr.

20
29
]3
29
9

16
22

7?>
17
22a

9a.
16
30

6
22
12
14
25

Marquette Inv
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.

do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.
do.

40

May 14 
25

do. 
do.

64
69
73
75
82
86
87
93
94

101
109
110

113
117
127
137
153
164
188
189
195

$ 128.23
144.38
92.33
74.00
68.00
72.00

127.45
37.50

221.01
178.41
171.25

1,400.00

290.21
144.75

2,000.00
1,500.00
537.07

1,000.00
566.25
114.45

3,000.00

(Photostat Copy)

218
232

1,318.25
1,128.98

$14,314.52
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Payment made to R. O. Sweezey to reimburse him 
for payment made to W. B. Sifton.

Date 
1928 
Apr. 16

10
Marquette Inv.

Voucher no. Amount 

191 $5,000.00

Payment made to Col. Victor Sifton for 
account of W. B. Sifton.
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(continued)

1928 
June 19

20

1930 
Feb. 25
Nov. 8

1931 
Feb. 27 
June 8

30

Marquette Inv. 265 $10,094.95 

Payments made to Mrs. W. B. Sifton

Beau. Power Corp. 
Beau. L.H. & P.

Beau. Power Corp. 
do.

R120 
244

M201 
M220

Payments made to Mrs. W. B. Sifton from 
Pavroll Account.

$2,000.00 
500.00

3,500.00
2,000.00

$8,000.00

1931

40 June 20
July 25

23
Aug. 25 
Nov. 19

Beau. L.H. & P. 
do. 
do. 
do. 
do.

Cheque No.

954
1000
1031
1082
1279

$300.00 
300.00 
300.00 
300.00 
900.00

$2,100.00
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-10 AT ENQUETE ITB«.W
16 April 1932

Letter from C. Sifton to If. 0. Sivcczcy.

10 PLAXTON, SIFTON & Co.
Barristers, Solicitors, &e.

Toronto 2, Canada
16th April, 1932. 

Mr. R. O. Sweezey,
c/o Newman, Sweezey & Co. Limited, 

Investment Bankers, 
136 St. James Street, 

Montreal, Quebec.
20

Dear Mr. Sweezey:
Re: Your Agreement with the late 

W. B. Sifton
Upon reviewing the affairs of Winfield's Estate, of which 

I am an executor and for which I act as Solicitor, I notice your 
letter of 14th July, 1928 addressed to my brother Victor, reading 
as follows:

"You may wonder why I have not written as promise:! in 
30 regard to confirming my agreement with Win. The delay 

is due to my secretary's absence on her holidays and she 
has the private file well locked up. I am afraid now that 
I shall be leaving before she returns and there may be a 
further delay of some three weeks. Your sincerely, R. O. 
Sweezey.''
Victor left Toronto not long after that and I can find 

nothing further about the matter.
We have always understood that Winfield had an agree- 

40 merit with you, which will entitle his Estate to further money 
and, as this is the last matter outstanding, I am anxious to clean 
it up at the earliest possible date.

I would, therefore, appreciate hearing from you as to the 
exact terms of the agreement and if there is anything outstand­ 
ing, I would very much appreciate receiving it on behalf of the 
Estate as soon as possible.

Yours very truly, 
CS/PL. Clifford Sifton
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" Sifton

23 April 1932

..Letter from R. O. Sweezey to C. Sifton.

10 R. O. SWEEZEY, (B.Sc, M. E. I. C.)
Consulting Engineer 
210 St. James St. W.

Montreal, April 23rd, 1932.

Mr. CLIFFORD SIFTON,
Messrs. Plaxton, Sifton & Co., 
Canada Permanent Building, 
Toronto, 2, Ont. 

20
Dear Mr. Sifton:—

I apologize for the delay in replying to your letter of 
April 16th, which came during my absence.

In regard to an agreement between myself and your brot­ 
her — there never was any written agreement as far as I can 
remember. Our plans changed so much from day to day that we 
kept putting off a final draft of what we thought would be a 

30 satisfactory arrangement. Since ybur Brother's death, how­ 
ever, we have made payments from time to time to Mrs. Sifton, 
and I am having a statement of this prepared to send to you.

Because of the many political difficulties that we have 
been having, since last summer I have never felt myself in a po­ 
sition where I could suggest a definite arrangement with Mrs. 
Sifton to complete with her a plan for compensation for your 
Brother's activities. The feeling in the Company is that the 

,~ Beauharnois Corporation does not owe your Brother's estate 
anything, and I think legally this is correct. I had felt, however, 
that Mrs. Sifton might be entitled to some stock, but as this has 
lost its value there is left very little to consider further. How­ 
ever, I shall be glad to have a talk with you on my next visit to 
Toronto, when I shall make it my business to give you a call.

Yours faithfully,

Received 25/4/32. R. O. Sweezey. 
Envelope marked personal.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-28 AT ENQUETE
Copy of letter addressed to Sweezey.

27th April, 1932. 
10 Mr. R. 0. Sweezey,

Consulting Engineer, 
210 St. James St. West, 

Montreal, Quebec.
Re: W. B. Sifton Estate

Re: Agreement with the late W. B. Sifton
Re: $50,000.00 payable upon the approval

of the Beauharnois Plans by the
Dominion Government 

Dear Mr. Sweezey:
I have been digging through the record of Winfield's Es­ 

tate and have come across a series of letters which evidence a 
clean-cut agreement to pay Winfield Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($50,000.00) upon the approval of the Beauharnois Plans by the 
Dominion Government without the production of any evidence 
that such passing of plans was due to his aid or efforts.

I have no doubt that you have your copies of letters, which 
are as follows:

6 Sep. 1927, Letter yourself to Winfield. 
28 Sep. 1927, Letter yourself to Winfield. 
15 Oct. 1927, Letter yourself to Winfield. 
17 Oct. 1927, Copy of letter Winfield to yourself. 
19 Oct. 1927, Letter yourself to Winfield. 
23 Oct. 1927, Letter Winfield to yourself.

Mrs. Winfield Sifton was provided for by a trust esta­ 
blished by Winfield for the purpose and is not a beneficiary un­ 
der his Will. His daughter, Betty, inherits the whole estate but 
is not entitled to any of the capital assets until he end of a cer- 

40 ain period fixed in the Will.
Unfortunately, therefore, payments made to her cannot ap­ 

ply upon any obligation owing to the Estate.
On account of the importance of this matter and of the 

fact that it has just come to the knowledge of the Executors after 
the lapse of this considerable period of time, we are anxious to 
obtain the money and settle up the matter with the least reason­ 
able delay.

Yours very truly, 
CS/PL.

30
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K, O. Sweeze;

Letter from C. Sifton to R. 0. Sweezey. 12 May 1932

PLAXTON, SIFTON & CO. 
10 Barrister, Solicitor, EC.

Canada Permanent Building
Bay and Adelaide Streets.

Toronto 2, Canada.
12th May, 1932.

Mr. R. O. Sweezey,
Consulting Engineer,

210 St. James St. West, 
Montreal, Quebec.

20 Re: W. B. Sifton Estate
Re: Agreement with the late W. B. Sifton

Re: $50,000.00 
Dear Mr. Sweezey:—

I have been expecting you to call upon me during your 
visit to Toronto to discuss this matter, as suggested in your letter 
of the 2nd instant, but have been disappointed by your failure to 
do so.

30 A careful perusal of the documents discloses a clear-cut 
undertaking by you to pay to Winfield Fifty Thousand Bailors 
($50,000) upon the happening of an event which took place a 
long time ago.

Inasmuch as Winfield's Estate while owning an interest 
in frozen assets of considerable value, has had outstanding since 
his death cash obligations in excess of the amount owing by you 
to him upon which the Estate has had to pay interest and, in 
view of the further fact that you alone have been familiar with 

4Q your obligations to him and his Estate during all this time, we 
feel that as Executors of his Estate we should obtain the money 
from you with the least possible delay.

We are willing to make any reasonable arrangement with 
regard to the actual payment of the amount but we must insist 
that the matter receive your immediate attention.

Yours very truly,
Clifford Sifton.

CS/PL.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-14 AT ENQUETE.
Letter from R. 0. Sweezey to C. Sifton.

BEAUHARNOIS POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
University Tower

10 Montreal. 
Clifford Sifton, Esq., 
Messrs. Plaxton, Sif7ton & Co., 
Canada Permanent Building, 
Bay & Adelaide Sts., 
Toronto 2. Canada.
My Dear Mr. Sifton:—

—Re: W. B. Sifton Estate—
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13th May, 1932.

20

30

I have your letter of the 12th May, and regret that I was 
unable to see yoii in Toronto the day I attended the enquiry. As 
there was a meeting of the Beauharnois Committee in Ottawa 
the same night, I had to hustle away on the afternoon train.

I may say that the present situation in which the Beau­ 
harnois Company finds itself, has left me without any capital 
whatsoever, and unless the Company is reorganized on a basis in 
accordance with my ideas, I shall be left with nothing. On the 
other hand I am hoping to get back into the saddle to carry the 
enterprise through to its proper conclusion, and had been count­ 
ing on this happening long before the present date, at which 
time I had in mind making some arrangement with Mrs. W. B. 
Sifton, whereby the Company would carry on with her by allow­ 
ing a certain income on a basis similar to the one which was ope­ 
rative about a year ago.

If you can leave this matter in abeyance until such time 
as I am in authority, I believe that an arrangement satisfactory 
to Mrs. Sifton and yourself may be brought about.

My getting back into the picture of course is dependent 
upon several factors, in all of which I am exerting myself to the 
utmost, but meanwhile it is desirable that this information be 
treated as confidential.

If I should be in Toronto soon, I shall then remain over 
to talk with you, otherwise, if you find it convenient to be in 
Montreal at any time, please give me a call.

Received May 14-1932
Plaxton, Sifton & Co.

Yours very truly,
R. O. Sweezey.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-8 Sifton

Copy of letter from the Defendant to> Clifford Sifton. " June 1932
June llth, 1932. 

10 Mr. Clifford Sifton,
Executor Estate Winfield Sifton,

Dear Sir,—
In consideration of the executors' undertaking not to press 

this matter for six months from today, I hereby acknowledge that 
I owed Winfield Sifton at his death, subject only to ap­ 
proval of Beauharnois plans at Ottawa, the sum of fity thou­ 
sand dollars, this being an undertaking I made in connection 
with Beauharnois Syndicate whose assets and liabilities were as- 

20 sumed by Beauharnois Power Corpn. Ltd.
Yours truly,

"R. O. Sweezey"

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-29 AT ENQUETE
Exhibit

Copy of letter from C. Sifton to R. 0. Sweezey *»««.*
P-29

13th June, 
30 Mr. R. O. Sweezey,

c/o Newman, Sweezey & Co., 13 June 1932 
210 St. James St. West, 

Montreal, Quebec.
Personal and Confidential 

Dear Mr. Sweezey:
I thank you for your kindness to me on Saturday and for 

your frankness in going over the matter of the obligation to 
Winfield's Estate and for your admitting the facts.

40 On behalf of the Executors I undertake not to press the 
matter of the collection of the Fifty thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) 
which you acknowledge owing, for a period of six months from 
the llth June, in accordance with your handrwritten letter which 
you gave to me on Saturday.

Thanking you again, I remain,
Yours very truly,

CS/PL.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-18 AT ENQUETE 
Letter from R. O. Sweezey to C. Sifton.

R. 0. SWEEZEY
(B.SC, M.E.I.C.) 

Consulting Engineer
210 St. James St. W.

Montreal, 17th June/33 
Dear Mr. Sifton,

I regret to say that though I was in Toronto recently I 
was there only a few hours and was unable to call on you

In a few days I expect to be there again however and will 
make it my business to see you.

Yours sincerely,
R. O. Sweezey 

Mr. Clifford Sifton,
Canada Permanent Bldg. 

Toronto.
Received June 19 1933. 

Plaxton, Sifton & Co.
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30 PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-30 AT ENQUETE 

Letter from Sifton to R. 0. Sweezey.
July 27, 1933. 

Mr. R. 0. Sweezey, 
Consulting Engineer, 
210 St. James Street West 
Montreal, Quebec.

Re: W. B. Sifton Estate and
R. 0. Sweezey — $50,000.

40 Re: Beauharnois. 
Dear Mr. Sweezey:

I am informed that the new officers of the Beauharnois 
Co. have been duly elected and am anxious to press the matter 
of the Estate's claim as promptly and vigourously as possible.

I am not familiar with the Quebec limitations upon Court 
proceedings but there is some question under our Ontario laws 
with regard to the limitation of your right of relief over against 
the Beauharnois Co. after the lapse of six years.

P-30
Letter from 
C. Sifton to 
R. O. Sweezey 
27 July 1933
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Iii any event the W. B. Sifton Estate still has large cash p—0 
obligations and the executors are not able to allow this matter c esieftofn0tS 
to be delayed further. *

(continued)
As I see the situation, the Estate claim is against you per­ 

sonally while you would no doubt join the other members of a 
syndicate, for whom you informed me you had authority to act, 
and they in turn would no doubt join the Beauharnois Co. which 
as you informed me took over the assets and assumed the liabi­ 
lities of the syndicate.

We would however, be perfectly willing to make a new ar­ 
rangement with your consent, with the Beauharnois Co. to settle 
this obligation upon reasonable terms of payment and thus avoid 
the trouble and expense of legal proceedings.

While we would greatly regret the necessity of taking pro­ 
ceedings against you in this matter, we would have no other op- 
tioii than to commence such proceedings at the beginning of Sep­ 
tember next, unless before that time the payment of this claim is 
satisfactorily provided for.

We sincerely hope therefore, that you will be able to see 
the new officers of the Beauharnois Co., explain to them the full 
circumstances connected with this claim and obtain their definite 
decision as to whether they will recognize the same and proceed 
to pay it, before the beginning of September next.

Yours very truly,
Plaxton, Sifton & Co.

Per 
CS:LF

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-19 AT ENQUETE.
E. O. Sweezey

Letter from R. 0. Sweezey to C. Sifton. mS?01*
5 Sept. 1933

R. O. SWEEZEY & COMPANY. LIMITED
210 St. James Street W. 

Montreal.
September 5tli, 1933. 

Mr. CLIFFORD SIFTON, 
Canada Permanent Bldg., 
Bay and Adelaide Streets, 
Toronto, 2, Out.
Dear Mr. Sifton:—

In regard to the problem of collecting from the Beauhar­ 
nois Company on behalf of your Brother's Estate, I have been
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giving this considerable thought and am now preparing a me­ 
morandum, to be addressed to the President of the Beauharnois

Plaintiff's 
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P-19 
Letter from

Power Corporation. In this connection I would appreciate your to'Clifford
sending me a copy of the letter which I wrote your Brother, and 
in which it was agreed that he should receive Fifty Thousand 
Dollars ($50,000) when the Order-in-Council was passed in Ot- 

10 tawa.

The reason I would like to have this letter is that all the 
Beauharnois Syndicate files are in the possession of the Beau­ 
harnois Power Corporation, and I have not access to them.

It seems to me that the indebtedness of the Beauharnois 
Power Corporation to your Brother can be shown clearly enough, 
considering that all legal fees were paid by the Syndicate and all 
liabilities of the said Syndicate were assumed by the subsequent 

20 organization, which became the Beauharnois Power Corporation. 
As a further indication of the Corporation's indebtedness to your 
Brother's Estate, you will recall that several payments were 
made to Mrs. Sifton on account, pending the completion of the 
Order-in-Council approving the engineering details of the work. 
The then President of the Corporation, including the Secretary, 
approved these payments in accordance with undertakings that 
were made to your late Brother.

30
After I have completed the memorandum to the Beauhar­ 

nois Power Corporation I should like to submit it to you for ad­ 
vice, as you might possibly offer some valuable suggestion to 
hastening a settlement of this long delayed matter.

With best regards, I am,

ROS.HMK.

Yours sincerely,
R. 0. Sweezey.

Sifton 
5 Sept. 1933 

(continued)

40
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-20 AT ENQUETE. 

Copy of letter address to Mr. Sweezey.

6th September, 1933.

Mr. R. O. Sweezey,
c/o B. O. Sweezey & Co. Limited, 

210 St. James St. West, 
Montreal, Quebec.

Re: W. B. Sifton Estate
Re: R. O. Sweezey $50,,000.00

20 Re: Beauharnois

Dear Mr. Sweezey:—

I thank you for your letter of the 5th instant re. this 
matter.

I enclose photostatic copies of your letter to Winfield, 
15th October, 1927, his reply to you, 17th October, 1927, and your 
further letter to Winfield, 19th October, 1927, which I think set 

30 forth the agreement arrived at.

I would be very glad indeed to do everything in my power 
to assist in the prompt collection of the monies owing to the 
Estate and, as I have already said, I feel in duty bound to press on 
with this matter.

Plaintiff's 
Exhibit 
at Enquete

P-20
Copy of letter 
from Clifford 
Sifton to 
R. O. Sweezey 
6 Sept. 1933

With best regards, I remain,

40 OS/PL.
Yours sincerely,
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P-22 
Letter from

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-22 AT ENQUETE.
19 Sept. 1933

Letter from R. A. C. Henry to\ Mr. Sweezey.

10 BEAUHARNOIS LIGHT HEAT AND POWER
COMPANY

Room 405, Power Building 
Montreal.

September 19th, 1933.

R. O. Sweezey, Esq., 
Newman Sweezey and Company, 
210 St. James Street W., 

20 Montreal, Quebec.

Dear Mr. Sweezey: —

Your letter of September 15th in regard to the late W. B. 
Sifton has been duly received. I will bring the matter to the 
attention of the Board of our next meeting and advise you later in 
respect thereto.

Yours faithfully, 
30 R. A. C. Henry.

RACH:DMA 

Dear Mr. Sifton :—

This is the letter I received in reply to my memo, for the 
attention of the board of Beauharnois.

I expect they will meet shortly. 
*u

R. O. S.
Received Sept. 25-1933. 
Plaxton, Sifton & Co.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-21 AT ENQUETE
Plaintiff's

Copy of letter address to Mr. Sweezey.
22nd September, 1933.

Mr. R. O. Sweezey, fsriTonC1tio"ord 
c/o R. O. Sweezey & Co. Limited,

210 St. James St. West, Montreal, Quebec.
10 Re: W. B. Siftoii Estate Re: R. O. Sweezey— $50,000.00

Re : Beauharnois. 
Dear Mr. Sweezey: —

Kindly let me know what progress you have made in this 
matter.
CS/PL. Yours very truly,

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT P-26 AT ENQUETE
fc Plaintiff's

^ Letter from R. O. Sweezey to C. Siftou.
R. O. SWEEZEY & COMPANY, LIMITED

20th December, 1933. Clifford Sifton, Esq., 20 Dec ' 1933 
Canada Permanent Building, 
320 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario.
Dear Mr. Sifton: —

„„ I have your letter of the 19th December, in regard to the 
W. B. Sifton Estate claim on Beauharnois.

It is my intention to be in Toronto next Wednesday, the 
27th, when I shall have a talk with you on this matter. Mean­ 
while I am again pressing the Beauharnois Company to get them 
to act.
ROS :S. Yours very truly,
Received Dec. 21-1933 R, 0. Sweezey. 
Plaxton, Sifton & Co.

40

Record approved:

WELDON & LYNCH-STAUNTON,
Attorneys for Appellants.

ERROL LANGITEDOC, Esq., K.C.,
Attorney for Respondent.
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CERTIFICATE OF CLERK OF APPEALS ln court of
King's Bench

We, the undersigned, Alphonse Pouliot and Clovis La- ofe ciMkate 
porte, K.C., Clerk of Appeals of His Majesty's Court of King's of Appeals 

10 Bench, for the Province of Quebec, do hereby certify that the 
present transcript from pages one to two hundred and seventy- 
eight is the record as stated by the parties and as ordered by 
judgment of the Honourable Mr. Justice Hall rendered on the 
27th November, 1936, for the appeal to His Majesty's Privy 
Council in a certain cause lately pending, in the said Court of 
King's Bench, between Clifford Sifton et al, (Plaintiffs) Appel­ 
lants and Robert O. Sweezey, (Defendant) Respondent.

And contains true and lawful copies of the original papers, 
20 documents, proceedings and of judgments of His Majesty's Su­ 

perior Court for the Province of Quebec sitting in the City of 
Montreal:

And also true copies of the proceedings of the said Court 
of King's Bench (Appeal Side) and the final judgment therein 
rendered on the said appeal instituted by the said Appellants.

In faith and testimony whereof, we have, to these presents, 
set and subscribed our signature and affixed the seal of the said 

30 Court of King's Bench, (Appeal Side).

Given at the City of Montreal, in that part of the Dominion 
of Canada, called the Province of Quebec, this day 
of in the year of Our Lord one thousand nine 
hundred and thirty-seven.

POULIOT & LAPORTE, 
L.S. Clerk of Appeals.
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CERTIFICATE In
King's Bench

I, the undersigned, Honourable Severin Letoumeau, one Certlficate 
of the Justices of the Court of King's Bench (Appeal Side) of 

10 the Province of Quebec, do hereby certify that the said Alphonse 
Pouliot and Clovis Laporte, K.C., are Clerk of the Court of 
King's Bench, on the Appeal Side thereof, and that the initials 
"P and L" subscribed at every eight pages and the signature 
"Pouliot & Laporte" of the certificates above written, is their 
proper signature and handwriting.

I do futher certify that the said Pouliot & Laporte as such
Clerk, are the Keeper of the Record of the said Court, and the
proper Officer to certify the proceedings of the same, and that

20 the seal above set is the seal of the said Court, and was so affixed
under the sanction of the Court.

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and • 
seal, at the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec, this 

day of in the year of Our Lord one 
thousand nine hundred and thirty-seven and of His Majesty's 
Reign, the first.

30 SEVERIN LETOURNEAU, 
L.S. J.C.K.B.


